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MEMORIES OF UNCLE JACKSON 

"I was born in 1851, in the yard where my owner 

lived next door to the City Hall. I remember when they 

was finishin' up the City Hall. I also remember the foreman, 

Mr. James Walker, he was general manager. The overseen. 

(overseer) was Mr. Keen. I remember all the bricklayers; 

they all was colored. The man that plastered the City Hall 

was named George Price, he plastered it inside. The men 

that plastered the City Hall outside and put those colum's 

up in the front, their names was Robert Finey and William. 

Finey, they both was colored. Jim Artis now was a contractor 

an' builder. He done a lot of work ' round Wilmin'ton. 

"Yes'm, they was slaves, most all the fine work 

'round Wilmin'ton was done by slaves. They 

artisans. None of 'em could ready but give 

they could foller it to the las' line." 

Interviewer: "Did the owner collect 

Uncle Jackson?" 

"No, maim. That they did'n. We had 

artisans ' mongst our folks. They all lived 

they famtlies. They hired theyselves where 

They colWted they -pay, an' the onliest thing the owner took 

was enough to support they fan' lies. They all lived in our 

labor 

called ' ern 

'e  em any plan an*. 

the pay for the 

a lot of them 

on our place with 

they pleased. 
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yard, it was a great big place, an' they wimmen cooked for ' em 

and raised the chilluns. 

mYou know, they lays a heap o' stress on edication 

these days. But edication is one thing an' fireside trainint 

is another. We had fireside trainin'. 

"We went. to church regular. All our people marched 

behind our owners, an' sat up in the galley cYf the white 

folks church. Now, them that went to St. James Church behind 

their white folks didn' dare look at nobody else. ' Twant 

allowed. They were taught they were better than anybody 

else. That was called the ' silk stockin' church. Nobody 

else was fitten to look at. 

"My mother was the laund'ess for the white folks. 

In those days ladies wore clo'es, an' plenty of ' em. My 

daddy was one of the part Indian folks. My mammy was brought 

here from Washin'ton City, an' when her owner went back home 

he sold her to my folks. You know, round Washin'ton an' up 

that way they was Ginny (Guinea) niggers, an' that's what my 

mammy was. We had a lot of these malatto negroes round here, 

they was called "ShUffer Tonies", they wasf1,ee issues and 

part Indian. The leader of ' em was James Sampson. We 

child' en was told to play in our own yard and not have 

nothin' to do with free issue chil'en or the common chil'en 

'cross the street, white or colored, because they was'nt fitten 

to.'sociate with us. You see our owners was rich folks. 



3. 4 

Our bi house is the one where the ladies of Sokosis 

(Sorosis) has their Laub House, an' our yard spread all 

round there, an' our house servahts, an' some of the besi 

artisans in Wilmin'ton lived in our yard. 

"You know, I'm not tellin' you things what have been 

told me, but I'm tellin' you things I knows. 

"I remember when the Zoabbes company came from Georgia 

here to Wilmin'ton an' they had all ladies as officers.* 

nI remember when the Confederates captured part of 

the Union Army at Fort Sumter, S. C., and they brought them 

here to ailmin'tbn and put them out under Fourth Street 

bridge, and the white ladies of Wilmin'ton, N. C. cooked 

food and carried it by baskets full to them. de all had 

plenty of food. A warehouse full of everything down there 

by the river nigh Red Cross Street, an' none of us ever 

went hungry ' till the war was over. 

"I remember when sa n'ral Grant's Army came to the 

river. They mounted guns to boombar the city. Mr. John 

Dawson an' Mr. Silas Martin, they went on the corner of 

Second an' Nun Streets on the top of Ben Berry's house 

an' run up a white sheet for a flag, an' the Yankees didint 

*Note: Have not been able to verify this memory, and think 
perhaps the unusual uniforms of the Zoaves caused the small 
bog to think they were women, or some adult may have amused 
themselves by telling him so. 
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boombar us. An' Lir. i,iartin gave his house up to the Progro 

i,,arshells, and my mother cleaned up the house an' washed 

for them. Her name was Caroline West. 

"I remember when that Provo Zarshell told the colored 

people that any house in -dilminiton they liked, that was 

empty, they could go take it, an' the first one they took 

was the fine Bellamy Lansion on Larket an' Fifth Street." 

"Uncle Jackson", asked the interviewer, "don't you 

remember that house was headquarters of the Federal Army? 

How could colored people occupy it?" 

Uncle Jackson: "I don't remember nothin' about 

Federal soldiers bein' in that house, but I'm tellin' 

you I knows a lot of common colored folks was in it because 

I seen ' em sittin' on the piazza an' all up an' down those 

big front steps. I seen ' em. Hice colored people wouldn't 

'a gone there. They had respect for theirselves an' their 

white folks. But Dr. 3elLamy came home soon with his family 

ant those colored people got out. They wanit there long. 

"Endurin' of slavery I toted water for the family to 

drink. I remember when there was springs under where the 

new Court House is now, and all the white folks livin' 

'round there drank water from those springs. They called 

it Jacob Spring. There was also a spring on -liarket Street 

between Second and Third Streets, that was.called. McCrayer 

(McCrary) spring. They didn't ' low nobody but rich folks - 

to get water from that spring. Of coise I got mine there 
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whenever I chose to tote it that far. We didin' work so 

hard in those days. I don't know nothin' about field 

han's an' workmen on the river, but so far as I knows the 

carpenters an' people like that started work at 8 o'clock 

A. M. and stopped at 5 o'clock P. M. Of course ' round 

the house it was different. Our folks done pretty much 

what the white folks did because we was all pretty much 

one an' other. 

"Diu I ever know of any slaves bein' whipped? I 

seen plenty of ' em whipped over at the jail, but them was 

bad nibgers, (this with a grimace of disgust, and shaking 

of the head) they needed whippin'. But (with a chuckle) 

I sho' would have hated to see anybody put they han's an 

one of my akfterts people. We was all ' spectable an' did'n 

know nothin' about whippen. Our mammy's spanked us aplenty, 

yes mam they did. 

III remember when they didn't have no trussels ' cross 

either river, an' they had a passages boat by the name of 

Walker Moore, an' the warf was up there by the Charlotte 

railroad (S. A. L.) The Boat would take you from there to 

the bluff ant then you would have to catch the train to 

go to Greensboro, and other places in Nolth Carolina. 

"I remember when the Fourth Street Fire Department 

bell was in front of the City Hall. An' Mr. Maginny had 

his school right back of the City Hall. 

• "1 believe we was all happy as slaves because we 



7 

had the best of kere (care). I don't believe none of us 

was sold off because I never heard tell of it. I have 

always served nice folks an' never ' sociated with any 

other kind. I brought up Mis ------ts chil lren an' now she 

gives me a life intrust in this place I lives.in. I havtnt 

never to say really wanted for anything. I havtnt never 

bothered with wimmen, an' had nothin' to bother me. 

III must tell you ' bout Golither Dudley's -election! 

an' the free issue ni6:gers. They say :uir. Dudley told ' em 

if they'd vote for him he'd do more for ' em than any man 

ever had. So they voted for him an' he was elected. Then 

he ups an' calls a const'utional convention in Raleigh 

an' had all the voting taken away from ' em. An' that the 

big thing he done for ' em.* 

*Note: Governor Dudley was elected before Uncle Jackson 
was born, but he enjoyed thoroughly telling this joke 
on the ' free issue niggers'. 



320275 

0 1. 1°L 

N. C. District No. 2 

Worker Mary. A. Hicks  

No. Words  920  

Subject EX—SLAVE. STORY 

Story teller Ben Johnama 

Editor Daisy Bailey Waitt 



320275 

EXI-SLAVE STORY 

An interview with Ben Johnson 85 of Hecktawn, Durham, Durham 
County, May 20, 1937. 

Uncle Ben) who is nearly blind and who walks with a 

stick)was assisted to the porch by his wife who eat dawn 

near him in a protecting attitude. He is much less striking 

than his wife who is small and dainty with. perfect features 

and snow white hair worn in two long braids down her back* 

She wore enormous heart shaped earrings, apparently of 

heavy gold; while Uncle Ben talked she occasionally prompted 

him in a soft voice. 

wuz 'horned in Orange County and I belonged ter 

Mr. Gilbert Gregg near Hillsboro. I doan know nothin" !bout 

my mammy an , daddy, but I had a. brother Jim who wuz sold_ 

ter dress young missus fer her weddin". De tree am still 

standint what' I set under an' watch ' em sell Jim. I set 

dar ant I cry an' cry, ' specially when dey puts de chain* 

on him an carries him off, an' I ain't neber felt so 

lonesome in my whole life. I ain't neber hyar from Jim 

since an' I wonder now doMetimes if'en he's still livint* 



"I knows dat de marster wuz good ter us ant he fed 

an' clothed us good. We had our own gyarden an' we wuz 

gittin , long all right. 

"I seed a whole heap of Yankees when dey corned ter 

Hillsboro an' most of ' em ain't got no respeck fer God, man, 

nor de debil. T can't 'member so much 'bout ' em do' cause 

we lives in town an' we has a gyard. 

Ne most dat I can tell yo' 'bout am de al Klux. I 

neber will fergit when dey hung Cy Guy. Dey hung him fer a 

scandelous insult ter a white'oman an' dey corned atter him  

a hundert strong. 

"Dey tries him dar in de woods, an' dey scratches 

Cy's arm ter git some blood, an' wid dat blood dey writes 

dat he shall hang Itween de heavens an' de yearth till he 

am daid, daid, daid, ant dat any nigger what takes down de 

body shall be hunged too. 

"Well ear, de nex, mornin' dar he hung, right ober 

de road an' de sentence hangin , ober his hid. Nobodylud 

bother mid dat body fer four days an' dar hit hung, swingint 

in de wind, but de foutth day de sheriff comes an' takes hit 

down.) 

"Dar wuz Ed ant Cindy, who 'fore de war belonged ter 

Mr. Lynch ant atter de war he told ' em ter move. He gives 

'am a. month an' dey ain't gone, so de Ku Kluxes gits 'ea. 
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("Hit wuz on a cold night when dey corned an' drugged 

de niggers outtn. bed. Dey carried ' em down in de woods ant 

whup dem, den dey throws ' em in de pond, dere bodies breakiut 

de ice. Ed come out ant come ter our house, but Cindy ain't 

been seed since. 

"Sam Allen in Caswell County wuz tolt ter move ant 

atter a month de hundtet Ku KlUx come a-totinl his casket 

an' dey tells him dat his time has come an' ifien he want 

ter tell his wife good bye an' say his prayers hurry up. 

ney set de coffin on two cheers ant Sam kisses his 

ole oman who am a-cryint, den he kneels down side of his 

bed wid his haid on de piller an' his arms throwed out front 

of him. 

"He sets dar fer a minute an' when he riz he had a 

long knife in his hand. 'Fore be could be grabbed he dons 

kill two of de Ku Kluxes wid de knife, an' he dons gone 

outin de dot. Dley ain't ketch him nother, an' de next night 

when dey coined back, 'termined ter git him dey shot another 

nigger by accident. 

Imembers seem' Joe Turner, another nigger hung 

at Hillsboro in '69 but I plumb fergot why it wuz. 
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"I know one time Miss Hendon inherits a thousand 

dollars from her pappy's ' state ant dat night she goes wid 

her sweetheart ter de gate, an' on her way back ter de house 

she gits knocked in de haid mid a axe. She screams a& her 

two nigger sarvants, Jim ant Sam runs ant saves her but she 

am robbed. 

"Den she tells de folkses dat Jim an' Sam an de 

guilty parties, but her little sister swears dat dey ain't 

so dey gits out of it. 

"Atter dat dey fin's out dat it am five mens, Atwater, 

Edwards, Andrews, Davis an' Markham. De preacher comes down 

to whar dey am hanginl ter preach dar funeral ant he stanle 

dar while lightnie plays roun' de dead mans haids an' de 

win' blows de trees, an he preaches sich a sermon as I ain't 

neber hyard before. 

"Bob Boylan falls in love wid another oman so he 

burns his wife ant four youngins up in dere house. 

"De Ku fluxes gits him, of course, an' dey kinnes 

him high on de old Red oak on de Hillsboro Road. Atter dey 

hanged him his lawyer says ter us boys," 'Bury him good, boys, 

jist as good as you'd bury me if'en I wuz daid. 
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"I shuck han's wid Bob 'fore dey hunged him an' I 

he'ped ter bury him too an , we bury him nice aal we all 

hopes dat he done gone ter glory. 
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ISAAC JOHNSON 
m il ington, North Carolina, 
Route 1, Harnett County. 

*I am feelin' very well this mornile, while I don't 

feel like I used to. I done so much hard work, t'm 'bout 

all in. Dey didn't have all dese new fangled. things to do 

work ant go 'bout on when I wus a boy. No, no, you jest 

had to git out ant do all de work, most all de work by and. 

I wus ten years old when de Yankees come through. I wus 

born Feb. 12, 1855. 

*I belonged to Jack Johnson. my missus' name wus 

Nancy. My father wus Bunch Matthews; he belonged to old 

man Drew Matthews, a slave owner. My mother wus named Tina 

Johnson. She belonged to Jack JohnsDn, my marster. The 

plantation wus near Lillington, on the north aide o' de 

Cape Fear River and ran down to near de Lillington Cross 

roads one mile from de river. I had one brother and six 

sisters. My brother wus named Phil and my sisters name 

Mary, Caroline, Francis and I don't remember de others 

names right now. Beervso long since I saw any of tem. 

Dey are all dead. Yes sir, dey are all dead. I do not 

remember my grandpa and grandma. No sir, I don't. 
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"I wus too smnll to work, dey had me to do little 

things like feedint de chickens, an' mindinl de table 

sometimes; but I wus too small to work. Dey didn't let 

children work much in dem days till dey were thirteen or 

fourteen years old. I had plenty to eat, good clothes, 

a nice place to sleep ant a good time. Marster loved his 

slaves ant other white folks said he loved a nigger more 

den he did white folks. Our food wus fixed up fine. It 

wus fixed by a regular cook who didn't do anything but 

cook. We had gardens, a plenty o/ meat, a plenty, an' mot 

biscuit den a lot ot white folks had. I kin remember de 

biscuit. I never hunted any, but I vent bird blindinl an' 

set bird traps. I caught lots 0 birds. 

"Jack Johnson, my marster never had no children of 

his own. He had a boy with him by the name of Stephen, a 

nephew of his, from one of his brothers. Marster Jack had 

three brothers Willis, Billy, and Matthew. I don/ remember 

any of his sisters. There was 'bout four thousand acres 

in de plantation an' 'boat 25 slayys. Marster would not 

have an overseer. 

"No sir, de slaves worked very much as they pleased. 

He whupped a slave now an' then, but not much. I have 

seen him whup tem. He had some unruly niggers. Some of 
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'em were part Indian, an' mean. Dey all loved him doe. 

I never saw a slave sold. He kept his slaves together. 

He didn't want to git rid of any of ' em. We went to de 

white folks church at Neil's Creek a missionary Baptist 

Church. 

"We played during the Christmas holidays,:" an' we 

got 'bout two weeks 4th of July-, and lay by time; which 

wus 'bout the fourth. We had great times at corn shuckin's, 

log rollin's and cotton pickin's. We had dances. Marster 

lawed his slaves lots 0 freedom. my mother used to say 

he wus better den other folks. Yes, she said her marster 

wus better than other folks. 

"The white folks didn't teach us to read ant write. 

I cannot read ant write, but de white folks, only 'bout 

half or less den half, could read ant write den. Dere 

were very few pore white folks who could read an' write. 

I remember de baptizin's at cle Reuben Matthews Mill Pond. 

Sometimes after a big meetinEJ dey would baptize twenty four 

at one time. No slaves run away from Marster. Dey didn't 

have any souse to do so, cause whites and colored fared 

alike at Marster's. We played base, cat, ro4y hole, and 

a kind of base ball called 'round town. 
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"Dr. John McNeill looked after us when we were sick. 

We used a lot of herbs an' things. Drank sassafras tea an' 

mullen tea. We also used sheep tea for measles, you knows 

dat. You know how it wus made. Called sheep pill tea. 

It shore would cuore de measles. 'Bout all dat would 

cuore measles den. Dey were bad den. Wus den diy is now. 

"I aaw Wheeler's Camalry. Dey come through ahead 

of de Yankees. I saw colored people in de Yankee uniforms. 

Dey wore blue and had brass buttons on tem. De Yankees ant 

illeeler's Cavalry took everything dey wanted, meat, chickens, 

an' stock. We stayed on wid Marster after de war. I've 

never lived out of de state. We lived in de same place 

ontill old Marster an' Missus died. Den we lived wid deir 

relations right on an' here. I am now on a place deli' 

heirs own. 

"Ole Marster loved his dram, an' he gave it to 

all his slaves. It sold for ten cents a quart. He made 

brandy by de barrels, an' at holidays all drank together 

ant had a good time. I never saw any of ' em drunk. People 

wan't mean when dey were drinking den. It wus so plentiful 

nobody notices it much. Marster would tell de children 

'bout Raw Bead and Bloody Bones an' other things to skeer 

us. Be would call us to de barn to git apples ant run ant 
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hide, ant we would have a time findin' him. He give de 

one who found him a apple. Sometimes he didn't give de 

others no apple. 

"I married Ellen Johnson May 22, 1865 de year de 

war went up, ant my wife is livint as you see, an' able 

to be about. I'm not able to work, not able to go out 

anywhere by myself. I know I °ain't las' much longer 

but I'm thankful to de Lord for sparint me dis long. 

AC 
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TINA JOHNSON 
Ex-Slave Story 

An interview with Tina Johnson 85, S. Bloodworth Street, 
Raleigh. 

"I wuz bawned in Richmon 12 Georgia 'round eighty-

five years ago. My mammy wuz named Cass ant my father, 

dat is my stepfather wuz named John Curtis. I got de 

name of Johnson frum Gent]. Johnson, I doan know who my 

real daddy wuz. 

"My mammy belonged ter a Mist Berry who wuz pretty 

good ter her, but we ain't had nothint but de coarsest 

food ant clothes. I had one brother name Dennis ant me 

an' him wucked wid de others in de cotton patch. 

"We had done moved nigh Augusta when Sherman come, 

ant Shermants sister wuz a-livint in Augusta. Dat's de 

reason dat Sherman missed us, case he ain't wantint ter 

'sturb his sister none. 

"I ain't seed nary a'Yankee, but fer two days an' 

nights I hyard de guns roarin' an' felt de earth shakint 

lak a earthquake wuz hittinl it. De air wuz dark an' de 

clouds hunged low, de whole earth seemed ter be full of 

powder ant yo' nostrils seemed lak dey would bust wid de 

sting of it. 
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''Atter de surrender we stayed on ant went through 

de Ku Klux scare. I know dat de Ku fluxes went ter a 

nigger dance one night ant whupped all of de dancers. Ole 

Larster Berry wuz mad, case he ain't sont fer em at all 

an' he doan want dem. 

"Seberal years atter de war mammy married John 

Curtis in de Baptist church at Augusta, an' me ant Dennis 

seed de ceremony. I pulled a good one on a white feller 

'bout dat onct. He axed me if I knoweu dat my pappy ant 

mammy wuz married 'fore I wuz borned. I sez ter him dat 

I wonder if he knows whar his mammy an' pappy wuz married 

when he wuz borned. 

"We coined ter Raleigh 'fore things wuz settled 

atter de war, an' I watches de niggers livin' on kush., 

colnbread, 'lasses an' what dey can beg an' steal frum 

de white folkses. Dem days shore wuz bad." 

AC 
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EX-SLAVE STORY 
BOB JONES 

An interview with Bob Jones, 86 years of age, County Hame l 
Raleigh, North Carolina. 

"I wus borned in Warren County on de plantation' longint 

ter Mister Logie Rudd. My mammy wus Frankie. My-pappy wus 

named "arry Jones* Him an' my Ides' brother Burton 'longed 

ter a Mister Jones dar in de neighborhood. 

"Marster Logie an 1 young Larster Joe wus nice as dey 

could be, but MI& Betsy wus crabbed an' hard ter git along 

wid. She whupped de sarvants what done de house work any 

she fussed so bad dat she moughty nigh run all us crazy. 

Hit wus her what sold my Aunt Sissy Aim ant hit wus her what 

whupped my sister wary so bad. Dar warn't but six of us 

slaves but dem six run a race ter see who can stay outen her 

sights 

ungMarster Jbe wus one of de fust ter go ter de war 

an' I wnated ter go wid him but I bein' only fourteen dey, 

tcided ter sent Sidney instead I hated dat, ' case I shorely 

wanted t.r go. 

e neber seed ltiari3e Joe but twice atter he left, de 

time when his daddy -wua buried aia l when day brung his body 

.home *OM de tram 
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"One day about seben or eight Yankees corned trount our 

place lookint fer Bela. aeoute, dey said, but de,/ ain't fin' 

none so dey goes on 'bout dere business. De next day a few 

of our soldiers brings Marse Joe's body home frum de war. 

"1 doan tmemb:r whar he wus killed but he had been dead 

30 long dat he had turned dark, an' Sambo, a little nigger, 

sez ter me, ' 1 thought, Bob, dat i'ud turn white when I 

:ent ter heaben but hit ' pears ter me lak de white folkses 

am zwine ter turn black.' , 

"We buried young Larse Joe under de trees in de family 

buryinl grount an' we niggers sung Swing Low Sweet Chariot 

ant Learer i4 God to Thee an , some others. De ole missus 

wus right nice ter evertbody dat day an' she let de young 

misaus take charge'of all de business frum dat time. 

"de stayed on de Rudd plantation fer two years atter 

de war, den we moves ter Method whar I met Edna Crowder. 

We courted fer seberal months an' at last I jist puts my 

arm trount her waist an' I axes her ter have me.' She ain't 

got no mammy ter ax so she kisses me an' tells me dat she 

will. 

nilurint de course of our married life we had five 

chilluns but . only one of, d:em lived ter be named, dat wus 

acinth, an he died ' fore he was a month old. 

"Edna died too iidx: years ago ant left me ter de 

'All my bruddera aiatera dead, 
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my parents dead, my chilluns dead, an' my wife dead, but I 

has got a niece. 

"Till lately I been livint at de Wake County Home, but 

my niece .what lives on Person Street says dat iffen I can 

.git de pension dat she can afford ter let me stay ter her 

house. I hope I does, ' case I doan want ter go back ter 

de County Home." 
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CLAM JONES 
408 Cannon Street 

"I been unable ter work fer 10 years; I am blind. I 

been in bed helpless fer four years. I eats all I can get, 

and takes what I am told ter take. De Lord helps me, I am 

depending on him. He put me into ‘de world and he cah take 

me out. I was 17 years old at de surrender. My missus wus 

Dillie scott. I wus a Scott before I married William Jones. 

.darster wus Aaron Scott. I loved my white folks. Hain't 

:ot no word ter say against tem. Don't think de Government 

goin , to help me any; I have been fooled so many times. We 

all should fix our salvation right that's the thing that 

counts now. 14 time is 'bout spent here. 

"De white folks went off to de war; dey said dey 

could whup, but de Lord said, ' No' l and dey didn't whup. Dey 

went off laffinl, an' many were soon cryin', and many did not 

come back. De Yankees come through, dey took what dey wanted; 

killed de stock; stole de horses; poured out de lasses and • 

cut up a lot of meaness, but most of lem is dead and gone now. 

No matter whether dey were Southern white folks, or Northern 

white folks, dey is dead now. 

"I am helpless, my son, de baby., who is de only livin' 
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chile I has, takes care o' me. My son is a Baptist Minister, 

but he has no Church. He stays here, and looks after me. 

He is forty years old. He has heart disease, and his lungs 

are bad. He has no regular job, so some times we have very 

little ter eat. Our water is cut off now. We never have 

money to buy any ice. We have had only one ten cent piece 

of ice this summer. Sometimes my son sets up wid me All  

"Maybe de Lawd will help us sometime. I trusts him 

anyway. Yes, I trusts de Lawd." 

AC 
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CLARA JONES 

An interview with Clara Jones of 408 Cannon Street, 
Raleigh, North Carolina. 

"I doan know how old I is but I wus borned long 

time ago case I wus a married loman way fore de wir. We 

lived on Mr. Felton McGee's place hear in Wake County. 

wurked lak a man dar an' de hours wus from sunup till 

dark mostly. He ain't had but about fifty slaves but he 

makes dem do de wurk of a hundret an' fifty. We ain't 

had no fun dar, case hit takes all of our strength ter 

do our daily task. Yeslum we had our tasks set out ever' 

day. 

"One day, right atter my fifth chile wus borned, 

I fell out in de fiel'. Marster come out an' looked at 

me, den he kicks me an"lows, 'a youngin' ever' ten 

months ant never able ter wurk, I'll sell her'. 

"A few days atter dat he tuck me an' my two youngest 

chilluns ter Raleigh an' he sells us ter biarse Rufus Jones. 

"Marse Rufus am a good man in ever , way. He fed 

us good an' he give us good clothes an' we ain't had much 

wurk ter do, dat is, not much side of what we had ter do 

on McGee's plantation. 
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"We had some fun on Marse Rufus' plantation, 

watermillion slicin's, candy pullints, dances, prayer 

meetin's an' sich. Yes mam, we had er heap of fun ant 

in dat time I had eleben chilluns. 

"My husband, Williamj still stayed on ter Mister 

started, 

courtin' 

got married in 1860, de year ' fore de war 

I think. I can't tell yol. much 'bout our 

case hit went on fer years an' de Marster wanted 

us ter zit married so's dat I'd have chilluns. When de 

slaves on de McGee place got married de marster always 

said dat dere duty wus ter have a houseful of chilluns 

far him. 

"When de Yankees come Sally, Liarse Aufus' 

wife cried an' ordered de scalawags outen de house but 

dey jist laughs at her an' takes all we got. Dey ebeia 

takes de stand of lard dat we has got buried in de ole 

fiel' an' de hams hangin' up in de trees in de pasture. 

Atter dey is gone we fin's a sick Yankee in de barn an' 

ids' Sally nurses him. Way atter de war last Sally gits 

a letter an' a gol' ring from him. 

"When de news of de surrender comes Mist Sally 

cries ant sez dat she can't do widout her niggers, so 

Marse Rufus comes in an' tells us dat we can stay on. 
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an' 

"William moves dber dark, takes de name of Jones 

goes ter farmin' wid a purpose an' believe me we makes 

our livin'. We stay dar through all of de construction 

days an/ through de time when de Ku Kluxes wus goin 1 wild 

an 1 whuppin's all de niggers. We raise our elebea-chilluns 

dar an' darts whar my husbant died in 1898 ant den I comes 

ter Raleigh. 

"I wurked till four years ago when I had a stroke 

now I ain't able ter wurk an , I she' does want my pension. 

yot tell dem ter sent hit in de next mail." 
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Abner Jordan 

Ex—slave,95 years. 

"I wus bawn about 1832 an' I WVA bawl at Staggsville, Marse Paul 

Cameron's place. I belonged to Marse Paul. My pappyts name WVA Obed 

an' my mammy wus Ella Jordan ant dey wus thirteen chillux on our family. 

I wus de same age of Young Marse Benehan, I played wid him ant wus 

his body guard. Yes,suh,Whare ever young Marse Benehan went I went too. 

I waited on him. Young Liarse Benny run away an' ' listed in de war, but 

glarse Paul done went ant brung him back kaze he wus too young to go and 

fight de Yankees. 

:iarse Paul had a heap if niggahs; he had five thousant. When he meet 

dem in de road he wouldnt know dam ant when ha azed den who dey wus ant who 

dey belonged to, dey' tell him dey belonged to Mai- se Paul Cameron ant den 

he would say dat wus all right for den to gb right on. 

Ly peppy wus de blacksmith ant foreman for Marse Paul, ant he blew de 

horn for de other niggahs to come in from de fielt at night. Dey couldnt 

leave de plantation without Marse say dey could. 

When de war come de Yankees come to de house ant axed my mammy whare 

de folks done hid de silver ant golf, ant dey say dey gwine to kill mammy if 

she didnt ,tell den. But mammy say she didnt knaw whare dey put it, ant 

dey would just have to kill her for she didntknow an' wouldnt lie to keep 

den from hurting her. 
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De sojers stole seven or eight of de hotses ant fount de meat art 

stole dat, but dey didnt burn none of de buildints nor hurt any of us 

slaves. 

pappy ant his family stayed wid Marse Paul five pars aftar de 

surrender den we moved to Hillsboro ant Its always lived frount dese 

parts. I aint never been out of North Carolina eighteen months in my 

life. North Carolina is good enough for me. 
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JANE LASSiihat 
About 80 years old. 
324 Battle Street 
Raleigh, N. C. 

"I am 'bout 80 years old. I am somewhere in my 

seventies, don't zackly know my age. I wus here when de 

Yankees come ant I ' member seem' dem dressed in blue. 

I wus a nurse at dat time not big enough to hold a baby 

but dey let me set by de cradle ant rock it. 

"All my white folks dead ant all my people am dead 

an' I haint got no one to ax 'bout my age. Dey had my 

age an' my mother's age in de Bible but dey am all dead out 

now an I don't know whur it is. 

"My mother ant me belonged to the Councils. Dr. 

Kit Council who lived on a plantation in de lower edge of 

Chatham County, 'bout three miles from New Hill. My 

father belonged to de Lamberts. Their plantation wus near 

Pittsboro in Chatham County. My father wus named Macon 

Lambert an' his marster wus named At Lambert. Our missus 

wus named Caroline an' father's missus wus named Beckie. 

My grandfather wus Phil Bell. He belonged to the Bells. 

They lived in Chatham County. My grandmother wus namPd 

Peggy aa' she belonged to de same family. 
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"We lived in little ole log houses. We called 

'en cabins. They had stick an' dirt chimleys wid one door 

to de house an' one window. It shet to lak a door. 

"We did not have any gardens an' we never had any 

money of our own. We jest wurked fer de white folks. 

"We had plenty sumptin to eat an' it wus cooked 

good. My mother wus de cook an' she done it right. Our 

clothes wus home made but we had plenty shiftinl clothes. 

Course our shoes wus given out at Christmas. We got one 

pair a year an' when dey wore out we got no more an' had 

to go barefooted de rest of de time. You had to take 

care of dat pair uv shoes bekase dey wus all you got a 

year. The slaves caught game sometime ant et it in de 

cabins, but dere wus not much time fer huntin' dere wus 

so much wurk to do. 

"Dere wus 'bout fifty slaves on de plantation, ant 

dey wurked from light till dark. I 'member dey wurkin' 

till dark. Course I wus too small to 'member all 'bout 

it an' I don't 'member ' bout de overseers. I never seen 

a slave whupped, but I 'members seem' dem carryin' slaves 

in droves like cows. De white men who wus guardin' ! an 

walked in front ant some behind. I did not see any cbains. 

I never seen a slave sold an' I don't 'member ever seem' 

a jail fer slaves. 
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'Were wus no books or larninl uv any kind allowed. 

You better not be ketched wid a book in yore han's. Dat 

wus sumptin dey would git you fer. I ken read an' write 

a little but I learned since de surrender. My mother 

tole me 'bout dat bein"ginst de rules of de white folks. 

I ' members it while I wus only a little gal. When de 

Yankees come throl. 

"Dere wus no churches on de plantation an' we wus 

not ' lowed to have prayer meetings in de cabins, but we 

went to preachin' at de white folks church. I ' member 

dat. We set on de back seat. I 'member dat. 

'No slaves ever run away from our plantation 

cause marster wus good to us. I never heard of him bein' 

'bout to whup any of his niggers. Mother loved her white 

folks as long as she lived an' I loved 'em too. No mister, 

we wus not mistreated. Mother tole me a lot 'bout Raw 

Head an' Bloody Bones an' when I done mean)she say, 

'Better not do dat any more Raw Head an' Bloody Bones 

gwine ter git yo'.' Hal hal dey jest talked 'bout ghosts 

till I could hardly sleep at nite l but de biggest thing 

in ghosts is somebody Iguised up tryint to skeer you. 

Ain't no sich thing as ghosts. Lot of niggers believe 

dere is dol. 
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"We stayed on at marsters when de surrender come 

cause when we wus freed we had nothin' an' nowhere to 

o. Dats de truth. Mister, dats de truth. We stayed 

with marster a long time an' den jest moved from one 

plantation to another. It wus like dis, a crowd of tenants 

would get dissatisfied on a certain plantation, dey would 

move, ant another gang of nijgers move in. Dat wus all 

any of us could do. We wus free but we had nothin , scept 

what de marsters give us. 

"When we got sick, you sees we stayed wid a doctor, 

he looked after us, but we had our herbs too. We took 

sassafras tea, catnip an , horehound tea an' flag. Flag 

wus good to ease pain. Jest make a tea of de flagroots 

an' drink it hot. 

"I married Kit Lassiter in Chatham County ant I 

had seven chilluns. Three boys an' four girls. All am 

dead but two. Two girls are livin'. One named Louie 

Finch, her husband dead. She stays wid me an , supports 

me. She cooks an' supports me. My other livint daughter 

is Ventra McLean. She lives across de street wid her 

husband. Her husband had a stroke an' ain't able to 

wurk no more. Dey live on five dollars a week. Dey ain't 

able to help me now. I moved ter Raleigh 20 years ago. 

My husband died here. 
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"I heard 'bout de Ku Klux but dey never give our 

family no trouble cause we didn't give ' em no cause to 

bother us. I don't know all 'bout slavery but I ' members 

aere wus a lot of big fat greasy niggers goint around, 

an' I reckin dey fared good or dey wouldn't a been qo fat. 

Dey got plenty to eat even if dey did wurk tem. 

"I believe slavery wus all rite whur slaves wus 

treated right. I haint got miff edication to tell you 

nothin"bout Lincoln an' dem udder men. Heard leca say he 

come throl l reckon he did too. I belong to the ' United 

Holiness Church'." 
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DAVE LAWSON 
EX-SLAVE 

MY FATHEM WHO KNEW THE PRINCIPLE 
CEAAACTERS TOLD ME THIS STORY YEARS AGO 

sub, de Wus" I knows 'bout slavery times is what 

de; tole me 'bout how come dey hung my gran'mammy an' gran'Pappy. 

asm bof at de same time ant from de same lim' of de tree, 

but ' tt, ws way back yonder befoistah'Lincoin come down here 

t. set de nia,,ers free. My mammy wuzn' but six Fonths ole den an' 

vruz even bawn, but Aunt Becky tole -me ' bout it when I was ole 

enoll: to lissen. 

ainl no nice tale you swine hear. It's de truf, but 

it- nice. De fus' time I heard it I didA' sleep none for a 

week. Everytime I shut my eyes I seed Marse Drew Norwood wid dat 

funnel in his mouf an' de hot steam blowin' up like'a cloud !Irourit 

his wicked face an' skeered eyes. , • 

i)ey say my gran'pappy's Ole Marse was de meanest white man de 

Lawd ever 

Norwood. 

more lanl 

counties. 

didnt he 

cheep an' 

away from 

let breath de breef of life. His name was Marse Drew 

He was de riehee' lan' owner anywhare 'rounl. He's.owned 

-ant more ,niggets den anybody in Person or Granville 

But he didri' make his money wid no farm, fui euh;' he sho 

made his money buyint an' nIggerei He-bonght deth 

sold:derfiligli He would diteh all di niggers dat run 

Other Plain wit °keep - citim In his'llefekup 'ewe 1.be 

fatten dem, der 1w,:wogadveake dem way off dirktitfri-teiiitii, *WPM& 

.:;,or some place ;Mini at an' sell dem fora <bigpriee. -Pre WO 

z4, 



1Zarse Drew lived over here on de Virginia line ' tween Red 

Blue Vijn. He owned lan"cross de Wo'th CaRolina line 

too lived close to Blue din. He treated his niggers so mean 

dey was all de time runnin' off. If he caue:nt dem he beat dem 

near ;-,D121", to death. He did beat Cindy Jorwood to death one time 

kaze se run off to Marse Reuben Jones place an' axed him to keep 

her. Jhe got pizen in de cut places on her back an' had fits three 

days befo' de Lawd took her. But Marse Drew jus laugh an' say he 

din' dat she wuzn' no ' count nohow. 

ain't never seed Farse Drew kaze I was bawn way after de 

hic ers was freed, but dey tole me he looked xax a mad bull. He was 

short wid a big head set forward on his big, shoulders. His neck was 

so short dat he couldn' wear no collar; he jus' wept de neck bindin' 

of his shirt pinned wid dianer pin. De debil done lit a lamp an' 

sic, it burnin' in his eyes; his mouf was a wickeaslash cut ' cross 

his face, an when he got mad his lips curled back from his teef 

like mad dog's. When he cracked his whip de niggers swinged an' 

de chillun screamed wid pain when dat plaited thong bit in dey flesh. 

He beat Mistis too. Mis' Cary wuzn' no biger den a minute an' she 

skeered as a kildee of Marse Drew. She didn' live long dey say kaze 

Muse Drew whipped her jus' befo' dey fus baby wuz bawn. 

Marse Drew done whip Luzalln5 kaze she burnt de biscuits, an' 

Alis' Cary give her some salve to rub on de cut places on her back. 

\Caen Morse Drew founi it out h got so mad 7dat he come back to de big 

Cary dat he gwine touch her up wid his whip kaze 

nigger s ••doctorecl. he 



doctor dem -n,-.6e ff, so he got to use his lash a little bit to 

re . her. 

Ca. t so skeered dat She run ' roun' ' roun' de house, 

b. iviarse Drel:, run after her, an' every now an.' den he th'ow out 

o1 .Ltea whi ' curl it ' roun' her shoulde.rs. Every time it 

cut cl(:..n throuri her clothes. A.st Car , got so sheered dat 

de "o.ty co e dat niht befo"twuz time. De baby wuz bawn dead an' 

V-0 
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wait on to glory wid it Dey say she was glad to go. 

sti everytin on dat plantation, animal an' man was skeered 

"hip-- .at whip dat never Lei.' Marse Drew's wris'. It was 

glace ol home-timed leather plaited in a roun' cord o as a man's 

tilum l. All day it swung from a leather strop tied to his wris' an' 

at it lay on a chair ' side de bed whare he could reach it easy. 

It was jus' befo' de Yankees come over here to ficht dat Marse 

Drew bou ht Cleve any Lissa Lawon. De y was my grantmarnmy an' 

.gran'pappy. My maqmy den was a baby. Marse Drew bouvht den for fo' 

hundred an' fifty dollars. Dat was cheap kaze de niggers was young 

wiu hard farm trainin'. Ole Marse didn' buy mammy. He said a 

nigger brat wuzn' no good, dey wouldn' sell an' dey might die befo' 

dey rowed up, ' sides dey was a strain on de mammy what breast nussed 

it. Lissa cut up powerful haze he made her leave de baby behin but 

I!arse Drew jus laughed an' tole her dat he would give her a puppy; 

dat dey was plenty of houn's on de plantation. Den he snapped de 

chains on dey wrist led dem off. Lissa ant Cleve never seed 

Aunt Beck Lawson took an)raised her an' when she 



o: iules. Dey wuzn' no more den mules to him. It was early 

wLen he brung dem to do plantation, but when wheat cuttin' 

t±ifl CGME. Lissa an Cleve was sent to de wheat fiel's. Dey was 

sfrJ.rt nipers, dey worked hard--too hard for dey own' good. In dem 

times ' t-Alz de silart, hard workinl riggers dat brought de bes' 

price, an' nobody didn' know ddbetter den Marse Drew. 

(1)ne J-1-9y Cleve seed Marse Drew watchin' Lissa. She was 

de wheat. Her skin was de color . of warm brown velvec4; her 

dark an' bright an'ShininI like muscadines under de frosty 

her body was slender like a young tree dat bends easy. As 

gleamin' 

eyes was 

sun, ant 

she 

stooped an' picked up de wheat, flingini it ' cross her arm, she 

s;ay ei. back ant fo'th jus' like dem saplins down yonder by de creek 

says in de win'. 

Clove watched Marse Drew on de sly. He seed him watchini Lissa. 

d de lustful look in his eyes, but ' twuzn' Lissa he lustin l 

after ; ' twuz money he seed in her slender swayin' body, in de smooth 

war 2 brown skin, ,an de quick, clean way she gleam de wheat. Stripped 

to de wais on de Alabama auction block she would bring, near ' bout 

a tilousan' dollars. Cleve 'gun to sweat. He turned so sick an' 

aliered dat he could hardly swing de scythe through de wheat. Marse 

Drew done took his baby away, an' now aumpin' way down in his heart 

tole him dat he was gwine take Lis. He didn' keer if he parted 

ae.oat ' twuz dollars he seed swingin' irouni his head -- gol' dollars 

W4nini brighte? den stars. 



Cleve opened opened de door. 

Ole Morse tole him to pack Lissa's clothes, dat he was takin' 

her to Sour Boston de next da1 to sell her on de block. 

Cleve fell on his knees an' 'gun to plead. He knew Ole Marse 

wuzn' (-wine take Lissa to no Souf Boston; he was gwine take her wa.y off 

an' he wouldn' never see her no more. He beg an' promise Marse 
... 

Drew to be Food an' do anythirvt he sayA CIO if he ous leave him ,.. 

Lissa, dat she vas his wife an' he love her But Marse Drew hit him 

'cross de face wid his whip, cuttin' his lip in half, den he went 

. Lissa's 
over an' felt of xmi, arms an' legs like she might have been a hoss. 

• When he done gone Cleve went over an set down by Lissa an' 

took her hart'. Lissa. ' gun to cry, den she jumped up an tmenced 

to take down her clothes hangin' on de wall. 

Cleve watched her for a while, den he made up his .rain` he 

gwine do sun:Din' dat she ain't gwine be took away from him. He 

say: 'Quit dat, Lissa, leave dem clothes alone. You ain"t gwine 

leave me, you ain't gwine nowhare l, hear me?' Den he tole her to 

make u-o a hot fire while he brung in de wash pot. He brung in de 

big iron pot kit set it on de•hearth ap.' raked de red coals all 

trouni it, den' he filled it litid water-.: While it was • heatin" he went 

to de door an looked out :"-te 431111 done -Eone down an' night- was 

crowdin," -de hilis ...Pt:Wan' n't*1 • Out of sight. By daylight dat white 

m.an,after 

,ositst g 

..• . • .. . 
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Cleve went outside. ' Bout dat time a scritch owl come an' set on 

de roof scritched. Lissa run out to skeer it away, but Cleve 

calk,ht her art. He : ay, Don't do dat, Lissa, leave him alone. 

DatIc.; de death bird, he knows what he's doint. So Lissa didne do 

nothill, she let de bird keep on scritchint. 

Yam ' twuz good an' dark Cleve took a long rope an' went out, 

tellin' Lissa to keep de water boilinr. When he come back he had 

liars.e Drew all tied. up wid de rope an gagged so he couldn' holler; 

he h;.,.d him thtowed over his shoulder like a sack of meal. He brung 

him ill de cabin an t. laid him on d.e floor, den he tole him if he 

wouldn' sell Lissa dat he viouldn' hurt him. But Marse Drew shook 

his head an' cussed in his tht,oat. Den Cleye• took off, de gag,but 

befo de white ram' could holler out, Cleve stuffed de spout of ..a. 

funnel in his big mouf way down his thtoat, holdint down his tongue. 

-Ee ax him one more time to save Lissa from de block, but Marse Drew 

look at him wid hate in his eyes shook his head again. Cleve didn' 

say nothint else to him; he call Lissa. an tole b.er to bring him a. 

pitcher of boilint water: 

By den. Lissa seed what Cleve was .gwine do. She didn' tell 

Cleve not to. do it nor nothinti she just filled de pitcher wid het 

!later, den she went.over.an! set down on de floor ant, hol/ 

Aw 13 head S. : he,',Cotaarktve-' ' 

etcOleAtarse#SedIVAt'AaY was fixipte,do to him, his eyes 

,near 'bout busted out of his head, but when dey ax him again rbout 
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down, den took de oitcher an' ' gun to pour dat boilin' water right 

in dat funnel stickin' in Earse Drew's mouf. 

Dat man kicked an' struggled, but dat water scalded its way 

doun his throat, burnin' up his insides. Lissa brun another pitcher 

full an' dey wuzn' no pity in her eyes as she watched Mare Drew 

f tin' his way to ton-lent, cussin' all niers an' Abraham Lincoln. 

After (10 Lisse an' Cleve set down to wait for de sheriff. 

Dey knew ttwuzn' no use to run, dey couldnr get novhare. 'Bout 

sunup de folks come an' fount Mprse Drew, an' dey fount Lissa an' 

Cleve settin by de door han' in hall waitin'. When dem nirdifers tole 

what dey done an' how come dey done it dem white folks was hard. De 

sheriff took de rope from ' route' Marse Drew an' cut it in two pieces. 

He tied one rone rroun' Clew_ neck an' one rope iroun' Lissa rs 

neck an' hung dem up in daZ big oak tree in de yard. 

Yes, suh, dat 's what happened to my Eranrmanmy an' gral pappy 

in slavery times. Dis here cabin we's settin in is de same cabin 

whare Cleve an' Liss scalded narse Drew, an' dat oak tree ' side de 

Paf is de same tree dey was hung on. Sometimes now in de fall of de 

year when I'se settin' in de door after de sun done gone down, 

de wheat am ripe an' bendin' in de win", an' de moon am 

yeller like a mush melon, seems like I sees two shadows 

from de big liar of dat tree -- I sees dem swingint low 

oidu wid dey 000 Mar 'bout touchin' de groun'. 

rount an' 

swvogin i 

side by 
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JAM, LEE 

An interview with Jane Lee, 81 years old, Selma, North Carolina. 

"I wus borned de slave of Larse Henry 1,:cCullers down 

at Clayton on de Wake ant Johnston line. 4 daddy wus 

named Addison an' my maimy wus named Caroline. Daddy ' longed 

to Er. John Ellington who also lived near Clayton. I doan 

know de number of Er. Elline,ton's slaves, but I know dat 

Terse Henry had six or seben. 

"Marse Henry ain't had no oberseer ner no patterollers 

nother. He managed his business hisself an' ain't needed 

nobody. He whupped dem when dey needed hit but dat ain't 

often, not dat he ain't put de whuppin' on dem what did need 

hit. 

"I 'members de Yankees comm' good as iffen hit wus 

yesterday. Dey corned wid a big noise, chasin' our white 

folks what wus in de army clean away. Dey chase dem to 

Raleigh an' den dey koton ' em, out d_y ain't had much time, 

ter do us any damage case dey wus too busy atter de Rebs. 

"De woods wus full of runaway slayes an , Rebs who 

deserted de army so hit wus uangefous to walk out. Marse 

Henry AVe us a speech about hit ant atter I seed one rag- a-

muffin nigger man dat wus so hongry dat his eyes pop out, I 

"aiWt too* no more walks. 

"Atter de war we moved on Mr:. Ellington 's place wid 
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daddy an' dar I stayed ti;.1 I married Wyatt Lee. Wyatt wue 

a bad proposition an' he got shot in Fayetteville atter we had 

five chilluns. Wyatt tuck a woman to Fayetteville an' a man 

named Frank Mattiner killed him about her. Den my oldest 

boy went to wurk in Virginia an' a man named Rudolphus killed . 

him ' bout a yaller gal. Both of de murderers runaway an' 

ain't never been ketched. 

"All five of my chilluns am daid now, an' fer de past 

ten years Ilse done ever'thing but cut cord wood. 

"How does I live? Well I lives now ant den. De county 

gives me two dollars a month an' de house am mine durin' my 

life time. Ur. Parrish sold hit to Judge Brooks wid de 

understandin l dat hit am mine long as I live. I don't know why, 

none of us never ' longed ter de Parrish's ner nothinl dat I 

knows of." 
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CHANA LITTLEJOHN 
215 State Street 

z 
"I remember when de Yankees come. I remember when 

de soldiers come ant had tents in Marsterts yard before Joey 

went off to de breastworks. My mother wus hired out before 

de surrender ant had to leave her two chilluns at home on 

Yarsterts plantation. When she come home Christmas he told 

her she would not have to go back any more. She could stay 

at home. This wus de last year ot de war and he tolt her 

she would soon be free. 

"My eyes are mighty bad. De doctor said he would 

work on ' em if somebody in de Agriculture Building would pay 

it. 1 I can't see at all out of one eye and the other is 

bad. 

"I doan reckon I wus ten years old when de Yankees 

come, but I wus runnint around ant can remember all d is. 

Guess I wus 'bout eight years old. I wus born in Warren 

County, near Warrenton. I belonged to Peter Mitchell, a 

long, tall man. There were ' bout a hundred slaves on de 

plantation. My missus wus named Laura. Mother always 

called me tole Betsy' when she wus mad at me. Betsy wus 

Marster Peter's mother. I remember seem' her. She wus 

a big fat ' oman wdd white hair. She give biscuits to all 

1. The office of the State Board of Welfare is in the 
Agriculture Building. 
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de chillun on Saturdays. She also looked out for de slave 

chilluns on Sunday. My father wus named Marcillus Little-

john and my mother wus named Susan Littlejohn. 

"We had :4ardens and patches and plenty to eat. We 

also got de holidays. Marster bought charcoal from de 

men which dey burnt at night ant on holidays. Dey worked 

ant made de stuff, an' marster would let dem have de steer-

carts ant wagons to carry deir corn ant charcoal to sell 

it in town. Yes sir, dis wus mif-jity nice. -de had plank 

houses. Dere wus not but one log house on de plantation. 

Marster lived in de big house. It had eight porches on it. 

"Dere wus no churches on de plantation, ant I doan re-

member any prayer meetin's. When we sang we turned de wash-

Dots an' tubs in de doors, so dey would take up de noise 

so de white folks could not hear us. I do remember de 

gatherints at our home to pray fur de Yankees to come. All 

de niggers thought de Yankees had blue bellies. The old 

house cook got so happy at one of dese meetin's she run 

out in de yard ant called, ' Blue bellies come on, blue 

bellies come on.' Dey caught her ant carried her back into 

.de house. 

"When d e overseer whupped one de niggers he made 

all de slaves sing, ' Shot lofty Lawd, Ohl Lawd forgive:. 

When dey sang awhile he would call out one an' whup him. 
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He had a sing fur everyone he whupped. Marster growed up 

wid de niggers an' he did not like to whup tem. If dey 

sassed him he would put spit in their eyes and say 'now I 

recon you will mind how you sass me.' 

"Are had a lot o' game and 'possums. When we had game 

marster left de big house, and come down ant et wid us. 

When marster wantt off drunk on a spree he spent a lot of 

time wid de slaves. He treated all alike. His slaves were 

all niggers. Dere were no half-white chilluns dere. 

"Marster would not let us work until we were thirteen 

years old. Den he put us to plawint in soft Lan', ant de 

men in rough Ian'. Some of de women played off sick an' 

went home an' washed ant ironed an' got by wid it. De ober-

seer tried to make two of ' em go back to work. Dey flew 

at him ant whupped him. He told de marster when he come 

home, marster said, 'Did you ' low, dem women to whup you?' 

'Yes', he replied, den marster tole him if women could whup 

him he didn't want him. But he let him stay on. His name 

wus Jack Rivers. He wus hired by marster. Marster Rivers 

did not have any slaves. Dere wus no jail on de plantation, 

case when er overseer whupped er nigger he did not need any 

Me black rolks better not be caught wid a book but 

one 0t de chilluns at our plantation, Marster Peter Mitchell's 
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sister had taught Aunt Isabella to read and write, aat durin 

de war she would read, ant tell us how everythint wus goint. 

Tom Mitchell, a slave, sassed marster. Larster tole him 

he would not whup him, but he would sell him. Tom's brotherj 

Henry, toy) him if he wus left he would run away, so marster 

sold both. He carried ' em to Richmond to sell ' em. He 

sold ' em on de auction block dere way down on Broad Street. 

"Jhen dey put Tom on de auction block dey found Tom had a 

broken leg and marster didn't git much fer him. He wanted 

to git enough fer these two grown settled men to buy two 

young men. Tom wus married. He rus sold from his wife 

and chilluns. Marster did not git enough fer tern to pay for 

dese two young boys. He had to pay de difference in money. 

Be boys were ' bout 21 or 22 years ole. When marster got 

back wid ' em de overseer tole him he had ruined his plan-

tation. Be boys soon become sick wid yeller fever ant both 

died. Dey strowed it ' round, ant many died. Larster shore 

made a mess o things dat time. 

"Dr. Ben Wilson, of Warren County wus Marster Mitchell's 

brother-in-law. He 'tended de sick folks ant he made many 

trips. Sometimes as soon as he got home dey sent fer him 

again. 

"We played mumble-peg an' hop-scotch when I wus a 

child, we played jumpint de rope .a lot. 



-5- 39 

"I have never been married. I ha cL only one brother. 

i.e has been dead six years. Since he died I have had a hard 

tife makin' a livint. Brother John lived wid me until he 

died. I had only one sister. She died many years ago. I 

think slavery wus mighty hard an' wrong. I joined de church 

'cause I had religion an' de church would help me to keep 

it. People should be religious so dey will have a place 

in de beyond. 

"Abraham Lincoln wus a good man. I have his picture. 

I think Y:r. Roosevelt is a good God-fearin' man. When he 

,-its sick I prays fer him. When he is sick I is jist as 

scared as I kin be. I prays fer him ter staywell. 
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CHARITY MaALLISTER 
602 South Street 

"My name is Charity iv.cAllister. I wus here a long 

time before de Yankees come here. I wus ' bout grown when 

dey come through. I ain't hardly able -to cook my little 

sumptin' to eat now. I ain't able to work out. No sir, 

not able to work. Done and worked my time out. I wus a 

grown gal when de Yankees come. I wus ' bout 18 years old. 

I loves to give you de truth and I knows I wus dat old. I 

wus a grown gal. 

'44 father wus named hobert A_alock. He ' longed to 

de Blalocks o' Harnett County. My mother wus Annie Mc-

Allister. She ' longed to Jennett McAllister in Harnett 

County. I ' longed to John Greene at Lillington, Harnett 

County. 4 mother first ' longed to John Greene. She got 

in de family way by a white man, and fJohn Greene sold her 

to a speculator named T.A11 Avery of EaleiL;h, a speculator. 

Dey sold my brother. He wus as white as you .is. Jhen de 

surrender came mother went back to Miss Jennett McAllister 

in Harnett County. Dat's how dey got back dere., I wants 

to tell de truth and dats what I is goin' to do. 

°I tell you I wus whupped durin' slavery time. 

Dey whupped us wid horsrhair whups. Dey put a stick under 
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our legs an' tied our hands to de stick and we could not 

nuthin' but turn and twist. Dey would sure work on your 

back end. : 4-krery time you turned dey would hit it. I been 

whupped dat way and scarred up. We slept on mattresses 

made o' tow sacks. Our clothes were poor. One-piece :-

dress made o' caroet stuff, part of de tie. One pair o' 

shoes a year after Christmas. Dey give ' em to us on January 

first, no shoes till after Christmas. Dey did not give 

us any holidays Christmas in Harnett County. Dat wus Iginst 

de rules. No prayer nor nuthin' on de plantation in our 

houses. Dey did not ' low us to go to de white folks ehurch. 

Dey did not ' low de slaves to hunt, so we did not have any 

game. Dey did not ' low us any patches. No sirree, we did 

not have any money. 

"De slaves slep' a lot on pallets durin' slavery 

days. A pallet wus a quilt or tow carpet spread on de floor. 

We used a cotton pillow sometimes. Dere wus about 50 

slaves on de plantation. A had no overseer on master's 

plantation, and no cooks and schools o' any kindj for 

niggers. I cannot read and write. No sir, I wish I 

could read and write. 

"1 split rails and worked in de Cape Fear River Low 

Grounds. e fenced de fields wid rails split from trees, 

pine trees. Dey were eleven feet long. 

"Yes sir, I.Iteed de patterollers. I seed a plenty 



3. 
63 

of dem scoundrels. Oh: ho, de Ku Klux, Hal, Ha: Dey 

were real scandals, and I jest caint tell you all de mean 

things dey done right after de war. Reubin 1.1atth.ew's 

slave, George Matthews, killed two Ku Klux. Dey double 

teamed him and shot him, and he cut ' em wid de ax, and 

dey died. 

nI wus married ript- after de war. De second year 

after de war, I married Richard Rogers, but I kept de 

name o' McAllister right on. My husband been dead a good 

long time. Lawd, I don't 

one time, and dat wus one 

know how long. I been married 

time too much. I have two sons, 

one name Clarence, and one named John, two daughtemione 

in Newport News, one in ashington, D. C., one named Lovie, 

and one named Lula. 

BI 
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MARA COTTON MC-COY 

EX-SLAVE 82 YEARS 

"Yesim, I was bawn eighty-two years ago. My mammy died 

den an' my gran 'mammy raised me. I sho do 'member when dat 

man Sherman an' his mens marched through Orange County, but, 

it d_dn' take no army of Yankees to ruin my white folks home, 

it took jus' one Yankee, but even dat didn'bow my Mistis'head. 

I ain't never seed nobody as proud as my Mis' Riah 

Cotton. She never bowed her head to trouble nor nobody, she 

never even bowed her head in chu'ch. When de preacher prayed 

she jus' folded her hands an' set up straight/ facin' de Lawd 

wid no fear. No, suh, my Listis ain't gwine bow her head no 

time. Young Mis' Laughter broke her mammy's heart, but she 

ain't make her bend her head. 

Mis' Laughter's sho miff name was Mis' Clorena Cotton. 

She wasn' tall an' dark like Mis"Riah, she was little an' 

roun' an' pretty as a thorn flower, all pink an' gol'. She 

was jus' like a butterfly, never still a minute, skippin' here 

an t yonder, laughin' wid everybody. Dat's whare she got her 

name. Us niggers ' gun to call her Mis' Laughter kaze she was 

so happy. She was de only one dat could make Mis' 'Riah smile. 

She would rim up to Mis"Riah an' ruffle her hair dat she done 

comb back so slick an' smooth, den she would stick a red rose 

behin" her ear , an say: 'Nowt pretty Mammy, you look like you 

did when Peppy come cou'tin'.' Marse Ned would lay down his 
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paper an' look fus' at Mis' ' Riah den at Mis' Laughter, an' 

for a minute Mis' Riah would smile, den she would look firm an' 

say to Mis' Laughter. ' Don't you know dat rightousness an' 

virtue am more lceptable to de Lawd den beatty ? You's worldly, 

Clorena, you's too worldly.' 

Mis' Laughter would throw back her head an' laugh, an' her 

eyes would shine bright as blue glass marbles. She tole Mist 

'Riah dat she ' specs dat when her man come he gwine see her face 

befo' he seed her rightousness, so she gTine wear roses an' curls 

den he would know her when he seed her. Den befo' Mis' 'Riah 

could speak her mind, Mis' Laughter done gone skippin' down de 

hall, her little Theta in de gol' slippers twinklin' from de 

ruffles of her pantalets. Everybody on de place love dat chile 

an' de house wasn' never de same after she done gone away. 

My gran'mammy, Rowena, say dat Mis' Riah was bawn for 

trouble. She was bawn de las' day of March ' tween midnight an' 

day. De moon was on de wane, an' jus' as Mistis was bawn de wind 

come down de chimbley an' blew de ashes out on de hearth. 

Grantmammy say dat mean trouble an' death; dat new bawn baby ain't 

never gwine keep long de things she love de mos', an' she better 

never love nobody too well, if she do dey gwine be took away from 

her, ant troUble ebo did follow Mist tRiah after she growed up. 

When de war come Marse Ned went off to fight. He was 

Mame General Cotten den. Dat didn't leave nobody at home tcept 

9Riah, her mammy, Mist Noberta Davis but we,called her ole 
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den dare was Mis' Laughter an' young Marse Jerome. 

Young Yarse wasn' but fifteen when de war started, but dey got 

him in de las' call an' he didn' never come back no more. 

De plantation was big, but Mis' Riah ' tended to things an' 

handled de niggers same as a man. De fus' year of de war she 

rode a hoss ' bout de fields like an overseer, seem' after de 

cotton an' cawn an' taters. But de Yankees come an' set fire to 

do cotton; dey took de cawn to dey camp for dey hosse, an' dey 

toted off de taters to eat. De nex year Mis' Riah didn' •plant 

no cotton a tall kaze de seeds an' gin done been burned up, but 

she had de niggers plant cawn, taters an' a good garden. Dat 

fall de wind blew de hickory leaves to de notth an' by spring 

trouble done come sho miff. Dey was a drouth an' de cawn didn' 

come up; de garden burned to pa lchment, but de taters done all 

right. Wid all dat Mis' Riah held up her head an' kep t goin'. 

Den one day a buzzard flew over de house top an' his wings spread 

a shadow out on de roof. Dat night death come an' got Ole Mistis. 

She passed on to glory in her sleep. ' ' Twas de lawd's will,' 

Mis' qliah tole granimammy, an' she still held up her head. But 

Gran imammy said dat if somebody had shot dat buzzard an' wiped 

his shadow off de roof Ole Mistis wouldn' have gone nowhare. 

De flex' spring dey wasn' much to plant. De Yankees done kep' 

totia' off everything, hosses an' all, itwell dey wasn' much lef'. 

But, de niggers, grangmammy an' pappy along wid dem, dug up de 

garden wid de grdbbin hoe an' planted what seeds dey had. Nis' 
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grantmammy kept dem washed an' statched stiff. ' Twas Mist 

Laughter dat kep' us from frettin' too much. She would look 

at Mist Riah an' say, ' We'll be all right, Hammy, when Marse 

Ned comes home.' Sometime she call her pappy Marse Ned jus' 

like dat. One day Marse Ned did come home. Dey brung him 

home. ' Twas 'bout sunset. I 'members kaze 'twas de same day 

dat my ole black hen hatched de duck eggs I done set her on, an' 

de apple treed was bloomin'. De blooms look jus' like droves 

of pink butterflies flyint on de sky. Dey brought Marse Ned 

in de house ant laid Trim out in de parlor. Mis ttRiah stood 

Straight ' side him wid her head up. ' Twas de Lawdts will, she 

tole Grantmammy, but Gran'mammy shook her head an ' gun to cry, 

an' say: "You can't put dat on de Lawd, Mis t ' Riah, you sho 

can't. tTWa4'1 de Lawd ts will a tall, ' twas de will of de 

cussed Yankees.' Den she turn roun' an' took 11.Pis' Laughter's 

hand an' led her up stairs an' put her to bed. 

After dat things got worse. Dat wind dat blew trouble 

down de chiImbley for Mist Riah when she was bawn 'gun to blow 

harder- De War got young Marse Jerome an' shot him down. Dey 

wontt motto eat de coffee was made out of paYehed.cawn ant 

de 'inree s Cane lasses, an t de ham an t white bread done 

been &tie a long time. Dey won tt tris eggs an chickens % an d.ey 
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When de surrender come dey was Yankees canped all troun' 

de plantation. an' Hillsboro was full of dem. One day a Yankee 

mans come to de house. TaltiaS young. He come to see if Midt• 

IRiah didnt want to sell her place. ! is' tRiah stood in dc. 

door an' talked to him, she wouldnt let him come on de patch. 

She tole him she would starve befo t she would sell one foot of 

her Ian' to a Yankee, ant dat he shouldn t- darken de door of her 

house. 

'Bout dat time Mid' Laughter come down de hall an' stood 

behin' her mammy. Her halie curled tbdut her head yellow as a 

dandylion an t she had on a blue dress. When dat sojer seed her 

he stopped ant dey looked ant looked at each other ttwell Mist 

When she done dat Mist Laughter turned aiah turned rount. 

an' run up de stairs. 

After dat Mist Riah wOuldn let dat chile go no place by 

hersef. I was her boAissguard, everyWhare she Went I had to go 

too. We wOuld go to walk down in de pine woods back of de 

paster t ant- somehow dat Yankee would go to walk in dem 'woods 

too. Every time we deed him he would give me a piece of'ftioney l, 

when I got back to -de house I din' tell =thin'. Den one 

theard'datjetèll MiL'Ilaugher dat he was twine away. 
, 

Laughter ' Igun to cry an' I di dnt hear what else dey said 

ti6: Ms ova de path. Bat dat night Mist Laughter put 

wn to de ipattit'an 
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tole me to go to bed an' go to sleep, but whe mofnin' come 

to give de note to Mis' 'Riah. 

De flex' mornin' 1 give de note to Mis' 'Riah, but by den 

Mis' Laughter done gone off wid dat Yankee. Mis' Riah called 

all us niggers in de big room.- She took down de family Bible 

from de stand an' marked out Mis' Laughter's name. 1 ain't 

zot no daughter,' she say. ' qUeMber, de chile dat I had am 

dead an' her name mustn' never be called in dis house no more.' 

We all went out ' cept Gran'mammy, but Mis t tRiah wouldn' 

let her talk to her ' bout forgivin' Mis' Laughter, an' when de 

letters ' gun to come dey was sent back unopened. 

Mist Miah's niece, Mist Betty an' Morse John Davis, hur 

husban', come to live wid Mis' gaiah to help her ' ten' to things., 

but nobody was ' lowed to call Nis' Laughter's name. Even though 

dey was free, gran'mammy an' poppy an' some more of us niggers 

stayed on at de plantation helpin' on de farm, but in ' bout a 

year Mis' IRIah took sick. Mis' Betty wanted to sen' for Mis' 

Laughter, but Nis' 'Riah wouldn' even answer, but His' Betty sent 

for her anyhow ,an.' kept her down stairs. Den one day de sun 

turned black ant de chickens went to roost in de day time. 

Grantmammy flung her apron over h.er face an' 'gun to pray kase 

she knew de death angel was comin' after Mis' 'Riah. Mis' Betty 

got Mist Laughter an' when she come up de stairs all us house 

niggers stood in de hall watchin' her go in to see Mis' ' Riah. 

She Was on de bed wid her eyes shut like she was sleep. 

Laughter went in an' )4118431 down by de bed. Mammy, 
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•Yammy,' she say soft jus' like dat. 

Mis' tRiah's hands caught hold.of de quilt tight, b4t she 

ain't opened her eyes. Gran'mammy went up an' laid her hand 

on her head, but she shook it off. 

De tears was runnin' down Laughter's cheeks. Mammy,' 

she say, ' I'se sorry -- I loves you, Mammy.' 

Mis' Riah turned her face to de wall an' her back on Mis' 

Laughter. She ain't never opened her eyes. ' Bout dat time 

de sun come out from behin' dem black wings of shadow an' Mis t 

'Riah s soul went on to glory to meet llarse Ned. 

Yestm, Mis' tRiah sho was proud, but Gran'marmiy say ttwont --

no war dat brung all dat trouble on her, she say ' twas de wind - 

dat come down de chimbley de night she was bawn -de no'th wind 

dat blowed de ashes 'bout de hearth.' 
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A GOOD MISTRESS 

An interview with Henrietta Naullers, eighty-seven 
years old, of 531 E. Davie Street, Raleigh, North Carolina. 

7 

n I wus borned roun' eighty-seben years ago in 

.;ake County. Me ant my mammy ' longed ter Mist Betsy Adams 

an' my pappy ' longed ter Mr. Nat Jones. I think dat 

Marse Nat had .a whole passel o slaves, but his' Betsy ain't 

had more'n six or seben. 

" Yo' ax me iffen Mist gietsy wus good ter us? She 

wus so good dat I loved her all her life an' now dat she's 

daia I loves her in her grave. 

" We et de same rations what she et ant we slept in 

de same kind o' bed she slept in. I knows dat sometimes 

she'd have company ant shetd do a heap o' extra fixin', but 

she ain't neber fix better ,er de company dan fer us. 

" She'd let us have a coln shuckin' drnct a year, ant 

of course, we had a heap of prayer meetin's an' a few socials. 

She ain't wanted her ni,gers ter dance case she am such a 

good Christian ) but she let us have candy pullints ant sicho 

tt When de wuck warntt pushint she'd let us go fishin' 

ant swimmint antall, only we jist waded) case we ain't used 

enough ter de water Yo' know dat niggers am natutlly skeerd ot 

water anyhow4 
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" Iffen de wuck wus pushin' we wucked from sunup till 

dark an' Mis' Betsy wucked too. Man, she wus a wuckint woman, 

an' she made us wuck too; but I loves her better dan does 

my own chilluns now, an' dat's one reason dat I wants ter 

go ter heaben. All my life when I done a bad thing I think 
7 

'bout Mis' Letsy's teachin's an' I repents. 

" I plowed an' dug ditches an' cleaned new gyoun% ant 

hard wuck ain't neber hurted me yit. De master wus too 

puny to wuck, an' I often thinks dat maybe he married, Us' Betsy 

to look atter him. Dey only had one man, Uncle iilose, an' so, 

of course, he had to have some help ter ten' ' bout a hundert 

acres. 

' Most of our Lan' wus olanted in feed stuff fer us ant 

de cattle. AnIso we raised everlthing but de coffee. Sometimes 

we drunk Japonica tea, an' done without de coffee. 

" On Sunday's yob. should 0 seen us in our :3unday best 

goin' ter church ' hind de missus coach, wid ole Uncle Mose 

high on de box. We can't read de hymns eben iffen we had a 

book ' cause we ain't ' lowed ter have no books, but we sung 

jist de same. 

" At Christmas time we had a party at de big .house. 

Mist Betsy had sabed a bushel er so o' Ae latest apples ant she 

made a big dish of lasses candy ant we popped pop corn an' wus 

happy. Mis' J3etsy always give us some clothes an' we had a 
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feas' all through de week of holidays. 

" When de Yankees corned dey jist about cleaned us 

out. Dey kills pigs, turkeys, calves an' hens all over de 

place, de gits de beserves an' a heap o' de lasses an' dey 

sass Mist Betsy. All dis wus dem bad-mannered soldieiVfault, 

case Abraham Lincoln ain't mean't fer it ter be dis way" 

I know. I reckon dat most o' dem soldiers wus pore white 

trash. Dey doan keer ' bout de niggers, but dey ain't wanted 

our white folks ter be rich. 

ulq,e Yankees ain't stayed long in our neighborhood 

case dey am a—lookin l fer our soldiers, so dey goes away. 

It Did I leave atter de war wus ober? Naw sir, I 

ain't, an' all de rest stayed on too. Uncle iviose stayed 

on too. Uncle kose stayed de rest ot his life, but I left 

two years atterwards when I got married. 

It My memory am gittint so short dat I doan 'member • 

my daddy's name, ner my brothers an' sisters names. I 

'member dat my mammy wus named Piety do' an' I;Imembers my 

fust lessomfrom Mist Betsy, ' Doan lie, an' doan steal, ax 

fer what yak needs, needs, mind yob, not what yokwants. 01 

!ygers ort ter be back in. slavery now, deyld be better ant 

happier dan dey is. I ain't neber had a whuppint in my life 

an' dat's more dan most of dese free niggers can say. 
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WILLIE McCULLOUGH 

8 McKee Street, Raleigh, North Carolina. Age 68 years. 

"I was born in Darlington County, South Carolina, 

the 14th of June 1869. My mother was named Rilla Mc-

Cullough and my father was named Marion McCullough. I 

remember them very well and many things they told me 

that happened during the Civil War. They belonged to a 

slave owner named Billy Cannon who owned a large plan-

tation near Marion, South Carolina. The number of 

slaves on the plantation from what they told me was 

about fifty. Slaves were quartered in small houses 

built of logs. They had plenty of rough food and cloth-

ing. They were looked after very well in regard to their 

health, because the success of the master depended on 

the health of his slaves. A man can't work a sick 

horse or mule. A slave occupied the same place on the 

plantation as a mule or horse did, that is a male slave. 

Some of the slave women were looked upon by the slave . 

owners as a stock raiser looks upon his brood sows, that 

is from the standpoint of production. If a slave woman 

had children fast she was considered very valuable be-

cause slaves were valuable property. 
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"There was classes of slavery. Some of the half-

white and beautiful young women who were used by the 

marster and his men friends or who was the sweetheart of 

the marster only, were given special privileges. Some 

of ' em worked very little. They had private quarters 

well fixed up and had a great influence over the marster. 

Some of these slave girls broke up families by getting 

the marster so enmeshed in their net that his wife, per-

haps an older woman, was greatly neglected. Mother and 

grandmother tole me that they were not allowed to pick 

their husbands. 

"Mother tole me that when she became a woman at 

the age of sixteen years her marster went to a slave 

owner near by and got a six-foot nigger man, almost an 

entire stranger to her, and told her she must marry him. 

Her marster read a paper to them, told them they were 

man and wife and told this negro he could take her to a 

certain cabin and go to bed. This was done without 

getting her consent or even asking her about it. Grand-

mother said that several different men were put to her 

just about the same as if she had been a cow or sow. 

The slave owners treated them as if they had been common 

animals in this respect. 

"Mother said she loved my father before the surr.e, 

and just as soon as they were free they married. Grand-

mother was named Luna Williams. She belonged to a planter 
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who owned a large plantation and forty slaves adjoining 

Mr. Cannonis plantation where mother and father stayed. 

My grandmother on my mother's side lived to be 114 years 

old, so they have tole me. 

"I ran away from home at the age of twelve years and 

went to Charleston, South Carolina. I worked with a fam-

ily there as waitin' boy for one year. I then went to 

Savannah, Ga. I had no particular job and I hoboed every-

where I went. I would wait all day by the side of the 

railroad to catch a train at night. I rode freight 

trains and passenger trains. I rode the blind baggage 

on passenger trains and the rods on freight trains. The 

blind baggage is the car between the mail car and the 

engine. The doors are on the side and none at the end. 

I hoboed on to Miami over the Florida East Coast Rail-

road. I next went from Miami to Memphis, Tenn. after 

staying there a few days and working with a contractor, 

I again visited Charleston, S. C. I had been there only 

two days when I met some Yankees from Minnesota. They 

prevailed on me to go home with them, promising if I would 

do so they would teach me a trade. I went with them. We 

all hoboed. We were halted at the Blue Ridge mountains 

but we got by without going to jail. We then went to 

Film N. J. to Chicago, Ill., then into MI:Ywaukee, 
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Uis., then on into Minneapolis, Minn. Many towns and cities 

I visited on this trip itj did not know where I was. My Yan-

kee companions looked out for me. They taught me the trade 

of making chairs and other rustic furniture. They taught 

me 164 ways of making different pieces of furniture. I 

spent 11 years in Minnesota but during that time I visited 

the South once every three years, spending several days in 

the county of my birth. Mother and father farmed all their 

lives and they often begged me to settle down but the 

wanderlust had me and for 30 years I traveled from place 

to place. Even while in Minnesota I did not stay in 

Minneapolis all the time. I visited most every town in 

the state during the eleven years I stayed there and made 

hobo trips into most of the adjoining states, 

"The main Yankee who taught me the trade was Joe 

Burton. He and the gang helped me to get food until I 

learned the trade well enough so I could make a living 

working at it. 

"I have made a lot of money making and selling 

rustic furniture, but now I am getting old. I am not able 

to work as I used too. Not long ago I made a trip from 

Raleigh to Charleston, S. C., but the trip was different 

from the old days. I hitch-hiked the entire distance. I 

rode with white folks. On one leg of the trip of over 

200 miles I rode with a rich young man and his two pals. 



-5- Si 

They had a fruit jar full of bad whiskey. He got about 

drunk, ran into a stretch of bad road at a high rate of 

speed, threw me against tin top of his car and injured my 

head. I am not over it yet. 

"I quit the road in 1924. My last trip was from 

Raleigh, N. C. to Harrisburg, Penn. and return. I have 

made my home in Raleigh ever since. Done settled down, too 

ole to ramble anymore." 

LE 
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JAMES TURNER McLEAN 
Lillington, N. C. 

Route 1 

mmy name is James Turner McLean. I was born id 

Harnett County near Cape Fear River in the Buies Creek 

Section, Feb. 20, 1858. I belonged to Taylor Hugh McLean, 

and he never was married. The plantation was between Buies 

Creek and the Cape Fear river., the edge of it is about 75 

yards from where I now live. The place *here I live belongs 

to me. 'Way back it belonged to the Bolden's. 

'The Boldens came from Scotland, and so did the 

McLeans. There were about five hundred acres in this 

plantation and Marster Hugh McLean had about fifty slaves. 

The slaves lived in quarters and Marster lived in the big 

house which was his home. Marster took good care ot his 

darkies. He did pot allow anybody to whip 'em either. We 

had good food, clothes and places to sleep. My father was 

Jim McLean and py mother was named Charlotta McLean. My 

grandmother was named Jane. I called my mother ISissiet 

and called my grandmother tmammyt in slavery time. They 

did not have me to do any heavy work just tending to the 

calves, colts, and goin' to the post office. 
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"The post office was at Mr. Sexton's and we called 

it Sexton's post office, on the Raleigh and Fayetteville 

Road. The stage run on this road and brought mail to this 

place. This post in my yard is part of a stage coach axle. 

You see it? Yes sir, that's what it is. I got it at 

Fayetteville when they were selling the old stage coach. 

We bought the axle and wheels and made a cart. We got that 

stuff about 1870; my father bought it. Be gave twelve 

dollars for jest the wheels and axle. This was after we 

had taken the iron clad oath and become more civilized. 

"We were daresome to be caught with a paper book 

or anything if we were tryin' to learn to read and write. 

We had to have a pass to go around an, or the patterollers 

would work on us. I saw a lot of patterollers. Marster 

gave his Negroes a pass for twelve months. Be sent his 

timber to Wilmington, and worked timber at other places so 

he gave his slaves yearly passes. Then when the war was 

about up me and him went to the post office, and he got the 

paper. All the niggers were free. We stopped on the way 

home at a large sassafras tree by the side ol the road 

where he always stopped to read, and he read, and told me 

I was free. 

"I did not know what it was or what it meant. We 

came on to the house where my mother was and I said ) ' Sissiel 
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we is free.' She said, 'Hush, or I will put the hickory on 

you.' I then went to grandma, the one I called mammy and 

threw my arms around her neck and said, 'Mammy we are free, 

what does it mean?' and mammy, who was grandma, said, -"You 

hush sich talk, or I will knock you down wid a loom stick.' 

"Marster was comint then, and he had the paper in 

his hand and was cryint. He came to the door and called 

grandma and said, 'You are free, free as I am, but I want 

you to stay on. If you go off you will perish. If you 

stay on now the crop is planted and work it, we will divide.' 

Merster was cryin' and said, 'I do not own you any longer.' 

Be told her to get the horn and blow it. It was a ran's 

ham. She blew twice for the hands to come to the house. 

"They were warkin' in the river lowground about a 

mile or more away. She blew a long blow, then another. 

Merster told her to keep blowinf. After awhile all the 

slaves come home; she had called them all in. Merster 

met them at the gate, and told them to put all the mules 

up, all the hoes and plows, that they were all free. EA 

invited all to eat dinner. He had five women cooking. He 

told them all he did not want them to leave, but if they 

were going they must eat before they left. He said he 

wanted everybody to eat all he wanted, and I remember the 
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ham, eggs, chicken, and other good things we had at that 

dinner. Then after the dinner he spoke to all of us and 

said, 'You have nowhere to go, nothin' to live on, but go 

out on my other plantation and build you some shacks.' 

"He gave them homes and did not charge any rent. 

He bought nails and lumber for them, but he would not 

build the houses. Some stayed with him for fifteen years, 

some left. He gave them cows to milk. He said the children 

must not perish. 

"Marster was a mighty good man, a feelin' man. He 

cried when same of his slaves finally left him. Mother and 

father stayed till they got a place of their own. I waited 

on him as long as he lived. I loved him as well as I did 

my daddy. I drove for him and he kept me in his house with 

him. He taught me to be honest, to tell the truth, and not 

to steal anything. 

"When freedom came marster gave us a place for a 

school building and furnished nails and gave the lumber for 

the floors. Be instructed them in building the windows. 

He was goin' to put his sister Jenette McAllister in as 

teacher. She had married Jim McAllister at the Bluff Church, 

right at the lower part of the Averysboro Battleground where 

some of the last fightint between the North and South was 



5. 87 

done, but a man by the name of George Miller of Barnett 

County told him he knew a nigger who could teach the school. 

He employed the nigger, whose name was Isaac Brantley, to 

teach the school. He dame from Anderson's Creek in the 

lower part of Harnett County. We learned very little, as 

the nigger read, and let us repeat it after him. He wonlo  

hold the book and spell and let us repeat the words after 

him without lettin' us see in the book. He stayed there 

two months, then a man by the name of Matthews, Haywood 

Matthews, son of Henderson Matthews came. They were white 

folks, but went for negroes. Haywood teached there. He 

got the children started and most of 'em learned to read 

and write. 

"I saw the Yankees come through. Also Wheeler's 

Cavalry. The Yankees took chickens and things, and they 

gave us some things, but Wheeler's Cavalry gave us =thin'. 

They took what they wanted and went an. Marster hid his 

horses and things in the Pecosia.. 

"When the Yankees come Marster was hid. They rode 

up to my mother and asked her where he was. She said, tI 

do not know.' They then asked her where was de silver, 

his money, an' de brandy, an' wine. They got one demijohn 

full of brandy. They went into the house, tore up things 
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got his china pipe, fixed for four people to smoke at one 

time. You could turn a piece and shett off all de holes 

but one, when one man wanted to smoke. They threw away 

his old beaver hat, but before they left they got it and 

left it in the house. Wheeler's Cavalry stomped things 

and broke up mare den de Yankees. 

"Daddy hid marster's money, a lot of it, in the 

jam o, de fence. Be covered it with sand that he threw 

out of a ditch that ran along near the fence. The Yankees 

stopped and sat on the sand to eat their dinner and never 

found the mangy. 

uI have never seen a slave sold, and none never 

ran away from marster's plantation. When any of his men 

went to visit their wives he let them ride the stock, and 

give them rations to carry. There was a jail for slaves 

at Summerville. I saw it. 

uWe went to the white folks church at Neillts 

Creek. Mother used herbs to give us when we were sick. 

Dr. Turner, Dr. John Turner, looked after us. We were 

bled every year in the spring and in the fall. He had 

a little lance. He corded your arm and popped it in, and 

the blood would fly. Be took nearly a quart of blood from 

grandma. Be bled according to size and age. 
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“We ought to think a lot of Abraham Lincoln and 

the other great men such as Booker T. Washington. Lincoln 

set us free. Slavery was a bad thing and unjust. 

AC 
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FRANK MAGWOOD 

"I was born in Fairfield County, South Carolina, near 

the town of Ridgeway. Ridgeway was on the Southern Rail-

road from Charlotte, N. C. to Columbia, South Carolina. 

I was born Oct. 10, 1864. I belonged to Fora Rines whose 

wife was named Emma. ER had four girls Frances, Ann, - 

Cynthia, and Emma and one son named George. There was about 

one thousand acres of land inside the fences with about 

two hundred acres cleared. There were about seventy slaves 

on the place. My mother and father told me these things. 

Father belonged to a man by the name of John Gosey and 

mother belonged to ole man Rines. My father was named 

Lisbon Magwood and my mother was named Margaret Magwood. 

They were sold and resold on the slave auction block at 

Charleston, South Carolina, but the families to whom they 

belonged did not change their names until mother's name was 

changed when she married father in 1862. 

"There were twelve children in the family, three boys 

and nine girls. Only two boys of this family are living, 

Walter and myself. 

"Mother and father said at the beginning of the war 

that the white folks said it would not last long and that 

in the first years of the war they said one southern soldier 
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could whup three Yankee soldiers, but after awhile they quit 

their braggin. Most everything to eat and wear got scarce. 

Sometimes you couldn't git salt to go in the vegetables 

and meat that was cooked. People dug up the salty earth 

under their smoke houses, put water with it, drained it off 

and used it to salt rations. 

"There came stories that the Yankees had taken this place 

and that they were marching through Georgia into South Car-

olina. They burned Columbia, the Capitol of South Carolina, 

and had both whites and black scared, they were so rough. 

The Yankees stole, burnedand plundered. Mother said they 

hated South Carolina cause they started the war there. 

They burned a lot of the farm houses. The army, so my father 

and mother said, was stretched out over a distance of sixty-

two miles. Jest think of a scope of country sixty two 

miles wide with most of the buildings burned, the stock 

killed, and nothing to eat. The southern army and the north-

ern army had marched back and forth through the territory 

until there was nothing much left. Where Sherman's army 

stopped and ate and fed their horses the Negroes went and 

picked up the grains of corn they strowed there and parched 

and ate them. People also parched and ate acorns in South 

Carolina. 

"Father and mother got together after the war and 
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they moved to a widow lady's place by the narte of Ann Hunter, 

near Ridgeway. She was good to us and we stayed there 

sixteen years. Ann Hunter had three sons, Abraham, George 

and Henry. Abraham went to South America on a rambling 

trip. He decided to stay there. He was a young man then 

and he married a Spaniard. When he came home to see Ills 

mother it was the year of the earthquake in 1886. He was 

a grown man then and he brought his wife and children with 

him. He had three children, all of them spoke Spanish and 

could not understand their grandmother's talk to them. His 

wife was a beautiful woman, dark with black hair and blue 

eyes. She just worshipped her husband. They stayed over 

a month and then returned to South America. I have never 

seen ' em since or had any straight news of them. 

"Mother and father lived on the farm until they died, 

with first one ex- slave owner and another. They said they 

had nothing when the war ended and that there was nothing 

to do. 

"I stayed with my mother and father near Ridgeway 

until I was 21 years of age. I left the farm then and 

went to work on the railroad. I thought I was the only 

man then. I was so strong. I worked on the railroad one 

year then I went to the Stone mountain Rock Quarry in 

Georgia. 



"I got my hand injured with a dynamite cap after I 

had worked there a year and I came home again. I went 

back to working on the farm as a day hand. I worked this 

way for one year then I began share croppini. 

"I farmed ever since I came to Wake County 15 years 

ago. I farmed on Mr. Simpkins place one year then Mr. 

Dillon bought the place and I stayed there nine more years 

then I became so near blind I could not farm. I came to 

Raleigh to this house four years ago. I have been totally 

blind since the fifteenth of last December. 

"I married Alice Praylor near Ridgeway when I was 

23 years of age. We had nine children. 

"My last marriage was to Mamie Williams. I married 

her in South Carolina. We had four children. They are 

all living, grown and married off. My chief worry over 

being blind is the fact that it makes me unable to farm 

anymore." 

LE 
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JACOB MANSON 

17. N. Haywood St. Raleigh, N. C. 86 years of age. 

"It has been a long time since I wus born--bout all my 

people am dead gcept my wife an one son an two daughters. Be 

son an' one daughter live in N. C. an de other daughter lives 

in Richmond, Va. 

"1 belonged to Col. Bun Eden. his plantation wus in 

warren County an'. he owned 'bout fifty slaves or more. Dere wus 

so many of gem dere he did not know all his own slaves. We got 

A.ghty bad treatment an' I jest wants to tell you a nigger didn't 

stall' as much show dere as a dog did. Dey whupped fur most any 

little trifle. Dey whupped me, so dey said, jes to help .me git 

a quicker gait. De patterollers come sneaking round often an' 

dhupped niggers on #arster's place. Dey nearly killed my uncle. 

Dey broke his collar bone when dey wus beatin him an marster 

made gem pay for it " cause uncle never did it over it. 

Marster would not have any white overseers. Ba had nigg6r 

foremen. Hal ha l he liked some of de nigger gamans too good. 

to have any udder whtte man playin arouni gem. 

"Ife';wurked all day an some of de night• an a slave who made 

a wè:ek,1 even atter'deind.at, wus lucky if he' got off Virout 
, 

gettl.* a beatin. IN iad. poor food an" de young slaves wus fed 

Be te was-' Put in a t.0ough an de' little tigg-eilik 



de cabin. Some of de houses had dirt floors. Our clothing was 

poor an homemade. 

"Many of de slave3went bareheaded an barefooted. Some wore 

rags roun dere heads an some wore bonnets. Marster lived in de 

great house. He did not do any work but drank a lot of whiskey, 

went dressed up all de time an had niggers to wash his feet an 

comb his hair. He made me scratch his head when he lay down so 

he could go to sleep. When he got to sleep I would slip out. 

If he waked up when I started to leave I would have to :;() back 

an scratch his head till he went to sleep agin. Sometimes 

had to fan de flies way from him while he slept. No prayer— 

meetings wus allowed, but we sometimes went to de white folks 

church. Dey tole us to obey our marsters an be obedient at all 

times. When bad storms come dey let us rest but dey kept us 

in de fields so long sometimes dat de storm caught us 'fore 

we could git to de cabins. Niggers watched de wedder in slavery 

time an de ole ones is good at prophesying de wedder. 

"Marster had no chilluns by white women. He had his 

sweethearts gmong his slave women I aint no man for tellin 
A 

false stories. tells de truth an dat is de truth. At dat 

it wus•a hard job to find a marster dat didn't have women - 

his 'laves. Bat wus a inerel thing gmong de slave owners. 
4,-

or ide slave 
ole er'bout 

04 4 plantation.ilear up went o her 

marster *forcing her to let him  .have 

tlYsll.go on' 
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belong to him.' 1±122ther marster named Jimmie Shaw owned a 

purty slave gal nearly white an he kept her. His wife caught 

lim in a cabin in bed wid her. His wife said sumthin to him 

'bout it ant he cussed his wife. She tole him she had caught 

im in de act. She went back to de great house an got a gun. 

I:hen de marster come in de great house she tole tim he must 

let de slave girls alone dat he belonged to her. He cussed 

her agin an sed she would have to tend to her own dam business 

an' he would tend to his. Dey had a big fuss an den marster 

Jhaw stalted towards her. She grabbed de gun dn let him have 

it. She shot tim dead in de hall. Dey had three chillun, two 

sons an one married daughter. Missus Shaw took her two sons 

an left. " De married daughter an her husband took charge of 

de place. lassus an her sons never come back as 1 knows of. 

"A lot of de slave owners had certain strong healthy slave 

men to serve de slave women. Ginerally dey give one man four 

women ant dat man better not have nuthinl to do wid de udder 

women an' de women better not have nuthin to do wid udder men. 

Be chillun wus looked atter by de ole slave women who were un-

able to work in de fields while de mothers of de babies worked. 

De women plowed an done udder work as de men did. 

larnin' of any kind wus allowed. . 

"One mornint de dogs begun to bark an' in a few minutes the 

plantation wus kivered wid Yankees... Dey tale us we'wus .free. 

No books or 



dey had fighted four years to free us an' dat marster would not 

whup me no more. Marster sent to de fields an' had all de slaves 

to come home. He told me to tell ' em not to run but to fly 

to de house at once. All plow hands an' women come running 

home. De Yankees tole all of ' em dey wus free. 

"Larster offered some of de Yankees sumtin to eat in his 

house but dey would not eat cooked food, dey said dey wanted to 

cook dere own food. 

"I saw slaves sold in slavery time. I Saw tem whupped an 

many ran away. Some never come back. When we wus sick we took 

lots of erbs an roots. I married Roberta Edwards fifty-one 

years ago. We had six sons and three daughters. Atter the war' 

I farmed around from one plantation to another. I have never 

owned a home of my own. ahen I got too ole to work I come ant 

lived wid my married daughter in Raleigh. I been here four 

years. I think slavery wus a mighty bad thing, though it's been 

no-bed of roses since, but den no one could whup me no ;no" 
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ROBERTA TSON 

317 N. Haywood Street, Raleigh, h. C. Age 74. 

"I wus horned de second year de war an' de mos' I 

know 'bout slavery wus tole to me b:r other colored folks. My 

marster wus Weldon Edwards and 11i21 missus wus Missus Lucy. The 

-Dlantation wus in Warren County near ,ietc,eway. liy father wus 

named Lanis Edwards and my mother wus named Ellen Edwards. 

They both ' longed to Weldon Edwards. Father and mOther said 

he wus mighty rough to Tem. I hear„, my mother say dat marster 

whupped father so bad dat she had to grease .his back t it his 

shirt off. 

"Larster allowed de overseers to whup de slaves. Be 

overseers wus named Caesar Norfeir, Jim Trissel, and David 

Porter. 

"Dere wus a °le man dere by de name of Harris Edwards 

who fed up the 3 an' things. He wus sick an' he kept him 

sick. Well after awhile de °le marster tried to make him work. 

Be overseers den tool: him out way down in the plum orchard. 

Dey,pulled his tongue out an whupped him. He died an' wus found 

by de buzzards. De overseers wus named Jim Trissel an David 

Porter dat did dat. Dis ole.slave ' longed to missus; and 

when she found it out dere wus a awful fuss. One of de white 

overseers tried to put it off on de udder. It finally fell on 

Trissel and dey soon got rid of him. Eisaus tole him, 'you 

illed nay poor ole sick servant.' Mr. Jim Trissel killed 

:04 of.. tapl.. lie knocked 



my father down wid a stick an when he fell my father knocked 

his hip out of place. Dey whupped father ' cause he looked at 

a slave dey killed an cried. 

"Dey didn't allow no prayermeetings or parties in de houses. 

To books in de houses. No books or papers, no edication. 

"Some of de owners when dey knowed freedom wus commin' 

dey treated de slaves wu,ser den ever beZore. De ole men an 

woen dat wus unable to work wus neglected till dey died or 

wus killed by beatin or burninl Col. Skipper did dat thing. 

lived near Clarksville, Va. He put a lot of °le men an 

women on a Z1and in the Roanoke River. De river rose an 

stayed up eighteen days an dey parished to death. Dey were sent 

dere when sick and dey died. Mr. Skipper had over two hundred 

slaves. He wus one of the richest men in the south and Jr. 

Nick Laing wus another rich man. Nick Long owned de -Plantation 

now known as the Caledonia State's Prison Farm. Gen. Ransom's 

plantation wus a part of de land ' longing to the Caledonia 

State Prison Farm now. It joined wick Long's plantation. 

)Father and mother had bad tare, poor food, clothes an 

shoes. • Prey didn't sift slave meal. .Dey had no.siftersSometimes de collards and peas wup ..not_ rcleaned 'fors.qookin l.. 

Dey said de more slaves a . man had .de wusser he wus to 44vS4. 

Marster had dirt floors in de cabPs. 

bunks made.outen bagginl andja 

Dey slept an strait 

Some slept on whe 

straw ant shucks an' covered wid baggin. [0.11.1,3:e man at % nook, 
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a negro slave, an' his mother Ella an' grandmother Susan, also 

slaves, froze to death. at Bullock the son of Ole man at 

3ullock tole me this. Dese slaves ' longed to Jim Bullock 

who's plantation wus near Townsville, N. C. 

"Weldon Edwards who owned 4ather and mother had a whuppin 

lost an dey said dey whupped ole man Jack Edwards to death 

'cause he went to see his sick wife. He crawled fromee 

whuppin oost to de house atter bein whupped and died. Dey 

tole him ' fore dey whupped him dat dey wus „-oin to stop him 

from runnint away. Families wus broken up by sellin'. Dey 

couldn't sell a slave dat wus skinned up. Aunt Millie, Agie, 

C.racy and Lima wus sold from the Edwards family. Aunt Millie 

cried so . uch cause she had to leave her yOung baby datdey 

talked of whuppin her, ut den dey say 'we cannot sell her if 

we whup her an' so dey carried aer on. Mother sed Larster 

7eldon Edwards sole _ our woaen away from dere young chilluns 

at one time. 

"We lived in lo: cabins with dirt floors, one door, and 

one small winder at de back. De cabins had stick an dirt 

chimbleys./ 4When freedom c ome mother and father stayed on wid 

marster cause dey didn't have nuthin. Dey couldn't leage. Dey 

farmed for shares. Next year the overseer who had beat father 

so bad come atter him to go an work with him. It wus Mt. David 

Ptrter. I axed pa ain't dat de man who beat you so when you 

wus a slave? An pa say, ' you shet your mouth.' He stayed with 

103 
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1,r. Porter two years den we went to 144r. William Paschal's. We 

stayed there four years. Endurinl the next fifteen years we 

froved a good many times. We farmed round and round an' finally 

vient to LT. Peter Wyms' place near where I wus borned. 

"I wus married there to Jack Manson, (D-, years ago in 

January. I had eight chilluns five :.;iris an' three boys. 

zhree are living now. One boy and two girls. Two of the"-

chilluns are in N. (.;• and one, a girl, is in Virginia. 

"I think slavery -fus a bad thing but when freedom come 

dere wus nu-thin' else we could do but stay on wid some of de 

white folks cause we had nuthin to farm wid an nuthin to eat 

an wear. 

°De men who owned de plantations had to have somebody to 

farm dere lan' ant de slaves had to have somewhur to stay. 

Jats de way it wus, so if dere wus a lot of movin' about de 

exslaves kept doin de wurk cause dat's de only way dey had to 

keep from perishin'. De marsters needed ' em to farm dere lant 

ant de exslaves just had to have somewhur to live so both par-

ties kept stayin' an' wurkin together. 

"De nigger made moa' dey has out of workint far white 

folks since de war 'cause dey didn't have nuthin' whenset free 

an dat is all dere is to it.° 
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EX-SLAVE STORY AS TOLD BY MILLIE MARXHAM OF 

615 ST. JOSEPH ST., DURHAMi N. C. 

"I was never a slave. Although I was born somewhere 

about 1855, I was not born in slavery, but my father was. 

I'm afraid this story will be more about my father and 

mother than it will be about myself. 

"My mother was a white woman. Her name was Temple 

James. She lived on her father's big plantation on the 

Roanoke River at Rich Souare, North Carolina. Her father 

owned acres of land and many slaves. His stables were 

the best anywhere around; they were filled with horses, 

and the head coachman was named Squire James. Squire 

was a good looking, well behaved Negro who had a white 

father. He was tall and light colored. Temple James fell 

in love with this Negro coachman. Nobody knows how long 

they had been in love before Temple's father found it out, 

but when he did he locked Temple in her room. For days 

he and Miss Charlottle, his wife, raved, begged and plead-

ed, but Temple just said she loved Squire. 'Why will you 

act so?' Miss Charlottie was crying. 'Haven't we done 

everything for you and given you everything you wanted?' 

ltrompie shook her head and said: 'You haven't given 

me quire. Bets all I do want.' 

-*Then it was that in the dark of the night M. James 

sent 8 Ô1De away; he sent him to' another state and sold 

"Put Tempie -found it ma She took what money she 
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could find and ran away. She went to the owner , of Squire 

and bought him, then she set him free and changed his name 

to Walden Squire Walden. But then it was against the law 

for a white woman to marry a Negro unless they had a strain 

of Negro blood, so Temple cut Squire's finger and drained 

out some blood. She mixed this with some whiskey and 

drank it, then she got on the stand and swore she had 

blood in her, so they were married. She never sent 

back home and her people disowned her. 

nempie James Walden, my mother, was a beautiful 

woman. She was tall and fair with long light hair. She 

had fifteen children, seven boys and eight girls, and all 

of them lived to be old enough to see their great-grand-

children. I am the youngest and only one living now. 

Eost of us came back to North Carolina. Two of my sisters 

married and came back to Rich Square to live. They lived 

not far from the James plantation on Roanoke River. Once 

when we were children my sister and I were visiting in 

Rich Square. One day we went out to pick huckleberries. 

A woman came riding down the road on a horse. She was 

a tall woman in a long grey riding habit. She had grey 

hair and grey eyes. She stopped and looked at us. My', 

she said, 'whose pretty little girls are you?' 

'We're Squire Walden's children,' I said. 

She looked at me so long and hard that I thought she 
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was going to hit me with her whip, but she didn't, she hit 

the horde. He jumped and ran so fast I thought she was 

going to fall off, but she went around the curve and I 

never saw her again. I never knew until later that she 

was las" Charlottie James, my grandmother. 

"I dont know anything about slavery times, for I 

was born free of free parents and raised on my father's 7 

own plantation. I've been living in Durham over sixty-

five years. 
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mIaLs 
73 yes old, of 02 Larle Ltr,3.et, Raleigh, orth Carolina* 

[-"71'11 never forj_t de day when ae 'Zankees coffe through 

j'ohnston County.] 1 belo ,-.d  ...-, m Dema,;'e ole missus 
# 

in :32,,very time wus nEzed Liza. 

"De. Demayes lived in ac, when 1 Aius DOi, so Lio-Crs 

0.• 

1,olci Lie ) but de, ....oved co, a -2,..Lace near jklithfield. He had 

'bout dozen slave little cabins to live in, but 

.i,rater had a bi house -o live that set in a rove. 

food I got vius good becus I wu a ;pet ia ae fil 

fiioth r yus & cook an' a pet.11y marster 'als good to al of us 

n t T fare a better den dan I do now. Ole marster thought de 

world of me and I loved him. ivlarster .-lloed his slcves to 

visit, have prayer 11-:eetin hunt, fish, an' Lng and have 

a good time wnen ae 1:,T)rk %,us done. Some of de slccie owners 

did not like marster cause he wus so good to his . t,ves. 

0 They called us 101e an Demnyes dam free niggers/ 

don't know my t;,cse zackly out , I wus a big sal, big 

enough to di:* 41 youngin roun' when de Yankees cone throlf:,0 `' 
A 

wu six years old. if no older. 

.",When defi4ake s come dey cell d,us to de wagons an' 

tole aa we, wus .1?,e4.1, :De give each of.14 a cap full of hard— 

tack* Day to clothes an' provisions 



One crowd of Yankees would come on an' give- us something 

ant anotherwvuld come along an' take. it away from us. 

Dey tole us to call ma-pater ant missus Johnny Reba, that 

we wus free ant had no marsters. Dat wus a day for me: 

Some of de Yankees wus ridint, some walkint, an' some 

runnini. Dey took de feather beds in marsters house to 

de windows, cut dem-open an' let de feathers blow away. 

It wus a sad time to me cause day destroyed so much of 

marster t s stuff. 

" After de. Yankees left we stayed right on with marster 

a long time r den. we..moved awai to other ir.-embers of de • 

family. Mother would not give up de family ant she ant 

daddy stayed-Wid .tern as long .as d.ey lived. I love de 

family now an' I rather be livin' wid ' em den like I is: 

Dere s only a.few of de younger set of de Demayes livint. 

Ole marster ant missus had three boysi Sye., Lee, Zoa, 

giL, Vick ) Correna and Phidelia ) six chilluns in all. 

Dey is all dead but I can't never forgit tem if live to be 

a hundred years ole. - 

'1 tries to live right be:fere God an' man.. cause I knows 

I ha.int got much -longer on dis earth. I knows I.got to lay 

down sometime • to rise no more till Judgment Day) den I 

wants to meet ole marster l missus atit de family in dat-

country there dare' II be so more goodbyes:* 

"I MIS paseried at twenty years ole to Theodore Miles . , 

lace near de 

-11.0a4A 
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I wus hired as a house girl at die place wid Mr. Alango Miles 

family. Day wus some of de Demaye family. I had ten 

chillun, four boys ant six girls. Six of my chillun are 

ii7int now. Two boys ant four girls. My husband been dead 

'bout 16 years. He died in Oct. 1921. Buried an de third 

Sunday in October. 

"I have farmedmost of my life ant have raised a bitg 

family. Sometimes we wus hongry ant sometimes we had 

Dlenty.. None of my chilluns wus never arrested ant none 

ever went to prison. I thinks data something to knock 

on wood about. 

'Slavery wus a good thing by all niggers who happened 

to have good rukraters• De owners wus to blame for slavery 

gettint such a bad reputation. Some of tem just done a 

little too much.an' sich caused de war ant give de niggers 

freedom. Slavery wus good for some ant bad for otners." 
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AMU Tv7T-TCHL' IA• 
Ex—slave story 

An interview with Anna Mitchel, 76 of 712 S. Person 
Street, Raleigh, North Carolina. 

41.• 

" I wus borned in Vance County an' I'llonged ter Mr. 

Joseph Hargrove, de same man what owned Emily an' Rufus Hargrove, 

my mammy an' pappy. He also owned Jose4 ant Cora, my bruder 

an' Sister. My mammy uster ' long ter ' nother man what lived 

in rirginia, but Mr. Hargrove buyed her when she wus sold on 

de choppint block at Richmon'. He already had my peppy so 

dey got married dar on his plantation. 

4 harster ain't neber whup nobody, case he am too 

much de gentleman, out de oberseer done nuff fer ' em all. 

" Dar wasn't no Sadday,evenin's off"cept'fer de 

wimen what had eight or ten chilluns an' dey got off ter wash 

'em up. In de rush time, dat is when de fodder wus burnin' up 

in de fiel's or de grass wus eatin' up de cotton dey had ter 

wuck on Sunday same as on Monday.. 

lay.mazmy wus a seamstress, ant Itse knowed her ter 

wuck all night an' half de day ter make cZothei fer de slaves. 

" We ain't had bdt two teals a day an' dey wus scant. 

-'e had a few ,frolicks, dances an' sicli Ink onct in a.while. 
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ant onct a year we all went ter a show, sorter lak a circus. 

" I ' members dat we sung ' Swing Low Sweet Chariot, 

De Promised Lent, Ole Time Religionlan , one dat goes: 

" Dark wus de night ant col' de grount 
On which my Saviour lay, 
An' sweat lak drops of blood run down 
While ter de Q-od he pray." 

tt Dar wus a few mot. but I done fergitw 

" Does you know dat I can't ' member much ' bout de 

slave days? I doan recoleck when de Yankees corned, mebbe 

dey ain't come ter our part o' de country. I ' members when 

1„arse Joseph corned out ter de slave cabins ant tells us dat 

we can leave case we am free. I think dat dat wus de las' 

of August, case de fodder wus in. 

" I still knows a lady an' gentleman do'. A lady or 

gentleman s_,eaks nice ter you, case dey wus borned wid a 

silver spoon in dey mouth, but de other kin' what talks 

biggety shows plain dat de spoons which dey am borned wid 

am brass." 

EH 
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PATSY 3illTallial 
84 years old, of 432 McKee Street, Raleigh, I.C. 

It Come right in, honey, I been expectin l some of 

you white folks a long time from that I dreampt an' I wants 

to toll you lay story. Lou see I is tumble an' perlite ' cause 

;Lv white folks teached me dat way. 

" Come right in, I'm not feelin'.well. My husbant 

has been dead a long time. 1 cannot stan' up to talk to you 

so have a seat. 

4 I belonged to Alex Gorman, a paper man. He printed 

the "spirit of theAge," a newspaper. I reckon you can find 

it in the Museum. I reckons dey keeps all way back yonder 

things in dere jest to remember by. He had a lot of printers 

both black ant white. De slaves turned de wheels de most of 

de time, an' de white mens done de printint. Dere wus a big 

place dug out at each side of de machine. One lman pulled it 

to him an' de other pulled it to him. Dey wurked it wid de 

hail's. It wus a big wheel, Dey didn't have no printers den 

like dey got now. 

" De ole printin t place is standin? now. It stands in 

front of de laun Dawson- Street, where a lot of red 

custi'sgo. towards the bk4ik station* De ole build-
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" Marster married Gormans twice an' dey wus both 

named Mary. Don't know whether dey wus sisters or not, but 

dey wus both Virginia women. So my missus name wus Mary 

Gorman. II_do not know my age, but I wus ' bout 12 years old 

when Wheeler's cavalry come through. Dey skeered me so much 

squatted like a rat. ljey pulled clothes off de line an' 

stole clothes from stores ant went down to de depot an' changed 

clothes. Dey stole de womens drawers an' filled ' em wid 

things. Dey stole meat, corn an' other things an' put ' em 

in womens drawers, throwed ' em across dere horses backs an' 

went on. You know women den wore long drawers open in front, 

hal hal 

". Wheeler / cavalry tied up de legs an' front of lem 

an' filled de legs an' seat full of things dey stole. Dey 

jest grabbed everything an' went on. Dey had a reason for 

leaviniw de Yankees wus at dere heels. 

4  Jest as soon as dey left de Yankees come. You know, 

dere wwva-man. here by de name of Governor Hblden ant de flag 

wus a: red an' white fig, an when de'lankees come dere wus 

another flag run up. 

;,..4 want to try to tell de truth tcause I wuS teached 

dat way .by Barster an'Aassus. 

De flag brought pead: teause de rangees'did not tear 

up.9pg,t Dey had. guards ,otit around de houses an :cbay marched 

71krth*:.day an' ,Jm4ht.to keet, everybody from twabbint de 
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"De Yankees wid dere blue uniforms on jest kivered de 

town. Dey wus jest like ants. Dey played „Airty music on 

de ban' an' I liked dat. I wus fraid of ' em dough ' cause 

marster an' missus said dey were gain' to give us to ' em 

when dey come. I stayed hid mos' of de time right after dei 

surrender ' cause I didn't want de Yankees to ketch me. 

:;hen de others left after de surrender I run away an' went 

to Rev. Louis Edwards, a nigger preacher. He sent me to 

ny aunt at Rolesville. My Aunt wus named Patsy Lewis. I 

stayed dere bout three weeks when my uncle rented whur Cam-

eron Park is now ant tended it dat year. We all come to Ral-

eigh ant I have lived here all my life, but the three weeks 

I stayed at Rolesville. 

"I have fiurked for white folks, washinl, cookinl, an' 

wurkinl at a laundry ever since freedom come. 

"I never seed my father in my life. My mother wus 

named Tempe Gorman. Dey would not talk to me ' bout who my 

father wus nor where he wus at. Mother would laf sometime 

when I axed her ' bout him. 

"Marster treated his niggers mean somAimes. He beat 

my mother till de scars wus on her back, so I could see tem. 

"Dey sold my mother, sister an' brother to ole man 

Askew, a slave speculator, an' dey were shipped to de Miss-

issippi bottoms in a box-car. I never heard from mother any-

More. 
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I neber seed my brother agin, but my sister come back to 

Charlotte. She come to see me. She married an' lived dere 

till she died. 

" In slavery time de food wus bad at marsters. It wus 

cooked one day for de next, dat is de corn bread wus baked an' de 

meat wus biled an , you et it col' fer breakfast. De meat wus 

as fat as butter an' you got one rashen an' a hunk of corn 

bread fer a meal. No biscuit wus seen in de slave houses. 

No sir, dat aey wus not. No biscuit for niggers at marsters. 

4  Our clothes wus bad an' our sleepin , places wus jest 

bunks. Our shoes had wooden bottoms on ' em. 

" I heard ' em talk about patterollers so much I wus 

skeered so I could hardly sleep at night sometimes. I wus 

'fraid dey would come ant catch me bdt I neber seed one in 

my life. 

I neber seed any slaves sold, in chains, or a jail 

for slaves. I. neber seed a slave whupped. Marster took Lem 

in de back shed room to whap ' em 

4 We wus not teached to read an.' write* You better 

not be caught wid no paper in yore haat if you wus, you got 

de cowhide. I darsett to talk back to ' em no matter what 

4appe41:d dey would git you if you talked back to 

I married Tom itchRer after de war 

tey Gorman V-;14- ?I 3vue married* Now. E goes oy de 
, %, .. 

of Patsy Mitaline husban! Tom Ilitchuer , virus born 

weqt by de 
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a slave. My marster lived whar de bus station .now is on de 

corner of Martin an' Mc:Dowell 3treets in dat ole house dat 

stan's near dere now. I wus born an , bred in Raleigh ant 

have neber libed out of Wake County. 

'Ole Dr. Jim McKee ) who is dead an' gone ) looked atter 

us when we wus sick. He give us medicine an' kep us clean 

out better en people is clean out now. Jr. John McKee t de 

City Hall is his son. Dey pays no ' tentiqn to me now; guess 

dej has forgotten me. 

' Did you say ghosts ) Lawsy, no I neber seed one but 

our spirits is always wonderin' aroun' eben before we dies. 

Spirits is wonderin' eberywhere an , you has to look out fcr 

em. 

" Witches is folks. I neber had a spell put on me by 

one, but I knowed a woman once who had a sell put on ' er ) 

an' it hurt her feet, but a ole white man witch doctor helped 

take de spell off, but I think it wus de Lord who took it off. 

is a Christaia an' Ibelieves eberythin' is in his han's. 

"De people is worser now den dey wus in slavery time. 

We need patterollers right now. ' Twould stop some uv dis 

stealin' an keep a lot of folks out of de penetentiary. We 

need ' ern right now. 

Slavery wus better for us den things is now in some 

cases. Niggers den didn't have no responsibility, jest wurk, 

der got to shuffle around an' live on jest 
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what de white folks min' to give ' em. 

" slaves prayed for freedom. Len dey got it dey didn't 

.Know what to do wid i. Day wus turned out wid nowhere to 

o an' nothin' to live on. Ley had no ' sperence in lookin' 

out for demselves ant nothin' to wurk wid an' no lan'. 

Dey made me think of de crowd onetime who prayed for 

rain when it wus dry in crzp time. De rain fell in torrents 

an ket fallin' till it vas ' bout a flood. De rain frigs 

'gin to holler an' callint mot rain an' it rained an' rained. 

Den de rainaraw got LIT, in a high tree an' he holler ant axed 

de Lord for rain. It rained till ebery little rack of cloud 

dat come ober brought a big shower of large drops. De fiel's 

wus so wet an' miry you could not go in ' em an' water wus 

standin' in de fiel's middle of ebery row, while de ditches 

in de fiel's looked like little rivers, dey wus so full of 

water. It begun to thunder agin in de southwest, right whar 

we call de " Chub hole" of de sky, whar so much rain comes from 

an' de clouds growed blacker an' blacker back dere., 

" lien one of de mens who had been prayint for rain up 

an' said, ' I tell you brothers if it don't quit rainint ebery-

thing to be washed away.' Dey all looked at de black 

rain cloud in de west wid sortful faces as if dey felt dey 

didn't know what" use dey had for rain after dey got it. Den 

one of de brothers said to de other brothers kinder easy an' 

shameful like, 'Brothers don't you think we overdone dis 

thing7t Data what many a slave thought 'bout prayin' for free-

dom. 
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" Before two years had passed after de surrender dere 

wus two out of every three slaves who wushed dey.wus -,babir 

dere marsters. 

ti De marsters kindness to de niggers after de war ig 

de cause of de nigger havin' things today. Dere wus .a lot of 

love- between marster an' slave en dar is few of us dat don't 

love de white folks today. 

Slavery wus a bad thing an' freedom, of de kin' we 

got wid nothint to live on wus bad. Two snakes full of pisen. 

One'yin' wid his head pintin' north, de other wid his head 

pintin' south. Dere names wus slavery an' freedom. De snake 

called slavery lay wid his head pinted south an' de snake. 

called freedom lay wid his head pinted north. Both bit de 

nigger, an' dey wus both bad." 



- 
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EMELINE MOORE, EX-SLAVE 

707 Hanover Street, Wilmington, N. C. 

"I dont .exac'ly know how ole I is, but dey say 

I must be eighty. No main, I am' got nothin' in no famtly 

Bible. Where'd I git a lamtly Bible? My mammy (with a 

chuckle) had too many dhillun to look after to be puttin' ' em 

down in no Bible, she did'n have time, an' she did'n have no 

learnin' nohow. But I reckon I is eighty because I 'members 

so much I's jes' about forgotten it all. 

"My folks belonged to Colonel Taylor. He an' Mist 

Kitty lived in that big place on Market Street where the soldiers 

lives now, (The W. L. I. Armory) but we was on the plantation 

across the river mos' of the time. 

"Of co'se I was born in slavery, but I don' remember 

nothin' much excep t feedin' chickens. An' up on Market Street 

Mis' Kitty had chickens an' things, ant a cow. The house had 

more lan' around it than it got now. I do remember when they 

thought eve'ybody trount here was goin' to die an' I got skeered. 

No'm t'want no war it was the yaller fever. We was kept on the 

plantation but we knowed folks jes died ant died an' died. We 

thought t'would ,nt be nobody Imft. I don't remember nothin' 

about Lincoln travelint aroun'. I always heard he was President 

of the Lunited States, an' lived in Washington, an' gai3 us 

freedom, an' got shot. Of co'se I knows all about Booker Wash-

ington, a lot of our folks went to his school, an' he been here 
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in Wilmington. I'd know a lot about slave times only I was 

so little. I have heard my mammy say she had a heap easier time 

in slavery than after she was turn' loose with a palcel of 

chiliuns to feed. I married as soon as I couid ant that's how 

I .got this house. But I can't work, ant I dismemembers so much. 

The Welfare gives me regerlar pay, ant now an' then my friends 

give me a nickel or a dime. 

"I lives alone now, until I can git a decant ' ooman 

to live with me. I tells you Missus these womens an' young 
awhile 

girls today are sumpin else. After you had ' em arount/you wish 

you never knowed tem. 

"Sometimes when I jes sets alone an rocks I wonder if 

my mammy didn't have it lots easier than I does." 

#I# 
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• By Marjorie Jones, 
Sept. 21, 1937. 320003 

Interview With 
Fannie Moore, Ex-slave, 
151 Valley Street, • 

Asheville, N. C. 1.4W) 
• 

Nowadays when I heah folks a'growlin an' a'grumblia bout not 

habbin this an' that I jes think what would they done effen 

they be brought up on de Moore plantation. De Moore 

b'long to Marse Jim Moore, in Moore, South Carolina. 

had own de same plantation and de same niggers and d 

for yeahs back. When Marse Jim's pappy die he leave 

thing to Marse Jim, effen he take care of his mammy. 

was a rip-jack. She say niggers didn't need nothin' 

plantation 

De Moores 

y children 

de whole 

SO shore 

to eat. 

fey jes like animals, not like other folks. She whip me, many 

time wif a cow hide, til I was black and blue. 

Marse Jim's wife war Mary Anderson. She war the sweetest 

woman I ebber saw. She was allus good to evah nigger on de 

plantation. Her mother was Harriet Anderson and she visit de 

Kissus for long time on de farm. All de little niggers like to 

work fo' her. She nebber talk mean. , Jes smile dat sweet smile 

and talk in de soffes' tone. An when she laugh, she soun i jes 

like de little stream back ob de spring house gurglin' past 

de rocks. An' her hair all white and curly, I canmember her 

always. 

Marse Jim own de bigges' plantation in de whole country. 

Jes thousands acres ob lan'. An de ole Tiger Ribber a runnin' 

right through de middle ob de plantation. On one side ob de 

ribber stood de big house, whar de white folks lib and on the 

other side stoOd de quarters. De big house was a purty thing all 

painted white, a standin' in a patch o' oak trees. I can't 

remember how many rooms in dat house but powerful many. Olcorse 
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it was built when de noores had sech large families. Marse Jim 

he only hab five children, not twelve like his mammy had. Dey 

was Andrew and Tom, den Harriet, Nan, and Nettie Sue. Harriett 

was jes like her granny Anderson. She was good to ebberbody. 

The git de little niggers down an' teach em dey Sunday School 

lesson. Effen ole Marse Jim's mammy ketch her she sho' raise 

torment. She make life jes as hard for de niggers as she can. 

De quarters jes long row o' cabins daubed wif dirt. 7Ever 

one in de family lib in one big room. In one end was a big fire-

place. Dis had to heat de cabin and do de cookin too. We cooked 

in a big pot hung on a rod over de fire and bake de co'n pone in 

de ashes or else put it in de skillet and cover de lid wif coals. 

We allus hab plenty wood to keep us warm. Dat is ef we hab time 

to get it outen de woods. 

My granny she cook for us chillens while. our mammy away in de 

fiel. Dey wasn't much cookin to do. Jes make co'n ponc and bring 

in de milk. She hab big wooden bowl wif enough wooden spoons to 

go ' roun'. She put de milk in de bowl and break it up. Den she 

put de bowl in de middle of de flo' an' all de chillun grab a 

spoon. 

My mammy she work in de flea.' all day and piece and quilt all 

night. Den she hab to spin enough thread to make four cuts for 

de white fo'ks ebber night. Why sometime I nebber go to bed. 

Hab to hold de light for her to see by. She hab to piece quilts 

for de white folks too. Why dey is a scar on my arm yet where 

my brother let de pine drip on me. Rich pine war all de light 

we ebber hab. My brother was a holdins de pine sots I can help 
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mammy tack de quilt and he go to sleep and let it drop. 

I never see how my mammy stan' sech ha'd work. She stan' up 

fo' her chillun tho'. De ol' overseeah he hate my mammy, case 

she fight him for beatin' her chillun. Why she git more whuppins 

for dat den anythin' else. She hab twelve chillun. I member I 

see de three oldes' stan' in de snow up to dey knees to split 

rails, while de overseeah stan off an' grin. 

My mammy she trouble in her heart bout de way they treated. 

7ver night she pray for de Lawd to git her an' her chillun out 

ob de place. One day she plowin' in de cotton fiel. All sudden 

like she let Out big yell. Den she sta't singin' an' a shoutin', 

an' a whoopin' an' a hollowin'. Den it seem she plow all de 

harder. When she come home, Marse Jim's mammy . say: "What all 

dat goin' on in de fiel? Yo' think we sen' you out there jes 

to whoop and 11? No siree, we put you out there to work and 

you sho' bettah work, else we git de overseeah to cowhide you 

ole black back." My mammy jes grin all over her black wrinkled 

face and say: "I's saved. De Lawd done tell me I's saved. Now 

I know de Lawd will show me de way, I ain't gwine a grieve no 

more. No matter how much yo' all done beat me an' my chillun de 

Lawd will show me de way. An' some day we nevah be slaves." 

Ole granny Moore grab de cowhide and slash mammy cross de back 

but mammy nebber yell. She jes go back to de fiel a singin'. 

My mammy grieve lots over brothah George, who die wif de 

fever. Granny she doctah him as bee' she could, evah time she 
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git way from de white folks kitchen. My mammy nevah git chance 

to see him, icept when she git home in de evenini. George he 

jes lie. One day I look at him an' he had sech a peaceful look 

on his face, I think he sleep and jes let him lone. Long in de 

avenin I think I try to wake him. I touch him on de face, but 

he was dead. Mammy nebber know til she come at night. Pore 

mammy she kneel by de bed an' cry her heart out'. 01' uncle Allen, 
-Ow 

he make pine box for him an' carry him to de graveyard over on 

de hill. My mammy jes plow and cry as she watch em' put George 

in de groun'. 

My pappy he was a blacksmith. He shoe all e horses on de 

plantation. He wo'k so hard he hab no time to go to de fiel'. 

His name war Stephen Moore. Lars Jim call him Stephen Andrew. 

0 
He was sold to de Moorets, and his mammy tool. She war brought 

over from Africa. She never could speak plain. All her life 

she been a slave. White folks never recognize ' em any more 

than effen dey was a dog. 

It was a tubble sight to see de speculators come to de plan-

tation. Dey would go through de fields and buy de slaves dey 

wanted. Marse Jim nebber sell peppy or mammy or any ob dey 

Shillun. He allus like pappy. When de speculator some all de 

slaves start a shakiny. No one know who is a goin'. Den sometime 

dey take 'em an' sell ' em on de block. De ' breed woman' always 
AA-

bring .mo' money den de res )ebben 411men. When dey put her on de 

block dey put all her chill= aroun her to show folks how fas she 

an hab chillun. When she sold her family nebber see her agin. 

440 
She nebber knolowmany chillun she hab. Some time she hab colored 
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children an' sometime white. Taint no use to say anything case 

effen she do she jes git whipped. Why on de Moore plantation 

Aunt Cheney, everbody call her Aunt Cheney, have two chillun by 

de overseeah. De overseeah name war Hill. He war as mean as de 

devil. When Aunt Cheney not do what he ask he tell granny Moore. 

Ole Granny call Aunt Cheney to de kitchen and make her take her 

clothes off den she beat her til she jest black an' blue. Many 

boyyand girls marry dey own brothers and sisters an' nebber know 

de difference lest they get to talkin' bout dey parents and where 

dey uster lib. 

De niggers allus hab to get pass to go anywhere offen de plan-

tation. Dey git de pass from de mas§a or de missus. Den when 

de paddyrollers come dey had to show de pass to dem, if you had 

no pass dey strip you an' beat you. 

I remember one time dey was a dance at one ob de houses in de 

quarters. All de niggers was a laughin an' a pattin' dey feet aft' 

a singin', but dey was a few dat didn't. De paddyrollers shove 

de do' open and sta't grabbin' us.. Uncle Joe's son he decide dey 

was one time to die and he sta't to fight. He say he tired 

standin' so many beatin's, he jes can't stan' no mo. De paddy-

rollers start beatin' him an' he stalt fightin' Oh, Lawdy it 

war tubble. Dey whip him wif a cowhide for a long time den one 

of dem take ' aa stick an' hit him over de head, an' jes bus his 
, 

head wide open. De pore boy fell on de flot jes a maanin' an' 

a groanin. De paddyrollers jes whip bout half dozen other niggers 

sen t em home and leve us wif•de dead boy. 

e-niggers have any learnin‘ war 't never lowed to 
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as much as pick up a piece o' paper. My daddy slip an' get a 

tv'ebster book and den he take it outen de fiel and he lam n to 

read. De white folks ' fraid to let de children learn anythin'. 

They fraid dey get tdpsma't and be harder to manage. Dey nebber 

let em know anything about anythin'. Never have any church. 

Effen you go you set in de back of de white folks chu lch. But 

de niggers slip off an' pray an' hold prayer-meetin' in de 

woods den dey tu'n down a big wash pot and prop it up wif a stick 

to drown out de soun' ob de singin'. I '.member some of de songs 

we uster sing. One of dem went somethin' like dis: 

Mark from de tomb a doleful soun' 

My ears hear a tender cry. 

A livin' man come through the groun' 

Thar we may shortly lie. 

Heah in dis clay may be you bed 

In spite ob all you toil 

Let all de wise bow revrant head 

Mus' lie as low as ours. 

Then dey sing one I can hardly remember but dis is some of de words: 

'Jesus can make you die in bed 

He sof' as downs in pillow there 

On my bres' I'll lean my head 

Grieve my life sweetly there. 

In dis life of heaby load 

Let us share de weary traveler 
to 

Along de heabenly road. 
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Back in dose time dey wasn't no way to put away fruit and 

things fo' winter like dey is today. In de fall of de yeah it 

certainly was a busy time. We peel bushels of apples and peaches 

to dry. Dey put up lots o' brandied peaches too. Be way dey 

done dey peel de peaches and cut em up. Then dey put a layer ob 

teaches in a crock den a layer ob sugar den another layer ob 

peaches until de crock was full. Den dey seel de jar by puttin' 

a cloth over de top then a layer 6' paste then another cloth then 

another layer ob paste. Dey keep dey meat bout de same way 

foks do today 'cept dey had to smoke it more since salt was so 

sca'ce back in dat day. Dey can mos' ob de other fruit and 

put it in de same kin' of jars dat dey put de peaches in. Dey 

string up long strings o' beans an' let ' em dry and cook em 

wif fat back in de winter. 

Folks back den never heah tell of all de ailments de folks 

hab now. Dey war no doctahs. Jes use roots and bark for teas 

of all kinds. My ole granny uster make tea out o' dogwood 

bark an' give it to us chillun when we have a cold, else she 

make a tea outen wild cherry bark, pennyroil, or hoarhound. 

My goodness but dey was bitter. We do mos' enythint to git 

out a takin' de tea, but twarnt no use granny jes git you by de 

collar hol' yci( nose and you jes swallow it or get strangled. 

When de baby hab de colic she git rats vein and make a syrup an' 
as 

put a little sugar in it an' boil it. Den soon it cold she give 

it to de baby. For stomach ache she give us snake root. Some-

time she make tea, other time she jes cut it up in little pieces 

alal make you eat one or two ob dem. When you hab fever she wrap 
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you up in cabbage leaves or ginsang leaves, dis made de fever go. 

Then de fever got too bad she take the hoofs offen de hog dat had 

been killed and parch em' in de ashes and den she beat em' up 

and make a tea. Dis was de most tubble of all. 

De yeah fore de war started Marse Jim died. He war out in de 

pasture pickin' up cow loads a throwin' em in de garden an' he 

jes drop over. I hate to see Marse Jim go, he not sech,a. bad 

man. Ater he die his boys, Tom an' Andrew take cha'ge of de plan-

tation. Dey think dey run things diffe'nt from dey daddy, but 

dey jes git sta'ted when de war come. 1156e Tom and Marse Andrew 

both hab to go. My pappy he go long wif dem to do der cookin. 

ry pappy he say dat some day he run four or five miles wif de 

Yankes ahind him. afore he can stop to do any cookin. Den When 

he stop he cok wif de bullets a fallin all roun de kettles. He 

say he walk on ded men jes like he walkin on de groun'. Some of 

de men be dead, some moanin' an' some a groanin', but nobody pay 

no tention, case de Yankees keep a comm. One day de Yankees 

come awful close Marse Andrew hab de Confed'rate flag in his 

han'. He raise it high in de air. Pappy say he yell for him to 

put de flag down case de Yankees was a comin' closer an' was 

again' to capture him anyway. But Marse Andrew jes hol' de flag 

up an run'hind a tree. De Yankee sojers jes take one shot at him 

an' dat was de las' of him. My pappy bring him home. De fambly 

put him in alcohol. One . day I went to see him and there he was 

a swimmin' rdund in de water. Mos' ob his hair done come off tho. 

Ile buried at Nazereth. I could go right back to de graveyard 
• S4,0viA 

effen I was there. Den my pappy go back to with Marse Tom. 
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I:arse Tom was jes wounded. Effen he hadn't had a Bible in his 

pocket de bullet go clear through his heart. But yo' all kno' 

no bullet ain't goin' through de Bible. No, you can't shoot 

through God's word. Pappy he bring Marse Tom home an' take 

care of him til he well. Marse Tom give pappy a horse an' 

wagon case he say he save his life. 

Many time de sojers come through de plantation an' dey load 

up dey wagons wif ebberthing dey fin', lasses, hams, chlckens. 

Sometime dey gib part of it to de niggers. but de white folks take 

it way when dey git gone. De white folks hide all de silverware 

from de soldiers. Dey fraid dey take it when dey come. Some 

time dey make us tell effen dey think we know. 

After de war pappy go back to work on de plantation. He make 

his own crop, on de plantation. But de money was no good den. 

I played wif many a Confed'rate dollar. He sho was happy dat 

he was free. Mammy she shout fo' joy an' say her prayers war 

answered. Pappy git pretty feeble, but he work til jest fore he 

die. Be made patch of cotton wif a hoe. Dey was enough cotton 

in de patch to make a bale. Pappy die when he 104 years old. 

Mammy she live to be 105. 

After de war de Ku Klux broke out. Oh, miss dey was mean. 

In dey long white robes dey scare de niggers to death. Dey keep 

close watch on dem afeared dey try to do somethin i. Dey have 

long horns an' big eyes an' mouth. Dey never go roun' much in 

de day. Jes night. Dey take de pore niggers away in de woods 

a!trid beat ' em and hang ' em. De niggers was afraid to move, much 

les try to do anything. Dey never kno' what to do, dey hab no 
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larnin. Hab no money. All dey can do was stay on de same plan-

tation til dey can do better. We lib on de same plantation till 

de chillun all grown an mammy an' pappy both die then we leave. 

I don' know where any of my people are now. I knows I was bo'n 

in 1849. I was 88 years old de fust of September. 

of. 
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RICHARD C. MORING 
Ex-Slave Story 

An interview with Richard C. Moring 86 of 245 E. 
South Street, Raleigh, N. C. 

"My mammy wus Cherry an' my pappy wus Jacob. Mr. 

Anderson Clemmons owned mammy, an' Mr. Fielding Moring 

owned pappy. 

"I doan know much ' bout Mr. Moring, case we stayed 

wid Mr. Clemons near Apex, in dis same county. 

"Mr. Clemons owned lessIn a dozen slaves, but he 

wus good ter 'em. De oberseer, LT. Upchurch, whupped de 

slaves some, but not very much. 

"We had nuff ter eat an' wlar an' we wuck hard, but 

no harder dam we has sin ce dat time. fillar.ster ' lowed us 

our own gyarden an' tater patch, we also had our own hawgs. 

"Dey ' lowed us some fun lak dancin', wrestlin' mat-

ches, swimmini, fishin', huntin' an' games. We also had 

prayer meetin's at our cabins. 

"When dere wus a Weddini dar wus fun fer all, case 

hit wus a big affair. Dey wus all dressed up in new clothe, 

an' marster's dinin' room wus decorated wid flowers fer 

de Icasion. De ban' which wus banjoes jan' fiddles ' Lid 

play an' de neighborin' folks ' lid come. 
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nDe preacher married ' em up good an' tight jist laic 

he done de white folks, an' atter hit was ober an' de songs 

wus sung marster's dinin' table was set an' der was a 

weddin' sapper fer all. 

"I doan ' member so mach ' fore de war but I ' members 

dat de Rebs go by an' dat de Yankees chase ' em. (I is on 

Mr. Ebrings' place den clost ter Morrisville.) 

"De Yankees am so busy chasm' de Rebs dat dey doan. 

stop ter bodder us much, ' oept ter kill de chickens an' so 

on. 

"Dar's a place out from Morrisville whar de Yankees 

an' de Rebels had er little skirmish on dat trip. We 

could hyar de guns go boomini, an' atter hit wus ober we 

chilIans went dar an' pick up de balls an' boxes of dese 

hard tacks whar de soldiers had fit. 

nI fergit ter tell you ' bout de fust gang o Yankees 

what come by. Dey wus lookin' fer food an' when dey got 

ter our place dey comes in an' helps dereselbes ter marster's 

stuff. Dey kilt all de live things, took all de hams ant 

sich, ant dey fount ' bout a bushel o' aigs. Dey put ' dm 

in de big wash pot an' biled ' em an' dey goes ter de spring 

house an' gits seben er eight poun's el butter. Vihen de 

alga am biled dey splits ' ern open an' puts de butter an 

'em an' eats 'em dat way. Dat's de fust alga dat eber I 

tasted, ant dey shore give me all I wants. 
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mvie went back ter Mr. Clemmons"fore de surrender, 

case when dat happen Lis' Jane Clemmons tells usin her— 

self dat we am free. All o' we chilluns, Duncan, Candice, 

Mariah, Len, dillis, ii1iam, Sidney, Lindy, Mary, Rilda, 

an' me, all of mammy's chilluns wus dar at de en' of de 

war. 

"We stayed on at Mr. Clemmons fer seberal years, in 

fac' till de ole folks died. My young Missus 

Katy Ellis lives on Hillsboro Street, an' I often goes ter 

see her an' she sometimes gives me money, so you sees 

de feelin' dat 'zists twixt me an' my white folkses. 

"I'll tell you de story 'bout de witch at de mill 

iffen you wants ter hyar hit, I hyard my grandmammy tl 

hit when I wus a little feller. 

THE ,IITCH AT THE MILL 
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"Onct dar wus a free nigger what ownes a mill an' 

he am makin' a heap o' money. He married a han'some nigger 

wench an' hit ' peared lak his luck all went bad. De 

folkses quit bringin' dere co'n ter be groun' an' he ' gan 

ter git pore. 

"Long in dem times; de slaves sometiites runned away 

from dair, cruel marsters an' dey'd go ter dis niger at de 

mill. hesud put ' em ter slee-c, in de mill, but dey can't 

sleep on de ' count of fusses an' scratchini. 

"'Last one night a nigger what has runned away coined 

ter spen'de night, an' he sez dat he am hot skeerd o' nothin' 
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De owner can put him ter sleep in de house if he wants ter, 

case his wife am spendin' de night wid a friend of hem, 

but he ' sides ter put him in de mill. 

"He tells de runaway nigger 'bout de witch,but atter 

de nigger,gits hisself a butcher knife he ain't akeered no 

mo' an' he goes on ter de mill. 

"Way in, de night de nigger sees somethin', an.' de 

whites o' his eyes shines lak lamps. De things comes nearer 

an' nearer an' he sees dat hit am a big black cat wid de 

savage notion or eatint him. 

De nigger swings his knife an' off aomes one of de 

ole cat's feets. She gives a awful screech an' goes outen 

de winder. 

"De next mornin de owner's wife am sick in de bed 

an' she ' fuses ter .git up. De man tells her ter git up 

ant cook his breakfas but she ' fuses ter stir. 

"You better git up, you lazy trollop', de man shouts 

an' wid dat he drags de toman outen de bed. He am tmazed 

when he sees dat her han' am cut off, an' he yells fer de 

neighbors. 

"When de neighbors gits dar dey makes a big bresh 

pile an' dey ties her on hit an' burns her up. Atter dat 

de man had good luck, eben atter he married ag'in." 

Note: This witch story is a variant of The Old Brownrigg 
Mill by Doctor Richard Dillard. - 
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JULIUS NELSON 
Ex- Slave Story 
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An interview with Julius Nelson, 77 of State Prison, 
Raleigh, N. C. 

aI doan ' member no slavery, of course, so 'taint 

no use ter ax me no questions. I does know dat my mammy 

wus named Ann an' my pappy wus named Alex. Dey ' longed 

ter a Mr. Nelson in Anson County. Dere wus 'leben o/ us 

youilgins but dey am all daid now icept me. 

nI doan reckon dat I is but roll& sebenty, case I 

wus jist five years old at de close de war. What's 

dat, Ilse sebenty seben? Lan' how de time do fly: 

"Anyhow I jist barely does 'member how de ho'n 

blawed ' fore de light ot de day an' how we got up ant 

had our breakfast an' when de ho'n blowed at sunrise we 

went ter de fiel's in a gallop. At dinner time de plan-

tation bell rung an' we'd fly fer home. 

"One big fat nigger ' oman cooked de dinner fer us 

fifty er sixty slaves ant in er hour or so we'd go baek 

ter de fiel's fer mo''wuck. I sez us, but I means dem 

what could wuck. I did pull weeds an' pick up apples, 

dem things. 

'Mese dinners hyar 'min's me 0' de plantation 

ant 
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dinners somehow. Maybe case it am ' bout de same quantity. 

Great big pots o' turnip salet, collards, peas, beans, 

cabbages, potatoes or other vegetables, an' a oben full 

o' sweet ltaters in de winter. Dar wus a heap or pies 

in de summertime, an' honey, an"lasses, an' lasses cake 

in de winter time. Dar wus big pones ov coin bread all 

de year roun' an' whole sides o' meat, on New Years 

1Jay hogshead an' peas. 

"Fur supper we gine'ly had pot licker, lef' from 

dinner, 'taters maybe an' SOMB sweetnin'. Dar wus 

ash cakes fur supper an' breakfast most o' de time an' 

hominy which de marster had grown his self. De smRrt 

nigger et a heap o' possums an' coons, dar bein' plenty 

o' dem an' rabbits an' squirrels in abundance. 

"did yo' eber eat any kush? Well dat wus made 

outin meal, onions, salt, peper, grease an' water. Hit 

made a good supper dish. Sometimes in de heat o' de day 

marster let us pick blackberries on de hedgrrow fer our 

supper. We 'little ' um often picks de berries, an' den 

we have a big pan pie fer supper. 

"On holidays we sometimes had chicken pie an' ham 

an' a lot o' other food. Dem wus de happy times, 

'specially on Christmas mornin' when we all goes ter de 

big house ter celebrate an' ter git our gifls. Dey give 

us clothes, food, an' fruit. One Christmas we had a big 

tub of candy, I reckolicts. 



"Bout twict a year we had a sociable when de niggers 

from de neighborin' plantations lud be invited an' dey'd 

come wid deir banjoes an' fiddles an' we'd dance, all o7 

usan' have a‘swell time. 

"We little'uns ' ud play fox-on-de-wall, tag, mul-

berry bush, drap handerchief, stealin' sticks an' a whole 

heap of others dat I disremembers right now. 

"We shucked our co'n on rainy days mostly, but de 

marster lets us have one big co'n shuckin' eber' year 

an' de person what fin's a red year can kiss who dey 

pleases. Hit wus gran' times dat we had den. 

"We also had regular weddin's wiu a preacher an' 

all de fixin's an' de marster usually give us a big sapper 

case he =owed dat he wuz gwine ter soon he more 

slaves from de union. 

"Iffen de Yankees corned ter our part o' de country 

I don't ' member seem' dem but I does know dat de Ku 

Kluxes done give us a heap of trouble. 

"Ilse libed a long time, ' specially de fifteen 

years dat I'se spent hyar, but I knows how ter treat white 

folkses, an' I knows dat de wuck an' de healthy rations 

dat de niggers got ' fore de war an why dey am stronger 

dan de young niggers o' dis day." 
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PLANTATION LIFE 

An Interview with Lila Nichols 89 of Cary, Wake County, 
N. C. May 18, 1937. 

"We belonged ter Mr. Eat "4hitaker atter his marriage. 

His daddy, Mr. Willis, give us to him. We lived near 

Thamkatte wid Yr. Willis, an' we wuz happy. My pappy wuz 

named Yancey an' my mammy wuz named Sabra. Dar wuz two 

brothers named Yancey an' Add, an' five sisters: Alice, 

Sally, Martha, Betty ant Helia. 

"Ole massa wuz good ter his slaves, but young 

massa Nat wuzn't. We ain't had half nuff ter eat most 

do time, an' we ain't had no shoes till we wuz twenty-

one. We had jist a few pieces of clothes an' aey wuz of 

de wust kind. Our cabins wuz shacks,anl we got seberal 

whuppin's near 'bout ever' day. Fer example I had de job 

of gittint up de alga in de ebenin'j an' if de ain't de 

right number of dem Missus Mae whupped me. I also looked 

atter de bitties,an' iffen one of tern died I got a whuppinl 

too. 

"Once missus wuz sick, an' a slave gal named Alice 

brung her some water an' somethin , ter eat. Missus got 

sick on her stomick, an' she sez dat Alice done try ter 



pizen her. Ter show yo' how sick she wuz, she gits out 

of de bed, strips dat gal ter de waist ant whups her wid 

a cowhide till de blood runs down her back. Dat gal's 

back wuz cut in gashes an' de blood run down ter ler heels. 

Atter dat she wuz chained down by de arms an , laigs til 

she got well.den she wuz carried off ter Richmond in 

chains an' sold. 

"We wucked all de week, my mammy plowin' wld a 

two-horse plow, all de year when she warn't cleanin' new 

ground or digjm' ditches;an' she got two days off then 

her chilluns wuz borned. We ain't had no passes ter go 

nowhar )an' we ain't allowed offe'n de groun's. 

"I know one time do' missus ' cides ter whup a 

'oman ferosomethin' an' de ' oman sez ter her, ' 1\;o sir, 

Missus, ' ain't ilowinl nobody what wa'r de same kind of 

shirt I does ter whup me.' 

"We wuz glad when de Yankees corned, aldo dey 

acted lak a pack 0 robbers. Dey burned de cotton, dey 

stold eber' thing dey could lay han's on, an' dey tored 

up ever' thing scandflous. Dey'd go ter de house an' 

knock at de do', den missus would lock it an , yell at 

tern dat she warn't gwinter open it. Dey doan keer, dey 

jist kicks it down ant walks right in. 
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1 "Dey snatch pictures frum de siae ot de house ant 

)throw tern down ant break tem. Dey drunk up all of massa's 

( orandy,ant dey insults de white mmen ant de blacks alike. 

"De Yankees cornea on a Thursday ant we left on 

Sunday. When we left de yard wuz full of dem Yankees, -

oussinti ant lauzhint) ant drinkin/. We went to Raleigh, 

an' de Lust winter wuzentt so bad atter all. We doan keer 

nothint 'bout Mr. Lincoln, case he ain't keerin' 'bout us. 

He wuz lak de rest of de Yankees, he jist doan want de 

south ter git rich. Dey tol' us dat de warn't no slaves 

in de no ,th but we done found out dat de only reason wuz 

'cause dey can't stan' de cold weather Car, ant dat de 

Notth am greedy of as. 

"I 'members de Ku Klux Klanjan' I ain't got nothin' 

'ginst rem, case dey had ter do somethint wid darn mean 

niggers an de robber Yankees, who had done ruint us all. 

knowed some uiggers what ain't got ' long so well ant dey 

done meanIcase dey blame de white folks, but atter awhile 

dey sees dat it am Massa Lincoln's fault, so dey zits quiet. 

I said dat we wuz glad dat de:Yankees come.. We wuz, jist 

cause our massa warn't good lak some massas, an' at datdwe 

ain't want ter be free." 
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A STO..cd OF LVERY 

told by Martha Organ of Cary as she heard her mother tell 
it many years ago. 

"1 doan know nothin"bout slavery icept what I hyard 

my mother tell,an' dat'ain't so much. 

'1 know dat my pappa's name wuz handy Jones an' my 

mammy's name wuz Lelisa. he belonged to a Mr. ahitaker 

but atter she married my palopa she belonged ter Mr. Rufus 

Jones, Mr. Rufus wuz Mr. tiesley Jones' brother at de ole 

Fanning Jones place;an' he owned a sizable plantation. 

oir. Jones wuz good ter ' em. Dey ain't nebber give him 

no trouble an' he ain't nebber whip none of ' em. 

"I've hyarn her tell a whole heap ' bout de ptterollers 

ant de Ku Klux Klan but of course I wuz borned atter de 

surrender, I now bein' jist sixty one. 

"I 'members ' specially what mammy said ' bout when de 

Xankees come. he said dat it wuz on a Thursday an' dat de 

ole master wuz sick in de bed an' had sent some slaves ter 

de mill wid grain. When dese men started back frum de mill 

de Yankees overtook ' em an' dey killed de oxes in de harness, 

cut off de quarters an' ridAde house wid dat beef hangin' all 

over de horses. Dey throwed what dey ain't wanted away, 

but of course dey took de meal an' de grain. 
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flJe ole master had hyard dat dem Zankees wuz comin' 

an' he had buried de silverware in a san' bar, but Lawd 

dem Lankees foun t hit jist lak it were on top o' de 

groun' Dey stold eberithing dat dey git dere han' s on, 

'specially de meat frum de smoke house. IJey went down 

inter de cellar an' dey drunk up master's brandy an' dey 

got so drunk dat dey ain't got no sense atall. When dey 

left dey carried my bruther off wid ' emian' nobody ever 

hyard frum him ag'in. Dey said dat de president wastnt 

thought much of dem days. 

tt.ivir. (Jones died a few days atter de surrender ant hit 

'pears lak he made a will what give all of his niggers a 

little piece o' land. jomehow dis I1r. Whitaker, what my 

mammy uster belong to had somepin' ter do wid it, so he 

went ter de co't house in ii.aleigh ter have de will broke 

up; an' he draos daid. 1,1r. Jones an' 1,1r. s,hitaker wuz 

buried de same day. 

H6peakinl ' bout ghosts, my mammy tol' me ' bout a 

ghost what she'd seed an' when I wuz a chile, I seed it 

too. 

"It wuz closter Ephues Church on de i)urham highway, 

an' de ghosts wuz three Amen, dressed in white an' 

widout heads. De rize ant flewed ober de wagin an' went 

ter de churchyard, an' dat wuz de las' time I seed tem. 

I doan believe in ghosts much, but fot de Lawd I seed dat 



one ant my mammy an' pappy seed it ' fore I VfU.Z 'borned. 

"My mammy said dat she'd seed some slave sales but• 

dat de) warn' t so bad. She nor my pappy ain't neber had 

no whippin's an' she said dat de wust thing she eber seed 

wuz a gal burnt. Hit wuz dis way: Missus Jones had 

sold a gal dat she raised named Alice ter a neighborhood 

'oman. Alice had been ust ter goin , to de Missus housz 

an' warmint) go when she went inter dis ' mans house ter 

warm de ' omen made her stand fore de fire till her legs 

burned so bad dat de skin cracked up an' some of it 

drapped off. Missus Jones found it out an' she give de 

'omen bacip her money an' took Alice home wid her." 
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ANN PARKER 

Ex-Slave Story 

An interview with iinnParker in the Wake County Hame l 
Raleigh, North Carolina. 

e, 
"I reckon dat I is a hundrt an' three or a hundert 

A 

rAo.' four years old. I wuz a ' aman grown at de end o' 

de war. 

"I ain't had no daddy case queens doan marry an' 

my mammy, Junny, wuz a queen in Africa. Dey kidnaps her 

an' steals her twaj from her throne an' fetches her hyar 

ter Wake County in slavery. 

"A ' longed ter Mr. Abner Parker who lived near 

Raleigh ant he had maybe a hundert slaves an' a whole heap 

of lan'. I ain't nener laked him much, case we had ter wuck 

hard ant we ain't got much ter eat. He ain't 'lowed us no 

fun, but we did have some, spite o' him. 

"A uster git by de patterollers an' go ter de neigh-

born' plantations whar we'd sing an' talk an' maybe dance. 

I know onct dot dat we wuz in a barn on Mr. Liles' place 

when de patterollers corned, all dat could git out seated, 

but de ones dat got ketched got a whuppin'. 

"I got seberal whuppin's fer die, dat ant tother; but 



specks dat I needed ' em. Anyhow we wuz raised right, 

we warn't ' lowed ter ,sass nobody ant we ole'uns still 

knows dat we is got ter be perlite ter yo' white ladies. 

"Daughter, did I tell yo' 'bout my mammybeint a 

queen. Yes, she wuz a queen, an' when she toll dem niggers 

dat she wuz dey bowed down ter her. She toll dem not ter 

tell hit ant dey doan tell, but when dey is out of sight 

of de white folkses dey bows down ter her an' does what 

she says. 

"A few days ' fore de surrender mammy who am also 

a witch, says ter dem dat she sees hit in de coffee grounds 

dat dey am gwine ter be free so all o' us packs up ant gits 

out. 

"We got along pretty good atter de war, ant on till 

lately. Atter I gits too ole ter wuck I sets on de post -

office steps an' begs. . I got a good pile o/ money too, 

but somebody done stole hit an' now Ilse in de County 

Home. 

"I fell an' broke my arm sometime Co, case my right 

side am daid ant I tries ter crawl offen de bed. When I 

gits back from de hospital dey ties me in dis cheer ter 

keep me from fallinl out, but.Iwant ter git a loos. Be 

nigger boy what helps me up an' down ain't raised Iak I 

wuz, he fUsses an' he he ain't got de manners what he ort 

ter habe." 

L. Ei 



158 

District  2  

. 448 

Worker: T. Pat Matthew's  

"..• 

Subject:  A IJAVE STORY  

Reference:  AMY PENNY  

Editor: George L. Arirews  



:;.2‘.)082 159 

AtflY PELITY 
811 Cannister Street, Raleigh, North Carolina. 

[Couplft5] 
nI do not know my 3:,se. I wus bolined in Mecklenburg, 

A 

Virginia. My mars ter give m; age in a :Able but I lost it 

by lendin , it out. My mother died ' fore I 'membered her. 

She wus named Dinah Epps. My grandmother wus named 

Eliza Epps. She lived to be 107 years old. My father 

wus named Jerry -.4ps. .iLarster's name l'us Victor Epps, . 

an' my missus wus named Martha I married Lob Penny. 

"De plantation wus at Mecklenburg, Virginia, near 

Boylan, Virginia. I don't ' member how many slaves but 

dere wus a good number.; never heard ' em numbered out 

as I knows of . I never saw a slave sold. I never saw one 

whupped. I heard ' em talk about paterollers but I never 

saw one. 

"1 don't 'member when I come to Raleigh. I have been 

here so' long. 14 grandmother an' grandfather come here an' 

I come too. 

"1 plowed in Virginia, an' I cooked too. Dey did not 

pick any work fur me. We lived -in log houses. Yes indeed, 

we had plenty to eato I never suffered for sumptint to 

eat .gu I come to Raleigh. On de plantation we got plenty 

Allowance*, We . had good clothes an de plantatio 
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"We went to both de white an' colored churches in 

Virginia. I never could learn to read an' write. I 

never could learn to make a number correct. I just can't 

learn. I tried my bes' to write. I went to four sessions 

of school but couldn't learn. I wus raised by some 

mighty good white people. I wanted to learn so bad." slept 

wid my books under my head but I couldn't learn. 

"I am well thought of at my home in Virginia. Dey have 

sent me rations since I been here. I had de worse time of 

my life since de surrender. I don't know nothin' ' bout de 

Yankees comm' through only what I heard others says I 

heard ' em talkin' ' bout freedom an' de war but I didn't 

know or care nothint ' bout it. My father msnt to MarlAssas 

Gap to de war. I heard him talk ' bout de breastworks but 

I don't know nothin' ' bout fem.' 

"I wus my father's only chile. He didn't have any 

chillun by his las' wife. I fergot de name of his las' 

wife4 

heard. ' em say Abraham.Lincoln dome through de south 

ant just learned ever'thing ' bout de folks. He wus Iguised 

so nobody:knowed who he wus Yes, I heard ' bout dat an' 

when dey foun' out he been here be done come through ant 

gone beck. 

better den it,ia nowt, Shore it we. 

bout de 
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wus better den it is now. I never did have any mean white 

folks* De Lord made me lucky in dat way. De Yankees took, 

stole, ant carried off a lot of things an' dere wus a.lot of 

talk ' bout' ' ems, but I never saw ' em ' cept when dey'wus 

paradint. I never seed any of 'em down dere at my marster's 

plantation. 

"My grandfather died in Raleigh. Grandmother wus de 

mother of thirteen chilluns but none of ' em ' cept two ever 

seed Raleigh. Dey wus so scattered ' bout ' cept de two 

youngest, a boy an' a girl Dey come to Raleigh atter de 

surrender when grandmother an' me come. We lived worser in 

Raleigh den we did in Virginia, an' if I wus back home wid 

my white folks I would git plenty to eat but I don't git it 

here* Dey sends me a little money now an' den. Here is 

some of dere letters where dey sent me money. You can see 

by dese letters dat my Virginia white ft14 lives me ant I 

lave dem* 

I wus ' bout ten years ole whende -war wus gointon* 

think slavery wus not such a bad thing ' pared wid de 

hard times now0t 

* gomcifovui Meeklembun3 cosiVa 
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SLAVERY DAYS IN FRANKLIN COUNTY" 

An interview with Lily Perry, 84 years old, of 9 McKee 
Street, Raleigh, N. C. 

III wus borned on ae plantation of Laster Jerry 

Perry near Louisburg, about eighty-four years ago. Ny 

daddy, Riddick, ' longed ter him ant so did my mammy, do 

she ' longed ter a Mis' Litchford 'fore she married daddy. 

90e fust things dat I can remember wus bein' a 

house gal, pickin' up chips, mindint de table ant feedini 

de hogs. De slop buckets wus heavy an' I had a heap of 

wuck dat wus hard ter do. I done de very best dat I could 

but often I got Whupped jist de same. 

"When dey'd start ter Whup me I'd bite lak a run-

mad dog so dey'd chain my nan's. See hyar, hyars de scars 

made by de chains. Dey'd also pick me up by de years ant 

fling me fount, see hyar, I can wiggle my years up ant 

down jist lak a mule can, an' I can wiggle ' am roun' ant 

rounr lak dat, seel 

"One day I ain't feelin' so good an.' de slops am 

so heavy dat I stops an' pours out some of it. De oberseer, 

Zack Terrell, sees me an' when I gits back ter de house he 

grabs me ter whup me. 

;;,• 
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"De minute he grabs me I seize on ter his thumb 

anl I bites hit ter de bone, den he gits mad an' he picks 

me up an' lifts me higher dan my haid an' flings me down 

on de steel mat dere in front of de do'. 

"Dey has ter revise me wid cold water from de 

spring an' I wus sick fer a week. We ain't had good food 

which makes me weak an' I still has ter do heavy wuck. 

"Dar wus a slave block in Louisburg an' Ilse seed 

many a slave sold dar. Very few wus put in chains, most 

of ' em wus put in a kivered wagon wid a guard an' wus 

chained at night. Ilse seed many a ' oman cryin' fer her 

chile when one er de tother wus put on de slave block in 

Louisburg. 

"I wus 'bout twelve years old when de Yankees come. 

I wus pickin' up chips in de yard when dey comes by wid 

dere hosses steppin' high an' dere music playint a happy 

chime. I wus skeered, but I don't dasent run case marster 

will she have me whupped, so I keeps on wid my wuck. 

"Dey pass fast on down de road ant dey dean bother 

nothinl in our community but de white folkses hates ' en 

jist de same. 

"Marster Jerry tells us 'bout a week later dat we 

am free an' all of de two hundret !cept 'bout five er six 
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goes right off. He tells all of us dat he will pay us 

effen we will stay an' wuck, so me an' my family we stays 

on. 

"We lives dar fer seberal years den I marries 

Robert Perry who lives on de same plantation wid us. 31re 

ain't had but one daughter an' dat 's Kate, who still libes 

wid me. 

"Me an , Robert wus raised up tergether, he beint 

five years older'n me an' I laved him frum de time I wus 

borned. I know how he uster hate ter see me git den 

beatin's an' he'd beg me not ter let my mouth be so sassy, 

but I can't help hit. He uster take my beatin's when he 

could an' a heap of times he sneak out ter de fiel's in 

de ebenin' ant toted dat slops ter de pigs. 

flOnct when marster wus whuppint me Robert run up 

ant begged marse ter put de whuppint on him ' stead of me. 

De result wus marse whupped us both ant we tcided ter run 

away. 

"We did run away, but night brung us back ter 

another whuppint ant we ain't neber run away no mot. 

wus at a frolic at Louisburg when he proposes 

ter me ant he do hit dis way, 'Haney gal, I knows dat you 
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doan love me so powerful much, but will you try ter do hit 

fer me?' 

"Course I sez,'Go long, nigger, iffen I doan love 

yo' den dar ain't no water in Tar riber.' Den I sez, 
Nor* 

can git Marse Henry outen de bed an , he'll marry us tefnight. 

"Rob wus tickled pink an' sho nuff we wus married 

right away dat very night. 

it,We lived pore, dat I knows, but we wus too happy 

in ourselves ter worry 'bout sich things an' de lack. 

"I laughs now ter think how ignorant we niggers 

wus. We'd do our washin' an' 'bout de time we hung hit 

on de line, we'd see a string of folks comin , home frum 

de Prospect Church an' we'd know dat we'd done our washint 

on a Sunday." 

AC 
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1-,n interview with Valley Perry, 50 years of age, of Cary, 
1:orth Carolina, Route # 1. 

"Course bein' no older dan I is I can't recollect 

'bout de war, but Itse heard my manny tell a little ant 

my grantmammy tell a right smart 'bout dem slavery times 

yes talkin"bout. 

"Grantmammy Josephine, an' mammy Clarice ' longed ter 

a Mr. Nat Whitaker in Wake Count • Mr. Nat's wife wus 

naMed Mis Lucy, an she wus so good dat everlbody what 

ever seed her 'membered her. Dar is eben de belief among 

de niggers dat she riz up ter heaben alive, like Elijah. 

"Dey said dat Mr. Nat's oberseer wus kinder mean ter 

de slaves, an' when he whupped dam dey 'membered hit ter de 

longest day 'ditty lived. Mr. Nat wusen't near so bad an' 

Mis' Lucy wus a angel. beg Mr. at ter make de 

oberseer stop, but Mr. Nat ' fused, ' case he said dat de 

niggers won't'obey him ifftn he teaches dem'he won't let 

de'berseer'pUnish dem good an' -plenty. 
. . 

she 

Den Mis' Lucy ,ud 

arm an beg him ter 

stopi . 

A• • 

• '•'..,2,::• &:. :•:•••• • • , • 
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"Finally de obersoer goes ter Ir. Nat ant complains, 

ant he sez dat he am gwine ter quit de job iffen Mr. Nat 

doan make Mist Lucy keep outen his business. 

Nat axes him ter tell him ' fore he starts ter 

beat ' em, an' ter set a time fer de beatin' an' dat he will 

git Mist Lucy often de place. '4e11, de oberseer does what 

Mr. Nat sez ant waits ter whup ebertbody on Chuesday an' 

on Chuesday Mr. Hat takes Mist Lucy ter town. 

'Lis' Lucy am tickled pink dat she am f,,-goint shoppin' 

an t she ain't suspicion nothint at all. When,she gits.ter 

shoppint dot she ain't satisfied, an' terreokly she tells 

It Mr. Nat dat she wants ter go homeAkr. Nat tries to git her 

ter go ter a concert but Mist Lucy sez no, dat she feels 

lak somethin am happenint at home. 

"Mr. Nat begs her ter stay on an' enjoy herself, but 

when she won't listen ter no reason at all he starts home. 

De mules creep an' poke, but Mist Lucy herself whups ' em 

up an' dey gits home sooner dan dey am expected. 

"When dey drives up in de yard de oberseer am so busy 

whuppint de niggers what has done bad dat he ain't seed 

Lucy till she am right on him, den she snatch de heavy 

tal4whup an, she ,strikes him two or three times right in 
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/his cheek an' she shets up one of his eyes an' brings de. 

I blood e-pourin' from his nose. Den de meek little ' omen 

draws back de whup in an' she ' lows, often dis 

plantation, an' ifren ever I ketches you here ag'n I'll 

shoot you, you °east. 

"at settled de oberseer's hash an' atter he left 

kit Lucy went ter doctorin' cut up backs. Gran tmarjmy said 

d t dar wusn't no more trouble wid de niggers an' Mist Lucy 

done all of de punishin' herself. 

"she made de meanest ones ltarn a whole passel of 

scripture, she punish de ohillun by makint dem memorize 

poems an' sich. Sometimes she sant ' em ter bed widout supper, 

sometimes she make tem work at night, sometimes she prayed 

fer ' em, an' once in a coon age she idappped. Dey said 

dat she could really hurt when she meant to, but she whupped 

as de last thing ter do an' she whupped wid a keen little 

switch ' stead of de leather. 

"Once atter she had whupped a little nigger she said, 

'Clarice, dis hurt me iusser dan hit did yo'.' 

"Clarice look at Mist Lucy den she sez, tIffen hit hurt 

yo' wusser dan hit did me Ilse powerful sorry fer you.' Dat 

it gal wus my maMmi4.. 

gran ' father wus named Jake, snt he ' longed ter a 

by de name of Addleton some wharr in d, Oeighborhood. 



L;arse :Nat ain't had no use fer Ir. Middleton ' case he tried 

ter act up, an' he wus a New ibr4 Zankee ter boot, what 

thought that he owned de heabens an' de yearth. When 

gran'father cake fell in love wid gran'mammy nobody ain't 

knowed hit ) ' case dere marsters am mad at each other an' 

dey knows dat dere won't be no marryin' twixt de families. 

"Time goes on an' gran'father runs away an' comes ter 

see gran'mammy, but one night Mai. Liddleton follers granlfather 

an' fin's him in gran'mammy cabin. 

"Li'. Liiddleton doan wait ter say nothin' ter nobody, 

11'when he peeps in at de winder ant sees_dem a-settin' at de 

table -eatinl musk melons whagran'pappy had stole ,auten 

! his patch. He jist comes in a-rarin' an' a-tarin' an' syarts 

a-whuppin' wid his ridin' quirt. he whups gran'father fer 

a while, den he pitches in on gran'mammy. 

"While all dis am a-goin' on somebody runs fer Liarster 

k Nat an' when he gits dar dere am trouble in de shack. 

I Marse Nat ain't so beaby as Mr. Middleton, but man ) he puts 

/ de beatin' on Lr. Middleton, den he makes him sell Jake ter 

him an' he pays him spot cash right den an' dar. 

'De flex.' day he thinks ter ax gran ' mammy what Jake am 

•a-doinl in her cabin, an' gl'an'mammy tells him dat she loves 

Jake an' dat she. wants ter marry him. igarse Nat laugh fit 

11 an' he eez dat deytll have a big weddint at de 
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'Dey did habe a big weddin' an' gran'mammy wore a red 

/ dress dat Mis' Lucy give her. She said dat she wish dat 

gran'father could of wore red too. 

c 
Y$he said dat when mammy wus borned dat ole Dottor 

Freeman ! tendedqier an' dat she stayed in de bed two weeks. 

lAs' Lucy wus good ter de niggers dat. 

"I ' members granimAmmy tellin' ' bout de Yankees comint 

an' how she stood front,of Mist Lucy's door wid de ax an' 

to?' ' em dat she'd chop!,Ou.t anyoody's Drains what tried ter 

&lc. in. De door wus open ';dey could see Lis' Lucy a-settint 

dere white as a sheet so dsy went on sarchin' fer valuables, 

an' all de time deli 

EH 

• 

• 

s Lucy's room." 
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TEDRE PITTS 

Ex-Slave Story 

An interview with Tempe Pitts, 91 of 307 Tarboro St., 
Raleigh, W. C. 

"I wuz borned in Halifax County ninety-one years 

ago. See die paper, hit wuz writ our fer me by ole mai-

ster's granddaughter dis year. Hit says not only dat I is 

ninety-one but dat I wuz her mammy, ant dat I wuz a good an , 

trustworthy servant, 

"My mammy wuz Phillis Pitts, an' my daddy wuz Isaac 

Williams. We tlonged fust ter Mr. Mason L. Wiggins dar in 

Halifax, den through de marriages we 'longed ter Captain 

Hardy Pitts. Both (DI dem famblies wuz good ter me ant dey 

ain't neber done me dirty yit. 

"De Pitts' owned ober two hundert slaves, case dey 

also had a plantation in Firginia. We had all we could eat 

ant good, do' tough clothes. at's de Lawdls truff dat I 

ain't lakint fer nothint den. When we wuz sick we had de 

best doctor ant all de medicine dat he said dat we ought 

ter habe; ant we ain't wuck when we wuz sick nether. 

"I ' members jist one whuppin t dat I got, an' I 

needed hit too. Missus Pitts sont me out in de yard ter 
5 

scrub de Wilverware wld some sant. I knowed dat I wuz 
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supposed to scrub hit good ant denvash it all offl'but 

'stid of dat I leaves hit layin' dar in de yard wid de 

dirt on it. She whups me fur it, but she jist stingd my 

laigs wid a little switch. 

"1 seed de oberseer whup a slave::an but de best 

I 'members hit de nigger warn't whupped much. 

"I ain't neber seed no slave sales, do' I did see 

a whole slew 0 slaves a-marchinl ter be sold at Richmond. 

Dey neber wuz chained do', an' sometimes I ' specks dat dese 

niggers what claims dat dey seed sich things am a-tellin' 

a lie. 

"De maddest dat I eber git, an' de only time dat 

eber I cuss bad wuz when de Yankees come. Dey staid de 

meat an' things from de smoke house, an ' eber thing else 

dat dey can git. Dey ain't done nothin' ter me, but de 

way dey done my white folkses made me mad, an' I jumps 

straight up ant down an' I yells, 

damn ole Abraham Lincoln too!' 

dem Yankees an' 

"At de surrender did I leave? Naw sir, I stay 

right on dar. Missus die fust, den Marster, ant atter dat 

leaves, an' I gits married. 

"My mammy an' peppy, dey tells me, wuz married in 

de marster's dinin1 room by 4umpinl de broom. I ain't sayint 

nothinr ' bout de ceremony case I ain't sayin' notYLinl 'bout 

hay white folkses but sometimes I does wonder why Ilse red-



headed when my pappy-anl mammy wuz black as tar. Maybe I 

is part white, but I ain't sayint nothin' 'bout my white 

folkses as I done tol' yo'." 
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HANNAH PLUldali 
412 Smith Street 

"My name is Hannah Plummer. I was born near Au-

burn, in Wake L;ounty, January 7, 1856. My father was 

Allen Lane and my mother was named Bertcha Lane. We 

-rEloaged to Gov. Charles Manly, that is mother and myself, 

father belonged to some maiden ladies, 6usan and Emma 

;hite. The governor had large 1)1antations but mother 

and myself lived with them on their lot right where the 

Rex Hospital now stands on South and Fayetteville Streets. 

Governor Manly owned the block down to the railroad, and 

we chillun went into ;rove, it was a grove then, to ,)ick 

walnuts and hickory nuts. 

"Yy father was a stone cutter ,11,a' he hired his time 

and gave it to his missus and lived with us. Mother was 

at Governor Manly's. He said father was a high-headed 

fellow and said he was livin' on his lot and in his house 

and that he didn't do anything for him, and that he ought 

to keep up his family. Mother was the washerwoman for the 

governor and his family. Missus Manly, the ,Ikvernor's 

wife, I forget her first name, did not take any particular 

interest in her servants. She had slave servants for 

everything: a wash and ironer, a drawing room and parlor 

cleaner, a cook, waiting men, waitresses and a maid who 
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did nothin.:, but wait on her. 

"Governor Manly was a mighty rich man, and he had 

several nlantations and a lot o' slaves. I don't remember 

how many slaves he owned: Mother was given meal and meat 

and had to cook it bust the same as she would now. They 

didn't allow her food from the great house. Mother had 

ten children, and at times ve did not have enough to eat. 

,e went hungry a lot. The boys were named Fred, David, 

Y,atthew, Allen, and Thomas. Girls, Cinderilla, Corinna, 

Hannah, Victoria, and Mary. All were born slaves but 

two. Thomas and Mary. David and myself are all that 

are left alive. 

"I remember that we lived in a plank house, with 

three rooms and a shed porch. Mother washed clothes 

under the porch. The house had two rooms donstairs and 

one upstairs. ( Ohl I have thouht of the Governor's 

wife's name, missus name, it was Carity.) We used 

trundle beds of wood. Mother made our bed clothes at 

flirt. She also made bonnets and dresses. SolLetiroes she 

made bonnets and sold them. The child that set up with 

her she gave some kind ol sweets. IEr:et up with her a 

lot because I liked to eat. Mother was allowed the little 

money she made makinl bonnets and dresses at night. 
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"They whu-)ped slaves ontae place. I could hear the 

blows and hear ' em screamin' cryin l an' beggin l, but I 

never saw it. I never saw a slave sold ant I never saw 

any in chains. 

"T do not remember how many children old marster had, 

I only remember one; he was Ya-oter 13asil Manly. He was 

an orficer in the Confederate Army. He used to come -home 

with his pretty clothes an' his hat with plumes on it. 

Mother tole me that before she ws married Marster gave 

her to his son Basil as a maid for his wife Caroline. 

"Lissus Caroline whupped her most every day, and 

about anything. Mother said she could not please her in 

anything, no matter what she done or how hard she tried. 

Missus would go up town and come back ard whup her. Moth-

er was a young girl then. One day Miss Caroline went 

up town, an' come back mad. She made mother strip down 

to her waist, and then took a carriage whup an' beat her 

until the blood was runnin' down her pack. Mother said she 

was afraid she would kill her, so she ran for the woods 

and hid there, and stayed three weeks. She made up her 

mind she wasn't comin i back. 

"The old Governor Charles Manly, went to mother's 

father, Jimmie Manly ant tole him if he did not get Ber-

tcha back he would whup him. Her father tole him he did 

not know where she was, ant that he belonged to him an' 

he could do with him as he liked, but he was not goin' 

one step to hunt Bertcha l my mother. Then the governor 



went to grandmother an' tole her she had to find her. Be 

tole her to leave the lot an' stay away until her daughter 

came back. Grandmother did not know where shw was. 

"The niggers on different : lantations fed mother by 

carrying things to certain hidin' places and leavin g it. 

Grandmother got word to her, an' she said she would came 

back, but not to Mist Caroline. She told marster, so 

marster let her stay with grandmother until Christmas, 

then they allowed her to hire herself out. She hired 

herself to Mrs. Simpson. She was good to her and allowed 

her to work for herself at night, sit up as long as she 

wanted to, and she stayed with her until she was married. 

Then she went back to old marster gs.rWh-- en the war ended 

mother went to old marster and told him she was goin l 

to leave. He told her she could not feed all her child-

ren, pay house rent, and buy wood, to stay on with him. 

Marster told father and mother they could have the house 

free and wood free, an' he would help them feed the 'Chid-

ren, but mother said, ' No, I am goin g to leave. I have 

never been free and I am goin g to try it. I am gain' 

away and by my work and the help of the Lord I will live 

somehow'. Marster thenEraid,* 'Well stay as long as you 

wish, and leave when you get ready, but wait until ytu 
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find a place to go, and leave like folks.' Agarster allowed 

her to take all her things with her when she left. The 

white folks told her good bye. 

"Vie went to a colored Methodist Church in slavery 

time but we had a white pastor. His name was Dr. Pell. 

He was a mighty nice man and all the colored people loved 

him. After the surrender it was a long time that the 

colored people had white preachers in their churches. 

It was a long time after the war before any of the colored 

churches had Negro preachers. William Warrick was the 

first colored preacher in Raleigh. He preached in the 

basement of the Baptist Church now standing on the corner 

of Hillsboro and Salisbury Streets. I went to church and 

Sunday school there after the surrender. 

"I went to school in Raleigh and taught school in 

Ft. Payne, Alabama. My husband was a carpenter andwent 

there where he could get good wages. Slavery was a very 

bad thing. Abraham Lincoln was one of the best men that 

ever lived. 

"'Roosevelt is just grand. He is no doubt one of the 

greatest men of any age. I love to look at his picture. 

love him because he has done so much for humanity. I 

pray to the Lord to let him live to serve his country, 

and help his people. 
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PARKER POOL 

"Good Morning, how is yer? Dat front door am locked 

Mister, but I'll come ground and undo it." 

"I'm not feeling vety well an' it looks lak dey ' 11 

rob me outin all I got. Dey had a mortgage on my home fer 

$850. I paid it, an' den dey got to gamblin' on it, tuk 

it. I didn't git de right receipts, when I paid: dat's de 

truf. I got a farm loan on de house part, yes sir, ant I* 

still has it. 

"I wuz born near Garner, Wake County, North Carolina. 

I belonged to Aufy Pool. Be wuz a slave owner. His plan-

tation wuz near Garner. I am 91 years old. I wuz born 

August 10, that's what my grandmammie tole me, an , I ain't 

never fergot it. 

"My missus name wuz Betsy. uy, fast master, I had 

two, wuz Master Aufy Pool. Den he give us to his son, er 

his son bought us in at de sale when Master Aufy died. 

After Master Aufy died, his son, Louis Pool wuz my master 

den, ant his plantation wuz in Johnston. County. My mother 

wuz named Violet Pool. She died in child-birth two years 

atter I wuz born. v father wuz named Peter Turner./ Be 

belonged to John TUrner in tTohnston Countyi right near 
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Clayton. 

4457- grandfather, I had twb grandfathers, one on my 

mother's side and one on my father's side. On my mother's 

side Tom Pool, on my father's side Jerry Beddingfield. I 

never seed my great-grand parents, but my great-grandfather 

wuz name Buck. He wuz right out 0 Africa. His wife wuz 

name Nagar. I never have seen dem, but my grandmother wuz 

deir daughter. Dey had three chillun here in America. my 

grandmanmie and grardfather told me this. My brothers were 

name, oldest one, Haywood, den Lem, an' Peter, ant me, 

Parker Pool. De girls, oldest girl wuz Minerva Rilla. 

"I had good owners. IV missus and master dey took 

jes as good keer ol me as they could. Dey wuz good to all 

de hetes. Dey giv l us plenty to eat, ant we had plenty 0 

clothes, sich as they wuz, but de wuz no Bich clothes as we 

have now. Dey treated us good, I will have to say dat. 

Dey are dead in their graves, but / will have to say die 

fer tem. Our houses were in de grove. We called master's 

house 'de great house'. We called our homes 'de houses'. We 

had goad places ter sleep. 

wW- got up at light. I had to do most o the nursin' 

ol de chillun, case when choppin' time come de women had to 

go to work. We had plenty ter eat, an' we et it. Our 

somelin to eat wuz well fixed an' cooked. We caught a lot 

oliyossums, coons an' other game, but I tell yer a coon is 

a lot harder to ketch den a possum. We had one garden, ant 
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de colored people tended the garden, an' we all et outin 

It. 

'Dere wuz about 2000 acres in de plantation. All 

de farm lan' wuz fenced in wid wood rails. De hogs, cows 

an' stock wuz turned 

cows wuz drived home 

out in de woods, an' let go. The 

at night, dat is if dey didn't come 

up. Dat is so we could milk de ones we wanted ter milk. 

"We dug ditches to drain de Ian', blinl ditches; 

we dug ' em an den put poles on top, ant covered ' em wid 

brush an' dirt. We put de brush on de poles to keep de 

dirt from runnin' through. Den we ploughed over de ditches. 

"We tanned our leather in a tan trough. We used 

white oak bark an' red oak bark. Dey put copperas in it 

too, I think. 

nI knows how to raise flax. You grow it an' when it 

is grown you pull it clean up out of de groun' till it 

kinder rots. Dey have what dey called a brake, den it 

wuz broke up in dat. De bark wuz de flax. Dey had a stick 

called a swingle stick, made kinder like a sword. Dey used 

dis to knock de sticks out 01 de flag. Dey would den put 

de flax on a hackle, a board wid a lot of pegs in it. Den 

dey clean ant string it out till it looks lak your hair. 

Dey flax when it came from de hackles wuz ready for de 

wheel whur it iv= spun into thread. I tell you, you couldn't 
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break it either. 

"When it wuz spun into thread dey put it on a reel. 

It turned 100 times and struck, when it struck it wuz 

called a cut. When it come from de wheel it wuz called 

a broach. De cutsstood fer so much flax. So many cuts 

made a yard, but dere wuz more ter do, size it, and 

hank it before it wuz weaved. Most of the white people 

had flax clothes. 

"We had no church on de plantation. We had prayer 

meetin' an" candy pullin's, an' we would ask slaves from 

udder plantations. My master had no public corn shuckinis. 

His slaves shucked his corn. He had about 50 head. De 

slaves dey went to de white folks church. Dey had a 

place separate from de white folks by a railini. We could 

look at de preacher ant hear him preach too. 

"No, sirree, dey wouldn't let us have no books. Dey 

would not let none 0 de chilluns tell us anything about 

a book. I cain't read an' write, not a bit. Dey preached 

ter us to obey our master. Preacher John Ellington wuz 

my favorite preacher. No nigger wuz allowed ter preach. 

Dey wuz allowed ter pray and shout sometimes, but dey better 

not be ketched wid a book. De songs dat dey sung.den, dey 

hardly ever sing ' era now. Dey were de good ole songs. 

'Hark from de tomb de doleful sound'. ' My years are tender,' 

'Cry, You livin' man,' ' Come view dis groun' where we must 

shortly lie!. 
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"No one ran away from our plantation, but dey did from 

some other plantations. When some o' de niggers were 

carried by their masters to wait on ' en as servants up 

no'th, some o' de other people would see how dey were treated 

an' git ' em to run away. When dere master started home 

dey couldn't find ' em. Dey took and educated gem and made 

women an' men outten ' em. 

"We visited at night during slavery time. De men 

went courtin'. When a man, a slave, loved a ' oman on 

another plantation dey axed der master, sometimes de 

master would ax dd other master. If dey agreed all de 

slave man ant ' oman had ter0c5)Saldy night wuz fer him to 

come over an' dey would go to bed together. Dere wuz no 

marriage- until atter de surrender. All who wanted to 

keep de same ' oman atter de surrender had to pay 25 fer 

er marriage license, den $150, den 43.00. If de magistrate 

married you, you didn't have to pay anything, less he 

charged you. 

"We got de holidays, Christmas, and atter lay-by-time 

o' de crops. Dey had big dinners den. Dey had big tables set 

in de yard, de rations wuz spread on ' em) an' everybody et. 

We had brandy at Christmas. 

"I have been whupped twice, an' I have seen slaves 

whupped. Hal Hall missus whupped me. She wouldn't let no-
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body else whup me neither. I ' members what it wuz about as 

if it wuz yesterday. She wuz fretted ybout de cook. We wuz 

skinnin' i'sh taters. She tole us to make haste, if we didn't 

make haste an' peel de taters she would whack us down. I 

laughed, she sent me to git a switch. She hit me on de legs. 

hen we were whupped we would say, tohI pray,' and dey would 

ouit. If you acted stubborn dey would whup you more. She 

axed me, ' ain't you swine ter say ' oh! pray?' I wuz mad. She 

wuz not hurtin' me much, an' I wouldn't say nuthin'. Atter 

awhile I said, ' ohI pray', ant she quit. I had good owners 

all o' dem. My masters never did hit me. Missus would not 

whup me much. She jes wanted ter show off sometimes. 

"We had good doctors when we got sick. I 'members 

Dr. James o' Clayton comm' to our house. Dey carried dere 

pills an' medicine den, an' left it at de house fer you. 

"My master had a son in de war, Walter Pool. He 

wuz a footsoidier at first. Be got sick ant he come home sick 

on er furlough. Be hired er man to go in his place at first, 

den de man went. Atter awhile de men got so skurce, he had 

to go agin, den he got de chance to go in de cavalry. Ole 

master bought him a horse, an' he could ride next time. He 

belonged to the 1st. Ga. Reg. 2nd Cavalry Gen. Dangers Brigade, 

C. Co. N. C. Volunteers. 

"I saw de Confederates' General Johnson come through 
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Clayton, an' de Yankees come de 2n day atter dey COMR 

through. I think I seed enough Yankees come through dere 

to whup anything on God's earth. De Yankees camped three 

miles from our plantation at Mrs. Widow Sarah Saunders 

across White Oak Creek on de Averysboro road. Her son, 

Capt. Ed. Saunders wuz in de Confederate Army. She wuz a 

big slave owner. She had about 100 slaves. She wuz called 

a rich ' omen. 

"De Yankees played songs o' welkin' de streets of 

Baltimore an' welkin' in Maryland. Dey really played it. 

Dey slaughtered cows and sometimes only et de liver. I 

went to de camp atter dey left an' it wuz de awfulest 

stink I ever smelt in my life. Dey lef t dem cows part 

o' ' em lying whur dey were in de camp. Dey killed geese 

an' chickens, an' skinned ' em. Sometimes dey skinned de 

hind quarters uv a cow, cut ' em off an' lef' de res'. 

"When dey tole me I wuz free I didn't notice it, I 

stayed on and worked jest lak I had been &An', right on 

wid missus and master. I stayed dere a year atter de 

surrender. 

"I dunno what ter think o' Abraham Lincoln. Dey said 

he wuz all right. I guess he wuz a man God laved, er 

all ri*Lman. I think some ol de slaves wuz better off 

when dey had owners and wuz in slavery den dey is taw. De 

colored people are slaves now more den dey wuz den. I can 

show you wherein de nigger's got all his expenses ter bear 

now. Be gits his pay outten de white man and de white 

man don't pay him much. De nigger in de South is jest as 

190 
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much a slave as ever. De nigger now is a better slave 

den when dey owned him, ' cause he has his awn expenses to 

bear. If you works a horse an' doan have him ter feed, 

you is better off, dan if you had ter feed and care fer 

him. Dat is de way dat thing is now. 

"I seed many patterollers durin ' slavery. If dey 

caught you out at night without a pass dey would whqp you. 

"I think Mr. Roosevelt is a mighty nice man. He has 

done me a lot 0 good. No man can make times real good 

till everybody is put to work. Wid de Ian' lyin i out dere 

can't be real good times. ])is is my Ilustration. My 

horse died las' year. I ain't got no money ter buy nether 

and can't git one. You see dat lan' lyin' out dere I 

have farmed it every year fer a long time. Through 

part ol de year I always had vegetables and sich ter 

sell, but now my horse is dead an' I can't farm no more. 

ain't got nothin ' ter sell. I is bad out ol heart. 

I shore hope sumpinl will be done fer me." 
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=A 'RAINES 

"I wus three years ole when de Yankees come through. I 

do not 'member much 'bout slavery, but I knows a lot my mother 

tole me. 

"4 mother wus named Vdcey Rogers an' my father wus named 

36b Hunter. Be ' longed ter de Hunters of Wake County ant 

mother longed ter Marster John Rogers. Her missus' name wus 

Ann Rogers. I 'members my grandfather on. my motherls side but 

do not 'member any more of my gran( parents. 

iviarse John Rogers wus a ole batchelor before he wus 

married an' he had 'bout twelve slaves when he married Mis' 

Ann Hunter. She owned one slave, a colored boy, when she wus 

married. Her father gave her the slave. The plantation wus 

between Apex an' Holly Sprin2s in Wake County. All my people 

lived in Wake County an' I wus born on de plantation. Larster 

wus good ter his ni ff,ers before he wus married, but when she 

came in it got mighty rough. It ? ot wusser an' wusser till 

'bout de time of de surrender. De place wus a Hell on earth, 

mother said, if dere could ever be one. Missus had slaves 

whupped fur most any little thing ant den she wud not allow ' em 

to have much ter eat. My mother tole me all about it, atter 

de surrender. Mother said EiSsds runned the plantation an' 

made it hard fur all de slaves. She jist liked ter see slaves 

beat almost ter death. Dere wus a lot of niggers whupped in 

eat neighborhood by the overseers, owners an' patterollers. 
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"Slaves wus sold ' round from one to a nother 'mongst de 

white folks. Mother said you (;ist couldn't tell when you would 

-it whupped. De wurk wus hard from sun to sun. Poor food ter 

eat, poor clothes, barefooted most of de time, an' a general 

hard time, till freedom put an end to it. My mother tole me 

°le man Pasaual Bert who lived near ' em in Wake County had his 

niggers whupped all day sometimes. He beat ' em unmercIfully 

an sometimes made away wid ' em an' dey wus not seed no more. 

She said de way he whupped his slaves wus ter lay 'em up ant 

down on a loc, wid de bark off. He made ' em lie flat down on 

dere stomachs an' den buckled ' em on den de overseers beat 'em 

unmercifully. One time a overseer's wife heard a pat, pat, 

pat, down at de whuppin' log ant she ax him what it wus ant 

why he beat niggers from sun to sun an he tole her °le man 

Bert made lim do it or else leave. So his wife says"We will 

leave, you must not beat any more niggers if we perish to death; 

an de overseer left. Mother said ole man Bert fed his little 
40 

nisgers out of a trough like hogs. Ole man Bert al30 had 

niggers tied to barrels an whupped. 

"De grown slaves got one pair shoes a year. Dey wus give 

ter dem at Xmas. an de chillun didn't have no shoes at all. De 

clothes wus homemade. De houses wus made out of logs an had 

stick an dirt chimleys to ' em. De sleepin' places wus bunks fer 

• de grown niggers an de chillun slept on de floor on pallets. A 

pallet wus made by spreadint a quilt made of towbaggin' or rags 
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• 
on de floor, datts whre de chillun slept in our neighborhood 
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before de surrender. 

"Mother and father married by jumpin' de broom. Dey put 

de broom down on de floor den dey helt one another's hands an 

den dey jumped de broom, den dey went ter de slave house an' 

went ter bed. Mbther an' father come ter Raleigh atter_de 

surrender an wus married right. Mother an' father left ole 

Iran Rogers as soon as dey wus free. Dey lived on harnack an' 

pickled meat de Yankees Live for sometimes den dey went ant 

stayed wid kr. Gray Jones ant when I wus a great big girl we 

left an moved ter Chatham County. Pa bought a place, paid for 

it, built a little house on it ant lived dere until he died. 

"I married in Chatham County an' lived dere till my husband 

died den I kept stayint till all my chillun married off an' I 

come ter Raleigh ter live wid my son. I had four chilluns. 

Dey are a 11 dead but de one I live wid. 

"I have been unable to git out of de house widout help fur 

a long time. I have heart trouble an' high blood pressure. 

Slavery villa a right bad thing. I thank God it is over." 
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ANTHONY RANSOME 
Ex- Slave Story ( Free) 

An interview with Anthony Ransome of 321 S. Tarboro St. 
Raleigh, N. C. 

"I reckon dat I is eighty years old, an' I wus borned 

in Murfreesboro in Hertford County. My mammy wus named 

Annice an' my father wus named Calvin Jones. My brothers 

wus named Thomas, Wesley, Charlie, Henry an' William. 

"We wus borned free, my mammy bein' de daughter of a 

white ' oman, an' my paw's paw onct saved do life o' his 

master's chile, an' wus freed. 

"My paw wus a shoemaker an ' he made a putty good livin' 

fer us. Course we ain't knowed so much ' bout slavery, but 

Doctor Manning who lived near us owned some slaves an' he 

treated ' em bad. We could hyar ' em screamin' at de top of 

dere voices onct in a while, an' when deygot through beatin' 

'em dey wus tied down in de cellar. Dey ain't had much ter 

eat nother. 

"Dar wus a preacher what tol' us ' bout a member of his 

congregation durinl de war. De wife wus sold from de husbaa' 

ant he married ag'in. Atter de war his fust wife corned back 

an' atter his secon' wife died he married de fust one ober 

ag'in. 
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• C`..kR..OLII\TE HICIILiDSON 

An interview with Caroline ...ichardson who does not know her 
ae. She resides near the northern city limits of Selma. 

"I reckin dat I is somers ' bout sixty year old. Anynow 

I wus ten or twelve when de Yankees come ter Larse Ransome 

-oid2ers' place near Cl.,-yton. Dat's whar I wus borned an' 

my pappy, my Lam,_ly an' we ileben chilluns ' longed ter ,.:arse 

_ansolLe anl :Jar 1ms also young E.:arse George 

an ' joung. 1L.iss .,„et3y Jlio I ' loned to. 

"Lis' Adeline wus little an' J-arse ztansome 

-::us big an' stout, dat's why it am funny dat mammy won't let 

Adeline whup her but she don't say nothin' when de 

marster ;,; its de whup. :'Jere ain't nobody , ot man. \,huppin's 

nohoi an' a slave on marsLer's place had ter be mean Ler , it 

a whuppin'. You see rnaL.,,:„, would sass de:: all. 

"de ain't heard much ' -bout de war, nothin' laic we heard 

'bout de world war. I knows dat nobody from our plantation 

ain't gone ter dat war case Earse Hansame wus too old an' 

A,arse George wus a patteroller, or maybe he wus bust too young. 

Dar wus a little bit of talk but most of it we ain't heard. 

I tended to de slave babies , but my maL.my what cooked in de 

big house heard some of de war -talk an' I heard her a-talkin' 

to pappy about it. Jhen she seed me a-listenil she said dat 

she'd cut my year:. off i_fen I told it. I had seen some of de 



slaves wid clipped years an' I wanted to keep mine, so I ain't 

said nothin i. 

'One day Nis' Betsy come out ter de yard an' she sez ter 

we chilluns, 'You has got de habit of runnin' ter de gate to 

see who can say howdy first to our company, well de Yankees 

will be heNt_today or tomorrow an' dey ain't our company. 

In fact iffen yo' runs ter de gate ter meet dem dey will shoot 

you dead.' 

°Ober late dat evenin' I heard music an' I runs ter de 

,,Eite ter see whar it am. Comint down de road as fast as dey 

can I sees a bunch of men wid ,Tay suits on a-ridin' like de 

debil. Dey don't stop at our house at g-11 but later I heard 

dat dey wus Wheeler's cavalry, de very meanest of de Rsbs, 

though ' tis said dat dey wus brave in battle. 

"About a hour atter Wheeler's men come by de Yankees hove 

into sight. De drums wus beatin', de flags weyin' ant de hosses 

prancin' high, We niggers has been teached dat de Yankees 

will kill us, men women an' chilluns. De whole hundt or so 

of us runs an' hides. 

*Yes main, tmembers de blue uniforms an' de brass 

buttons, ant I 'members how dey said as dey come in de gate 

dat dey has as good, as won de war, dat dey ort ter hang de 

'Isouthern nifanrwhat won't go ter war. 

t do- talk -ptrty:ribUgh•terAihrse'Rataotie.. 

AeUdeankee Capta±n lat eo .ttot 



dat iffen datts de way dey're swine ter git her freedom, she 

don't want it at all. Wid dat mammy takes Misl Betsy upstairs 

whar de Yankees won't be a-starin 1 at her. 

"One of de Yankees fin's me an' axes me hgor many pairs 

of shoes I sits a year. I tells him dat 1 gits one pair. 

Den he axes me what I wears in de summertime. When I tells 

him dat I ain't year nothin' but a shirt, an' dat I goes 

barefooted in de sunimer, he cusses awful an' he damns my 

marster. 

"Mammy said dat dey tol' her an' pacpy dat dey'd git 

some land an' a mule iffen dey wus freed. You see dey tried 

ter turn de slaves agin dere marsters. 

"At de surrender most of de niggers left, but me an' my 

family stayed fer wages. We ain't really had as good as we 

done before de war, an' Icides dat we has ter worry about 

how we're goin' ter live. 

"We stayed dar at de same place, de ole Zola May place, 

on de Wake ant Johnston line, fer four or five years ant I 

went to school a little bit. Atter we left dar we went to 

Mr. John H. Wilson's place near Wilson's Mill. It wus at 

de end of dese ten years dat mammy wus gwine ter whup Bill, 

my brother, so he went off ter Louisanna an' we ain't seed 

him since. 

"At de end of dis time I married Barney Richardson ant 

we had three chilluns, who am all dead now. We worked ant 

laved till we bought dis hOuse id ter it, den in 1918 

#askine de seGond time but be ret b 



dead now fer about ten years. 

"I told you dat I owned dis shack but you see how de 

top has come ter pieces an' de steps has fell down. I'm be-

liind in my taxes too so I'm tspectini dem ter take it away from 

me at any the. I has been dependent on de white folks now 

fel- four or five years. De county gives me two dollars a month 

white folks gives me a little now an' den. You see dat 

I can't straighten up so I can't work in five years. 

"Drawint water out of dat well wid no curb shore bothers 

too come an' look at it. 

I looked at the well and in the well and was horrified. 

There was no curbing at all, only a few rotting planks laid 

over the hole, and on these she stood rittt over the water 

while she drew up the heavy bucket with a small rope and without 

the aid of a wheel. "1 reckin dat some of dese days somebody 

will draw me outen dis well," she continued briskly. "Anyhow 

hit don't matter much. 

"You see dat little patch wid de roastinl ears comm' ant 

de peas a-bloominl. I grubbed it up wid my hde an' planted it 

myself. Iffen you can spare it I wish you'd give me a quarter 

iffsn you're round heaf'bout three weeks stop an' git you 

a ess of peas." 
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CHARITY RIDDICK 
813 E. D. Street. 

"I am 80 years old, you know after 79 comes 80, 

dats how old I am. A year ago, a little over a year ago, 

I wus 79 by de age in de Bible. My son Ernest iliddick tole 

me dat. He is gone to Greensboro to work. He carried de 

Bible wid him. If I had de Bible I could tell de story 

better den I can. My full name is Charity Iiiddick and my 

husband wus Weldon Riddick. He is dead. My father wus 

named Lewis Jones. Mother wus named Haley Jones. I had 

three brothers, Washington, William pind Turner, two sisters 

Mary and Celia. All my people are dead except my sons. I 

have three sons livin'. 

"I got sick an' I got way down in my taxes. I am 

PaYin t a dollar on ' em every time I can get it. I ain't 

able to work much. I chops in de garden to make a little 

to eat. My sons help me some. Dey have children you know, 

but dey send me a little. Dey is all married. One has 

eight chillunjthe other five chillun and de third has four 
••••••••••••• 

chillun. Dey can't help aa much. 

"I belonged to Madison Pace in slavery time. He 

dead aml gone long ago do'. My missus wus name Mist Annie 
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Pace. Sometimes I got plenty to eat and sometimes I didn't. 

All I got came through my mother from marster and missus. 

I wus in my mother's care. I wus so young dey didn't have 

much to do with me. The plantation wus about three miles 

east 0 Raleigh. 

"Dig house did belong to me obut I am a long way 

behind on it. Dey lets me stay here and pay what I kin. 

rents a roam to an old lady fer 75 cents a week. I 

buys oil and wood wid it. De lights has been cut off. 

I uses a oil lamp fur light. Lights done cut off. I 

can't pay light rent, no sir,I haint been able to pay 

dat in a long time. 

"In slavery time when de people you call de 

Yankees come, I wus small, but father took us and left Ade 

plantation. We lived in Raleigh after that. Father did 

not stay on -ae plantation anymore but he farmed around 

Raleigh as long as he lived. Be made corn, peas, potatoes 

and other things to feed us with. I used to hear 'em talk 

about de Ku Klux. We wus mighty afraid of dem. 

"I used to hear my father say he had a very good 

master. My mint is not good but I remember we used water 

from a spring and lived in a little log house out from 

my master's 'great house'. I remember saint de slaves but 
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I do not remember how many aere wus. I never saw a slave 

whupped. My mother's son wus soldjthat wus my brother 

Washington wus sold away from her before de surrender. 

Mother cried a lot about it.I remember sein' her cry about 

my brother bein , sold. 

"I remember sein , de Yankees. Dey told us dey 

were the Blue Jackets dat set us free. I wus afraid 0 

dem. I am old enough to have been dead long ago. Guess 

it is the mercy of the Lord dats lets me live. 

"All I know about Abraham Lincoln is what I been 

told. Dey say, I think dey said he set de slaves free. 

I don't know much good or bad about Mr* Roosevelt. I 

can't read and write. Dey would not let a nigger have 

any books. Dey were perticular 'bout dat. When dey tole 

us 'bout de Bible dey say it say obey your marster. Dis 

is 'bout all I 'members. Yes, 'bout all I 'members. 

AC 
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SINUEL RIDDICK 
2205 Everette Ave. 

"My name is Simuel Riddick. I was born the fourth 

day February, 1841. My owners, my white people, my old 

mistress wrote me a letter telling me my age. My mother 

was Nancy Riddick; she belonged to the Riddicks in the 

Eastern part of the State. 4y father was named Elisha 

Riddick. My master was named Elisha and my mistress Sarah 

Riddick. They had three daughters, Sarah, Christine, and 

Mary, one boy named Asbury Riddick. 

"I was born in Perquimana County, North Carolina 

and I have lived in North Carolina all my life. We had 

good foodIfor marster was a heavy farmer. There were about 

200 acres cleared on the plantation, and about 25 slaves. 

The great house was where marster lived and the quarters 

was where we lived. They were near the great house. I 

saw only one slave whupped. I had mighty fine white people, 

yes, mighty fine white people. They did not wimp their 

slaves, but their son whupped my mother pretty bad because 

she did not ba3e. enough corn and turnips to feed the fattening 

hogs. 

'SR was a. rang tang. Be laved his liquor, and he 

loved colored women. The ole man never whupped anybody. 
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Young marster married in the Marmaduke family in Gates County. 

He sold one man who belonged to his wife, Mary. I never saw 

a slave sold, 

"I have seen lots 0 paterollers. They were Illy 

friends. I had friends among ' em because I had a yolang 

missus they run with. Dats why they let me alone. I went 

with her to cotton pickin's at night. They came, but they 

didn't touch me. Ny young missus married Dr. Perry from 

the same neighborhood in Perquimans County. Bill Simpson 

married her sister. He was from. the same place. Watson 

dhite married the other one. He was from Perquimans. 

"There ware no half-white children on Marster's 

plantation, and no mixups that ever came out to be a 

disgrace in an ay. Ny white folks were fine people. I 

remember marsterts brother's son Tommy going off to wan. 

Marsterts brother was named Willis Riddick. Be never came 

back. I got a letter from my missus since I been in Raleigh. 

She was a fine lady. She put fine clothes on me. I was a 

foreman on the plantation and looked after things in general. 

I had charge of everything at the lots and in the fields. 

They trusted me. 

"When the war broke out I left py marster and went 

to Portsmouth, Virginia. General Miles captured me and put 

me in uniform. I waited on him as a body servant, a private 
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in the U. S. Army. I stayed with him until General Lee 

surrendered. When Lee surrendered I stayed in Washington 

with General Miles at the Willard Hotel and waited = him. 

I stayed there a long time. I was with General Miles at 

Fortress Monroe and stayed with him till he was in charge 

of North Carolina. He was a general, and had the 69th Irish 

brigade. He also had the Blue cats and Greentorches. 

"I waited on him at the Abbeck House, Alexandria, 

Virginia after the war. I stayed with the general a long 

time after the war. I didn't go with General Miles when 

he was ordered to the plains of the west. 

"I stayed on the Bureau here in Raleigh. Dr. H.  C. 

Wagel was in. charge. After I left the Bureau I worked at 

the N. C. State College Several years then I worked with 

the city at the city parks. I never left the state after 

coming here With General Miles. jI had mighty good white 

people, was treated all right, was made foreman and treated 

with every kindness. I haven't anything to say against 

slavery.. My old folks put my clothes on me when I was a 

boy. They gave me shoes and stockings and put them on me 

when I was a little boy. I loved them and I can't go 

against them in anything. There were things I did not 

like about slavery on some plantations, whuppin' and sellint 

parents and children from each other but I haven't much to 
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say. I was treated good. Lar.Ot know much about Abraham. 

Lincoln, haven't much to express about Mr. Roosevelt. He 

is a mighty pleasant man tho'. I learned to read and write 

after the war. I could not read and write when I was a 

soldier.* 
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EX- SLAVE STORIES 

An interview with Adora Rienshaw, 92, of 431 South Blood-
worth Street, Raleigh. 

"I wuz borned at Beulah, down hyar whar Garner am now, 

ant my parents wuz Cameron an' Sally Perry. When I wuz a 

month old we moved ter Raleigh. 

"We wuz called fele Issue, case we INU2 mixed wid de 

whites. My pappy wuz borned free, case his mammy wuz a 

white ' Oman ant his pappy wuz a coal-black nigger in. 

Hit happened in Mississippi, do' I doan know her name 

icept dat she wuz a Perry; 

"She wuz de wife of grandfather's marster ant dey 

said dat he wuz mean ter her. Grandfather wuz her coach-

man an' he often seed her cry, an' he'd talk ter her an' 

try ter comfLrt her in her troubles, ant dat's de way 

dat she come ter fall in love wid him. 

"One day, he said, she axed him ter stop de carriage 

an' come back dar an' talk ter her. When he wuz back 

dar wid her she starts ter cry ant she puts her purtty 

gold bald on his shoulder, an' she tells him dat he am 

her only friend, ant dat her husbant won't eben let her 

have a chile. 
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"Hit goes on lak die till her husbanl fin's out dat 

she am gwine ter have de baby. Dey says dat he beats her 

awful ant when pappy wuz borned he jist about went crazy. 

Anyhow pappy wuz bound out till he wuz twenty-one ant den 

he vim free, case no person wid ary a drap of white blood 

can he a slave. 

"When he wuz free he corned ter Raleigh an' from de 

fUst I can remember he wuz a blacksmith an' his shop wuz 

on Wolcotts Corner. Dar wuz jist three of us chilluns, 

Charlie, Narcissus an' me ant dat wuz a onusual small 

family. 

"Before de war Judge Bantin's wife teached us niggers 

on de sly, an' atter de war wuz over de Yankees started 

Hvesis school. I ain't had so much schooJin t but I 

taached de little ones fer seberal years. 

"De southern soldiers burned de depot, which wuz be-, 

tween Cabarrus an' Davie Streets den, en' dat wuz ter keep 

de Yankees from gittin' de supplies. Wheeler's Cavalry 

wuz de meanest troops what wuz. 

"De Yankees ain't got much in Raleigh, case de Con-

federates has done got it all ant gone. Why fer a long 

time dar de way we got our salt wuz by boilint de dirt 

from de smoke house floor wherede meat has hung ant 

dripped. 
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"I'm glad slavery is ober, eben do' I ain't neber 

been no slave. But I tell yo' it's bad ter be a'ele 

Issue." 
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CELIA ROBINSON 

611 E. Cabarrus St. 

"My name, full name, is Celia Robinson. I can't 

rest, I has nuritus so bad; de doctor says it's nuritus. 

I do not know my age, I wus eight or ten years old at de 

close o' de war. De ole family book got burned up, house 

an' all. I wuz borned a slave. Dat's what my father 

and mother tole me. My father, he ' longed to Dr. Wiley 

Perry of Louisburg, N. C., Franklin Co.', an' my mother 

'longed to McKnight on an adjoining plantation. I do not 

know McKnight 's given name. My father wuX named Henderson 

Perry. He wuz my marster's shop man (blacksmith). My 

mother wus named Peggy Perry. McKnight's wife wus named 

Penny. I member her name. 

mI member when de Yankees came ter my mother's 

house on de McKnight plantation near Louisburg an' dey 

went inter her things. When de Yanicees came down my 

brother Buck Perry drug me under de bed and tole me to lie 

still or de Yankees would ketch me. I member de sweet 

music dey played an' de way dey beat de drum. Dey came 

right inter de house. Dey went inter her chist; they 

broke it open. Dey broke de safe open also. Dey took 

217 
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mother's jewelry. But she got it back. Missus went ter 

de captain an' dey give back de jewelry. My missus wus 

de cause of her gittin' it back. 

"I wuz old enough to go up ter where my brother kept 

de cows when de war ended. I member where he kept de 

calves. My brother would carry me up dere ter hold de 

calves off when dey wus milking de cows. My mnrster 

would take me by de hand and day 'Now, Celia, you must be 

smart or I will let de bull hook you.' He often carried 

me up to de great house an' fed me. He give me good things 

ter eat. Yes, I an partly white. It won't on my mother's 

side tho' l but let's not say anything about dat,jist let 

dat go. Don't say anything about dat. Dlarster thought 

a lot o' me. Marster and missus thouzht there wus nothin' 

like me. Missus let me tote her basket,and marster let 

me play wid his keys. 

"I cannot read an' write. I have never been ter 

school but one month in my life. When I wus'a little 

girl I had plenty ter eat, aar, an' a good time. 

sVaember when my father would come ter see mother. 

Be patterollers tole him if he didn't stop coming home so. 

much dey wus goini ter whip him. He had a certain knock 

on de door, den mother would let him in. 

"I'member how mother tole me de overseer would come 

ter her when she had a young child an' tell her tar go 



3. 

home and suckle dat thing, and she better be back in de 

field at work in 15 minutes. Mother said she knowed 

she could not go home and suckle dat child and git back 

in 15 minutes so she Would go somewhere ant sit down an' 

pray de child would die. 

*We lived at Dr. ailey Perry's one year atter de 

war, then we moved ter as plantation of get?, Ward, n white 

man who was not married, but he had a lot of mulatto 
,•.•••••• 

children by a slave woman o' his. We stayed dere four 

years, den we moved ter de Cberles Perry plantation. 

Father stayed dere and raised 15 children an' bought him 

a place near de town o' Franklinton. I got along during 

my early childhood better dan I do now. Yes, dat I did. 

I plowed, grubbed an' rolled logs right atter de war, I 

worked right wid as men. 

*I married Henry Robinson. We married on de Perry 

plantation. We had two children born ter us, Ada an' 

Ella. Dey are both dead. I wish I had had two dozen 

children. I have no children now. If I had had two dozen 

maybe some would be wid me now. I am lonesome and unable 

to work. I have been trying to wash and iron fer a livint, 

but now I am sick, unable to work. I live with my grand-

son an' I have nothing.* 

2113 
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GEORGE RCGERS 

Ex-Slave Story 

"George Rogers is the name. I has carried fur 94 years 

an' over. I will be 95 the first day o' this conj.& August. 

Louis Rogers wuz my father. My mother wuz Penny Rogers. 

All my brothers an' sisters are dead except one sister. 

She is livin' in Buffalo, New York. She is somewhere in 

seventy years old. She wuz the baby in our home. My mother 

an' father an' all o us belonged to Felix Rogers. He lived 

in the edge of Wake County next to Greenville County. My 

mother came from Canada. My master came here from Canada 

ant married here. lie married old man Billy Shipp's daughter. 

Her name wuz Matilda Shipp. 

"I cannot read an' write. Dey did not ' low no niggers 

to handle no papers in dem days. Master had three plan-

tations an' about one hundred slavea. We had good houses 

an' plenty to eat. my master wuz a good man. We had no 

church on the plantation, but we had prayermeeting in our 

houses. He ' lowed dat an' when dey had big meeting, he 

made us all go. We had dances or anything else we wanted 

to at night. We had corn shuckings, candy pullings, an' 

all the whiskey an' brandy we wanted. My daddy didn't do 

Within' but ' still for him. Whiskey wuz only ten cents a 



-2- 222 

quart den. 

'I have never seen him really whup a slave any more dan 

he whupped his own chilluns. He whupped us all together 

when we stole watermelons and apples.. He made us chillun, 

white and black, eat together at a big table to ourselves. 

de had ordinary clothes, but we all went alike. In the 

summer and winter we all went barefooted and ' in our shirt 

tails mos' er de time. His chilluns wuz just as bad fer 

goin' barefooted as we niggers wuz. 

"We had our patches, and he allowed us to have the 

money we made on 'em. Our houses were called slave quarters. 

Our marsters house wuz a big fine two story- house. We slaves 

called it 'de great house'. None er de slaves from Marster 

Roger's plantation never run away. 

"We chillun played de games uv marbles, cat ball, an' 

we played base, prison base. At night we all played peep 

squirrel in the house. We played blindfold and tag. 

"We fished a lot in Briar Creek. We caught a lot 

fish. Sometimes we used pin hooks. we made ourselves. We 

would trade our fish to missus for molasses to make candy 

out uv. 

"When we got sick we had a doctor. His name wuz Dr. 

Hicks. I never WUz sick, but some uv de res' wuz. We had 

an old colored man who doctored on all us chillun. He give 

us roots an' herbs. 
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"Yes sir, I have seen slaves sold. Bily marster died 

the year the wax started; den dey had a big sale at our 

house. Dey had a sale, an' old man Askew bought a 

whole lot ot our niggers. I don't know his name only 

dey called him 'old man Askew'. He lived on Salisbury 

Street Raleigh, down near de Rex Hospital, Corner Salisbury 

and Lenoir Streets. Old man Askew wuz a slave speculator. 

He didn't do nothint but buy up slaves and sell ' em. He 

carried de ones he bought at our house to Texas. he bought 

my half-sister and carried her to Texas. Atter de surrender 

saw her in Texas once, never no more. 

"When de war begin dey carried young marster off. His 

name wuz William Rogers, an' dey sent me to wait on tim. 

wuz in camp wid ' im up here by de old Fair Grounds. Atter 

we got there I seed old Colonel Farrabow, he wuz Colonel o 

dat regiment. We all left Raleigh on wagons, an' I don't knoy 

whur we went atter we left Raleigh; I wuz last. We got on 

de train at Fayetteville, whur dey kept de rations. We went 

to a place whur dere wuz a lot ol water. I don et know its 

name. We were dere about three days when dey had a battle, 

an' den Colonel Farrabow come round an' tole me marster wuz 

gone. He told us to go to the breastworks and work. I 

stayed dere three years and eight months. Den dey had 

anudder battle dar just befol I left, and de Yankees tuct 

de place. 
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"I went to de Yankees den. Dey give me clothes, 

shoes, sumtin to eat, and some money too. I worked for ' em 

while dey were camped in Raleigh. I come wid ' em back to 

Raleigh Dey were camped. on Newbern Avenue and Tarboro 

Streetand all out in Gatlin' Field in de place now called 

Lincoln Park. De Yankees, when dey tuc' us, tole us ter come 

on wid tem. Dey tole us to git all de folks's chickens and 

hogs. We wuz behind ' em, ant we had plenty. Dey made us steal 

ant take things fUr ' em. Wheelerfs Calvary went before us, 

dat's why dey wuz so rich. Dey got all de silver, an' we 

got de chickens and hogs. 

'We Yankees skinned chickens and geese. Dey cut hogs 

an' cows up an' den skinned 'em. Dey took jis' part of a 

cow sometime, jis' de hind quarters ant left de rest. We 

went to one place, an' de white loman only had one piece of 

meat an' a big gang o' little chillun. I begged de Yankees 

to let dat piece of meat alone, she wuz so pot, but de officer 

tole ' em to take it, an' dey took her las' piece or meat. 

"I stayed wid de Yankees two years arter de surrender. 

Dey carried me to Florida when I left Raleigh. When I ler 

'em in Florida I went ter Texas to mint cattle. I stayed in 

Texas seven years. Den Mr. Hardie Pool from down here at Battle 

Bridge, Wake County come out dere. When he started home I 

couldn't stan1 it no longer, an' I jis tole him I wuz goin' 
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back home to North Carolina. NO Sir, when I got home, I would 

not go back. No mo mindin ' cattle in Texas fur me. I married 

arter I come back here. I married Folly Bancomb first, den 

a toman named Betsy Maynard, and last, Emily Walton. 

"When de surrender come marster wuz dead, but he left it 

so dat all his slaves who had families got a piece o' 

Derewere four of tern who got Ian'. He wuz dead do', but missus 

done like he had it fixed. 7 

"We had white overseers. Old man John Robinson stayed 

there till de surrender; den he lef'. We used to kill 

squirrels, turkeys, ant game wid guns. When marster went off 

some o' us boys stole de guns, ant away we went to de woods 

huntins. Marster would come back drunk. He would not know, 

an' he did not care nuther, about we huntin' game. We 

caught possums ant coons at night wid dogs. Marsa an' missus 

wuz good to us. 

"I heard a heap uv talk about Abraham Lincoln, but I 

dontt know nuthin t bout him. I like Mr, Roosevelt all right. 

He is all right as fur as I know of lim. I digs fish worms 

fer a livint; I can't work much. I jist works awhile in the 

morniat. I don tt git anything from charity, de county, liar 

de State. I don' have much. Dese are de oes shoes I has. 

Dey flinged dem away, an' I picked Ism up. Delis jist rags 

It 
uv.shoes. I shore need shoes.  

L.E. 



320123 - 
t,\T 4 . 226 

N. C. District  No. 2 Subject  HATTIE ROGES  

Mprker  T. Pat Matthews Person Interviewed Hattie Rogers 

No. Words  1172  Editor  G. L. Andrews  



227 

I-IATT= ROGERS 

"I was born a slave in New Bern, N. C., Craven County, 

the 2nd day of March 1859. My full name is Hattie Rogers. 

My mother's name was Roxanna Jeffreys. Her husband was 

named Gaston Jeffreys, but he was not my father. 4 father 

was Levin Eubanks, a white man. I was born before ffly mother 

was married. I called my father Marse Levin. We belonged 

to Allen Eubanks of New Bern, N. C. and his sister's son was 

father. His sister was flawed Harriot and I was named 

after her. Marster didn't care who our fathers was jest so 

the women had children. My father died in 1910. My mother 

was 15 years old when I was born. When I was a little girl 

they moved us out to the plantation on the White Oak River 

in Onslow County where we had plenty to eat and wear. We 

made the stuff and we ate it. Our marster was good to us. 

Marster carried me around in his arms a whole lot. He would 

7 
say to me, ' Come on Harriot, and lets go get a dram. If A 

you're like your daddy I know you like it.' 

"Our marster did not whip us or allow anyone else to 

whip us. 

"When the Yankees took New Bern, two years before the 

war ended,. we all were refuged to Franklin County to keep 

them from setting us free. All who could swim the river 
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and get to the Yankees were free. Some of the men swum the 

river and got to Jones County, then to New Bern and freedom. 

One of these was Alec Parker. The White Oak River was in 

Cnslow County bordering Jones County. There was a lot of 

slaves who did this, but he is the only one I personally 

remember. 

"When we got to Franklin County, we saw plenty of 

1)atterollers, and many of the men were whipped. Mother's 

husband was beat unmercifully by them. 

"There was no churches on the tlantation, but we went to 

the white folks church and sat on the back seats. The 

white people was friendly to us in the eastern part of 

the state. Indeed it was more stiff up in Franklin County. 

Some of the slave-owners was very mean to their slaves. I 

remember seeing some of the slaves almost beat to death. 

Lawsy mercy, that was a time. I saw a slave-owner whip a 

colored woman named Lucy, his servant. Be was named John 

Ellis, Judge Ellis's son in Franklinton. 

"My mother cooked for Judge Ellis then. John Ellis 

whipped Lucy because he found a piece of pickle outside the 

pantry door. Be accused her of stealing it. There was a 

string attached to a bell, near where Lucy stayed. She was 

a house girl. He accused her of stealing the pickle and leav-

ing it there when the bell rung, and she had tolO in the 

house. 
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he made her strip to her waist and then he made her hug a 

tree. Be whipped her with a cowhide whip until she could 

only say in a weak voice, ' Oh pray! Marster John'. Major 

Thomason was there, and he went to Marse John and said ' John, 

don't kill the dam nigger.' 

'41-1 lot of the white folks hid in the woods and in caves 

and swamps. They hired slaves out when they didn't need 

'em themselves. They hid jewelry in boss stables by digging 

holes, putting the jewelry in, and then replacing the straw. 

"When the slaves was sent from White Oak to Franklinton 

before Lee surrendered they had to walk all the way. -de 

children was carried in dump carts drawn b: mules. My mars-

ter nor none of his boys was ever in the Confederate Army. 

'alien they got us to Franklinton they tut us in jail for safe 

keeping. 

"If a woman was a good breeder she larou,Jit a good price 

on the auction block. The slave buyers would come around 

and jab them in the stomach and look them over and if they 

thought they would have children fast they brought a good 

price. 

"Just before the war started when the birds would sing 

around the well, Elssus would say, 'War is coming, them 

birds singing is a sign of.war; the Yankees will come and 

kill us all.' I can see the old well now jest as plain. 

It had a sweep and pole. You pulled the sweep over by 
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pulling the pole and bucket down into the well. Jhen it 

.sunk into the water, the heavy sweet pulled it up again. 

"I wouldn't tell anythin14 wrong on my ole marster for 

anything. He was good to all of us. He offered my mother 

a -oiece of land after the war closed, but mother's husband 

wou-,Ld not let her accept it. 4 grandmother took a.place 

he offered her. He gave her fifty acres of land and put 

a nice frame building on it. 

"The man we belonged to never was married. He bought 

a woman who had two little girls, on named Lucy and the 

other Abbie. He took Lucy for a house girl to wait on his 

mother. She had eleven children by him. They're all 

dead exce-ot one, 411 the missus I ever had was a slave, 

and she was this same Lucy. Yes, sir he loved that woman, 

and when he died he left all his property to her. 

"When the slaves on the plantation got sick they relied 

mostly on herbs. They used sage tea for fever, poplar bark 

water for chills. 

"When the husbands and brothers and sweethearts were 

Eone to the war the white ladies would sing. Annie Ellis 

and Lag Thomas would sing these -Atiful songs. (Adieu my 

friends, I bid you adieu, I'll hang my heart on the willow 

tree and may the world go well with you./ 

"When I was three years old I remember hearing this 
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song. ' Old Beam7,egard and Jackson came running down to 

Manassas, I couldn't tell to save my life which one could 

run the fastest, Hurray boys, hurray! 1.9 

"When the surrender came the Yankees rocked the place 

where we were in. We were in a box car. They wanted to 

et a li s:;ht-colored slave out. 

"The Yankee officers came and gave mother's husband 

a gun and told him to shoot anyone who bothered us. They 

mit a guard arot.nd the car, and they walked around the 

car all night. 

"My mother was dipping snuff when the Yankees came. 

Cne rode up to her and said, ' Take that stick out of your 

mouth.' Mother was scared when the Yankees tried to 

break in on us. She cried and hollered murder: and I 

cried too. I din't know about freedom. I was too young 

to realize much about it. When the war ended I had just 

been hired out. I was never sent off. I think slavery was 

an awful thing, and that Abraham Lincoln was a good man 

because he set us free." 

LE 
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IflY ROUT:riTtiFF. 

Henry Rountree, 103 years old , of near Newsom's Store in 
-;;ilson County. 

"I wus borned ant bred in Wilson County on de plantation 

of Jr. Dock Rountree. I wus named fer his oldest son, young 

Larse Henry. Ly mammy, Adell, my palmy, Shark, an' my ten 

brothers an' sisters lived dar, an' aldo' we works middlin' 

hard we has de ,crandes' times ever. 

uWe has two er three corn shuckings ever' fall, we has 

wood splittint days an' invite de neihbc_.s in de winter time. 

De wimmen has quiltings ant dat night we has a dance. In de 

col' winter time when we'd have hog killings we'd invite de 

neighbors case dar wus a hundret er two hogs ter kill ' fore 

we quit. Yes, mam, dem wus de days when folkses, white an' 

black, worked tergether. 

"Dar wus Candy pullin's when we makes de 'lasses ant at 

Christmas time ant on New Year's Eve we has a all night dance. 

On Christians mrnint we serenaded de marsterls family an' dey 

gived us fruits, candy an' clothes. 

'My marster had game cocks what he put up to fight ant 

dey wus valuable. When I.wus a little feller he had one 

rooster that gud whup me ever' time / got close ter him, he'd 

wiauP Young MarSe, HenrY too, so both of us hated him.6, 



'One day we set down wid bruised backs ter decide haw 

ter it rid of dat ole rooster, not thinkin' 'bout how much he 

cost. We made our plans, an' atter Eittinl a stick apiece 

ready we starts drappin' a line of corn to de ole well out in 

de barnyard. De pesky varmint follers de corn an' when he 

,eits on de brink of de well we lets him have it wid de sticks 

an' pretty shortly he am drownded. Marse ain't neVer knowed 

it nother. 

"De missus had a ole parrot what had once ' longed ter 

her brother who wus a sea captain. at wus de cussingest 

thing I ever seed ant he'd cuss ever'bod ant everrthing. One 

day two nei,ghborhood men wus passinl when dey heard somebody 

'holler Whit a minute.' When dey turns frount de ole parrot 

sez, 'Go on now, I jist wanted ter see how you looks, Great 

God what ugly men! Ant de ole thing laughs fit ter bust. 

'Tat ole parrot got de slaves in a heap of trouble so 

de day when de hawk caught him we wus tickled pink. Be hawk 

sailed off wid de parrot screamin' over an' over, ' Pore polly's 

ridin'. We laughed too quick case de hawk am skeerd an/ 

turns de ole fool parrot loose. 

Hit's things lak dat dat 'members mostly , but idoes 

'member when de news of de war come. Ole missus as dat de 

iy,of de lord be done. Den ole Marse sez dat his slaves 

an clay Etat de 
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"De war comes on an' as .de niggers 1.anns dat dey am 

free dar am much shoutin an rejoicin' on other plantations, 

but dar ain't nothint but. sorrow on ows, case de marster • 

sez dat he always give us everfthing dat we needs ter make us 

happy but he be drat iffen he is gwine ter give us money ter 

fling away. So we all has ter go. 

'Ole marster doan live long atter de war am-over, but 

till de day dat he wus buried we all done anything he ax us. 

"I has done mostly farm work all of my life, ant work 

aroun' de house. Fer years an' years I lives on a part of 

Marse's land an' atter dat I lives her-E. I aintt got no kick 

comit l bout n4)thinl icept dat wants my ole age pension, 

does, 1 I'd like to say . too, Ivdss, dat de niggers lud be 

better off in slavery. I ain't seed no happy niggers since dem 

fool Yankees come along.4 



320145 
236 

By Miss Nancy Watkins 
Madison, Rockingham County 

Biography Sketch of Es-Slave, 
Anderson Scales, 82 

Three fourths of a mile from his master's 

mansion in Madison on Hunter Street, with his large 

plug tobacco factory across the street on the corner 

(where 1937 stands the residence of Dr. Wesley McAnally, 

in some "quarters" which Nat Pitcher Scales had near 

Beaver Island Creek, Anderson was born to slave mother, 

Martha Scales of a father, "man namt. uh Edwards." 

Baby Anderson was the slave of William Scales, at one 

time the world's largest manufacturer of plug or chew-

ing tobacco and he was named for Henry Anderson, the 

husband of Mrs. William Scales' sister. Cabins here 

"quarters" consisting of three or four log ones. 

Cabins were near the old "free white schoolhouse" or 

rather the "schoolhouse" for whites. 

Rolling around the yards with the other picka-

ninnies, Anderson passed his babyhood, and when he was 

a boy he went to be house boy at Marse Jim Dick Card-

well's on Academy Street facing Nat Pitcher Scales' 

home, later that of Col. John Marion Gallaway. Here 

he learned good manners and to be of good service. 

Later he was houstboy in the big house just beyond the 
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::ethodist church at James Cardwell's who had a mill 

five miles west of Liadison and whose wife was Sallie 

1,1artin, granddaughter of Governor Alexander Eartin. 

Here Anderson learned more good manners and rendered 

more good house boy service such as sweeping floors, 

bringing in " turns" ( armfuls) of fireplace wood, draw-

ing water from the yard well and toting it into the 

house, keeping flies off the dining table, carrying 

out slops and garbage, for every town house had its 

back lot pigs. 
P;-JEA-
Laaager Anderson was hired .o Nat Tall, ( color-

ed) farmer and blacksmith, then to Joshua 'Jell, white 

planter of Dan Valley nertheast of town a few miles. 

White men would get contracts to have the 

mail carried to various towns and Anderson Scales was 

hired by one of these contractors to carry the mail 

from Eadison to Mt. Airy, fifty miles distant in north-

west Strry County. He would go by horse and sulky 

(sulky) on Londay, return on -Jednesday; go on Thurs-

day, return on Saturday. This was in the late 1870's 

and 1880's. 

During the tobacco season, he worked in 

factories in Winston (no Salem then) and Greensboro. 

Then he worked in Nat Scales' factory in Madison and 

in that of his former Marster, William Scales. He 

married Cora Dalton and started his home a mile up 
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the Ayresville road from town. 

The railroads having come with the conse-

quent transporting of freight to and fro, Anderson 

started a public drakYing business of one horse and 

a wagon, which lasted thirty eight years and was given 

up_by him, to his son-in-law, Arthur Cable who now, in 

1937, has an auto-truck and hauls large paper boxes 

from the Gem Dandy Suspender and Garter Company lo-

cated across Franklin Street from Anderson's house 

boy home, that of James Cardwell, to the post office. 

From the freight train depot, Arthu hauls merchandise 

also in paper cartons to the feed stores which do not 

own an auto truck of their own, and he hauls to the 

garter factory a few two by three foot wooden boxes 

loaded with metal fillings for the suspenders. This 

is a complete contrast to the loads "drayed'' by An-

derson through the 1880's, 1890's and the 1900's to 

about 1915 when the automobile began to change the 

world of transportation, and Anderson's one horse 

wagon dray business along with it.6or thirty-eight 

years Anderson met every train to capture the trunks 

of visitors or udrummere in town. Two immense hog-

heads packed with leaf tobacco was sold on the floors 

of Webster's ware house and Planters! warehouse. TWO 

stacks of tobacco baskets loaded with the bundles of 

leaf, Anderson, five feef high, and his lean horse 

could dray from the sales floors to the packing houses 
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where the tobacco was packed and pressed into the hogs-

heads or else stored for removal at a greater profit. 

One such packing house was converted into the Gem Dandy 

Garter Factory about 1915 and today three of the ori-

ginal five remain. One or two are still used for to-

bacco packing, though the season of 1936-1937 marked 

the hauling of immense loads of tobacco direct from. 

the sales floors to the Winston-Salem buyers. One 

pack house is used as a fertilizer sales house, One 

loaded to the roof comb with heavily insured tobacco 

was mysteriously burned during the )rld War where 

such insurance collections were the fashion! Thus 

Anderson's dray business d*Indled. Any kind of haul-

ing he could get done, and his horseseas they died 

from strenuous work would be replaced by others who 

in no time learned the meaning of Anderson's constant 

pulls on their reins and his constant and meaningful 

clucks. With no swivel features to his wagon, Ander-

son could nevertheless work the horse and wagon into 

any kind of close position for leading and unloading. 

He always said the baggage of the writer was the 

heaviest he carried. This was so because of books 

packed in the trunk or in boxes and twenty-five cents 

a piece was the fare! 
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Anderson's wife and children at home mdre 

making the acre homestead pay with cow, pigs, chickens 

and vegetables quickly grown on soil enriched from his 

dray horse stable as well as the cow stable: " snap 8", 

tomatoes, Irish potatoes, roasting ears, butterbeans, 

squash in in the summer, in the spring mustard and onions, 

in the winter " sallet" from the " seven top" and turnips, 

tool Fruit trees planted in time gave fruit for eating, 

canning and "pursurving" while all the little darkies 

knew where wild strawberries, crab apples and black 

berries grew for the picking. Uith --ammuh taking in 

white folks washing and the dray horse money coming 

in, Anderson Scales prospered in Madison where he start— 

ed from zero scratch. He had money in the bank. 
lkk auviz 

Anderson said after "Srenduh", he learned to 

read and write at a negro free school taught by Matilda 

Phillips. With his wife, Cora Dalton, sister of Sam 

Dalton, Anderson joined the African Methodist Church 

fifty years ago. This was located just across the 

street from the home of his former employer, Nat Wall 

until 1925 when it was abandoned with its parsonage 

and a new brick church built on the Mayodan road with 

stained glass memorial windows, electric lights, piano, 

well finished interior, and christened St. Stephen's 

Methodist Episcopal Church. The omission of the word 

"South" emphasized the fact that the members consider— 
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ed it a northern Methodist church as well as African. 

In this church, Anderson was exhorter, trustee and 

class leader. In then religious c4bities, his \ edu-

cation by the colored teacher, Matilda Phillips was 

a great help to him. 

Anderson's second wife was Dinah Strong who 

had no children. She died December, 1933 from a goiter 

on her throat. 

For ten years or more Anderson has operated 

a grocery store in the corner of the Mayodan and the 

Ayresville roads. Customers come m :De at night, so 

Anderson has time in the day to work his garden patches 

of onions, snaps and the like and to stop and rest on 

the porch of the small store house. Clad in good dark 

clothes, a low crowned derby hat, he often snoozes as 

he rests his eighty-two year old frame. 

Anderson and many of his children were dis-

tinguished by their very large round eyes with much 

white showing. One of his sons inherited the blackness 

of his skin. This was "Little Anderson" who once 

sought a warrant from a local justice to punish gy trial 

some boy at the tobacco warehouse, who had remarked 

thus: "Boy, charcoal would leave a light mark on your 

skin!" 
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Anderson's son, dill Scales, was the first 

husband of Bertha who had to nurse him through the 

terrible spells he would have from liquor debauchery. 

Will was the servant of the Nat Picket family and 

once Mrs. Pickett herself went down to their home and 

nursed Will through one of his terrible'icramping 

spells. After Will Scales' death, Bertha married 

Cleve Booker, plumber, ex-World 'Jar veteran and of 

surpassing`good nature from Washington, Georgia. Their 

oldest son they named Chilicothe, Ohiofbecause at that 

city, Cleve was in war camp and met lertha who had gone 

there to go out in service. 

Some of Anderson Scales other children still 

live in Madison in homes marked by good construction, 

clean well furnished interior, artistic surroundings. 

Martha married Arthur Cable who also holds an honored 

place in the church. One daughter married Odell Dyson. 

Fannie Sue married Thompson. Walter married Morris 

Carter's daughter. He died in early 1937 of pneumonia 

in West Virginia. So his widow went to help take care 

of "Pap Anderson". Nancy Scales married Eler Williani 

Wells. 

When told that the pioneer graveyard of the 

Scaleses which is a mile or so west of his store was a 

thick tangle of growth andnno stones to the once wealthy 
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tobacco manufacturer, William Scales, Unka Anderson 

Immix exclaimed May 19, 1937: "You don't mean to 

tell me my ole Marse ain't got no tombstone to his 

grave". 

A merchant's wife stated that about 1930, 

Anderson had more ready cash in the bank of Madison 

than any white man in town, but Uncle Anderson_dis-

claimed this. 

But the Depression of 1930-1934 did not in-

jure this energetic black man who started in a "quar-

ters" cabin a mile or so west of his wesent home and 

store, lived all his life in Madison and faces the "one 

clear call" with comfortable snoozes on his own front 

porch. Respected by white and colored,Anderson Scales, 

82, has guided his life by the gospel preached by his 

pastor, also an ex-slave, William Scales of Madison. 
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By Miss Nancy Watkins 
Madison, North Carolina 
Rockingham County 

BIOGRAPHY OF EXauSLAVE, CATHERINE SCALES 

About ten years old at the "Srenduh", now 

quite feeble, but aristocratic in her black dress, 

white apron and small sailor hat made of black taffeta 

silk with a millinerts fold around the edge, Aunt Cathe-

rine is small, intensely black with finely cut features 

and thin lip. Her hand is finely motied, fingers long 

and slender, Her voice is soft and )oise marks her 

personality. Sallie Martin, a ginger cake colored 

woman, sixty-five, has lived as a kind of caretaker 

with Aunt Catherine since 1934 and thereby gets her 

own roof and refreshment. For Aunt Catherine has got-

ten "-relief" from the county welfare chief, Mrs. John 

Lee Wilson, and Jeff Scales, seve4y, brings Sallie to 

the " relief" dispensary , in his two horse wagon for the 

apples or onions or grape fruits or prunes with dried 

bena, milk, canned beef or potatoes as the stores yield. 

A white horse and a brown mule comprise the team, and 

several dogs trot along side. Sally also small and 

frail looking sits in a chair planted in the flat wagon 

bed behind the drivers' seat, a plank resting on the 

sides. Jeff drives close to the door, alights and 

helps Sallie step on to the back of the bed, thence to 

a chair: he has placed, then to the ground, just as 
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polite whites did to their women folks after the war 

when they would ride to town or to church or to picnics, 

in wagons in order to carry the family, the servants, 

the dinner, horse feed, water bucket, chairs, cushions. 

Sallie gets in line, presents Aunt Katherine's card 

which she has gotten by mail, hears the dispensing 

lady call to the helping men what Aunt Catherine is 

to have, and Struggles to the door with it where Jeff 

meets her, transfers the load to his wagon bed. Then 

with his hands he steadies Sallie as she mounts the 

chair, then the back of the wagon bed, over the side 

with voluminous long skirts, and ola fashioned ruffled 

sun bonnet. Off to the hilly north part of Madison 

called Freetown, Jeff's expertly guides his team through 

automobile traffi. During the worst of the depression. 

Aunt Sallie said she kept her coal reserve in a tub up-

stairs so nobody could steal it. 

Aunt Katherine strengthened by her relief 

food can talk comfortably 

°I shure did love my white fokes - Ole Marse, 

Timberlikk (Timberlake) an' Ole Miss Mary Timberlikk. 

My mother, Lucy Ann Timberlikk bough their portraits 

at the sale of the old Timberlake things, and kepp them 

ant brought them with her to Madison, when we moved up 

here, an kepp them until mummy was in her last sickness, 

ant two of Ole Misses daughters came over from Greens-
• 
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boro, ant begged, - an mammy sold the pictures to them 

for a quarter a piece. I still have Ole Misses mother's 

dish, though. I've got in packed away in a safe place. 

I'll get it and show it to you. It is a large flat 

platter of the ware called iron ware and was generally 

used to serve fried ham and eggs while the gravy came 

in a small deep dish. In summer, a heap of snaps greasy 

with middling meat slashed and boiled down dry with 

Irish potatoes around the edge came to table in the 

platter. 

The keeper of the Timber] ke oil portraits 

was Lucy, slave of Nat Scales, and Lucy's husband was 

Nathan Scales. Slave Nat Scales (named for Marse Nat) 

had married a black woman who came "across the water", 

Sallis Green who become by purchase Sallie Scales. 

Thus Aunt Katherine recalls her grandmother as one who 

"cum over the water with a white lady". The purchaser 

Mrs. Scales was from the LeSeur family. Her father was 

clerk of the Rockingham county court as early as and 

kept the session records of his Presbyterian church in 

a fine neat script. 

The LeSeurs had as big a house as the Scales 

house at Deep Springs. I've stayed many a nite in it. 

It was next to Ole Marse Jimmie Scaleses. John Durham 

Scales, Marse Jimmy's grandson lived and died in it - 

his grandmother's house, the old Le Seur place, tea 

miles down the Dan river towards Leaksville. Miss 
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Mary Le Seur married Marse Gus Timberlikk, an was the 

grandmother of uilliam Timberlake Lipscomb who used to 

come up to Madison and go to Dr. Schuck's Beulah Academy 

just after the Srenduh. When Marse Billy'd get lonesome, 

he'd go down to Spring Garden and dance with the Scales 

girls. Ole Marse LeSeur's wife was Miss Lizzie Scales 

Mares Jimmie' s. 

Nome, us slaves didn't have no chuch. Marse 

Nat Scales ud let his slaves go to the babtizings. 

I could hoe but I didn't do much clean up work. 

I spun on a great big wheel that WE t 111-M-W-M-M. I 

wish I had a big wheel to spin on right now. My mammy, 

Lucy Ann, could weave. She sho loved her white fokes. 

Cullud fokes didn't have much sence den. She would take 

cow hair and kyard and spin it with a little cottin in 

(to rolls, and then she'd weave cloth out of it. 

"An how they made their shoes den: my father 

would cut shoes out of the raw cowhide and put them on 

bottoms ( soles) he cut out uv wood. An he couldn't run 

in them a-tall, just had to stomp along: An day didn't 

put on shoe till nearly Christmas. 

Schooling 

Aunt Katherine said she ' learned her letters" 

in a school fuh cullud fokes only taught by Mr. Sam 

Allen just after the Srenduh close to the old Timber-

lake place. Mr. Sam was the son of Mr. Val (entine) 
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Allen an Miss Betsy Martin (she was the granddaughter 

of Governor Martin) 

"Sometimes Miss Betpy'd git worried with 

little nigguh rolling roun on de floor thub hader 

under her feet, ant she'd say: "Gway! Gway!! Gway 

fum hyuhl Gway tuh Pamlico! An the little nigguhs'd 

say: "Miss Betsy, whah's rPamplico?" 

"Nine miles tother cede hell!" 

"Yesin Mr. Sam Allen learn't me my letters. 

He was crippled. He married a Grogan, ant two Allen 

girls married Grogans - one, Mary! tr. Val's father 

was William Allen. went to Mr. Vaul Allen's funer-

al an he was buried on his father's ole place, an 

Miss Betsy too. 

"How de cullud fokes did hate to be sold 

down south in de cotton country! One time ole Marse 

Jimmy Scales wuz go sell uh hunduhd down south, and 

he died, an , all de cullud fokes wuz glad he died 

dause he Nuz go sell um, an oftuh he died, day didn't 

halftuh be sold way fum home. 

"One slave woman wuz sold way fum home - had 

three ehillun, and daze six an eight an ten yuhs ole. 

She swig a song juss fo day tuh hub off. She put her 

three children between her knees. She sung, "Lord, Be 

With Uss* 

, 
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"Remembuh:me Remembuh me Oh Lord 
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fa - me - sol - do 
remembuh-me 

This was sung full of quavers and pathos, and entreaty. 

"Den she cried! An dey t k huh off, and de 

chillun never saw her no tore* 

"Aftuh I learned my lettuhs at Marse Sam Al-

lens school, I learned a Bible verse ebry day an if 

I want bixxy I8d learn ah half uh chaptuh. I read some 

newspapers, and some story books de Miss Mary Timberlikk 

give us chillun to read an look ovuh. I learned to 

write in a copy book, an I8d write stories about Christ, 

and several different stories. I filled a great big 

copy book with practice. I learned the most, tho', from 

Webstuh's Weekly in Reidsville. We toolf. that papuh goin 

on five yuhs. I read evrything in it. 

"Nome, I didn't know Miss Irene MeGehiet. 

Uncle John R. Webster made that paper. It sure wuz a 

good paper! 

"My daddy wuz Marse Nat's slave, an Porter 

Scales muz his slave too. Ole Mame Jimmie Scale's 

Sams was Nat Pitcher and John Durham, and John Durham 

249 
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went to wah. He took Richmond Scales long wiff him 

to wait on him! Cook fuh him! Make his pallet! 

Clean his clothes! Rub down his horse! Morse John. 

Durum'd sleep with Richmond in de wintuh to keep him 

warm. Richmond'd carry him watuh in his canteen dur-

ing a battle. Marse John Durum had on a ring that 

wuz carved and he tole Richmond take a good look at 

this ring sose he'd know him by it, if he didn't kum 

up aftuh a battle. Richmond ua hole onto his hawse's 

tail, an go wif him fuhs he could fo a battle. 

"Yes'm I ma'd 1 Richmond E ales when he wuz 

a widower an had a boy named Jeff. I never had no 

chillun. Jeff's ( 70) seventy now, an lives right ovuh 

cross de street dere in the other hous the Vadens built 

sixty years ago. I live in one, too." 

Aunt Katherine's house has a front room with 

stairway in the corner leading to one above. A back 

door leads to a side porch flanked by a two roomed ell, 

and ended by a pantry. Chimneys with fireplaces once 

gave heat, but economy had put in Aunt Katherine's tiny 

stove which she a lump at a time in the winters of de-

pression and relief 1932 - 1937. 

A big fat clean double bed, bureau, wash 

stand, " centuh" table, chairs and the stairway con-

sumed the living room floor space. 

"Name! I joined de chuch after a big meet-

in' held by preacher Richard Walker about 1907. I 
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joined the Methodist Chuch an I have always loved to 

go tuh chuch. This street goes on and goes into the 

Mayodan road at our new brick ( 1925) Methodist Chuch. 

Richmond Scales, my husband died long ago; my mother, 

about four years ago. She was very old I wanted to 

move to Reidsville when we leff de ole plantation whab 

we could get more wok (waiting) waten on wimmen 

stetries) but the men fokes had kin fokes up hyuh, an 

we keem hyuh. 

°I know whah de ole Sharp graveyard 'bout two 

miles fum ( east) Madison close to Mist Tunnuh (Turner) 

Peayts; cause lots uh cullud fokes ouried there an I 

went to the funerals. I could go straight tuh 
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By Miss Nancy Watkins, volunteer 
Madison, North Carolina 

Story of Ex-Slave, Porter Scales 

Monday, December 19, 1923, the faithful color-

ed friends of Uncle Porter Scales transported his 

body from St. Stephen's African Methodist Episcopal 

Church located on the Madison-Mayodan highway to a 

plantation grave yard several miles east of town, along 

roads slippery with sleet. He was qaried by the side 

of his first wife on the 130 acre farm which Uncle 

Porter said he bought from Mr. Ellick Llewellyn to 

raise his family on and which he later swapped to Mr._ 

Bob Cardwell for a town house in Pocomo (Kemoca, a 

suburb from first syllables of promoters' names,(Kamp - 

Moore - Cardwell - Kemoca). In this town house, Und.le 

Porter passed away aged he thought ninety-seven. For 

a number of years, he had drawn a pension of $100.00 

per year for his services to the Confederate govern-

ment in hauling foodstuff from Charlotte, North Caro-

lina to Danville, Virginia. 

Ao a siove of Nat Pitcher Scales residing in the 

brick mansion on Academy Street across from the Metho-

dist church, Porter came to Madison when ten years of 

and his memory held the'Aevelopment of Madison 
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from the erection of the churches around 1845 to de-

tails like seeing little Bettie Carter (Mrs. B. xgatkin's 

Mebane) cry from stage fright and pass up her "piece,' 

at school " exhibition" ( commencement). He saw Madison 

grow from a tiny trading village with aristocratic slave 

holding citizens with " quarters" on their town lots to 

a town of 1500 with automobiles clipping by to Mayodan, 

a mill town of 2000, and a thickly populated" though un-

incorporated country side. 

In 1930, Uncle Porter was struck by an automobile, 

\\8!' and since he poked his way about town cautiously with 
3\ 

his cane, no longer working as hanky- man to Thomas R. 

Pratt's family on the corner of Academy and Market 

streets. His slavery home was in a two roomed (with 

loft) cabin next door to the house Mr. Pratt built in 

1890 when he moved to Madison from Leaksville. This 

cabin Col. Gallaway in the 1890's had enlarged to house 

the Episco rector, Mr. Stickney. Uncle Porter's 

slave home stands in 1937, occupied by Mr. Pratt's 

daughter, Mrs. Pearl Van Noppen and sons. 

Uncle Porter was ever very polite and humble, 

for all his contacts he thought had always been with 

the highest of Dan river aristocracy. His medium, 

lean body, with a head like Julius Caesar's was cover-

ed with skin of "ginger cake color". 

On the Deep Springs Dan River plantation lived 
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Mrs. Timberlake whose daughter married Mr. Le Seur from 

an adjoining plantation just across the Dan river from 

Gov. Alexander Martin's Danbury plantation. She in 

time married Mr. Scales, and as property of this lady, 

Porter was born of legally married parents. Porter's 

brother, Nathan Scales, was given by his mistress to her 

daughter, when she married another Le Seur, and thus he 

became Nathan Le Seur. Both brothers have descendants 

in Madison of a high typeof citizenship. Porter, him-

self was given the choice by his ole Miss of belonging 

hither lather of her two sons, John Durham Scales or Nathan-

iel Pitcher Scales. Porter chose lictt Scales as his 

young marse and come to Madison to live with him about 

1845. 

By obeying orders from his marse Nat Pitcher Scales, 

Porter operated a train of fifteen wagons loaded with, 

corn for the Confederate cavalry from Charlotte, North 

Carolina to Danville, Virginia. Thus a Confederate 

soldier, he in his old age received a pension. 

Porter said he got lots of practice in managing 

feed wagons by„; 

(AlWaggoning in Georgia" for his marster between 

the two cities, Augusta and Wadesboro. His master, he 

said, traded his services to *Dan River Jim Scales" 

who " bossed" the teams between Augusta and Wadesboro 

which were owned by John Durham Scales and Dan River 

Jim Scales. These wagons also carried corn. Nat Pit-

cher, Porter *smaele by choice operated a stare at 
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Wadesboro, Georgia. Uncle Porter's "waggoning in 

Georgia" shows Madison's connection with the far south 

not only through the Scales family but through other 

families. 

But the great honor of a tobacco country slave 

was that of being sold "down south to the cotton coun-

try." 

So after the war, Porter Scales came back to the 

Dan river in Rockingham county, and bought his 130 acres 

farm from Mr. Alex Llewellyn. He liked to recount his 

matrimonial matters except those of his second wife who 

married him for a rich nigger widower, and spent his 

hard won dollars freely for lace curtains and such to 

adorn the town house in " Pocomo" and finally forced 

him out of the "town* house into the woodhouse in the 

yard where he lived some years, dying there. His church 

friends took charge of his body and kept it until put 

away by the side of his first wife. 

She, Martha Foy, he said in 1932 to me, was bought 

by Dr. Ben Foy of Madison from Wheeler Hancock of Went-

roth. Six of their children are living near Madison and 

in West Virginia, Stephen andpndsay Scales at the old 

place down at Deep Springs. He told of "going tuh see" 

the attractive Betsy Ann, house girl slave of Mrs. Nancy 

Watkins Webster but was " cut out" by Noah Black. Aunt 
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Betsy Ann Black is remembered,as being the superlative 

obstetrical nurse in homes of the rich about Madison, 

and was designated by them as being a "lady" if ever 

there was a negro lady. She was never dressed except 

in " cotton checks". "Being cut out" thus, Porter cited 

as evidence of his aristocratic association: for one 

of Aunt Betsy's son became a Methodist preacher, and 

two of her grandaughters teachers in the public schools 

of North Carolina. 

Porter told of the white school teacher, Professor 

Seeker who taught in the Doll academy, Madison's old 

"female academy" which still stands (remodeled since 

1900 into a dwelling) on Murphy Street at the 60 foot 

deep well in the street, by the old Dr. Robert Gaily-
_ 

way house ( standing still in 1937) just south of John. 

H. Moore's five acre homeplace. Professor Seeker, he 

said left Madison and went mps up on Baughn's Mountain 

to teach among the Baughns, Lewises and Higgies and 

Bibsons, pioneer families of that area. On that May 

2, 1932 in his Kemoca yard, Uncle Porter recited the 

poem which little Bettie Carter forgot in stage freight 

at Professor Seeker's "exhibition" before Professor Jacob 

Doll ever started his " female school". All these pupils 

were pay " scholars". 

The free school for Madison, the "old field school-

house" was way down the hill from the old Dr. Smith 
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house near Beaver Island Creek. Only white folks inti-

mate with itch, head lice and ldmg standing poverty 

then sent their children to the " free ole feel school-

house". 

Porter said as a laborer he helped build a big 

tobacco factory at Dr. Smith's old place. By 1880, 

this factory had been purchased by Madison negroes as 

community and fraternal "Hall" for assemblies. It 

served thus to 1925 when it was abandoned, and in 1936, 

it was torn down, the last of the several large plug 

tobacco factories operated in MadiPon 1845-1875 by the 

Scales, Daltons and Hays. 

Porter could name and designate vocationally 

Madison's early white residents, and others, too, whom 

his Marse Nat Scales visited. His story of some Civil 

-.Tar refugees led to how their slave girl, Rose, acquired 

a small farm two miles east of town held to this day 

(1937) by her descendants, the Ned Collins family of 

Madison. Rose acquired the farm by Kindness to its 

owners, who willed it to her. 

Forced to live in cellars in Petersburg, Virginia, 

(Mrs. A. R. Holderby, William Holderby, Miss Fannie 

Holderby, Mrs. Aiken) because of bombarding Federal 

shells 1864 came to Madison afflicted with tuberculosis. 

Their slave girl was Rose. The whites died except a 

son, who became a Presbyterian minister. The whites 

were buried on a hill just north of the pioneer Joel 
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Cardwell home ( 1937 Siegfired Smiths°. Rose was mar-

ried to Uncle Henry Collins, and they lived on the 

place of Mrs. Louise Whitworth and Scylla Bailey. These 

white women willed their tiny farm to Rose Collins be-

cause of her kindness to them in their old age. 

1r 
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yrrailAM SCOTT 
Ex- Slave Story 

401 Church St., 77 years old. 

'My name is William Scott. I live at 401 Church 

Street, Raleigh North Carolina. I wiz born 1E60, March 31st. 

I wuz free born. My father wuz William Scott. I wuz named 

after my father. My mother wuz Cynthia Scott. She wuz a 

Scott before she wuz married to my fathe . She wuz born free. 

As far back as I can learn on my mother's side they were 

always free. 

'My mother and father always told me my grandfather 

wuz born of a white woman. My grPnafather wuz named Elish.a 

Scott. I have forgot her name. If I heard her name called 

I have forgot it. My grandfather on my mother's side wuz 

a Waverly. I can't tell you all about dese white folks, 

but some of ' em, when they died, left their property to 

Aulattoes, or half-breed children, and several of them are 

living in this community now. I can tell you exactly 

where they are, and where they got their property. Some of 

them are over half white. They were by a Negro woman who 

was km/sato and a white man. Dey air so near white you 

can't tell them from white folks. This condition has 

ted as long ago as I have any -recollection, and it Still  
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exists, but there are not as many children according to the 

relations as used to be. 

*Free Negroes were not allowed to go on the plantations 

much. Now you see my father viuz a free man. We lived right 

here in town. My father wuz a ditcher and slave gitter. One 

night the man he worked for got uf a crowd and come to whup 

him and take his money away from him. He had. paid father 

off that day. Dat- night dey come an; got him an' blindfolded 

him. He moved the blindfold from over his eyes and. run an' 

got away from tem. He never did go back o more to the man 

he had been workin' for. I vtu.z a little boy, but I heard 

pappy tell it. Dat wuz tereckly after de surrender. Pappy 

saw the man he had been workin' for when he slipped the 

blindfold off his face, and he knowed 

"I viu.a a boy when the Yankees came to Raleigh. They 

came in on the Fayetteville Road. They stopped and quartered 

at the edge of the town. I remember they had a guardhouse 

to put the Yankees in who disobeyed. Later on they came in 

from the eak.t and quartered at the old Soldiers Home right in 

there, but not in the buildings. There were no houses there 

when the Yankees came. They had some houses there. They 

built em. They stayed there a:good while until all the 

Yankees left. When the Yankees first came in they camped, 

,over near Dix Hill, when they come into town you hardly 

knew where they come from. They were jist like blue birds. 

They jist covered the face of the earth. They came to our 



3. 262 

house and took our sumpin' to eat. Yes sir, they took our 

sumpin$ to eat from us Negroes. 14 daddy didn't like deir 

takin' our rations so he went to de officer and tole him what 

his men had done, and the officers had sumpin' to eat sent 

over there. 

"My mammy cooked eome fur de officers too.- Dey had 

a lot of crackers. Dey called ' em hard tack. The officers 

brought a lot of ' em over dere. We lived near the Confederate 

trenches jist below the Fayetteville Crossin' on Fayetteville 

Street. The breastworks were right near c r house. 

"I know when the colored men farmed on share craps, 

dey were given jist enough to live on, 4and when a white man 

worked a mule until he wuz worn out he would sell him to de 

colored man. De colored man would sometime buy ' im a old 

buggy; den he wuz called rich. People went to church den 

on steer carts, that is colored folks, most uv ' em. De only 

man I wurked for along den who wud gib me biscuit through de 

week wuz a man named June Goodwin. The others would give us 

biscuit on Sundays, and I made up my mind den when I got to 

be a man to eat jist as many biscuits as I wanted; and I 

have done jist dat. 

"lity mammy used to hire me out to de white folks. I 

worked and made jist enough to eat and hardly enough clothes 

to wear to church until I wuz a man. I worked many a day and 

had only one herrin$ and a piece of bread for dinner. You 
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know what a herrin.1 fish is? 'Twon't becase I throwed my 

money away, twas cause we didn't git it, nuther to save 

up. When we farmed share crap dey took all we made. In 

de fall we would have to split cord wood to live through 

de winter. 

ttI will tell you now how I got my start off now, I 

am going to use dis man's name. I went to work for a man 

name George Whitaker. I drive a wagon for him.. He 'lowed. 

me all de waste wood for my own use. This wuz wood dat 

would not sell good on de market. I hauled it over home. 

I worked for him till he died, en his wife lowed me a little 

side crap. I made this crap, took de money I got for it, and 

built a little storrhouse. I disremember how long I worked 

fer Mist Hannah Whitaker. Den I quit work for her and went 

to work for myself. I owns dat little storeDiouse yitt 

de one I worked wid Mist Hannah Whitaker, en from dat I 

bought me a nudder home. 

'Men de Yankees come to Raleigh dere wuz a building 

de,y caned de Governor's Palace, it stood whur de Auditorium 

now stands. Right back o' where de courthouse now stands 

wuz a jail and a gallows elle a whuppint post all dere together. 

I know when dey built de Penitentiary dey hauled poles from 

Johnston County. Dey called dem Johnston County poles. Dey 

hauled em in on trains. Dis post office wuz not built den. 

.De post office den wuz built of plank set up ant down. 
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remember seeing a man hung down at de jail. His 

name wuz Mills. He wuz a white man. When he got on de 

scaffold he said, tWhat you gwine to do to me do it quick 

and be done wid 

"I think Abraham Lincoln done the colored man a heap 

of good. If it hadn't been for Mr. Roosevelt there are 

many livin' today who would have parished to death. There are 

plenty of people walkint about now who would have been dead 

if Mr. Roosevelt had. not helped than. The only chance I had 

to hold my home wuz a chance given me throligh him. At my 

age, I cannot make much at work, but through things he helped 

me, and I is holding my own • tt 

B.N. 
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TINEY SHAW 
Ex-Slave of Wake County, 76. 

"My papa wuz a free nigger, case he wuz de son 

of de master who wuz named. When a chile wuz loomed 

ter a slave woman an' its pappy wuz de boss dat nigger 

wuz free from birth, I know dat de family wuz livint 

on Susy Page's place durin' de war an' we iquz jist 

iak slaves alldot we wuz said to be ee den. 

Tidy- pappy wuz named Madison Medlin, maybe for de 

president, ant my mammy wuz a pretty, slim brown-skinned 

gal when I could remember. Dey said dat she wuz named 

fer Betsy Ross. I had four brothers, Allison, William, 

Jeems and John an' five sisters named Cynthy Ann, Nancy, 

Sally, Caroline an' Molly. 

mWe hyard a heap ' bout de war, but de white folkses 

didn't want us to know ' bout it. Most of de white vimmens 

had ter live by dere selves durin' de time dat de men folkses 

wuz away at de war, but de niggers in our neighborhood 

stuck ter de missus an' dar ain't no niggers from other 

plantations come dar ter insult ' em nother. 

mI tmembers dat it 'Auz in April when de Yankees 

come mat I hyard Mis' Susy cryini, case she wuz a widder 

toman; an' her crops wuz jist started ter be planted. 
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She knowed dat she wuz ruint, I reckon. 

"Me an' my mammy wuz sittin' by de fireplace when 

de Yankees come. I crawled under de wash bench but de 

Yankee officer drug me out an' he sez, ' Go fetch me a 

dozen aigs, an' I wants a dozen now, mind yo'.." 

1'1 looked till I found twelve aigs aril I started 

ter de house wid ' em, but bein' so excited I drapped one 

uv dem an' cracked it. I wuz sceered stiff now sho' 

fluff, an' I runned inter de back do' an' crawled under 

de bed. De officer seed me do' an' _le cracks his whup 

an' makes me COMR out den he sez, 'Nigger what's dat out 

dar in dat barrel in de hallway?' 

"I sez, ' Lasses sir', an' he sez ' draw me some in 

dis cup. 

draws ' bout a half a cupfal an' he sez, 'Nigger 

dat ain't no ' lasses,' an' he cracks his whup ag'in. 

"I den draws de cup full as it could be an' he 

tells me ter drunk it. 

"I drinks dat whole cupful uf ' lasses ' fore he'll 

lemmie ' lone. Den I runs back ter my mammy. 

flAtter awhile de Yankee comes back ant -sticks his 

haid in de dot an' he ' lows, ' ole doman, yo' lasses am 

leakinl.' 

Shot nuff it wuz leakin' an' had run dll down de 

-hall an' out in,de yard but he done pull de stopper out 
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fer meanness so he could laff at ulaumy when she waded 

through dat ' lasses. Dey laffs an ' laffs while she go 

steppin' down through de ' lasses lak a turkey walkin' on 

cockleburs. 

aDem Yankees done a lot of mischief, I knows case 

wuz aar. Dey robbed de folkses an' a Whole lot of 

darkies what ain't never been whupped by de master got 

a whuppin' from de Yankee soldiers. 

"De Ku Klux Klan warn't half as bad as dem Yankee 

robbers what stayed in Raleigh attE de war,robbin' l 

plunderin', an' burnin' up everithing. De south had ter 

have de Ku Klux Klan but dey ain't had no need fer de 

Yankees. 

mDe first winter atter-de wax wut de worse winter 

I ever knowed, an' Ifse dat wuz bad. Maybe 

yo' doan think so but nigh 'bout evert nigger in de world 

cussed ole Abraham Lincoln ao winter.m 

B.N. 
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JOHN SMITH 

John Smith, a Negro in the Wake County Home, Raleigh, N. C. 
Interviewed by T. Pat Matthews, May 10, 1937. 

"John Smith is my name, an I wuz borned at Knight-

dale, right at my marsterts house. Yes sir, right in his 

home. I wuz born right near whar de depot now is. My 

marster owned de Ian', all de lant dere. I wuz bred an' 

ham dere on my marsterts plantation. (I is, countint day 

an' night, 216 years old, not countint day ant night I 

is 108 years old.) 

"My marsterts name wuz Haywood smith ant he wuz 

one ob de, best men I ebber seed. He wua good to all us 

nigger's, he would come round ant talk to us, he lubbed us, 

(- and we lubbed him. My marster, Haywood Smith, nebber married 

but he had a nigger toman. She also had a nigger husband. 

She had two chillun by Marster Haywood Smith, a gal and a 

boy. Peter Knight awned my marsterts lant at Knightdale 

, atter my marster died. Re died de year de war commence. 

"Den de gardeen, de gardeen dat wuz appointed for 

all us slaves, and his name wuz Eat Moore, be carried us 

slaves to Marster Haywood Smith's brother's chillun in 

Alabama. Me wuz de gardeen. I got dere de month de war 

commence. Eat Moore carried as to Alabama. Marster Elam 

270 



iary moved off, but I staid wid de boys. 

olAy mother's name wuz Rose Smith, my father's name 

wuz Powell. He died at Wilmington, N. C. when dey wuz dikgin' 

de trenches rount de fort dere durin' de war. My mother 

died in Greene Co. Alabama, at a place called Smithfield. 

Ly father belonged to Mack Powell. I made no money before 

or after de war. I worked in Alabama until de war close. 

"I seed millions of Yankees, just like bees. When 

de war close I went wid ' em. I did not work enny for a 

year. I wuz so glad when de war ended, and dey tole me I 

wuz free I did not know what to do. I w it wid de Yankees, 

dey wuz kind to us. Dey said dey wuz shore glad to see us. 

Dey gib us just what dey wanted us to hab. 

*During de war, I had corn bread wid one piece o? 

meat a day. De meal wuz not sifted. De white folks had 

sifters made of horse hair but de slaves didn't have no 

sifters. When I carried a dress off to have it made on 

Sunday for Mistiss during de war, when she could not make it 

/herself, she gimme a biskit. We called Sunday, Blue Mon-

\ day. She gimme de biskit fur workin'on Sunday. Den 

I got a biskit fur going atter de dress. I got about two 

biskits a year when de war was going on. I wuz workin' to 

keep de solAlers fed, dey got de bislcits. 

"Torn Bridgers wuz marster"s overseer. HS had 

60 chilitena by riggers. Maretter licridgere:mode .:lwrsee 

*eft he went ober de plantation. 



"De only game I eber played wuz marbles. I played 

fer watermelons. We didn't hab eny money so we played fer 

watermelons. ). 

"In Alabama we got up at 4 o clock and worked to 

or 10 o'clock den we had breakfast, en rested t ill 4 o'clock. 

Dat wuz when dm weather waz dry and hot. It wud kill de 

truck to work it den. When it wuz wet we worked 7ionger. In 

North Carolina we worked from sun to sun, but we rested two 

hours St noon. You hardly ever heard of a man gittint sick 

If he did, he had de typhoid den Dr. Sewell at Knightdale, 

atter a while called Jedge Sewell, would 3ome en doctor 

him. Old man gedge Sewell was buried near St. Augustine 

School, other side Tarboro Road. 

"1 didnt have to pay antbing-fer going to Alabama. 

I wuz carried. Bat Moore carried me, he wuz de gardeet, 

but I had to pay to.come back. Dey went atter me, and I 

had to work two years to pay it back. Yes, Sir two 

whole yeari io pay fer coming back. I wuz glad to git back. 

Sometimes, dey gib us a fofe of de crap to farm. Some years 

we didno make much, when it wuz dry. No, we didn' make much. 

People (thin: sociate together, pore whites, free niggers„ 

slaves, apatdi'ilife owners. NO dey didnI sociate -much 
1 w , 

.befot dewar, bit dey did atter • dey got to mixinf 
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muddied de water ant caught fish. I caught rqbbits, coons, 

an t possums wid dogs. Dey fared but middlin pore chance wid 

us. We caught rabbits in hollers ant-caves; ant possums in 

trees, but we had a hard time ketchin' squirrels. We niggers 

had no guns, so we had a hard time ketchint squirrels. I 

et rabbits in summer whin dey had kits in tem. We caught 

all dese animals wid dogs. 

uDe white chillun didnt work, but de white folks 

wuz good to me. Yes, Sir-ree, dey wuz good to me. If dey 

done anything to me it wuz my fault. I belonged to Elam 

Smith's chilluns, Frank and John Elam. 

tt-I seed many Yankees during de war in Alabama. 

ADea de war ended dey tole me I wuz free. I wuz so glad I 

( 
diint know whut to do. De Yankees tole me I wuz free. I 

went wid tem. I stayed wid tem•from•May till August. 

Den I slipped away from tem. I had no clothes. and shoes 

till de Yankees come. Yes, Sir, I went barefooted. Dey 

gimme clothes and shoes, but I • slipped away from 'em because 

\ dey wanted me to do things I didnt want to do. 

%lite folks, if I must tell you, I must. I think 

/Jesus . sent you to me so I can tell my story. Dey just -

/wanted me to forage arount and. git chickens, collards, 
i . 

itaters .en,anybody!s hogs *I 'could git. I didnI have no 

1 slips or ,slactesi no unner clothes for 40 years befot de 

k Tankees come but -4 slipped , away. I. Wt. want to do -what 

e folks done tolerable well but de 
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rich slave owners didn' ' law rem to come on dere plant-

tations. Dey didn' ' low free niggers to come on de plant-

tations if dey could hlp it, but dey couldn' hep it. 

Dey slipped in dere at night when de marster didn' know it. 

"14y marster owned three plantations and 300 slaves. 

He started out wid 2 loman slaves and raised 300 slaves. 

ne wuz called short Peggy, and the udder wuz called long 

Pe,c,gy. Long Peggy had 25 chillusn. Long Peggy, a black 

'man, wuz boss ob de plantation. Diarster freed her atter 

she had 25 chilluns, just think oidat, raisin' 300 slaves 

wid two ' omens. It sho is de truf do'. 

"There wuz no jails but dey had whippin' poss 

on de plantations. When a nigger done anything he wuz tied 

and whupped, dare ain't no soars on my batk, no nary a one. 

Dere wuz slave auction blocks at Rolesville, en down to 

Rosinburg, Harpsborough, below Zebulon, next place, Smith-

field. 

nhite folks didn' hep. me to read ant write. 

If I.wuz caught wid a book I had better run ant git in a 

hole somewhar. Dey didn' low rfle to hab nothing . to do wid. 

books. 

"My marster preached to us on Sunday. He wuz 

preacher. My marster preached. to his slaves. NO slaves 

didn' run away from my marster. He wuz too good to tem. 

De slaves...from other' places runaway dot, an4 when dey 

caught 'em deyiwhupped 'em too. 
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"Yes Sir, my marster gib us Christmal. Sometimes 

he gib us two weeks befot we went to work Agin Christmas. 

Licker wuz no mo ten water. Brandy, de highest price of 

any of it wuz 40 cts. a gallon. We had a plenty uv licker, 

but nobody got drunk. Sometimes a white man got drunk en 

now en den a nigger would git drunk. 

"All worked for oLe anter den. I tell you dis 

young bunch ain't right, dey don't do right, dey don't 

work fer one anier. 

"I never married befot de war. Nobody married on 

marsterts plantation, but dey had tomans My toman wuz 

mighty good to me. I slept anywhar I could befo' de war 

ended, in de shuck pen, cotton seed house, ant went bare-

footed in slavery days. I married Helen Jones atter de 

war. I had four chilluns by her, 2 gals ant 2 boys. One 

ot dem boys is livint now, but I doan know wher he is. 

had one child by my toman in slavery time. my toman died 

in Greene County Alabama. I been married twice. I married 

another toman named Amy Guil,pton in. Wake County. She had 

four chillun by me, one, a boy is in de navy yard, a girl 

in Brooklyn, New York, one in Wake County, a farmer, an 

)cmte died. I lub de southern people, but de debbil got de 

( best of . tem; dz. 

doan think Mt. Abraham Lincoln wuz a good man, 

no sir ree l de debbil got him atter he whupped and won all 

Ian'. He wanted to gib it back-Agin. De debbil got 

lledidn r lib long atter hewhapped, did 
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JOHN SZITH 

10 Pettigrew St., Raleigh, i. C. Age 77. 

i'My mother was named— Charlotte Smith and father was named 

Iqichmond Sanders. You know niggers were sold an' traded an' 

given away just like stock, horses, mules an' de like in 

slavery time. 

'Iviy mother belonged to John Smith and father belonged to 

_ichmond Sanders. I belonged first to John Smith, but was 

ive away when I was a child to Solomon Gardner. John Smith's 

plantation was in Johnston County near Smithfield. Solomon 

CTardner's place was in Wake County. All these people are 

lead an' gone. My uncle, Ten Thomas, died ' bout one month 

ago in Johnston County. He was the last of the old gang. 

:other and father said we got reasonably good food and clothes. 

The houses were small and /poorly furnished but were warm and 

they got on very well. There was ' bout twenty.fiv - slaves on 

the place and they worked long hours under overseers. 

"The rules were strict about books, goin' visiting ant 

having meetings of any kind. No zleve was allowed to carry 

..gu4A hunt ifilthaut sdMe- white man with him unless hismarster 

give him ATa46* -,Dey caught rabbits in gums, birds in traps 

an' hunted possums wid dogs at night. Dere was not much time 

n' tep:ta% lay-by time an!Kat de nurth of Jni7 Den . 



slaves an' whites sometime went fishint in de Neuse River 

L.o:ether. At Christmas de holidays was give slaves and den 

dey had plenty to eat, shoes ) etc. 

"Slaves were sold at Smithfield on a auction block but 

lot were carried to Idchmond, Va. and to Fayetteville, N. 

,hildren were not made to work till dey lot 12 or 14 years 

old unless it fas some light work around de house, mindin' 

:le table, fannin' flies, ant nickint up chips to start a fire, 

scratchinl marster's head so ne could sleep in de evenings ant 

washint missus feet at night ' fore she lent to bed. Some of 

de missus had nigger servLints to bathe ' em, wash dere feet 

ant fix dere hair. When one nigger would wash ,e missus feet 

dare would be another slave standint dere wid a towel to dry 

'em for her. Some of dese missus atter de war died poor. 

Before dey died dey went from place to Dlace livin' on de 

charity of dere friends. 

tt1 was born 2nd Sunday in May 1860. I remember seem' 

de Yankees but I know very little 'bout em. Guess most 

all dem Yankees are dead now. De ones dat whupoed an' de 

ones: dat t whupped are most all dead. I lerned to read 

an' write. since slavery. I remember de Yankees.-

chilpans hardtaels. De had cans on dere backs an 

Dey give us 

guns, blue 

othes ant brass. buttons on dere clothes. Dey had cove 



wagons in front ant dey was walkini. I remember seem' dem 

kill a hog and take part of de ho z an' carry it off on dere 

backs. 

"De only time I saw anything in de slave situation dat 

:::ade a big impression on ;ny mind was when Liarster Thomas tied 

my Aunt Anne Thomas to a peach tree and whupped- her. I Will' 

never forgit how she cried. Another thing I 'members, my 

uncle teached me to cuss folks. His name was Needum Thomas. 

I can remember fore I could walk better than I can remember 

haypenings now. 

"Atter de war my daddy took mother an' moved to Dr. 
.e? 

Leach's in Wake County, next year we went to Mrs. Betsy-
_ 

Jordan's plantation in Johnston County. The fourth year. atter 

the war they put me to work. e stayed with the Jordans 

several years then we moved to Er. Thomas' where my aunt was 

whulDed in slavery time ant de marster dat owned some of our 

people in slavery time. We stayed there a few years. Then we 

moved to John Avery's near Smithfield. Father bought a place 

there an' paid for it. 

uFather believed in whuppin like de white folks did. He 

cut de blood out of me.14d a switch ant scarred me up an/ I 

left him. When I was twenty-one, a free man, I went back ant 

paid father for every day / Was away from him from de time I 

ran away at 16 years old till I was twenty-one. I owed bini 

believes &at- is 

'cause I paid a 
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just debt. Daddy said before he died I had done more for him 

dan de other chilluns. He whupped me too much but atter all 

he was my father ant I loved him ant -oaid him all I owed him 

for de time I was away. 

"I married three times in Raleigh. I married Juliva Smith, 

she lived one and one ,half years.We had one child dat lived 

six days. I have no 'married Mahalda Rand. 

She lived a year and ibua the third an' last time 

I married Maggie Taylo,I lived with her eleven years ant 

she died. I am sincflet5, 

"Haywood smith was pily figt father-in-law. He is 'bout 

108 years ole. Be liv*at d inty home. 

"I am livint righdis world tryin' to be ready when 

God calls me. Slavery the bad. Workin' the colored people 

over two hundred years -tithinit:giving gem anything but dere 

food an' clothes. Yes slavery was bad." 
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JOSEPHINE SUM 
Ex-Slave Story 

An interview with Josephine Smith, 94 years old of 1010 Mark 
Street) Raleigh) N. C. 

"I wuz borned in Norfolk, Virginia an' I doan know 

who we belonged to, but I 'members de day we wuz put on de 

block at Richmond. I wuz jist todlin.' rouni den) but me ant 

my mammy brought a thousan., dolI Will. My daddy, I reckon) 

belonged ter somebody else ) an' we wuz jist sold away from 

him jist lak de cow is sold away from de bull. 

*A preacher by de‘name of Maynard bought me ant 

mammy an' carried us ter Franklinton, whar we lived till 

his daughter married Doctor John Leach of Johnston County; 

den I wuz give ter her. 

"All my white folkses wuz good ter me ) an' I reckon 

dat I ain't got 1).o cause fer complaint. I ain't hAd much 

clothes, an' I ain't had so much ter eat) an' a many a 

whuppint ) but nobody ain't nebber been real bad ter me. 

III 'members seein.1 a heap o' slave sales ) wid de 

niggers in chains) an' de spectulators sellin' ant buyins 

dem off. I also 'members seein.' a drove of slaves wid 

no-thin' on but a rag Itwixt dare legs be in' galloped rot& 

"fore de buyers. 'Bout de suet toNng dat eber I seed do' 
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wuz a slave toman at Louisburg who had been sold off from 

her three weeks old baby, an' wuz bein marched ter New 

Orleans. 

"She had walked till she wuz give out, ant she wuz 

weak enough ter fall in de middle 0 de road. She wuz 

chained wid twenty or thirty other slaves an' dey stopped 

ter rest in de shade ot a. big oak while de speculators et 

de re dinner. De slaves ain't havin' no dinner. As I pass 

by dis toman begs me in God's name fer a drink 0 water, ant 

gives it ter her. I ain't neber be so sorry fer nobody. 

"Hit wuz in de mont' of August an.' de sun wuz bearini 

down hot when de slaves ant dere drivers leave de shRde. 

Dey walk fer a little piece ant dis loman fall out. She 

dies dar aide ol de road, aul right dar dey buries her, 

cussinl, dey tells me, 'bout losin' money on her. 

"Atter de war I comes ter Raleigh an' wucks fer 

Major Russ den I cooks a year on Hillsboro Street fer some-

body who I cant 'member right now, den I goes ter Louisburg 

ter cook in Mr. DedmAti's hotel, ant hearin' 'bout Melissa 

I fin's dat she am my sister, so I goes ter Mist Mitchel's 

ant I gits her. 

"A few years atter de war I marries Alex. Dunsan 

who wuz a body slave fer Major Fernie Green ant went through 
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all de war. Me ant him lived tergether sixty years, 

reckon, ant he died de night 'fore Thanksgivint in 1923. 

"Slavery wuzntt so goodjcase it divided faMblies 

an' done a heap 0 other things dat wuz bad, but de wuck 

wuz good fer ever!bo4y. It's a pity dat dese youngins 

nowadays doan know de value o' wuck lak we did. Why when 

I wuz ten years old I could do any kind ot house wuck am' 

spin an' weave ter boot. I hope dat dese chilluns will 

lam n somethins in school an' church. IscLts de only way 

dey can larn 

AC 
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NELLIE SMITH 

Main St. Dunn, North Carolina 
Route 6 

"My name is Nellie Smith. I wus born on a plan-

tation in Harnett County in 1856, near where Linden now 

stands. I belonged to ole man Jack Williams. His wife 

wus dead when I wus borned. There were many acres in 

the plantation, it wus a large one. I don't know exactly 

how many acres. There were 'bout fift slaves on the place. 

The slave houses were on a hill. Marster lived in the big 

house; and it wus a big one too. 

"I do not remember ever goin' hongry when I wus a 

slave. Father wus the butler and mother wus a house woman, 

and we got plenty to eat. My mother wus named Rosetta 

Williams and father wus named Atlas Williams. I do not 

remember my grandmother and grandfather ltut I remember my 

great grandmother. 

"We had good home made clothes and good beds. Jack 

Williams wus good to his slaves. Be wus goad to me and my 

mother and father, I have heard 'em say that he wus always 

good to ' elm. Our livin( with him wus good and we loved 

h. He thought a lot o' his n4ggers. Be had six child-

ren of his awn 4 boys and 2 girls; the boys Dr. Jack 

Williams, Dr. Jim Williams, \William Williams, Jim. Williams; 
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the girls Mary and Martha. 

'I did little work in slavery time. Sometimes I 

fanned flies off the table at meal times and did other 

light work. They made children do very little work in 

slavery time. We children played base, an' hide the 

switch. 

"I saw a jail for slaves in Fayetteville, North 

Carolina, but I never saw a slave sold. I saw an over-

seer whup a man once but he certainly didn't hurt him 

much. Be done more talkinl dan whuppin. 

"We went to the white folks' church but they would 

not allow any of us any books. No one taught us to 

read an' write. My father ran away once because he would 

not take a whuppin'. When he came back they did not 

do or say anything to ' im. Jack William would not 

allow a patteroller to whup a nigger on his land. If 

they could git on his land dey were safe. He had 

overseers at the plantation. I remember one whose 

name wus Back Buekannon. When we got sick Dr. Jack 

Williams looked after us. When Marster Jim Williams got 

to be a doctor he looked after us. 

nes, I remembee de Yankees. Dey went to our 

house one Sunday mornin'. Dey did not fight on our 
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side of the river; dey fought on de other side 0 de 

river near de Smith House. It wus the battle of Averys-

boro. Jae Smith House wus a hospital. Dey came into 

the house, my sister Irene wus house girl. The Yankees 

put air pistols to her head and said, ' Ycu better tell 

me where dem things are hid. Tell us where de money 

and silver is hid at.' Sister did not tell, Boss had 

started off wid de silver dat mornin'. De Yankees 

caught him, took it, an' his boots, horse and all he 

had. Be come back home barefooted. Dey got most ever-

thing at Marster's house. Dey took my mother's shawl, 

ant a lot of things belonging to de slaves. 

"I have heard ol de Ku Klux Klan, ha! ha! Yes, 

I have. I heard tell of dey beatinI up people, but I 

never got into any tangle wid lem. I just don't know 

bout all dem old folks Lincoln, Davis, Booker Washing-

ton. I think slavery wus a bad thing cause dey sold 

families apart, fathers from their wives and children, 

and mothers away from their children. Two of my sis-

ters were fixed up to be sold when the war ended.° 

LE 
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SARAH ANN SMITH 

An interview with Sarah Ann Smith of 623 West Lenoir Street, 
Raleigh, North Carolina. 

"1 wus borned January 22, 1858 ter Martha ant Green 

Womble in Chatham County, near Lockville. My father llonged 

ter Mr. John Womble ant mammy longed ter Captain Elias Bryant. 

Dey had six chilluns, I beint next . ter de oldest. 

"Father wus a carpenter ant by'his havinl a trade he 

got along better before ant atter de war dan de other niggers. 

Mangy wus housekeeper ant cook ant she a,.imAys wus neat as a 

1411 ant as quick as lightninl. Both families wus good ter 

dere slaves, givin t dem plenty ter eat dril enough ter wear. 

"I stayed wid mammy on Captain yant's plantation, 

ant I doan ' member doint any wurk at all tcept lookinl atter 

de babies onct in a long while. 

"When de Yankees come Marse wus off ter de war so 

dey tuck de place wid out any trouble at all. Dey wusn't as 

good ter us as our white folkses wus ant somehow we doan feel 

right 'bout 'em takinl Yarse ls stuff, but we knows hit ain't 

no use ter say nothin' 'bout hit. 

"At last de war wus ober, de Captain wus too busted ter 

hire us ter stay on, so we moved over ter Mr. Womble's place 

den. 

"Life wus a heap different from what hit wus 'fore de 
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surrender. We ain't had no fun now case when we has time we is 

too tired ant when we do have time is soldam. Nb mot dances ant 

parties fer us. We ain't eben got de ' lasses ter have a candy 

pullin t. We ain't got de Iligion we had ' fore de war, so 

rrayer meetin' am not hilt often. De Yankees gived us a school 

but dey ain't give us nothin' ter eat so wets got ter wurk, we 
.11.• 

ain't got no time fer edgercation. 

"I growed up in dis hant mouth way an' when I wus thirteen 

seed Henry Smith who wus rentint a little farm dar near us. 

He wus young ant slim alit yaller. My flks wanted me ter 

marry Bill Bunn but he wus thirty-odd, black Cht heavy, ant 

ain't laked him.. 

"Me ant Henry we cou tted jist as we pleased case dey warntt 

strict on us an t when I tol' him dat I reckin dat I is got 

ter marry Bill Bunn he gits mad ant he sez dat I ain't nother, 

case I is gwine ter marry him. Well I did an' I ain't never 

been sorry yet. 

"Henry has been dead now fotteen years ant de five chilluns 

what we had an dead too ant I is hopint ter git my pension 

soon. I does need hit, bele all alone in de worlt.° 
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WILLIAM SUITE 
920 Oberlin Road 

Bily full name is William Smith. I was born August 17, 

eighty years ago, near Neuse River at a place called 

Wilder's Grove. I belonged to Gaston H. Wiley and my 

missus was Sarah. Don't remember how many children they 

had but one ox' two ot ' em are living in Raleigh now, 

some place on North Street. I had good food and clothing 

and a good place to sleep. I was not dg enough to work 

much but they were good to me. I jest done little things 

arount the house. 

remember seem' the Yankees. I seen ' am take 

things. Yes, I wus big enough to see ' em shoot hogs, 

ant cows, an' kill the chickens. They *int through the 

house and took what they wanted. After the war we moved 

over about the Asylum on the Haywood Place. We went to 

Bryant Greents from the Haywood place. We lived in Raleigh 

a. long time, then I went to Arkansas. 4 mother and 

father died in Raleigh. 

a' 
I stayed in Arkanse s 40 years, and then came back 

to Raleigh. I am partly parailled. I have had a stroke. 

I married Anna Regan of Wake County. She went from 

Wake County to Arkansas and I married her there. Her 
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mother's father and the family all went to Arkansas. 

She is 71 years old the 8th of last April. She has had 

two strokes and can't talk any more. We have no boys but 

two girls, Matilda and Emma Maye Smith. Matilda Parker 

my daughter lives in Pittsburg, Pa. Fmme Maye works to 

support us. She works as nurse for 'Airs. J. H. Hunter 

but right now is out of work. Charity helps us a little. 

One hell' peck meal, 1 pound powdered milk, two cans 

grape fruit juice, one half pound coffee per week. This 

amounts to about eighty cents worth rations per week. 

The charity don't have much to give. 

"I have been back from Arkansas nine years the 

seventh of last April. I was never teached no books. 

I never saw a patteroller, but daddy told. me about tem. 

I do not remember much about churches before the 

surrender. I cannot read and write. 

don't remember the overseers, and I know nuthial 

'bout dem men Lincolm and the rest of tem you have asked 

me bout. Reckon they were all right. 

B.N 
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THE BOUND GIRL 

An interview with Laura Sorrell, 72 years old, of 207 Battle 
Street, Raleigh. The story is her mother's. 

"My mammy, Virginia Burns, wus borned in Fayetteville, 

Cumberland County. She never knowed her parentd,ant frum de 

fust she can 'member she is a bound girl. 

"?rum de fUst she could 'member she wus bound out 

ter a Mist Frizelle what beat her, give her scraps lak a dog, 

ant make her wuck lak a man. Dey ebenr kes her git on de 

well sweep ant go down in de well ant clean hit out. She 

said dat she wus skeerd nigh ter death. 

"She wus a grown woman when she ' cided .dat she can't 

stand de treatment no moi. She has cut wood since she wus 

big enough ter pick up de axe ant she makes up her min' ter 

quit. 

"Dey wus a-fixing ter chain her up ant beat her lak 

dey usually done when she ' cides ter go away. She has ter 

go den or take de whuppin' an' she ain't got time ter make 

no plans. 

"Fust she runs ter de Narster's bedroom ant slips 

on a pair of his ole shoes, den she goes out ter de big 

chicken house back of de barn. She hyars de Marster a—callin' 

fer her 'fore she git8 ter de woods 8o she runs back ant 

hides in de chicken house. 
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"Dey calls an' dey calls, ant de chickens comes ter 

de roost but she lays low ant doan make no fuse, so dey ' goes 

on ter sleep. She hyars de folkses a-callint her but she lays. 

still, den she sees de torches what dey am useint ter find 

her ant she thanks God dat she ain't in de woods. Atter 

awhile she thinks dat she can sneak out, but she hyars de 

bayinl of de bloodhounls in de swamp so she lays still. 

"Hit am four o'clock ' fore all gits quiet. She knows 

dat hit am safe ter go now, case she has done hyard Mister 

Frizelle an' one of de patterollers a-telkinl as dey goes 

back ter de house. Dey Icicles ter go home ant start out 

aglin de flex' =min' bright ant early. 

"Mammy am skeerd pink but she knows dat unless she am 

keerful dey am gwine ter ketch her. She lays still till 

daybreak den she flies fer de woods. 

"Ilse hyard mammy say dat dem nights she slept in de 

woods wus awful. She'd find a cave sometimes an' den aglin 

she'd sleep in a holler log, but she said dat everltime de 

hoot owls holler or de shiverin' owls shiver dat she'd cower 

down ant bite her tongue ter keep frum screaminl. 

"She said dat de woods wus full of snakes an' hit wus 

near 'bout two weeks 'fore she got ter Guilford County. 

She had stold what ahe et on de way dar, ant dat hadn't been 

much so she wus weak. 

"One day she crept outen de woods ant look rount her 

ant hit beint in July, she spies a- watermillion patch. She 



_3- 298 

looks roun' an' den flies out dar an' picks up a big million, 

den she shakes a leg back ter de woods. 

"While she wus settin' dar eatin' de watermillion a 

young white man comes up ant axes her her business ant she, 

seem' dat he an kind-lookinl, tells him her story. 

"She fully ' specks him ter turn her ober ter we sheriff 

but ' stid of dat he tells her dat his name am Dqpiel Green, 

an' dat he am a Union sympathizer, an' den he takes her ter 

some colored folkses house. 

"Dese colored folkses am named Berry an' my mammy am 

stayin' dar when she falls in love wid I r paw , Jake Sorrell, 

an' marries him. 

"She ain't never been ter dances an' sich before but 

now she goes some, ant hit wus at one of dese dances whar 

she met my paw. When she gits engaged ter him she won't 

let him kiss her till she axes Marster Daniel iffen she can 

marry him. Yo' see she wus wuckin' fer Marse Dan. 

"Well he give his consent an' dey wus married. Dey 

had me soon, case I wus eight months old when de Yankees 

come, ant we wus freed by de law. 

"My mammy an' paw had a hard time doldey ain't had 

but us two chilluns, but dey manages ter feed us. all right. 

Dey wus superstitious ant paid de witch doctor , a right smart 

ter keep off de witches but jist de same we got along well as 

most folks eben do' we did have ter eat hard tack ant black 

molasses fer seberal years atter de war." 
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RIA SORRELL 

97 years old. 536 E. Edenton Street, Raleigh, N. C. 

"I jist lak three years of beinT one hundred years 

old. I belonged to Jacob Sorrell. His wife wus named 

Elizabeth. My age wu,:; give to me by 14r. Bob Sorrell, the 

only one of ole marster's chilluns dat is livint now. 

"Dey had four boys, iviarcillers, Bob, Adolphus and Dr. 

Patrick Sorrell. Dey had three girls, Averada ant two udder 

ones dat died ' fore dey wus named. I , ls born on marster's 

plantation'near Leesville, in Wake County. Dats been a long 

time ago. I can't git around now lak I could when I wus on 

de plantation. 

"Dere wus 'bout twenty-five slaves on de place ant 

marster jist wouldn't sell a slave. When he whupped one 

he didn't whup much, he wus a good man. He seemed to be 

sorry everytime he had to whup any of de slaves. His wife 

wus de pure debil, she jist joyed whuppint Negroes. She wus 

tall an spare-made wid black hair ant eyes. Over both--her 

eyes wus a bulge place in her forehead. Her eyes set way 

back in her bead -.---Her jaws were large lak a mans ant her 

chin stuck up. Her mouth wus large tint her lips thin ant 

seemed to be closed lak she had sumptin t in her mouth most „, 
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She tried to boss marster but he wouldn't allow dat. He kept 

her from whuppin' many a slave. She jist wouldn't feed a 

slave an' when she had her way our food wus bad. She said 

underleaves of collards wus good enough for slaves. Marster 

took feedin i in his hands an' fed us plenty at times. He 

said people couldn't work widout eatinr. 

"Our houses wus good houses, ' case marster seed to it 

Jay wus fixed right. We had good beds ant plenty of kiver. 

De houses wus called de nigger houses. Dey wus ' bout two 

hundred yards from de bi house. Our houses had two rooms ant 

marster's had seven rooms. 

"We didn't have any overseers, marster said he didn't 

believe in rem an' he didnrt want any. De oldest slaves on 

the place woke us up in the morning, an' acted as foreman. 

Marster hardly ever went to de field. He tole Squire Holman 

ant Sam Sorrell, two ole slaves, what he wanted done an' dey 

tole us an' we done it. I worked at de house as nurse ant 

house girl most of de time. 

°Mother an' father worked ir de field. Mother wus 

named Judy an' father wus named Sam. You sees father wus 

a slave foreman. garster bought Squire Holman from de Hol-

manS keep'his name.. Dats vity he wus called dat. 

Warked from sunup till SUbset wid a rest 



Dat wus Christmas, a week off den, den a day every month, ant 

all Sundays. He said he wus a Christian an' he believed in 

ivin' us a chance. Iarster died of consumption. He give us 

patches ant all dey made on it. He give slaves days off to 

work dere patches. 

'I shore believes marster went to Heaven, but missus, 

well I don't know. Don' know 'bout her, she-wus so bad. 

She would hide her baby's cap an' tell me to find it. If 

I couldn't fin' it, she whupped me. She would call marster, 

an' I doint de best I could to please her, an' say come here 

Jacob ant whup dis nigger, but marst 2 paid no attention to 

her. He took our part. Many wus de meals he give us unbe-

known to his wife. Dere wus no mixin' white ant black on 

marster's place, no sir, nothint lak dat. He wus lak a father 

to us. Sometimes he brought hog haslets an' good things to de 

nigger house an t tole us to cook it. When it wus done he come 

an' et, all he wanted, got up an' said, ' I'm goin t naq anl 

you didn tt see him no more till next day. 

"We had prayer meetint anytime an t we went to the white 

folks church. Dere wus no whiskey on de place, no, n9 honey, 

no whiskey. Now at corn shuckin ts dey had a big supper ant 

aaA all et all dey wanted. I'll tell you Jake Sorrell lAis 

all right,. We didn't have any dances no time. Some nights 

marOer would aQie to our caloins t_call us all into one of ' am 



went out of him. De last word he said wus, Lord do your will, 

not mine.' Den he breathed twice an wus no not. 

"Missus died since de surrender, when she got sick she 

sent for me to go ant wait on her. I went an' cleaned her 

lak a baby, waited on her till de evenint she died dat night. 

I went off dat evenin' late to spend de night ant next mornin' 

when I got dere she wus dead. I jist couldn't refuse missus 

when she sent for me even if she had treated me bad. 

"Ey grandmother wus as white as you is. She wus Lottie 

Sorrell. Earster bought my grandmother. I do not know my 

grandfather's name. Grandmother wus a cook an' she tole me 

the reason she wus so white wus 'cause she stood over de fire 
4 

so mud BA, ha, dats what she tole me. She had long straight 

hair. I members her well. 

wYes I members de Yankees. De Southern, our folks, wus 

in front. Dey come along a road right by our house. Our folks • 

wus gale on an' de Yankees right behind. You could hear tem 

shootint. Dey called it skirmishint. It wus rainint an our 

folks wus goint through de mud ant slush. Dey had wagins ant 

some would say, Illrive up, drive up, God.—Ziar n. it idrive up, de 

damn Yankees right behind us.' Dey had turkeys an' chickens on 

e iragins an ere flosses. Dey got< things out cif de ou-S64 
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wus a time. Dey took al dey could find ant dere want much 

left when all got through. De Yankees poured out lasses an' 

stomped 'clown things dey could not carry off. I wus afraid of 

e Yankees. Dey come up an' said, ' Haint you got some money 

round here?' I tole ' em I knowed nothint about money. Dey 

called me auntie ant said ' Auntie tell us whar de money is, you 

knows.' I says, ' Dey don't let me see everything around here, 

no dat dey dongt.' 

"When dey tole us we wus free we stayed right on wid 

Larster. We got crackers an' meat from de Yankees an' when 

de crap wus housed in de fall marstel k_ve us part of all we 

made. We come to Raleigh on a ole steer cart to git our crackers 

an' meat dat wus our tLowance. We stayed at marster's till 

father died. I married there. We finally moved to the Page 

place tbout eleven miles north of Raleigh. We, been farming wid 

de white folks eber since, till we ot so we couldngt work. 

"I married Buck Sorrell since de surrender. We had four 

boys an' two girls, six children in all. Dey are all dead, tcept 

one, her name is Bettie. She works at Dr. Rogers'. 

"Dr Young looked after us when we WU3 sick. 

Dere wus one thing dey wouldn't allow, dat wus books an' 

papers. I cantilread gn! write. I heard talk of Abraham Lincoln 

coming through when talk of de war come tbout. Dey met, him 

f4,Davis, in South Carolina. . Lincoln:said, 'Jeff DaVis, 

rniggers go feei 

NNE ... 

if Davis tole him you can't make 
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us give up our property.' Den de war started. 

"A lot of de niggers in slavery time wurked so hard 

dey said dey hated to see de sun rise in de mornint. 

Slavery v,rus a b ad thins., ' cause some white folks didn't 

treat dere ni,;:,8ers right. 
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CHANEY SPELL 

An interview with Chaney Spell, 101 years old, Contena 
Heights, Wilson, North Carolina. 

"I really doan know who my first marster wus, case 

has been sold ant hired so much since den. I- reckin 

dat I was borned in New Hanover er Beaufort County ant 

wus sold Lust time in my mammyts swim-. We wus sold 

ter a man in Carteret County and from dar de speculators 

took me ter Franklin County. I wus solL ter a Mr. McKee 

ant datts de Lust thing dat I 'members. 

"I doaa 'member anything 'bout maw tcept dat dey 

called her Sal ant dat she died years an' years ago. I 

reckin. dat I once had a pappy, but I ain't neber seed 

him. 

"Marster McKee was mean to us, ant we ain't had 

nothint to eat nor wear half of de time. We was beat 

fer ever' little thing. He owned I reckin two er three 

hundret slaves ant he had four overseers. De overseers 

wus mean ant dey often beat slaves ter death. 

"I worked in de house, sometime 'round de table, 

but I ain't got so much to eat. 

"When word came dat we was. to be sold. I was glad 

as I could be. Dey tols me dat de marater has gambled 
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await his money ant lost evertthing but a few slaves.. 

Later I learned dat he had lost me to a Mr._Hartman in Nash 

County. 

MMarse Sid Hartman wus good as he could be, sometimes 

his overseers wusn't but when he fount it out he let dem go. 

Marse Sid ain't got but one weakness an' dat am pretty 

yeller gals. He just can't desist dem at all. Finally 

Mist Mary found it out ant it pretty near broke her heart. 

De ole marster, Marster Sid's daddy, said dat long as he 

could ride a hose he could look out fer de plantation so 

Marse Sid took Mist Mary to de mountains. 

"Soon atter dey want away de war broke ant ole 

marster wus right busy, not dat de slaves ain't stuck to 

him but de Yankees won't let dem stick. When Marse Sid ant 

Mist Mary come hone de war wus closint an' dey has lost 

dare slaves. De slaves still loves tem dot ant dey goes 

over ant cleans house ant fixes far de young folks. 

"Atter de war I married Lugg Spell ant we had five 

Chilluns. He's been dead dese many years an' Itse worked, 

worked an' worked to raise de chilluns. I has been on 

charity a long time now, a long time. ° 
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A aAVERY FAMILY 

An interview with Tanner Spikes, 77 years of aL:e l of 43 
1-, 2g Street, Raleigh, North Carolina. 

"14 mammy had fifteen chilluns which wus all borned on 

Doctor Fab Haywood's plantation here in Wake County. My 

manu ' longed ter him, but my daddy ' longed ter a Wr. Wiggins 

in Pasquotank County. 1 think that Dr. haywood bought him 

just ' fore de war. Anyhow, we took de name of Wiggins. 

"Yiammy's name wus Lucinda an' pan .r's name wus Csburn. 

doan ' member seein' many Yankees on Dr. Haywood's place. 

doan reckon many corned dar. Anyhow, we had a gyard. 

"I 'members a corn shuckin' what happened ' fore de war 

wus over, an' what a time darn niggers did have. Dey kisses 

when dey fin' a red year ant atter dat - ey pops some pop-

corn an' dey dances ter de music of de banjo which Uncle Jed 

am a-playinli Dey dances all night de best I can ' member. 

"I seed a few Yankees, but dey wus just lookin t fer 

soinething ter eat. We ain't knowed nothin' ' bout freedom, 

but de Yankees tol i us dat we ort ter be free, dey also said 

dat we ort ter have meat ant stuff in de smokehouse. My 

mammy sez dat dey ain't got good sense ant she tells marse 

what dey said. 
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"De Yankees has done tuck all de rations so dar ain't 

nothin' left fer de niggers ter take but mammy tells Marse 

Haywood what dey sez anyhow. ilarse Haywood sez dat iffen 

he ketch any niggers in his smokehouse dat he'll skin ' em 

alive. He also sez dat we ain't free an' dat we ain't never 

gwine ter be free. 

"De next year, atter de war, wus a hard year. We 

ain't had nothinl ter eat but hardtack ant 'lasses ant 

sometimes not half enough of dat. Liy pappy still farmed 

fer 1:larse Haywood, but hit ain't as good as it is in slavery 

days. 

"Seberal years atter dat, while we wus livin' on Davie 

Street, I met Frank Spikes an , I married him. I can't tell 

yo' much ' bout our love-mLkin i case hit warn't much, but he 

always called me 'honey gal! an' he axed me ter marry him in de 

kitchen while I wus washin' dishes. He jist puts his ems 

'round me an , he sez, ' I wants ter marry yo', honey gal.' 

"Well we gits married by de Baptist preacher in Raleigh 

fifty odd years ago an , we lives tergether till dis past 

March, when he dies. 

"Other boys corned ter see me but I ain't loved none of 

dem but Frank. He ain't never whupped me but onct an' dat 

wus fer sassin' him, ant I reckin dat I needed dat. 

"We had five chilluns an' Ilse stayin''wid my daughter 

died but I misses him, yes mam, I misses him purty 
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ANNIE STEPHENSON 
80 years old 

1813 Rosewood Ave. 
Richmond, Va. 

Now at 717 Saunderls Street 
Raleigh, N. C. 

"I wus born in Hillsboro, N. C. I ' longed to Charles 

Holman and my missus wus named Rachel. He owned-a plantation 

near Hillsboro. It wus a mighty big plantation in Orange County, 

ant he had a good many slaves on dat place. We had tolerable 

good food ant log cabins and clothes dat you wove in de loom. 

•Home.wove cloth. We had no feather bed . We did not know 

nuthinl 'bout feather beds. Slaves like dat had bunks an' some 

slept on de floor. We went barefooted most of the time. Slave 

shoes had wooden bottoms on tem. Chilluns wus not give shoes 

at our place till dey wus big enough to work. 

"I 'member seein' de Yankees. Dey wore blue clothes 

an had brass buttons on 'en. De only work I done wus to sweep 

..yards an' nurse small chilluns. I done very little heavy work. 

My mother wus named Nicy Oldman an' she worked in de field. My 

father wus named Billy Brigs, cause he ' longed to the Briggs 

family. I do not 'member seem' my father but one time. I 

never seen a slave sold or whupped, but I heard tell of it. kr 

mother tole me 'bout marster whuppinl so severe. We had a rough 

boss. He had two colored foremen. Dey were slaves who ' longed 
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"Dere wus no patches allol:ied to any of the slaves, an' 

none of ' em had any money. 

"We wus not allowed to have any prayer meetin's. Mother 

said she never knowed one on de plantation. 

'Dere wus a lot of talk 'bout de patterollers but marster 

done his own sneakini around. Be done a lot of eavesdroppin t. 

My mother said when dey tho't he wus asleep he wus awake. Be wus 

strict on his slaves an' I didn't-know what church wus. No books 

of any kind wus allowed to slaves an' I can't read an' write. 

"They give tio days Christmas. Mother said dat had alwayS 

been marster's rule. 

"I 'member de cornshuckin's. Dey lasted two or three days. 

Dere wus enough slaves to shuck de corn. Dey had plenty of 

cider at corn shuckin's ant a lot bet/ter things to eat den at 

other times. Marster made corn, peas, an' tobacco on de farm, 

mostly corn. Dey had plenty hogs ant dat wus a time when dey 

killed tem. Dryin' up de fat for lard, trimmin' an' saltin l de 

meat ant chitlins. De hog guts wus called chitlins. Slaves wus 

allowed to eat meats as soon as de hogs wus gutted. Dey wus 

allowed to boil some lean parts of de meat an' eat it at de kiln's. 

"Vre play,d base an' hide ant jumpin g when I wus a chile. 

"When we got right Smart an' sick we had a doctor. When 

we wus not mighty sick, we took tea made of catnip, sassafras, 

ant roots. 

"Yes, I 'member when dey to us we wus free. Mother got 

up de chilluns to leave. She got just a few clothes. I'member 
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seem' my uncle come to de house an' put up de horse.'e put tim 

in de stable an' we all left together. We went to my uncle 'bout 

five miles away on his marsterts ilantation. His marster wus 

named Harvey Roundtree. We stayed there three weeks, den we 

went to a white man's place, Bill Gates. We stayed there several 

years. :_other had six chilluns. Three wus bount out for dere 

victuals ant clothes ant three wus with her. 

"de come to Wake County when I wus fully grown. We come 

in a covered wagon. I saw father one time to 'member him. He 

died -efore de war closed, ant mother never married again. We 

went to Mr. Jeff Upchurch of Wake County -at worked on his farm. 

We stayed there ten or twelve years an' I married while we wus 

there. I married Albert Stephenson. We stayed right on there 

about six years after w,e married. We then went to Mr. Lonnie 

Stephen's place, the man who onct owned my husband's father. We 

stayed there two years workint as day hands, then we rented a 

farm from Yr. Joe Smith. Di s wus de fust time any of us had ever 

farmed for ourselves. We kept it up until old age made us un-

able to farm an' all de chilluns had got grown an' left us. 

"We had thirteen chilluns, an' six is livint yet. My 

husband died two years ago dis comint August. 

"Slavery from what I knows ant whats been tole-me wus a 

mighty bad thing. Don' , see how some of de slaves stood it. 

I never did min t work but I is unable to work now. I has got a 

goodwill but I is worn out. De only way I lives is by goint 

'round tmong my people. I have no home of my own." 
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SAL T. STEdART 

1414 name is Sam T. Stewart. I was born in Wake County, 

1.orth Carolina Dec. 11, 1863. My father was a slave, A. H. 

;Dtewart, belonging to James Arch Stewart, a slave owner, 

whose plantation was in Wake County near what is now the 

liarnett County line of Southern Wake. Tiresa was my mother's 

name. James Arch Stewart, a preacher, raised my father, 

but my mother was raised by Lorenzo Franks, a ,21,1aker in 

lake County. When I was two years oJd. James Arch Stewart 

sold my father to speculators, and he was shipoed to Miss-

issippi. I was too young to know my father. 

"The names of the speculators were--Carter Harrison, 

and—, and a man named Roulhac. I never saw my father 

again, but I heard from him the second year of the sur-

render, through his brother and my aunt. Ivy father died 

in Mississippi. 

"The speculators bought up Negroes as a drover would 

buy up mules. They would get them together by ' Negro 

drivers', as the white men employed by the speculators 

were called. Their names were, Jim Harris of Raleigh, 

and--------yes, Dred Thomas, who lived near Holly Springs 

in Wake County. Wagon trains carried the rations on the 

trip to Mississippi. The drivers would not start until 
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they had a large drove. Then the slaves were -fastened to-

'ether with chains. The chain was run between them, when 

they had been lined up like soldiers in double file. A 

small chain was attached to a Negro on- the left and .one 

to the Negro on the right and fastened to the main chain 

in the center. Billy Askew was another speculator. He 

lived on the corner of Salisbury and Carbarras street in 

Raleigh. Sometimes as many as thirty slaves were carried 

in a drove. They walked to Eississippi. 

"kr brothers and sisters are dead. Down on the plan-

tations our houses were built of poLJs daubed with mud, 

with a rived board (slit board). I had good beds, good 

clothes, and plenty to eat. We made it,and we ate it. 

.ihen a slave owner treated his slaves unusually good some 

other slave owner would tell him that he was raising slaves 

who would rise against him. Lorenzo Franks, who owned 

me and my mother, was a ',01aker. He treated his slaves 

unusually well. He would not sell any of them. His 

brother was an Iron Side Baptist preacher, and he would 

tell his brother he was raising slaves who would rise 

against him. Franks owned seventeen slaves. I don't 

know ho7; many Stewartowned. 
 > 

did farm work in slavery time. I earned no 

money , except what we made on patches. These patches were 

given to iv mother by my master. We caught birds and 
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Tca.me, sent it to town, and sold it for money. We caught 

birds and partridges in traps. Our master would oring them 

to town, sell them for us, and .-jve us the money. We had 

:D lot of possums and other game to eat. We E..ot our food 

out of the.big garden planted for the whole shebang. Yy 

master overseered his plantation. 

"We didn'tthink much of the poor white Man. He was 

down on us. He was driven to it, by the rich slave owner. 

The rich slave owner wouldn$ let his hel ,roes sociate with 

-.00r white folks. Some of the slave owners, when a poor 

white man's land joined theirs and they wanted his place 

would have their Negroes steal things and carry them to 

the poor white man, and sell them to him. Then the slave 

owner, knowing where the stuff was, ( Of course the slave 

had to do at his master told him.) would go and find 

his things at the poor white man's house. Then he would 

claim it, and take out a writ for him, but lie would ,ive 

him a chance. He would tell him to sell out to him, and 

leave, or take the consecuences. That's the way some of 

the slave owners got such large tracks of lands. 

he free Negro was a child by a white man and a 

colored woman or a white woman and a Negro slave. A 

child by a white man and a Negro woman was set free when 

the man got ready. Sometimes he gave the free Negro slaves. 

Oscar Austin, an issue, was set free and given slaves by 

his master and daddy. Old man Oscar Austin lived by the 
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depot in Raleigh. He is dead now. 

itWhen a child by a Negro man slave and. a white 

woman arrived he could raot be made a slave, but he was 

bound out until he was 21 years old. The man, who ever 

wanted him, had him bound to him by the courts and was his 

gardeen until he was 21 years old. He could not be made 

a slave if he was born of a free woman. Thelr% were el.ails 

for slaves called dungeons; the windows were small. 

Slaves were put into jail for misdemeanors until court' 

was held, but a white man could not be kept there over 

30 days without giving bond. Whites and slaves were 

kept in the same jail house, but in separate rooms. 

"They never taught me to read and write; and most 

slaves who got any reading and writing certainly stole 

it. There were rules against slaves having books. If 

the patterollers caught us with books they wou3.d whip us. 

There -were whipping posts on the plantation but patter-

oilers tied Negroes across fences to whip them. There 

was no church on the plantation. We had prayer meetings 

in. the e,abins... We had ,big 'times at corn shuckings and 

dalleeS • We A.11 -,:had t,plenty _of .ppie .and peac,h brandy. 

but:gvery few.:,got never saw .a nigger drunk 

'013..i.a.f.tet the r surtepcierfokf:, , 
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"The patterollers visited our house every Saturday 

night, generally. We set traps to catch the patterollers. 

The patterollers were poor white men. We stretched 

,:rape vines across the roads, then we would run from them. 

They would follow, and get knocked off their horses. 

knew many of the patterollers. They are mostly dead. 

Their children, who are living now in Wake County and 

lialei3.h, are my pest friends, and I will there-fore not 

tell who they were. I was caught by the patterollers in 

Raleigh. 

't1 would have been whipped to pieces if it hadn't 

been for a white boy about my age by the name of Thomas 

He told them I was his nigger, and they let me 

. We had brought a load of lig,htwood splints in bundles 

to town on a steer cart. This was near the close of the 

war. We had sold out one load of splints and had been 

paid for them in Cbnfederate money. We had several bills. 

We went into a bar and bought a drink, each paying one 

dollar a drink, or two dollars for two small drinks. 

The bar was in the house where the Globe Clothing Store 

is now located on the corner of Wilmington and Exchange 

Streets. just as I &wallowed my drink a constable grabbed 

me by the back of the.neck, and started with me to the 

guard house, where they dote their whippini.i. Down at the 
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guard house Nick Denton, the bar tender, told Thomas 

Iiison 'Go, tell the constable that is your nigger'. 

Thomas came running up crying, and told the constable 

I was his nigger. The constable told him to take me and 

carry me on home or he would whip both of us. We then 

hitched our ox to the cart and went home. 

"When I was a child I played marbles, ' Hail over', 

c,nd bandy, a game played like golf. In striking the ball 

we knocked it at each other. Before we hit the ball we 

would cry, ' Shins, I cry', then we would knock the ball 

at our playmates. Sometime we used rocks for balls. 

"We got Christmas holidays from Christmas to New 

Years day. This was also a time when slaves were hired 

out or sold. You were often put on the auction block 

at Christmas. There was a whipping post, an auction 

block, and jail located on Court libtise Square where the 

news stand is now located on Fayetteville Street. There 

was a well in the yard. 

"We were treated by doctors when sick. We were 

given lots of herbs. 

t I do not believe in ghosts. 

did not feel much elated over hearing I was 

free. I wa.a afraid of Yankee soldiers. Our mistress 

told .us we.100e free. I. farmed first year after the 
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war. We had no horses, the Yankees had taken the horSee, 

and some -of us mAde a crap with grubbing hoes. 

41 tk Abraham Lincoln was a man who aimed to 

do good, but a man who .never got to it. I cannot say 

anymore than that his intentions were good, and if he had 

lived he would have done more good. 
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An interview with Emma Stone, 77 of Beck's-Town, Durham, 
Durham County. May 21, 1937. 

Huy mammy wuz a Free Issue an my pappy belonged 

ter de Bells in Chatham County. Pappywuz named Ed-

mund Bell, mammy wuz. named Polly Mitchel. My sisters 

wuz Fanny, Jane, Ann, Josephine, Narcissus, and Cressie. 

ikly brothers wuz Lizah, Hilliard ant another one but I 

doan 'member his name. 

wi knows dat I doan "member much, but I does know 

dat days on de plantation wuz happy . When my mammy mar-

ried Ipappy he moved ter de Bell's plantation se we 

chilluns, long wid her, wuz lak de udder slaves. 

"De missus gib us her old hoop skirts ter play in 

an' we played nigh 'bout all de time. We wuz doin' dis 

when de Yankees owed by. Dey drives dere bosses up ter 

de gate ant day says dat dey is lookin' fer Wheeler's 

Cavalry. We know dat it done pass dar de day ' fore, 

but we is too skeered ter say a thing. 

"De Yankees stayp round dar fer a little while, 

dey gathers rations, den dey goes on atter Wheeler. 
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c
"Wheeler's Wheeler's Cav--al--ry, 
Marchin' on de battlefield, 
Wheeler's Wheeler's Cav--al--ry 
Marchin on de battlefield. / 

It wuz really a game we played, while we marched an' 

pranced an' beat on tin pans. De missus ain't carin' 

case we. is bein' true ter de south she thinks. Shucks we 

doan care nothin' ' boteeer.cept what we hyar, an 

dat sirit so good. We &Can bout de Yankees nother, 

case we is skeered of dem. 

"I hyard grown folkses aisent Lincoln but I .can 

know much 'bout him. I dobA Alothint much ' bout none 

of it, but I does ka 

picket wuz lookin l fer Wheoier artldat we wuz pia:yin' 

hide ant seek". 
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WILLIAM SYKES 

Ex- Slave Story 

An interview with William Sykes 78, of State prison, 
Raleigh, N. C. 

"My mammy Martha ant me we ' longed ter Mister Joshua 

Long in Martin County, an' my paw, Henry 'longed ter Squire 

Ben Sykes in Tyrell County. Squire Sykes lived in what 

wus called Gum Neck, ant he owned a hundert slaves or more 

an' a whole passel of Ian'. 

"I lived wid my mammy in Martin ,,ounty from de fust 

dat I could 'member, me an' my brothers, Henry, Benjamin 

ant Columbus, an' my sisters Hester, Margaret, Lucy an' 

328 

Susan. 

"I doan 'member so much what happen 'fore de war, of 

course, but I does ' member a heap 00 little things. I knows 

dat Mister Long ant Mist Catherine wus good ter us an' 

'members dat de food an' de clothes wus good an' dat dar 

wus a heap o' fUn on holidays. 

"Most o' de holidays wus celebrated by eatin' candy, 

drinkint wine ant brandy. Dar wus a heap o dancin' ter 

de music of banjoes ant slappint. 

"1% had co'n phuckints, ant prayer meetinfo, ant 
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sociables an' singin's. I went swimminl in de crick, went 

wid ole Joe Brawn, a-possum huntinl, 

I sometimes went a-fishin'. 

"When de Yankees corned dey come 

an' coon huntin', ant 

a tearin'. Dey ain't 

done so bad in our neighborhood, case hitwarntt so full 

of de ' infernal Rebst) as de Yankees said. Dey tooked de 

best ot ebertthing dot but dey ain't doint SO: much deruction. 

Dey eben buyed terbacker from my mammy, dey paid her a 

dollar ant fifty cents a pound, stim ant all. 

"Dey paid her wid shin plasters, which wus green paper 

money, ant de fust dat eber I seed. 

"Vie slaves wus skeerd o' de Yankees, ant fer some reason 

I got sent ter paw at Squire Sykes' house in Tyrell County. 

"Squire Sykes come stompin' in one day an' he says ter 

my paw, 'Henry, dem damm Yankees am comin t tkir take my niggers 

'way from me, ant I ain't gwine ter stan' fer hit nother. 

Le's you ant me take dese niggers ant march straight ter 

de Blue Ridge mountains, an' up dar in dem mountains dar 

won't be no trouble, case dey won't dare come up dar atter 

us.' 

'Val, we got on de march fer de mountains an' we march 

on ter Judge Clayton goorets grandfather's place in Mitche4 

County, whar we camps fer seberal days. 
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• "While we wus dar one day, an' While Mr. Jim Moore de 

Jedge rs daddy am in town de missus axes my cousin Jane ter 

do de washin'. 

"atne says dat she has got ter do her own washin' an 

dat she'll wash fer de missus termorrer. De missus says 

'you ain't free yit, I wants you ter know.' 

• " I knows dat I's not but I is gwine ter be freer, 

Jane says. 

"De missus ain't said a word den, but late Sadday 

night Mr. Jim he comes back from town an' she tells him 

'bout hit. 

'Mr. Jim am some mad an' he takes Jane out on Sunday 

mornin' ant he beats her till de blood runs down her back. 

tiDe patterollers wus thick dem days, Mr. Joe Jones 

wus our regular patteroller ant he gibe us de very debil. 

"A few days atter Jane got her beatin' we marches away. 

De wimen am left at Jamesville but us mens ant boys, we 

marches on ter Buncombe County an' we ain't seed no mot 

Yankees. 

"Atter de war my paw ant mammymCOnt ter live on Mr. 

Moorers plantation an' we had a hard time. A whole heap 

0 times I has had nothin' ter eat but one cupful ot peas 

ant a hunk of co'nbread all day long. A white lady, Kis' 
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Douglas give me a quart of milk eber Sunday) but Lhad ter 

walk three miles fer hit. 

"We ain't wucked none in slavery days ter what we done 

atter de war, an' I wisht dat de good ole slave days wus 

back. 

"Dar's one thing, we ole niggers wus raised right ant 

de young niggers ain't. Iffen I had my say-so dey'd burn 

k  down de nigger s chools, gibe dem picAanninies a good span-

kin' ant put ' em in de patch ter wuck, ain't no nigger got 

no business mid no edgercation nohow. 

"Yes 'urn, dey says dat I is a murderer". Uncle William 

stroked his long white beard. fl I runned from dis young 

nigger seberal times, an' I wus tryin' ter run wid my 

knife what I had been whittlin' wid open in my ban'. I wus 

skeerd nigh ter death, so when he grabs me I throw up 

my han's ant in a minute he falls. I breshes de blood offen 

my coat, thinkin' dat he has hurt me, ant I sees de blood 

pourin' from de jugular vein. 

"I has sarved ten months o' my sentence which dey 

,O.ved me, three ter five years fer manslaughter; what could 

I do? I stood up ant I said, 'Thank you Jedget' 

L.E. 
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ANNIE TATE 

Ex-Slave Story 

An interview with Annie Tate 73 of 624 S. Barrington Street, 
Raleigh, N. C. 

aI wuz a year old when de war wuz ober but of course 

I ain't knawin' nothin' 'bout slavery ' cept what my mammy 

said, an' dat ain't so much. 

"I reckon dat it wuz a brother of Calvin Jones dat 

my mammy belonged ter, anyhow, it wuz at Wake Forest. My 

mammy wuz Rosa Jones till she married Phil Perry, my pappy. 

"My mammy's mammy, who also belonged ter de Jones 

family killed herself 'cause dey sold her husban'. Mammy 

said dat she wuz eight or ten years old at de time. 

"Old mrster wuz very fond of my grandpaw ant he 

wouldn't 'low de oberseer ter beat him, but ole marster went 

off on a trip ant he left young marster in charge of de big 

farm ant de whole slue O' slaves dat he owns. 

"One day atter cae marster wuz gone de oberseer tried 

ter run de hawg over gran'paw an' wuz cussint him scantlous. 

Gran'paw cussed back at him an' den de oberseer started ter 

beat him. Gran'paw drawed de hoe back ober his haid ant tells 

him dat iften he comes a step closter dat he am gwine ter bust 

his haid open. De oberseer comew on an' de hoe 'C ends on his 

haid choppint hit wide open. 
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"Ole marster ain't dar so young marste& makes sebaral 

of de slaves hold him while he lashes him wid de cowhide. He 

cuts his back all ter res ant den he throws him in de barn, 

chained down ter de flot. 

"Grantmammy snuke out ter see him ant whisper ter him 

through de cracks, but one night she goes out dar ter de barn 

ant he an gone. She runs ter young marster an, axes him whar 

am grantpaw ant he tells her dat he am sold ter a man from 

Mississippi ant dat iften she whimpers 'bout him sellin de 

black bastard dat he will whup her, den wash her down wid 

vinegar, red pepper ant salt. 

"Pore grantmaw am nigh "bout crazy so she walks offten 

de plantation. Down on de aidge of de plantation runs de 

Neuse so gran 'maw gits dar, ant jumps in. 

"gy mammy am little ant she ain't got no brothers ant 

sisters so de missus takes her in de house wid her. Dey said 

dat de ole marster had a fit most when he tin's out 'bout 

what been done dar while he am gone, so he am extra good ter 

mammy. 

"At de surrender he calls his niggers in ant he says dat 

he will give 'em permission ter libe on de riber plantation, 

dey can build deir*shacks dar an' live dar durinl dere life 

time. Some of dam does dis t ant fer sebaral years dey stays 

on der. Mammy said dat he toll de Ku Iluxes ter stay ofren 

his Ian' too, dat he could manage his own n4gger$1.° 
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R. S. TAYLOR 
710 South McDowell Street 

336 

*My name is Ransom Sidney Taylor. I was borned in 

slavery the 5th day of January, 1857. Adam Taylor was 

my father and Mary Taylor my mother. My brothers were: 

William H., Jesse, and Louis; sisters: Virginia, Annie, 

and Isabella; all born in slavery. We all belonged to 

John Cane. He owned a plantation on Ramkatte Road near 

Yates Milli between Yates Mill anC Penny's Mill. There 

was a whiskey still at Penny's Mill. 

*There were sixty slaves in all, but Marster only 

kept seven on the plantation with him at Yates Mill. 

Marstertia sister Mary was our missus after he died. 

Be died before the surrender. The war was going on, when 

he died. He was a Northern man. His sister came dawn 

to the funeral from New York and then went back, then she 

came back to settle up the estate. he stayed here a 

long time then. She told all the slaves they were free. 

That was about the close of the war. 

*Marster John Cane was buried in the Catholic 

Graveyard in Raleigh. His wife had died in the North, 

so my mother told me. We had plenty of something to 

eat, beans, peas, butter milk and butter and molasilea 

- • , 
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1 
and, plenty ot flour. We made the wheat on the plantation 

and other things to eat. We didn't have clothes like 

they have now but we had. plenty ot good and warm wove 

clothes. Our shoes had wooden bottoms, but were all 

right. 

°We had prayer meetings on the plantation and at 

times we went to the white folkst church. Marster was a 
#14-

Catholic, but we went to the Methodist Church, Edenton 

Street Methodist Church. My marster would not allow one to whip his Negroes. If they were to be whipped he 

did it himself and the licks he gave them would not hurt 

Mee. He was good to all of us and we all loved him. 

=We called our parents peppy and mammy most ot 

the time. My marster looked like you, jest the same 

complection and about your size. He weighed around 200 

pounds had curly hair like yours and was almost always 

smiling like you.. My marster was an Irishman from the 

North. Mother and father said he was one ot the best 

white men that ever lived. I remember seem' him settint 

011 the porch in his large arm chair. He called me ttLonnietti 

a nickatame. He called me a lot to brush off his shoes. 

I loved him he was so good. 

Our overseer was named. Jan H. Whiteley. Be got 

killed at the Rook Quarry near the Federal Cemetery when 

Yates Mill was a flour mili 
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they were carrying a boiler to the Rock Quarry a long 

time after the surrender about 1,1 or 15 years ago. He and 

John were standing on the side of the boiler and the boiler 

turned over and killed both of ' em. Marster's overseer was 

bad to us after marster died. Nothing we could do would 

suit him, and he whipped the Negroes. AS never heard 

the word Negroes until we moved to Raleigh after the 

sirrender. They called us niczers and colored folks. 

wift were darin' to have a book to study. It was 

against the Confederates' rules at dat time, but marster 

called us in to have prayer meeting on Sunday mornings. 

"I have seen patterollers. Dey had ' em but not 

when my marster was living. Dey didn't come around den, 

but when he died dey come around every night; we never 

knowed when dey was comin', you know. 

"I never saw a slave really whipped. Larster would 

switch a slave sometime, but it was a matter o' nothing 

'cause he didn't hurt much. 

"We had good houses and plenty o' good places to 

sleep, and we fared fine in slavery time. We called 

marster's house with its long porch the ' dwelling house'. 

When the Yankees came through they told us we were free 

and we didn't have to work for the Johnnies no more. 

got everything all right on the plantation near 

Yates Mill, then we moved to Raleigh. 

"MY mammy belonged to old Captain Hunter before she 

was married to pappy. When she got married the Taylors 
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bought her, and she and peppy stayed with the Taylors. 

As soon as we got the plantation fixed up, we moved to 

Raleigh and mammy and peppy went back to her white folks, 

the Hunters. My father was a carpenter by trade, and a 

preacher. He preached at St. Paul's Church on the corner 

of Harrington and Edenton Streets. We lived in Raleigh 

all our lives except Annie. She went to Brooklyn, 

New York and died there about four years ago. 

al. thinned coral and turned potato vines, and 

helped look after and feed, the stock. Our marsters gave 

tia some money/ five and ten cents at a time. That's the 

only way we got any money. 

'We caught rabbits, hunting in the day time, and 

possums, hunting at night. We hunted on holidays. We had 

holidays at lay:by time, and the 4th of July. When we 

caught up with the work we had nothing to do. We got 

Christmas holidays. 

*I never saw a slave sold and none never ran away. 

We went fishing in Swift Creek. I never saw ajail for 

slaves and never saw any in chains. We played push and 

spin on the plantation. 

!My motheradoked after most of us when we were sick. 

FOle used roots, herbs, and grease, and medicine the over— 

seer got in town. When my mother got through Dubbin.' you, 
r., 

you would soon be wall, 
044 
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"When I first saw the Yankees I was afraid of em. 

It was a curiosity to see tern comm' through the fields 

with dem guns and things. They coma down and talked with 

us and told us we were free and then I was not so. scared 

of tem. 
a 

"I married Francis Lipton in 1885. _We were married 

at the end of McDowell Street at Mr. Chester's home. Just 

a quiet wedding with about 30 friends present. I didn't 

think a thing about slavery while we fared mighty well; 
bad 

but it was/on other plantations. 

ftI don't know anything about Booker T. Washington, 

nor Jefferson Davis, but I know Jim Young. He was a 

Negro politician. I do not know much about Lincoln or 

Roosevelt. 

1 
?We Yankees jest shot hogs and cows and took every-

thing on de plantation day wanted. I can see 'em now 

runnint chickens. Dere was an old rooster, he said, 

'Cluck, cluck, cluck cluck, as he ran. Dey shot his 

head off and he turned somersets awhile, and rolled over 

dead. jes' seemed.lak if dem Yankees pointed a gun at 

a chicken or hog dey would roll over dead.- Day had live 

geese tied on their bosses. One ole gander would say, 

'Quack, quack, quack,' as the boss stepped along and 

jarred him. Some ot de Yankeesoldiers were carrying 

1 
The Negroes interviewed frequently speak fairly correctly 

at first but when they begin to talk of old times lapse 
into dislAct. 

1 
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hams of hogs on deir bayonets. Dat yius a time, Lawsy, 

'Away, a time. One ole hen, she had sense. When de 

Yankees were killin* de rest o' de chickens she ran for 

de piney woods and hid dere and stayed till de Yankees 

left Raleigh, den she came home. Mammy caught her and 

raised about forty chickens off her in Raleigkl. 

Ra*Sick+e r*?0 ,gici - 16C(Cvla.me,1 

Groverhcr , 
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ELIAS THOMAS 
84 years of age 

521 Cannon Ave., Raleigh, N. C. 

"I was here when the Civil war was goinl on ant I am 84 

years old. I was born in Chatham County on a plantation near 

Moncure, February 1853. 

"My- marster was named Baxter Thomas and missus was named 

Katie. She was his wife. I don't know my father's name, but 

my mother was named Phillis Thomas. 

"It took a smart nigger to know who his father was in 

slavery time. I just can remember my mr-ther. I was about four 

or five years old when she died. 

"My marster's plantation was rust the "Thomas Place". 

There was about two hundred acres in it with about one hun-

dred acres cleared land. He had six slaves on it. 

"When I was eight years old he bought the Boylan place 

about two miles from his first home and he moved there. There 

was about one thousand acres of land of it all with about three 

hundred acres cleared for farming. On the Thomas place his 

house had six rooms, on the Boylan place the house had eight 

roams. He brought in more slaves and took over all the slaves 

after John Boylan died. 

"John Boylan never married. He was a mighty hard man to 

git along with, ant Marster Baxter Thomas was about the only 

one who could do anything with him when he had one of his mad 
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spells. They were no blood relation but marster got possession 

of his property when he died. It was fixed that way. 

"We called the slave houses tarterst. They were 

arranged like streets about two hundred yards on the northside 

of the great house. 

"Our food was purty good. Our white folks used slaves, 

especially the children, as they did themselves. about eatin'. 

We all had the same kind of food. All had plenty of clothes 

but only one pair of shoes a year. People went barefooted a lot 

then more than they do now. We had good places to sleep, 

straw mattresses and chickenfeather be -and feather bolsters. 

A bolster reached clear across the head of the bed. 

"We worked from sun to sun with one hour and a half to 

rest at noon or dinner time. I was so small I did not do 

much heavy work. I chopped corn and cotton mostly. Tile old 

slaves had patches they.tended, and sold what they made end 

had the money it brought. Everybody eat out of the big 

garden, both white and black alike. Ole missus wouldn't allow 

us to eat rabbits but she let us catch and at possums. 

Miscue didn't-have any use for a rabbit. 

"Sometimes we cauO fish with hooks in Raw River, Deep 

River, and the Cape Fear, and when it was a dry time and the 

water got law we caught fish in, seines. 

"My marster only had two children, both boys, Fred, and 

Jahn. jai= was about my age and Fred was about two years 
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older. They are both dead. ly marster never had apy over-

seerslhe made boss men out of his oldest slaves. 

"We thought well of the poor white neighbors. We colored 

children took them as regular playmates. lilarster's boys played 

with ' em too and marster gave them all the work he could. He 

hired both men an women of the poor white class to work on the 

',plantation. We all worked together. We had a good time. We 

worked and sans together and everybody seemed happy. In har-

vest time a lot of help was hired and such laughing, working 

and singing. Just a good time in genen 1. We sang the songs 

'Crossin' over Jord6n 1 and ' Bound for the Promised Land ,. 

"I never saw a jail for slaves but I have seen slaves 

whipped. I saw Crayton Abernathy) a overseer, whip a woman in 

the cotton patch on Doc. Smith's farm, a mile from our plan-

tation. I also saw ole man William Grump, a owner, whip a 

man and some children. Be waited till Sunday morning to whip 

his slaves. He would git ready to go to church, have his 

horse hitched up to the buggy and then call his slaves out 

and onip them before he left for church. He generally whipped 

about five children every Sunday morning. Willis Crump, a 

slave was tied up by his thumbs and whipped. His thumbs was 

in such a bad fix after that they rose and had to be cut open. 

Willis was whipped after the war closed forking for his 

wages and having words with ole man Crump because he would 

not pay Mill. They fell out and he called his friends in and 
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they took and tied him and whipped him. 

"No books were allowed to slaves in slavery time. I never 

went to school a minute in my life. I cannot read and write. 

ie had prayermeetings on the plantation about once or twice a 

week. ;le went to the white folks church on Sunday. We went 

to both the Methodist and Presbyterian. The preacher told us 

to obey our marsters. I remember the baptizinz.s. They baptized 

in Shattucks Creek and Haw River. I saw a lot of colored folks 

';)aptized. 

"I do not rer.ember any slaves running away from our plan-

tation but they ran away from ole man 'umprs and Richard 

Faucett's plantations near our plantation. Jacob Faucette ran 

away from Faucette and Tom Crump ran away from ole man Crump. 

They ran away to keep from getting a whippinf. 

"Colored folks are afraid of bears so one of the slaves 

who saw Tom Crump at night told him he saw a bear in the woods 

where he was stayinr. Tom was so scared he came home next 

morning and took his whippinr. Both came home on account of 

that bear business and both were whipped. 

"When we j;ct sick Dr. Hews, Dr. Wych and Dr. Tom Bu k— 

hannan looked after us. A lot of the slaves wore rabbit feet, 

the front feet, for good luck. They also carried buckeyes. 

"I remember the Yankees. I will remember seein' them till 

I die. I will never forgit it. I thought it was the last of 

me. The white folks had told me the Yankees would kill me 

or carry me off, so I thought when I saw them coming it was the 



-5- 3ri • 

last of me. I hid in the woods while they were there. They 

tore up some things but they did not do much damage. They 

camped from Holly Springs to Avant's Ferry on Cape Fear River. 

William Cross' plantation was about half the distance. The 

camp was about thirty miles long. General Logan, who was an 

old man, was in charge. 

"I married Martha Sears when I was 23 yeas old. I 

married in Raleigh. My wife died in 1912. We had fourteen 

children, five are living now. 

"When the war closed I stayed on eight years with my. 

marster. I then went to the N. C. State Hospital for the 

Insane. I stayed there 28 years. Thatrs where I learned to 

talk like a white man." 

LE 
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ter be whupped, Iak de time we tied tin cans on 

Sinks, nuaraterls fine huntin' dog. De dog near 
- = 

tar asictft an' Manse 'Tom had us whupped fer hit. 
"se raised fin* hosses toe,- an' he ain't 

MR. BELL"S PLANTATION 

An interview with Jacob Thomas, 'z,/7 yes of age, of 1300 
:)outh 3loodworth Street, aaleigh, North Carolina. 

"I wus berned in Elberton County, Georgia) on de 

zlantation of Marse Tom Bell. My mammy, Isobel, taster, 1ive 

in1Torth• Carolina, but she wus -sold from her husbanl'ant 

baby an' carried ter Marse Tom's place in Gethrgia. Atter 

she got dar she wus married agin an, _ ad me. Dat is I 

reckin dat she wus married. I Tiever ,did know my pappy. 

'Mammy wus sold in Smithfield on de slave block ant 

carried off, chained ' hind a wagin. She turn' roun' ant 

looks back at her husbant who cries an' de oberseer's lash 

cuts his back, case dey ain't ' lowed ter cry at a sale. 

"From de time I can Lust 'member I wuaked on de farm. 

We planted cane, cotton, corn, an' rice in de low groun's. 

We ain't had ter viruck so powerful hard an' we ant 'lowed a 

heap of pleasures, but some of us boys we mean ant we had 

de tail of 

run hisself 
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went ter sleep in de shade of de trees roun' de pasture 

,its on Lady, one of de fines' young mares, an' I 

flies away on her. 

"she ain't used ter nobody ridin' her bareback so 

she kicks up quite a rucus but I sets on. Down cross de 

pasture she goes an' I enjoys hit fine till she steps 

in a hole an , falls. 

'De mare am crippled but I leads her back an' tries 

ter git away widout anybody seem' me. Ole Azios has 

woked up dis time an , of course he tells karse Tom. 

"flat's de wust whuppint Ilse eber had, Itse tellin' 

yo t* Dey streaked me all ober den dey 41akes me lay down) 

chained Ilan' an' foot all de day long. Dat ain't done no 

good do tease I rid dem hosses eber'time I got de chance. 

"I got married ter Pheobe de year dat de war begun* 

She wus a slim little brown—skinned gal what look so 

puny dat yo' jist natutally wants ter take care of her 

I ain't courted her fer long ' case de marster gives his 

permission ' fore I axes fer hit. We is married ' fore de 

magistrate in June ' fore de war begun 

"Near ' bout at de .start of de war I wus took ter 

%Ian-ba ter h built de fort ant dar I stays till de 
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Stars an' stripes. 

"We had four chilluns den Pheobe died an' left me. 

Atter dis I moves ter Star, South Carolina, an' I marries 

Rebecca dhite who also died five years ago an' so I corned 

ter live wid Roberta. 

"I doan know whether slavery am better_er not. Most 

of de niggers claims dat all of de slaves wus good)but I 

knows better. I done a heap of meanness. An' once atter 

I done so mean an' got a whuppinl I runned away: Comes 

night an' I comes back home an' de n...0 day I done somethin' 

er other ter git another whuppinl fer. 

"Dar's dis much we ain't worried ' bout livin' den lak 

we does now, an' dar's dis much fer bein? free, I has 

got thirteen great-granichilluns an' I knows whar der 

everYone an: In slavery times deytd have been on de block 

long time ago. 

"I always thought a lot of Lincoln ' cause he had a 

heap of faith in de nigger ter think da* he could live on 

nothinl at all" 
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MARGARET THORNTON 

An interview with Margaret. Thornton, 77 years old of Hayti, 
Four. Oaks, North Carolina. 

'I wus borned an' raised on de plantation of Jake Thorn-

ton of Harnett County. My matrdny, Lula, my Dappy, Frank, an' 

my brother ant sisters an' me all wus dere slaves. De man 

I finally marries, Tom, am alSo a slave on de plantation. 

ni wus jist five years ole when de Yankees come, jist a 

few of dem to our settlement. I doa_ know de number of de 

slaves, but I does 'member dat dey herded us tergether an' 

make us sing a heap of songs an' dance, den dey clap dere 

han's ant dey sez dat we is good. One black boy won't 

dance, he sez, so dey puts him barefooted on a hot piece of 

tih an' believe me he did dance. 

"I know dat my white folks hataide Yankees like pizen 

but dey had ter put up wid dere sass jist de same. Dey also 

had to put up wid de stealin l of dere property what dey had 

made dere slaves work an' make. De white folks didn't loose 

dere temper much dot, an' dey avoids de Yankees. Now when 

dey went protrudin' in de house dat am a different matter 

entirely. 

"I its brung up ter nurse ant I'se did my share of dat, 

00 honey let me tell you. I has nursed bout two thousand 
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"Atter de war we stayed on, case Ilarse wus good ter us 

an' toided dat we ain't got nowhar ter go. I stayed on till 

I wus thirteen or fourteen ant den me an' Tom married. Be 

had a job at a sawmill near Dunn, so dar we went ter live in 

a new shanty. 

"Tom never did want me ter work hard while he wus able 

ter work, but I nursed babies off an' on all7de time he lived. 

When he wus in his death sickness he uster cry case I 11.46, t 

take in washinI. Since he's daid I nurses mostly, blvp some-

times I ain't able ter . do nothint. I hopes ter g4.-tjny. pension, 

pretty soon an' dat'll help a heap when I'm laid up, not 

able ter turn my at nothin'.° 
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TILLIE, DAUGHTER OF A SLAVE 

Caretaker, Cornwallis Headquarters 
Corner Third and Market Streets 

Wilmington, N. C. 

"La, Miss Fannie, that you DB az): askini me what 

I knows about slavery: Why I was bawn yeah's after free-

dam:" With a sweeping, upward wave of a &Lender, shriveled 

brown arm to indicate the wide lapse of time between her 

advent and the passing of those long ago days. The frail, 

little body might have been any age between sixty and a 

hundred; but feminine vanity rose in excited protest against 

the implication of age suggested by the question. 

Tillie is one of the landmarks of Wilmington.. She 

was one of the servants in the house of which she is now 

caretaker, at the time of the owner's death, and the heirs 

have kept her on. allowing her to live in the old slave 

quarters in the back garden. She sits in the sun on the 

coping of the brick wall, or across the street on the low 

wall of the grounds around St. James Church. Children and 

their nurses gather there on the lawn., and -Tillie holds forth 

at leagth on any topic from religion and politics to the 

cutting or losing of teeth. She makes the bold statement 

that she can tell you sctnething about everybody in Wilmington. 
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That is "eve'body we knows." There is a general uneasiness 

that perhaps she can. Little escapes the large, keen, brawn 

eyes, and the ears are perpetually cocked. 

After several conversations in passing, memory 

was coaxed to the tine when as a very young child she remem-

bered incidents of slave times which she had heard from her 

mother. 

"My mother belonged to the Bellamys, an' lived on 

their plantation across the ' river in Brunswick. It was the 

begges' place 'anywhere hereabouts. I was raised on it too. 

Of co'se it was in the country: but it was so big we was a 

town all to ourselves. 

"Did any of the colored people leave after freedom? 

Of co'se they did'a'. Vieretnt no place to go to. None of us 

was lcustomed to anybody but rich folks, an' of co'se their 

money was gone. I've heard Mist Bellamy tell how her child'en 

made enough out of potatoes to buy their clo'es right on that 

plantation. So we all stayed right there. My mother brought 

us all up right there on the plot she'd been. livin' on all the 

tine. When I cone along we had plenty to eat. She had a whole 

pecel of us, and we always had plenty of collards, an' potk 

ant corn bread. Plenty. of fish. 

"0, yes, Stuff was sold. I can remember timber bein' 

cut, an' our folks got same wages to buy clo'es. We did'n have 

no school, but we had a church. Soon as I was big enough I 

came to Wilmin'ton to work. _ I never has lived with none but 
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Apat, the bes'. ymother always said 'Tillie, always tie to 

the best white folks. Them that has inflooence, ' cause if 

you gits into trouble they can git you out'. I've stuck to 

that. I've never had any traffic wid any but the blue bloods, 

an' now look at me. I'm not able to work, but I got a home 

an' plenty to eat. Ant I ain't on no relief, ant Tillie can 

shot hold her head up." 

## # 
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ELLEN TRELL 
Age 73 

20 KoKee St., Raleigh, North Carolina. 

"Needham Price owned about fifty slaves, and mother an 

were amdng that number. He was a very rich man.; and owned 

a large plantation in Wake County, N. C., neat the town of 

Knightdale. 

ttbly father belonged to Tom &die way down in EdgeOombe 

County, and mother and I went by the name Of Bodie 

father's given name was Haywood. . Motherts name was Caroline. 

The fare was bad in regard to foOdand.clothing but the 

slave quarters, thoUgh small and shanty'-like in appearande, 

were warmant dry. The rules were strick and the privileges 

few. Mother was whipped and scarred by the lash so bad the 

scars were on het when she died. I have seen them many times. 

There Were no books of any kind allowed the slaves and 

no social gatherings tolerated. Slaves were allowed to gt 

to, the white folks church and at times all slaves were 

cati* ed to services at the church. The preacher told them to 

marsters and missuses, that the Bibl4 

iter lied, in a large house withci foui 6'which 

et àlled the big hous. He had foie bust- VAi e 

0 his They Wee 'special1 tx1aind 

a mAr ter did'a1àt of éntertainifg • slavery time. arst 
,., 

e vs had a lot of parties wher , :Served a lot of 
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food and various kinds of liquors to their guests. When mar-

ster was in his cups he was mighty rough, and any of the 

slaves who displeased him at these times were liable to get a 

beating. 

"I have heard a lot of talk about ghosts and witches among 

the colored folks. I have seen a few who had spells put on 

them by witches. r mother had a spell put on-her and she lay 

in bed talking to herself and sweating draps of sweat as big 

as the end of my finger. She would groan and say, ' go away 

evil spirit, ,7() away,/ but the spell would not leave her until 

she went to a white witch-doctor and cured. 

"After the surrender father came up from Edgecombe County 

and he and mother went and worked with Yr. Ruth Dunn of Wake 

'County. They Stayed close, never going out of the county. 

Mother, after a year of two at Mr. Dunn's, began to think about 

gain./ back home. She was free and though- her ole marster had 

treated her rough she loved the missus and said she rather 

stay with marster Price than anyone else. ' Father went to see 

..Mr. Price. Ile told him to tell Caroline to come on back home 

and that. he Shure better bring her back. MOther said when she 

got back home they all had a general good time cooking eating , 

and laughing:. MarSter tole her he never wanted -her to love 

ot reply so she just stood there and cried. Marst.er walked 

if. liotheD took charge of the house and father jist out t 



possession of the farm. 

farm tools, kept plenty 

rount. 

"Father and mother 

place belonged to them. 

agreeable to come back. 

and prospered. Because 

felt the responsibility 

interests. 

"Mother and father stayed there until they died. I stayed 

with father and mother until I married _Jadger Farrell then we 

stayed in a cabin on the plantation several years. Most of my 

life was spent near Knt4htdale, Wake County, until my husband 

died fifteen years ago. I had eight children/four cj_rls and 

he looked after the stock, all the 

of wood on the wood pile all the year 

carried the keys and acted like the 

They got most of the slaves who were 

iviarster gave them work and he loafed 

he trusted the Degroes7so much they 

out upon them, and they worked for his 

four boys. They are all dead except one, .a boy, whom I have 

lived with in Raleigh since ify husband died. 

"I think slavery was a bad thing. This story is the 

•things my mother and father told me of slavery and my own 

. observations since I became old enough to remember the general 

happenings. Mother said the place Which had been a place of 

'?torture ix. slavery days turned out to be a haven of rest after 

.slavery,.a, -home wherq peace, plenty and contentment reigned-
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sEENRY JAMES T54ENTHAM 
Raleigh, N. C. Rt. 2 

Age 92 years 

"I wus born de second day of December 1845. Dat would 

make me 92 years of age. I wus born on a plantation near Camden, 

S. C. I belonged to Dr. Trentham and my missus wus named Eliz— 

abeth. My- father wus named James Trentham and. mother wus named 

Lone. I had two brothers and one sister. We all belonged 

to Dr. Trentham. 

"Martter's plantation wus a awful big plantation with ' bout 

four hundred slaves on it. It wus a short distance from the 

4ateree River. The slave houses looked like a small town and 

dere wus. grist mills for corn, cotton gin, shoe shops, tanning 

yards, and lots of looms for weavin/cloth. Most of de slaves 

cooked at dere own houses, dat dey call-d shacks. Dey wus 

give a / lowance of rations every week. De rations wus tolerably 

good, jest -bout like people eat now. Dere wus a jail on de 

place for to put slaves in, an in de jail dere wus a place to 

put your hands in called stocks. Slaves wus put dere for 

punishment. 

'seed lots of slaves whupped by de overseers: Marster 

erseers on ds place an' dey drove us' from s1xnz1i 'till 
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"We hated to see de sun rise in slavery time cause it 

meant anudder hard day, but den we wus glad to see it go down. 

"Larster lived in a large two story house wid 'bout twelve 

rooms in it. We called it de plantation house. Dere wus a 

church on de plantation an' both white ant black went to preachint 

dere. Dere wus Sunday School dere too. De preacher tole us to 

obey our missus ant marster. He tole us we must be obedient to 

'em. YesiLr, dat's what he tole us. Some of de slaves run 

away. When dey wus cau-,ht dey wus whupped and out in de stocks 

in de jail. 6ome of de slaves dat run away never did come back. 

Je overseers tole us dey got killed reson dey never come back. 

"De patterollers come round ever now ant den ant if you 

wus off de plantation ant had no pass dey tore you up wid de 

lash. 

'Larster ant missus rode around in a carriage drawn by two 

horses and driven by a driver. Dey had four womien to work in 

de house as cooks, maids, an' de like. 

"No huntint wus allowed a slave if no white man wus wid 

an' dey wus not allowed to carry guns. 

'De corn shuckin's wus a -reat time. Larster give ood 

licker to everybody den. When anybody shucked a red ear he got 

a extra drink of whiskey. We had bi suppers den an' a ood 

time at corn shuckin ts. Atter de shuckin' 
4 

dere would 

be a wrastlin' match to see who was bes' on de plantation. We 

got a week holliday at Xmas. Den wus de time shoes wus give to 
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de slaves,, an' de good times generally lasted a week. At lay-by 

time wus another Dig time. Dat wus 'bout de Fourth of July. 

Dey give a big dinner an' everbody et all de barbecue an cake 

dey wanted. 

"I saw slaves sold at Camden. Marster carried some slaves 

dere an' put 'em on de auction block an' sold tem. I wus carried 

but Iwus not sold. I went with the old doctor. I wus his 

oet. Dey carried slaves away from de plantation in chains. 

Dey carried five or six at a time. If a nigger didn't suit 

him he sold him. 

"Missus didn't like for him to.at ' em so much no how. 

Be old doctor had three boys, William, Sidney and Henry and two 

girls, Ulssie and Carrie. 

/- 
nrey would not allow slaves no books an' I can't read ant 

write. I did not git any learnin. 

*When a slave died dere wus only a few to go to de buryin. 

Ley didn't have time to.go, dey wus so busy workit. .De slaves 

-wus twirled in plain wood boxes which wus made by slave men 

on de plantation.. Our marster looked atter us when we got 

flI married glla Davis 31 years ago in .SOOth Carolina, . 
• 

Camden. We had twelve chilluns, six boys and six girls. 

Slavery wus pretty rough and I am glad it is all over. a 
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• JANE AMIE PRIVETTE UPPERNAN 
74 years old, of 330 West- South Street. 

"I wusn't livin in Raleigh when nly mother wus freed 

from slavery. We wus livin' in Nash County right near the 

border of Wake County. We belonged to Shirley Brantly. Our 

missus wus named Penina. 

"I wus born a slave, but I wus only ' boa two years 

old at de time of de surrender. I am 74 now. I wus born in 

April. I had my age in a Bible, but de book got tore to 

pieces an' my age got lost. 

"We lived on Marster Brantly's plantation ant de slave 

quarters wus near de great house. Mother said she wurked 

in de fiel's from sun to sun. Dey did not eat breakfast 

in de mornin' fore dey went to wurk. It wus cooked an' put 

on a shelf an' dey had breakfael• at about eleven o'clock in 

de day. Mother said sometimes de flies got to de meat ant 

blowed it fore dey could come in to eat it. Mother' said de 

food wua bad ant not fixed right. 

"Dere wus a lot of de slaves divided among marsters 

chillun. I can't remember how many. 
• 

"Marster wus a soldier ant when he come an'' tole mother 

she wus free, Missu& Penina tole her, ' No, you aint fre e,,, 

you'se got to stay here ant wurk right on. Marster tole her 

if she,had been through wid what. he been through vold she could 

give mother pp as free as takin' a drink of water. 
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"When de war ended father come an' got ma an' took 

her on to his marsters plantation. My father wus named 

Carroll Privette an' my mother wus Cherry Brantly, but after 

she wus free she begun to call herself by my fathers name, 

Privette. Father belonged to Jimmie Privette across Tar 

River from whar ma 

Cascade. We lived 

most of de chillun 

in Franklin County 

lived. Be lived near a little place named 

there at father's marsterIs place till 

wus 'bout grown, den father bought a place 

from Mr. Jack Griffin. He stayed 'there 

long enough to pay for de place; 

to Clayton. 

"At this time all de older chillun wus married, an' 

dats what dissatisfied my father. Be had nobody to help him 

ryurk. Arch, Frank)anI DenniS wus married. Mary wus married. 

Two girls ant one boy wus left single. Dere wus seben of de 

chillun. We moved from Clayton to Raleigh. I wus married 

in Raleigh. I married William Upperman. 

"Mother ant father died in Raleigh. Mother died right 

here in dis house. My mother ant father couldn't do no 

writint, but father could read a little. Be could read hymns 

ant de Bible. 

"I aint remember nothint 'bout slavery sceptin' what 

I've heard 'em say. Some said dey had a good time an' liked 

slavery. Dat wus when dey had good marsters. Den some says 

dey had a hard time an' didn't like it. Dat wus when day had 

den he sold it an' we moved 
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bad marsters. Slavery wus good an' bad accordini to de kind 

of marSter you had. 

"My husban I died September 6, 1925. I am unable to 

wurk. I've had a stroke on one side. Ilse jest hangin' 

'round home. 

945r daughter wurks for de WPA an' supports me but now 

she has been laid off. My chillun, some of real live in Harlem, 

New York, but dey has to have so much to live on dey can't 

help me. Dey sends me a Christmas present most of de time, 

ant dey remembers me on mother's day sometime. 

"I aint signed up wid any of de places to g et money yet. 

Don't see what I is goin' to do. I aint got lnough money to 

pay bus fare to de registerin' place other side of town." 
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EX-SLAVE STORIES 

An Interview by Mary A. Hicks with Ophelia Whitley of 
Zebulon, (Wake Co.) N. C. May 12, 1937. 

"I wuz borned at Wakefield in 1841, here in Wake 

County. Mr mammy wuz named Eliza ant my pappy wuz named 

Thomas. Dar wuz eleben uv us chilluns, Frances, Sally 

Ann, Jane, Pattie, Louisa, Alic, Firginia, Sam, Haywood, 

Boobie and me. We belonged to Lir. Agustus Foster an, 

he wuz right good to us even dot he had a hundred or so 

other slaves. 

'yr tmembers one whuppini I got when I wuri little 

tbout a big matter dat looked little at de time. Mens 

wauld come by in kivered wagons, (we called dem speckled 

wagons) ant steal Marse Gust nigger Qhilluns. He had 

lost a heap of money dat way, so he forbids us of goint 

out ter de road ant he orders us ter stay 'way back .in 

de rear uv de house. One -day we sees a. drove uv dese 

wagons comint ant we flies dawn ter de road. De marster 

ketches us ant I fiies,but he hobbles tkr our cabin on: 

his cKutches ant he pinches me, pokes me wid de crutch 

611' alp& my face. 

"His son Billy wuz de overseer an' he wuz good ter 
\ 

-Igit'along but he shore made dem .darkies Wuck De 
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wimmen plowed an' grubbed jant Ilse known dem ter leave 

de field, go ter de house an' find a baby an' be bao"k at 

wuck de next day. Dat ain't happen often do', mostly dey 

done light wuck fer a week or so. De babies wuz carried 

to Ant Hannah's house ant she raised ' em all so's dat de 

other wimmen could wuck. De mammies ain't egen 'member 

which wuz dere chilIuns half de time,so dar wuz no molnin' 

when somebody got sold. 

"I ' members a slave sale ant hyarin' de marster 

tell Cindy an' Bruce ter act up fer de benefit of de 

buyers. Cindy said dat she could do averrthing, so she 

-brung a good price, but Bruce, atter sayin' dat he could 

do itall, wuz tole ter hitch up a hoss in a hurry. He 

got de hoss ant turned his head ter de spatter board 

ant tried to hook de hoss up hind part befor. De marster 

can't find no buyeri so he whups Bruce awful atter he gits 

him home, but dat black boy says, lMarse, Ye can kill 

me, but I'd ruther stay on hyar. 1 Ilse seed niggers in 

chains, but dey wuz travelinl, or wuz mighty bad niggers. 

"We had log cabins to live in an' dey wuz comfort-

able but we ain't had much jubilees, de marster not be-

lievin1 in such things.. We warn't teached nothinl, not 

even religion ant we got whupped if we wuz ketched mid 

a piece uv paper or a slate. De white folks warn't 

teached nothint den,ant you knoW dey won't gwine ter 

take no trouble wid de aggers. De niggers had a doctor 



do' when dey got sick same s de white folks, an' dey got 

a lot of spring tonic an' such, made out of bark ant 

roots. 

“When de slavesot married dey done it die way: 

de marster hilt a broom ant dey solemnly steps over it 

twict den dey kissed an' dey wuz married, 'course dar wuz 

something dat de marster said, but I done forgot whut it 

•111.1Z • 

n we byard dat de Yankees wuz commt some of 

de niggers went fer de woods an' stayed till atter de 

surrender, but most uv us stayed on arll wucked jist de 

same. 

marster made his whiskey ant 

when de Yankees come he wuz a rich man. His smoke house 

wuz ful o$ hams ant he hid ' em in de ceilin' of my mammy's 

shack, an' he buried den barrels of brandy, but de Yankees 

done found it all an' dey ain't left nothint. 

°I 'members how some of dem Yankee officers cussed 

in front of my missals an' bowI tole ' em dat dey mought 

be es but dey won't half raised at dat 

0Atter de surrender my marster had ter make de 

laves leave, but he moved my papy s cabin furder ant 

we jist stayed an same as always till he died I 'members 

ty well when Tay mammy an' papy got married case 

neighborhood• 
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Ilse seed dem brewint coffee a many a time ant pourinf 

it out in a long neck coard. Dey done a powerful lot of 

things which I can't recollect right dis minute, anyhow 

dey wuz witches. 

uster see ghosts on dis very road nigh tbout 

evert night. Dey wuz white ant spongy lookint ant dey 

set under de bushes ant holler ant holler an'-holler. 

Itse poured water on ' em many a time but it ain't done no 

good. 

"Do you. know chile, slavery wuz a good thing, but 

folks has improved a lot since den, ant de Yankees warn tt 

half as good ter us as our ole marster an missus wuz, 

even n dey did put astop ter de Ku Klux Klan beatint 

sorry niggers dat had ort ter be hung. 

101/LE 
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Ek-SLAVE; STORY - 69. 

An Interview on May 19, 1937 with Tom 4ilcox of 
Method. 

urwuz borned on March 18th, 1856 aurfh' de biggest 

snow dat eber hit Eastern Carolina; dey says dat hit 

wuz up ter de roof. De place whar I wuz borned wuz in 

'darren County; jist acrost de Halifax County line. My 

mammy's marster wuz Mr. 3. Osco Harl'is an' his wife wuz 

named kartha. 

IrMy mamm-,:'s name wuz Alice an' my pappie's name 

wuz Camelin. i had three brothers, Little 3erry, Cornelius 

James, an' C. J. Dar wuz four gals, Anne, Pattie, Pennie, 

an' Mary Frances. 

ogle white folks wuz good tel us an' we loved tern, 

but we wanted ter be free, case de Lawd done make us 

all free. 

tt rmissus wuz- a religious woman an' I can't tell 

yo' de number uv -times she has heat ro:e case I done some 

kind uv wuck on a .Sunday. We went ter church ever 
_A. 

Sunday an' we wusn't ! lowed ter cuss an' sich things.) 

wuz nine when de war commence. • Dunn' de war 

an' I wuz workin' in de fie'', long wid de fifty or 
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sixty other slaves. Dar wuzn' t nary a Yankee track 

made in our section, an' we ain't knowed.much ' bout de 

war. 

"As I done tell yo' onct we ietuz fed an' clothed 

el:ood an' we lived fer each other, iy.t, my pL)py belol„::ed 

ter one man an' my mammy ter another one ant' so we wanted 

ter be all together. Atter de war we stayed on till ' 69, 

den we come ter Raleigh. Most uv de Amens an' chilluns 

viz sent by de train, but me an' pappy an' Ber7)we 

walked all de way by Louisburg, an' driv' pappy's thirteen 

heads of cattle. 

"In 1871 we buyed ten acres uv lan' at Method fer 

three dollars a' acre an' moved out hyar. 

"No mam., we ain't liked Jeff Davis, but we did like 

Er. Lincoln. I 'members a verse uv a son„: aat we sung 

durin' de first uv de war. It goes dis way. 

fJeff Davis is a rich man, 
Lincoln is a fool, 
Davis rides .a big fat horse, 
Lincoln rides a mule. 
Knick knack dey say 
-Walk ole Georgia row. 

"Dar wuz another song I 'members, but I can't 

think uv no games, case we ain't neber played none. 

Yo' has hyard dat atter a dog gits so full uv fleas he 

.can't tote no mol. .dat's de way I is. -I peddles-- , _ ..... 

.my...peanuts. but I barely ma4es ,a livin" 



0Hyar's de song do' de best I 'members it an' it 

wuz sung atter de war. 

*Ole Confederate has done player". out, 
Shrew ball, shrew ball, 

Ole Confederate has done played out 
Shrew ball sew 

An' ole Genii.. Lee can't fight no mot; 
We'll all drink stone blind 
Johnnies go marchin' home. 

nI bought me a chicken fur fifty cents, 
Shrew ball, Shrew ball, 

I bought me a chicken fur fifty cents 
Shrew ball dik, I, 

I bought me a chieken fur fifty cents 
An' de son uv a bitch done jump de fence, 
Well all 'drink stone blind 
Johnnies go marchin' . home. 

*Eighteen hundret an' sixty one 
Shrew ball, shrew ball, 

Eighteen hundret an sixty one 
Shrew ball say 

Eighteen hundret an' sixty one 
Ant dat's de year de war begun 
We'll all drink stone blind 
Johnnies go marchin' home. 

*Eighteen hundret an' sixty-five 
Shrew ball, Shrew ball, 

Eighteen hundret an' sixty-five 
Shrew ball soy 

Eighteen hundret ant sixty-five 
De Yankees et ole Lee alive; 
We'll all drink atone blind 
Johnnies go marchin' home. 
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CATHARINE INTT a. JAMS 
2214 Barker Street 

"My name is Catharine Willimrs. I was born December 

twenty fifth, 1851. I remember my mother, but I do not 

know anything about my father. My mother's name was 

Adeline Williams. Mother baked ash cakes, but my children 

would not eat ' em. She died fifty years ago. I had four 

children when she died, but I had three boys and two girls. 

I was born in Virginia but I cannot tell what part. I 

was four years old when my mother brought me to North 

Carolina. Our old master, Dabney Cosoy, 1 moved from 

Virginia to North Carolina then. 114 came straight into 

Raleigh, North Carolina and have been living in Raleigh 

ever since. 

"We were Williams when awned by Cosby and,we were 

never sold again, but remained in the same family till 

we were set free after the surrender. We had good food, 

fair clothing and comfortable sleeping places. I know 

what a pallet is. All slept on ' em a lot in slavery 

days, especially when it was hot weather. I makes Ism 

now sometimes. 

1. 
Dabney Cosby, a practical architect and contractor, 

came to Raleigh from RAllfax County, Virginia, and did 
a good deal of building in the city between 1850 and 1860. 
The original Yarborough Rouse ( 1852) was built by him. 
The Heart houseicorner Hargett and Dawson Streets, Cosby's 
home, and another stucco house, corner Hargett and Har-
rington Streets are still standing in the locality mentioned 
in the story. 
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my missus wus named Fannie. I do not know how 

many slaves they owned, but Marster did not have a 

plantation, he lived in town. He was a brick mason, 

and he made brick. He had two brick kilns. 

"Our missus and marster were kind to us but they 

did not teach us to read and write. I learned to read 

and write since the surrender. 1 went to church and 

Sunday school. There were no Negro preachers, but we 

attended the white folks's church. We did not have any 

prayer meetings because our homes were in the white 

folks's yard. 

"I was never whupped, and mother and myself were 

well treated, so I have no complaint to make against our 

white folks. 

"The first work I done was nursing the children in 

the home, next I waited on the table, then general housql1" 

"At the last days of the war Wheeler's Calvary 

camped around my house at night. They tole us the 

Yankees would be in Raleigh the next morning aid shore 

'nough they came in next morning. If the citizens had not 

gone out and surrendered Raleigh to the Yankees they would 

have torn Raleigh to pieces. We were living on the 

corner of Hargett and Dawson Streets. The Yankees done 

us no harm. They done all right in Raleigh. They did not 
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take nothing around home. ' They put out guards around the 

homes by the time they got in. We were not afraid of ' em, 

none of us children, neither white nor colored; they 

played such purtymusic and was dressed SQ fine. We 

run after the band to hear ' am play. 

"I heard talk. of the patterollers, but never saw 

any. I knew very little about .the jail in Raleigh for 

slaves. I never saw any slaves sold or any in chains. 

never knew of any slaves running away to the North. We 

children both white and colored enjoyed the Christmas 

holidays together. We played running and jumping and 

hide and seek. 

"We had doctors when we got sick. Dr. Johnson was 

one of them. After the war we stayed on with Marster 

and Missus until they died. I have been on Oberlin 

Road about twenty-five years. 

"No Sir, what you talkin' ' bout? No, there were no 

Negro schools in Raleigh at the time of the surrender, 

but I have had a good time all my life as far as bell:0 

treated right is concerned. 121, have never married. I 

will have to find that man yet, and at this age I don't 

expect to find him. Ea! hal never found that man yet. 

I am staying with my niece. 
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"I know nothing about Abraham Lincoln. Be helped 

us to be free. I knew nothing about Jefferson Davis, 

Booker T. Washington or Roosevelt. I know very little 

about Jim Young, only he was a polititian. 
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REV. HAEDY Wria,TAms; 

Dunn, North Carolina. 

my name is Handy H. Williams. When de war went up 

I wus twelve years old, 12th of March. I belonged to 

Blaney Williams, and his wife wus named Polly. My mother 

wus named Margaret Williams, and my father wus named Sam 

Williams. I do not remember my grandmother and grandfather; 

can't remember ' em. 

"My father lived in Greene County. De plantation wus 

in Greene County. Dere were about 190 acres in de farm 

and dere wus about 25 slaves on it. 

"id lived in Greene County till the war went up. We 

be plenty to eat, good clothes and a nice place to sleep. 

Marster wus not good to us, but he gave us plenty to eat and 

wear. BR worked us from light till dark and then my mother 

had to do house work after workin' in de fields all day, an' 

father had to do de feedin' or pick cotton at night. 

mie had no holidays. Prayer meetings were not 

allowed in de quarters and a slave darsent to be caught 

wid a book in his hant. 

ttDe patterollers come by often an' dey caught and 

whupped de slaves many times. Uarster whupped slaves for 

mos' anything. Sometimes he would get mad, an' whup us 
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when he hardly had an excuse. Yes sir, he would get drunk 

and whup somebody jest 'cause he wus mad. Some of de slaves 

run away. My Uncle Needham Williams run away. When he 

come back he wus Whupped an' then put up and sold. Aunt 

Chaney, my mother's sister, wus put up and sold. She wus 

sold away from her children. When de war went up, she come 

back home. My Aunt Beadle wus sold on de block in Fay 

etteville. I remember her well, but we have never heard 

from her since. She never come back after the surrender. 

God only knows what become ot her. 

"When de war went up we went to Harnett County to 

Mt. Jim Smiles' place, about three miles frcmwhur this 

town now stands. Dunn wus not here then. 

"We stayed there five years, and then moved to 

Mingo in what now Sampson County on the Louis Martin 

Tew Place, and my father bought a place. The deed called 

for In acres more ot less. Dat's what de deed called for. 

We paid for de place, but rry father mortgaged de place. 

Be eildn't lose it, cause it wus fixed so dat-no one could 

sell or mortgage it while any of de heirs wus livin'. 

All are dead Icept Pink Williams and myself, and de len' 

fell beck to us. Mammy and daddy are both dead long time 

age,,tbout twenty-flve years. 

*Dey had overseers on marster's farm in Greene County 
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and dey were mean i to de slaves, I wus not big enough 

to work much, but dey had me feedin g stock and helpin' 

around de house. 

"We children didn't play any games we wus afraid to 

play around de white folks. Marster wus a rip snorter 

and he would get you if you got in his ay. He lived in 

de great house not far distant from de quarters, but we 

did not go dere unless we had to go dere to work. 

"Yes sir, you know how children is when dey hear 

wagins coomin', and a big crowd marcl.in together. Yes 

sir, I remember de Yankees. Dey rode dere horses against 

de fences and tore en down. Dey corned in de yard and turn-

ed over de bee gums. Dey shot de chickens. Dey would 

say 'Dere he goes, shoot him, shoot him', and den de guns 

would go ' barn, barn, barn, ant de chickens would fall dead'. 

Dey shot de dogs in de yard. Course, to Heben, I am tellin' 

de truth. Dey took de meat and destroyed most everything 

at Marster's. After dey lef', if you could get a few beans 

or peas dey wus mighty good. People et tater peelin's 

an' some come near starvin'. 

"I wus mighty lucky ant what I got I got it from 

de Southern white folks; dey been mighty good to me 

since de war. I have worked frr de town ' bout 35 years 

and I work for it now. I ain't able to do much now, but 
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I have a section of de Courthouse. I keeps it might clean. 

"I know nothint much bout de great men you ax me 'bout; 

don't remember much about tem. I think slavery wus a bad 

thing, yes sir, I shore does. 

LE 
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JOHN THOMAS WTT.LIAlv3 

77 years old. 1272 Pettigrew Street, Raleigh, North Carolina. 

"I don't know who I am nor what my true name is. 

I wus born December 25, 1860 on a plantation in New Hanover 

County. The plantation belonged to John Williams, whose 

wife wus named Isabella and the farm wus on land which is 

now in the corporate limits of Wilmington, N. C. 

'The reason I don't know who I al is that I don't 

remember my father and mother or any of my people. When I 

got so I could remember anything I wus with the Williams 

family. Uarster an' missus, an' their family are the only 

ones I ever looked upon as my people. They never told me who 

I wus. 

'After the war I stayed with them a long time and 

helped them on the farm. They run a truck farm. I got along 

all right while I wus with the Williams family, but when I 

got grown left them. I loved them but I realized I wus 

a nigger and knew that I could never be like then and that 

I wus one to myself. 

°When I left I went to Little Washington, N. C. Then 

to Plymouth. I stayed at these places several years working 

as a hand on truck farms. From there I went to.Charlotte 

then-went North an' atayé& eight 
, 

or a white man and hit 
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"I married Maggie Swain, a former sweetheart, as soon as 

I got back to Plymouth. We had two children. She lived six 

years. I then married Diary Davenport of Little Washington. -

We had seven c;hildren. She died and I come to Raleigh and 

married kaggie Towel. Je had no children by our marriage. 

"I own no home and have never owned one. -Excepting the 

eight years I spent in New "York city my life has been spent in 

farming. I farm some now and do little jobs for the white 

folks. 

"I don't know much about alavery, as I wus too young to 

know much about it. There wus other slaves belonging to 

Marster Williams but I don't remember any of them because when 

I got so I could know what it wus all about they were free 

and gone from the plantation. 

"I have asked thousands Of questions trying to find out 

who my people are but no one haf, ever told me who I am or 

who my people are. If I have any brothers and sisters, I don't 

know it. 

"I have nothing to say about being partly white, I leave 

that to your imagination. I have thought about it a lot. I 

donft know. 

°I have been blessed with good health I am breaking now 

but am still able to do light jobs. 

"I am a good fiddler. The white folks have taught me to 

of difThrent things I have had very few advantages 

and write. 
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"I have never been in .jail.in my life. I can give good 

references from dozens of white folks. I try to live right, 

be. honest and above all give my fellow man a square deal."' 

LE 



Interview with LIZZIE WILLIAMS, Ex-slave, 
35 Max Street, 
Asheville, N. C. 

By Marjorie Jones, Aug. 24, 1937. 

I's bo'n in Selma, Alabae, I can't mind how long 

ago, but jes bout ninety yeahs. I come to dis country 

'bout 1882. Yes, I's purty porely des days an' I's gettint 

homesick for my cal htime. 
lorom 

I's bo'n and lib on oll man Billy Johnson's 

plantation thousan's acres of groun' and plenty of 

niggahs. My pappy he allus bllong to oil man Billy. He 

not sich a bad man but de Lawd.knows I's seed bettah ones. 

When I's right*smalt size Missy Mixon, she was Marse Billy's 

wife sistah, she get Marse Billy to let her hab me. She 

war a good woman. She took me to town to lib and make a 

little white girl outten me. Vail knows what I means; I 

got treated moh like de white folks den de res' of de' 

niggahs. 

But rtwarn't long afore Missy send me to New 

'Leans to nurse de sick chile' of her sistah. I never war 

satisfil dawn dar. Evverbody so different. But de next 

year we go back to Alabas0 

went to Marse 3lUs Nixon's he tubble mean 

to his siggahs. But I belong, to de MissuS, she allus 

treat me good. All de little niggahs have to learn to work 

dey neber 

play. Most em niggahs was seared to death,. .jea 

ones on Billy Johnson's p1rntation.. ow de 
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get whupped jes like a mule iffen dey act like dey don' 

wanna Wurk. Dey neber get much to eat, jes side meat, 

coln bread and / lasses ! Olt Billy he had overseers whut was 

mean to de pore niggahs. Sometime day ties dem up an' dey, 

strip dem and dey whups dem wif cow hide, else dey lets 

other niggahs do it. 

All de niggahs have to go to church, jes ilk' de 

white fokes. Dey have ,a part of de church for demselfs. 

After de wah we hab a church of our own. All de niggahs love 

to go to church an' sing. I mind a lot of de songs we used 

ter sing in ce fielts. I mind my papp: used ter sing in de fiel'. 

"Git on botd, little chillun, git on bold." Sometimes day babtiz 

in de ribber. Den dey sing: 

"I wanna be ready 

I wanna be ready 
good Lawd 

I wanna be ready/to walk in Jarusalem jes like John. 

John say de 46- city was jes four square, 

To walk in Jarusalem jes like John. 

But I'll meet my mothah and fathah dar, 

To walk in Jarusalem, jes like John." 

I timber s 'bout de paddyrollers. De niggahs hab' to 

get a pass from de massa or de missus if dey go ennywhar. De 
'Bout dozen of dem ride ! long togedder. Fus thing dey say: 
paddyrollers jes ilk' police. /"Whar yot pass?" Den iffen yo' 

hab one dey lets you go but iffen you don' hab one dey strips 

yo' to de 'waist and dey lams yo' good till de blood comes. 



Sometime dey dey rolls you over a barrel and lams yt4,while de barrel 

rolls. 

I mind a tale my pappy tell 'bout one time he see de 

paddyrollers coin'. He scared to death cas he didtn hab no 

pass. He knot iffen dey finds him whut dey do. So pappy he 

gets down in de ditch ant throw sand ant grunts jes like a 

hawg. Shot nuf dey thinks he a hawg and dey pass on, cept one 

who was behin' de others. He say: west am de -gruntintes olt 

hawg I ebber hear. I think I go see him." But de udders day 

say: Nies let dat 01' hawg lone an' min' yo own business. 

So day pass on. Pappy he laff ' bout dat for long time. 

I mind oll Mose, he hab_monthlf pass from de massa but 

he forgit it one day ,nd de paddyrollers Whup him and throw 

him in de callaboose. In de mawninl when de massa wake and 

fin no fresh water and no fire in de stove and de cows not 

milk, he say: I know Mose in de callaboose," and he hab to go 

atter Mose. 

Lots of de pore niggahs run away, but Itwarn't no use. 

Der watnt no place to go. Day was allus lookint for yoh_and 

den ,yokhad to work harder den ebber, ' sides all kin's of punish-

ment yoUgot. Den dey nearly statve youto def, jes feed yokon 

bread and water for long time. 

Be niggabs nebber knot no in'tbout learninl, jes wukt 

all dey's fit for. Be only thing I ebber do wif a book is jes 

to dust it off. I mind two little niggahs whose missy teach 

dent to'read. Srnily, she look likt a white gal. She was treated 

jes like she White. Emily was a met 

al; She belong to (ale of de Johnson mem, She do all 0 iewin 

Her daddy wail.it white man 

' 



for her missy. When de missy go to buy clothes for de chillun she 

allus take Emily along. Her pappy pay no more ' tention to her den 

to de rest of de niggahs. But de missy she was good to her. She 

never stay in de quarters, she stay in de house with de white 

fokes. But Egly have de saddes' look on her yaller face cas' de 

other niggahs whisper 'bout her pappy. 

Many de pore niggah women hab chillun for de massa, dat 

is iffen de massa a mean man. Dey jes tell de-niggahs whut to 

do and dey know better den to fuss. 

Olt missus she good to me. I mind one time I got tubble 

mad ant say some ugly words. Marse Faits he come up ahint me 

and he say: utLizabeth I gwina wallup yo' good for dat.' t I 

imense cryint and run to de. missus and she say: "Look heah 

Ellis Mixon, y'all mind yo' own business ant look atter yo' 

own niggahs. Dis one biAlongs to me." as same when de 

missus went upstairs Marse Ellis take me in de smoke house 

and statt to hit me. I yell for de missus an , when she come 

she plenty mad. Marse say he nebber ment to whup me, jes scare me 

little. 

I mind 'bout de wah. We niggabs'neber know Whut it 

We go on ant work. Nebber see-nothint, nebber hear 

nOthinl, nebber say nothint, but de wah all trouni. Evah day 

we heah dat dALYankee.sojers comint. De plantations was gittint 

robbed. Evabody kept a)bLidin' things. It was a tubble time. 

44 0.144 when dey::0Mes to Selma. AU. de fokes'was at 



Lawdy, dat night dey burn de stores ant houses ant take all de 

things dey want. Cannons and guns all 'round, it war tubble 

sight. 

Marse Ellis plantation 'bout 15 mile from Selma on 

Pea Ridge. I. mind one night Marse come home from town and he 

say: "Lizabeth," I say, "Yes, suh." He 'say: "Bring me some 

fresh watah from de spring." I run as fast as I kin an , bring 

de watah an' gib, it to him, den he Say: "Lizabeth, de Yankees 

am comin, soon, an' T knows yotse gwin to tell ' em where I hide 

all my 'longings, guns an' ebberthing." 

"No," I says, "jes why would I tell whar yo' hide yo' 

guns an' things?" Missy come in den an she say: ttGo on ant 

let Lizzie ' lone, bettah be feared dem niggahs you done so 

mean to gwine tell, dots all you got to be feared of. But 

yo0, let Lizzi'Ione, she belong to me." 

Marse Ellis he go out ant hide some mot stuff. Dat 

night de sojers burn Selma. Dat war on Sunday.- Next night 

we wake up in de middle of de night an' de house what we keep 

de best carriage ant horse was atburnin'. De pore hotse done 

break outten de barn an' was a runnint rount all over de place 

atscreamint wif her poor back butnt tubble. We nebber find out 

iffen de Yankees set de barn fire or not. Guess day did. D y 

done set Marse Hyde's house afire an' burn it to de grount with 

Marse Hyde in it. Matse Hyde he had plantation in New 'Leans and 

when de Yankees take de town Marse Hyde he promise not to leave 
ikommr 

when deisojers tscape and come to his house on Pea Ridge, 

him here dey burn him in de house wif 
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On de Tuesday mawnin' after dey burn Selma I wake up. 

to see Marse Ellis' plantation all surroun' wif Yankee sojers 

I war nigh scared to death. I so ' fraid dey hurt me an' Missy 

but dey di&den, dey jes march through de. house an' whenday see 

Mars/i. Ellis d4%sk him for he guns an' things dey want. Marse 

Ellis show dem whaede things war. 'Twarn't no use to do anything 

else. I take Marse Frank's ' backer an' hide it in de Missus' 

trunk. Den when de sojers git what dey want deflaugh and match 

'way on de hill. 

After de surren'er all de niggahs jes lost. Nowhar to go, 

nothin , to do, ' less dilrstay wif de masa. Nobuddy hab anything 

but 'federate money and it no good. My pappy had 'bout three 

hunner dolla's but ttwarn't no good 'tall. 

All some of de white fokes think of war killint de pore 

niggahs what worked for dem for yeahs. Dey jes scour de country 

and shoot dem, ' specially de young men. One day dey come down 

de road teards my pappy. Dey start askin' questions 'bout 

what he gwine to do now he free. "What I gwin to do?" says 

pappy. "What can I do? I jes stay on de plantation ant help 

oll Massa iffen I can get an or mule ant a piece of an 01' plow; 

One of de boys look at pappy an' say: "I like take yo' 

head for a target," but de 01' man wif dem say no so dey leave 

my pappy ' lane. Day hab de commissary whar de fokes git food; 

it btlong to de Yankee sojers. Food scarce lilt' ebberthing. 
14 ei-*N 

Folks say now dey hab hard times; dey don' know nettle 'bout 

hard times less day lib in war time and be slave to white fokes. 
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Den dey was de Ku Klux Klan. Dey war frightful lookin' 

critters. My pappy say dlgo out in de country an' tie pore 

niggahs to de tree and beat ' em to death. Dey dress all kin's 

of fashions. Most of dem look ilk' ghosts. Dey nebber go lik' 

de paddyrollers, deyjes sneak ' round at night when de poor 

niggahs in bed. Den 'bout twelve ' clock dey tie up all de 

niggahs dey ketch and atter dey through beatin' dem dey leaves 

dem wif dey han's tied in de air and de bloo astreamin' outten 

dey backs. 

Atter freedeom I come heah to live wif my fokes de 

Williams's, dats how I come to be Williams. Nebber had no 

chilluh of my own. Day calls me ' Lizbeth Johnson ' fore I 

went to live with de Mixons, den I be one of de Mixon niggahs, 

den later I be a Williams; don' guess names matter much no , 

way. 
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PENNY dILLIANS 
Ex-Slave Story 

An interview with Penny Williams 76, of 716 S. 
East Street, Raleigh, N. C. 

nI wus borned at de Hinton place 'bout three miles 

south of Raleigh,an' course we ' longed ter kr. Lawrence 

Hinton. 

nily mammy wus named Harriet Moore an' my pappy wus 

named Mack Moore, dat Wus cause dey ' longed fust ter a 

Mr. Moore I ' specks. Iliad ten bruders an' sisters, an' 

we all done putty good. 

"De marster owned ' round two hundert slaves an' 'bout 

four hundert acres o' lan' ant dey had ter muck peart, dey 

sez. 

inile had 'nough ter eat, sich as it wus, but dat ain't 

braggini, I reckins. Am! we wus punished putty bad iffen 

we complains, sasses or ' fuses ter wuck lak we should. Nat 

Whitaker wus de oberseer ant patteroller ant he wus strick, 

Ilse tellin' you. Ilse seed him beat slaves till de blood 

run. 

'Mar wus some nigger mens what lud go coutint spite 

of de debil l an' as de marster ain't gibint dem no passes 

dey goes widout tem. M.r. Whitaker, he whups, an' whupst 

but dat ain't stop tem. At las' Marater Lawrence ' cides 

ter hang cowbells on dere necks so's he can hyar dem if'en 
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dey leabes de pace atter night. 

"I'se tellin' you chile, dem niggers am gwint anyway. 

Dey ain't got sense nuff ter put dere han's-in de bell ter 

keep de clapper from ringin', but dey does stuff de bell wid 

leaves an' it doan ring none, ' sides dat dey tears dei'r 

shirts, or steals sheets from missus clothes line an' fold 

dem ter make a scarf. Dey ties dese trouni de iv necks 

ter hide de bell an' goes on a-courtin'. 

"Dey ain't got no pins ter pin de scarf on, but dey 

uses thorned from de locust tree or de crabapple, an' day 

hol's fine. 

"Dey warn't no spoons, knives, an' forks dem days, 

but de smart slave cut him some outen hickory an' dey wus 

jist as good as de other kin'. 

"Dey also ain't go no matches dem days so flint 

rocks wus rubbed tergether. 

41 ' members mostly ' bout de rear en' 01 de war, 

'specially .rbout de Yankees comm'. I 'members dat marster 

an' his fambly done moved ter town, case dey can't git no 

Itection dar. Dar wusn't a soul on de place but de slaves 

dar when de Yankees corned a-takin' an' a-killini. 

VII 'members dat I wus drawl& water at de well, 

when de Yankees corned. I looks up de road an' dar an a 

gang o' 0em comin'. I draps de bucket back in de well sat 

I flies in de big house. 
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'Well sir, dey kills de chickens, hogs, geese, an' 

eber' thing as dey comes, eben ter marster's collie, an' 

when dey gits ter de big house dey swears dat dey'll burn 

hit down. Dey stan's dar fur a minute, an' den one o l tfl 

sez dat hit am too putty ter burn, another one sez dat hit 

am too putty ter belong ter a damm Reb, but dey doan burn 

it. I hyars hit all from de winder in de big house, an' 

I shore is glad dat dey ain't burn hit. 

nDey tears up all dey wants to, den dey robs de 

amok("house, an' dey goes on ' bout dere business. 

"Atter de surrender our white folkses comes back an' 

we stays on five or six years I reckon, den we moves ter 

Mist liimma Greens' place five miles furder in de country. 

We shore ain't got 'long good atter de war. De Yankees 

what 'ud die ter free us ain't carin' iffen we starves 

nother.n 

nSuddenly Aunt Penny was attracted by a himuning-

bird flitting around the pomegranate bush near the doorstep. 

"Does you know which am de bee' way ter ketch a 

humminJ bird chile? After a negative answer she smiled. 

'When you sees him iroung de flowers den you soaks two or 

three in whiskey, dey bird will suck till he gits drunk 

ant can't fly 'way, dat's how you ketch him.' 

**I hates de town sparrers an' de cowbirds what ain't 

got nuff sense ter leave de floods. You read 'bout hit in 

de papers I reckon. You knows dey am 'bout de size of a 
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peckerwood. 

"Yesum, one witch tried ter ride me onct. I wus in 

de 'oed, an' she thouwht dat I wu8 ' sleep. I feels her when 

ahe crawls up on my let' le w an' stops . e.circulation. I 

knows how ter fix her do' so I 8.its up an' puts a knife 

under my pillow. 

"I has slep' wid dat jdfe dar eve since dat time 

I ain't hac. no mo trour,le wid witcheLe ner circulation 

nother. So I reckons dat I fixed ner iood an plenty. 
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AUNT PLAZ 

An interview with Plaz Williams of Four Oaks who says that 
she is around 90 years of age. 

"Margaret Thornton sez dat she has got de world record 

beat on nussin' but datts whar Shes wrong. She ain't a day 

over seventy, yit she sez dat she has nussea more dan I has 

ant me ninety. Right now Itse a nussint of a loman what has 

jist got back from de hospital. Yes, main, a heap of people 

sez dat dey ,d ruther have me dan de doctor. 

"I wus borned in nississippi, so dey tells me, den 

wus sold ter r. Moses 1:iordecai of Raleigh, atter dat I 

'longed ter a Uto. Henry Lane who lived in Wake County. Dar 

wus two er three of dem Lane's named Henry, course dis one 

wus de youngest. 

"I worked in de fiel's like—irman an' I liked it too. 

Marse Loses had oberseers what beat you fer nothin' but 

- 
Marse Henry ain't dat sort of a person at all. Marse Moses 

an' Marse Henry both drunk whiskey an , such but. dey wus 

different when dey wus drunk. Marse Mbs$es 'lad beat you 

an' cuss you, but Marse Henry 'lid laugh at you ant play wid. 

you. 
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uI know one time Marse Moses cowed ter see Marse 

Henry an' atter dey had drunk awhile Larse Henry seed me 

in de yard. Hit bein' on Sunday he calls me ter come to 

his library. dhen j.ts in he axes me iffen I'se ever 

been drunk ant I tells him no. Den he pours me a glassful 

an' sez for me ter drink it. I begs at fust, den I sez dat 

won't drink de brandy. Marse Henry laugh ant would have 

let me go but dat debil, Marse Moses, sez, 1Le's hol' her 

ant pour it down her guzzle, Henry.' Dat's what dey done 

an' dey pours down seberal drinks. Terreckly Marse Henry 

axes me ter fetch him some water but when I starts my laigs 

am too weak to go so 1 sets acm4n on de floor. Marse Henry 

laugh an' laugh but Marse Loses sez, ridup de shameless 

hussy what ain't got no mot raisin' dan ter git dog drunk. 1 

He would have whupped me too but -., arse Henry won't let him 

do it. 'Stid of beatinl me he sez ter git in de corner ant 

sleep it off. 

1'1 doan know nothin' 'bout de Yankees comm' case we 

wus sent 'way back in de country ter stay. Ease Henry 

comes out dar ant tells us dat we is free. Morse Henry has 

told Jack Williams dat he can't have me 'fore dis, so I axes, 

'Can I marry Jack now, Marse Henry.' He sez yes, so 'fore 
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night I is at Jack's cabin. I thought dat dar ain't got 

ter be no preacher, but a week er two atter ais a preacher 

comes by ant maeries us. 

"We moved here case hit am better farmin' land. We 

worked hard ter make anything do', an' fer awhile I thought 

dat we'd starve ter death. 

"Dar ain't so much ter tell about atter de war. Our 

chilluns died fast as we had ' em. ie worked hard ant 'bout 

twenty years ago Jack died. Itse been on de charity some 

but I hope dat when I gits my pension I won't have ter trouble 

dem no more." 
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MELISSA WILLIAMSON 
Ex-Slave Story 

An interview with Melissa Williamson. 77 of Bledsoe Avenue, 
Raleigh, N. C. 

"Dia June fifteenth sebenty-eight years ago I wuz 

borned in Franklin County near Louisburg. 

maTnnor an' me belonged ter Me. Billy Mitcheli\ 'fore 

she died, which wuz one of de fust things dat I *members, an, 

den Mist Mitchel tuck me in. her house an, raise me. Dat wuz 

de fust year of de war, I believes. 

"De Mitchels wuz good ter us in a way, an" day doan 

spare de rod when it .am needed, nor does dey think dat a 

picaninny can't go barefooted in de hot summertime. Dey 

believes in a heap of wuck do' an , no play at all, an, very 

little rations. 

"De men slaves 'ud wuck in de fiells ant at dinnertime 

/ 
dey ain't had nothin, ,cept a quart of butter1 Milk an' a aAht 

cake. I got a whole heap better dan dey did, but youngin,-

like I begged dam fer some of dare dinner. 

"I neber thought dat Mist Mitchel wuz hard till I 

seed her wimp Aunt Pidea. Aunt Pidea wuz a good soul an, she 

wuz good ter we youngins„ an' we. loved her. She got ter 
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gittint frantic do', an' she'd put on her dinner on de stove, 

den she'd go ter de woods an' run an' romp lak a chile. 

"Mis Mitchel had loved her too, but atter awhile Ehe 

got mad ant she wuz mad bad too. She tuck Aunt Pidea out 

ter a tree, stripped off her waist, tied her ter de tree Lan' 

whup her wid a cowhide till de blood runs down her back. 

"We wuz told dat de Yankees would kill us an' we wuz 

skeered of dem too, an' I wuz always runnin' fer fear de 

Yankees would git me. When dey did Cane I WI= out at de 

well, drawini water wid de windlass ant I wuz so short dat 

I had ter jump up ter grap de handle. I looked up de road 

ant de Yankees wuz comin' up de road as thick as fleas on a 

dog's back. I gives a yell, turns de windlass a loose, ant 

flies rount de house ter my missus. Hit's a wonder dat 

windlass ain't turn dber an break my haid in. 

"I had hyard 'bout my sister what wuz sold ' fore I 

wuz borned, an' t ain't knowin' whar she is, but atter de 

war had been ober fer two years she corned ter Mis' Mitchel's 

an' got me. She carried me ter Louisburg ant sont me ter de 

Yankee school dar. I 'member a song dat de Yankees teached 

us, or at least a part 0 one. 
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"How often we think o' childhood joys 
And tricks we used to play 

Upon each other while at school 
To while the time away. 

Chorus 

They often wished me with them 
But they always wished in vain 
I'd rather be with Rosenell 
A.-swinging in the lane. 

"I won't talk ter ay chilluns 'bout slavery days, 

case I dean want ' ern ter git stirred up 'bout it. Ilse told 

'em dat we ain't paid no mot dan de white folkses fer our 

freedom, case some of dem sold dereselbes ter git hyar an' 

dey fought in wars dat de nigger dean know nothin"bout. 

"I know dat Das' Mitchel dale wrong when she ain't 

give us enough ter eat, an' when she whup Aunt Pidea 'bout 

beint crazy, but I 'members somethin' else dat make me 

tender towards her an' other white folkses. 

"I 'members dat Mis' Mitchel used ter take me visitin' 

ter white folkses houses an' some 0 dem hates niggers an' 

won't give me no place ter sleep, Icept on de floor by missus 

bed. Sometimes I can feel her now, kiverinl me up wid her 

own clothes durint de night or feelinl me to see if I'm 

chilly or too hot." 

AC 
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ALEX WOODS 
Ex-Slave Story 

8 Ford Alley--end of Martin Street, Raleigh, N. C. 

"My name is Alex Woods. I wus born May 15, 1858. 

In slavery time, I, rbelonged to Jim Woods o' ' Orange County. 

De plantation wus between Durham and Hillsboro near de 

edge, o' Granville County. My miscue name wus Polly Woods. 

Dey treated us tolerable fair, tolerable fair to a 

fellow. Our food \MS well cooked. We were fed from de 

Kitchen the great house.. 

"We called marster's house de ' great house in. dem 

times. We called de porch de piazza. We were fed from 

de kitchen his house during de week. We cooked and 

et at our homes Saturday nights an61 Sundays. We ilainre 

our clothes; children had only one piece, a long shirt. 

We went barefooted, an' in our shirt tails; we yaungins' 

did. 

"we did not have any shoes winter nor summer, but 

mother and father had shoes with wooden bottoms ant 

leather tops. Dr. Tupper/ de man who was principal of 

de Shaw School, de man who started de school and de church 

on Blount St., gave me my first pair o' shoes: Dis wus 

the second year after de surrender. I wus nine years ole 

den. Dey were boots wid brass on de toes, solid leather 
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shoes, made in Raleigh on Fayetteville Street in de base-

meht o' Tucker's Dry Goods Store, 'bove de Masonic Temple 

as you go up. Ole man Jim Jones, a colored shoe maker, 

worked in die shop. 

"I can read, but I cannot write, ' cause I've been 

run over three tines by automobiles. Once my buggy 

wus torn to pieces, ant I wus knocked high in de air. 

De first time dey run into me dey killed my hosa, De 

third time dey paralized my arm and busted the linin' 

o' my stomach, 

learned to read an' write since de surrender 

by studying in spare time. Dey wouldn't let any slaves 

have books in slavery time. Mother had a book she kept 

hid. Dey would whup a slave if dey caught him wid a 

book. 

°Were were between twenty-five and thirty slaves an 

de plantation but dere wus no church. Dey would not 

allow us to have prayer meetings in our houses, but we 

would gather late in de night and turn pots upside dawn 

inside de door to kill de sound and sing and pray for 

freedom.. No one could hear unless dey eaves-drapped. 

mThe patteroller rode around to see after de slaves 

and whipped ' em when dey caught ' em away from home. I 

have seen slaves whipped. Dey took them into the barn 

and corn crib and whipped ' em wid a leather strap, called 

de cato'nine tails. Dey hit ' em ninety-nine licks some-
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times. Dey wouldn't allow ten to call on de Lord. when 

dey were whippin' ' ea, but dey let ' em say 'Ohs pray, 

Oh: pray, marsterl. Dey would say, 'Are you goin$ to 

' work? Are you goin' visitin' widout a pass? Are you goint 

to run away?' Dese is de things dey would ax him, when 

dey wua whuppin' him. 

itgy old marster s brother John wus a slave speculator. 

I ' member seem' him bringint slaves in chains to de 

plantation when he wus carryint ' em to Richmond to put 

'em on de auction block to be sold. Dey were handcuffed 

wid a small chain to a large chain between ' em, two men 

side by side; dere wus 'bout thirty in a drove. Dere 

wus 'bout three or four white men on horses. Dey wus 

called slave drivers, some vent before, an' some behind, 

Dey carried pistols on dere sides. De distance wus so fur, 

dey canped out at night. De slaves set by de fire, and 

slept on dese trips wid de chains on gem. Evertime 

de mens come to our house I wus afraid. my mother and 

father would be sold. away from me. If a woman wus a good 

breeder she sold high, sometimes bringinl five hundred 

to a thousand dollars. De man who wus doint de buyint 

would inspect den. Dey would look in dere mouthes 2 and 

look ' em over just like buyint hosses. There were no 

jails on de plantation. 

*Sometimes we went to the white folkees church. 
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De preacher would tell us to obey our missus and master. 

Dat's what de preacher tole us. Dey would take us back 

home and give us plenty to eat after preachin' was over, 

and tell us to do what de preacher said. Dey tasked us 

Saturday mornings, and if we got it done we could go 

to de branch on a flat rock and wash our clothes. 

"Dey ' lowed my father to hunt wid a gun. He wus a 

good hunter an' he brought a lot o' game to de plantation. 

Dey cooked it at de great house and divided it up. My 

father killed deer and turkey. All had plenty o' rabbits, 

possums, coons, an' squirrels. 

"My father's first wife wus sold from hjm, an' I 

am de chile o de second wife. I had five brothers, 

Greene, Isom, Nupez, den Sam. Woods, who was no slave, 

den Spencer Woods, he wus no slave. I had five sisters: 

Mollie, Basella, who were slaves, an' Nancy, Catharine, 

an' Fanny who were not slaves. My father wus named 

Major Woods, and mother wus named Betty Woods. 

Yes Sir, I ' member gettin' sick beforeAe surrender, 

an' dey bled me and gave me blue mass pills. Dey wouldet 

tell me what was de matter. Missus chewed our food for 

us, when we wus small. De babies wus fed wid sugar 

tits, and the food missus chewed,. Deir suckled, mothers 

suckled dem at dinner, an' den stayed in de field till 

night. I remember missus chewile fer.met an' de first 
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whippinl I got. Missus whipped me for pushin' my sister 

in de fire. Sister called me a lie and I pushed her in 

de fire an' burned her hand. Missus whipped ma. We 

never did fight nor push one another after dat. 

"Marster used colored overseers when he did not 

work his men hisself. 

"I wus very much afraid o' de Ku Klux. Dey wore 

masks and dey coula make you think dey could drink a 

whole bucket of water and walk widout noise, like a ghost. 

Colored folks wus afbaid of ' em. Dey wus de fear o' de 

niggers. 

"I married Addle Shaw in 1888 first, den in 1918 

I married agin. I think Abraham Lincoln wus all right. 

He caused us to be free. Franklin D. Roosevelt is all 

right; he kept a lot of people from perishing to death. 

BN 
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ANNA WRIGHT 

An. interview with Anna Wright, 72 years of age, of Wendell, 
North Carolina. 

"I wus borned de year de war ended so 7I,can't tell 

nothin' dat I seed, only what my mammy toll me. We lived 

dar on Marse James Ellis' plantation till I wus five or 

six years old, so I lmembers de slave cabins an' de big 

house. 

" De plantation wus in Scotland County an' de big 

house set on a little knoll. Back of de big house set 

de row of slave cabins an back of dem wus de apple orchard. 

e.t,T1.' de bee orchard: Hit wus a purty place silo* fluff, ant' 

dey tells me dat dey wus happy ' fore de war, case Marae 

James wile good ter dem. 

"Dere must of been 'bout two hundret slaves, ' cordin' 

ter de number of cabins. De slaves wurked hard in de fiel's 

but unless de wurk wus puShini dey had Sadday eVenini off 

Two or ter go a-fishin/ er do anything de wanted ter do. 

three times a year Marse ames let dem have a dance an 

invite all de neighborhood 
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an' pull de candy. While de candy cooled.deytd play 

_drappint de handkerchief an' a heap of other games.. De 

courtint couples liked dese.games ' case dey could set out 

or play an' court ll dey pleased. Dey often made up 

dere sin's ter ax de marster iffen dey could narry too, 

at dese partIes. 

"De weddin's wus somethinl fine, believe me. De 

niggers dressed lak a white folks weddint an' de circuit 

parson married dem in de big house parlour. - De marster 

an de missus wus dere, an' dey always gived presents ter 

de bride too. Atter de ceremony wus over dar'd be a feast 

an' a dance. Most likely dartd be a heap of noise. I've 

heard mammy tell of seberal big weddints. 

HI‘xe-mmy toll me dat ,-arse James wus a very religious 

man, an' &at wus why de preacher married de slaves, ant 

why he made all of de slaves go ter church on Sunday ant 

say de blessint at weal times. 

Tlgy pappy wus named Tom, ant he wurked in de fiel's 

fer karse James* Hit wus pappy dat haul up de waremelons 

in de win body atter I could 'member, an' dey said dat 

he boll .ein up in alaverY7times too. Marse-James raise a 

plenty melons tor all of de slaves au he raise plenty of 

hogs ter eat de rifles. Desl&veuEter have a waierra0.-on. 

• , 
?an..! 

A;Q.,„ 
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"You wants ter know ' bout some ole slavery foods, well 

I'll tell you what I knows. Did You ever hear of kush7 
r-
Kush wus cornbread, cooked in. de i6j griddle on de fireplace, 

mashed up with raw onions an' ham gravy poured over hit. 

You nAught think dat hit ain't good but hit-4m. 

"Fried chicken wus seasoned, drapped in flour an den 

simmered in a big pan of ham gravy vid a lid on hit till 

hit wus tender, den de lid wus tuck off an/ de chicken wus 

fried a golden brown as quick as pos,z..ible. 

"Does you know de old southern way of makin' baked 

chicken dressint? Uelli it wus made from soft corn bread 

wid bacon grease, onions, 'Jlack 1:!epper an' boiled eggs. 

Some of de folks used cheese too in dis dressin'. 

"De griddle cakes wus flour an' meal mixed, put on a 

big ole iron griddle on de fireplace an flipped over two 

times. il,she cake wus made of either meal or flour, wrapped 

in a damp cloth an' cooked in de hot ashes on de hlath. 

Taters wus cooked in de ashes togan' dey wus good like dat. 

I'se heard mammy say dat de slave chilluns uster bake onions 

dat way. 

jab., dem days, wus dipped in meal, 'fore dey wus 

cooked', tcept cat fish ant dey wus stewed wid onions. 

=meal dumpliats mtAbiled in de turnip greens, 

cabbages, aat so on, even ter snap beans, 
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supper de pot licker wus eat wid de dumplints. Datts why 

de folks wus so healthy. 

"Speakin"bout sweets, de blackberry or other 1kind of 

pie wus cooked in a big pan wid two crusts. flat made more 

an wus better ter boot. Cakes wus mostly plain or had 

jelly Main', tcept fer special company. 

'From the first I could 'member de white folks n' 

nigers alike ain't had much ter eat. A heap of our rations 

wus vegetables, squirrels, rabbits, possums an' coons. We 

drunk parched meal water fer coffee an' we done widout a 

heap pf things, but atter awhile we got richer, ant Marse 

James got some money for something from de totth, so dey 

got ' long all right. 

"When I wus twelve we moved ter 7:ake County, out near 

Wendell an' when I wus thirteen I married Sam Wright an' 

we got along fine till be dies ' bout ten years ago. We 

ain't had but three chilluns but we lived through a heap 

of bad depressions. 

"What we needs mostly am law an' justice. Why hit wus 

better when de Ku Kluxes had law, dey tells me. Now-a-days 

de nigger fights on de streets like dogs o Back den de 

bossmaz seed to hit dat dar wus law an' order in de town an 
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DmrTY YELLADY 
909 Mark Street 

"Yes sir, I 'members 'bout what my mammy tole me 

11:).out Abraham Lincoln, Grant, am' a lot of dem Yankees 

comint down ere 'fore de surrender. Frum what dey tole 

me Sherman knowed de south like a book tfore he come throt 

last time. Dat he did. Yankees COMB thro' dressed like 

tramps an' dey wus always lookin' fur some of dere people. 

Bat wus dere scuse. Dey wus at big shindigs de southern 

white folks had 'fore de war. 

"Mammy ant dad dey said de niggers would git in 

de slave quarters at night an' pray fer freedom an' laf 

'bout what de Yankees wus doin' ' bout Lincoln an) Grant 

foolin' deir marsters so. 

"Ole Jeff Davis said he wus goin' to fight de 

Yankees till hell wus so full of ' em dat dere legs wus 

hangint over de sides, but when dey got ' im in a close 

place he dres in ' omans clothes ant tried to git away 

frum ' em but dey seed his boots when he started to git 

in dat thing dey rode in den, a carriage. Yes data what 

it wus a carriage. Dey seed his boots ant knowed who it 

muss Dey jus laffed an' pointed at ' im an' said you halt 
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on dere we got you, we knows who you is ant den dey took 

'im. He wus mighty brave till dey got in a close 

place den he quit barkint so loud. Mammy an' dad dey 

said dere wus a lot of de white folks didn't keer much 

'bout Jeff Davis. Dey said he wus jus de bragginest man in 

de worll, always a-blowint. Dat bird flew mighty high but 

he had to come back to de groun' an' course when he lit de 

Yankees wus waitin' for vim an' ketched 

"I wus born May 2nd, two years aftgr de surrender. 

I is 70 years old. My mammy belonged to Aatsy Pool. 

When he died she fell to his son Billy Pool. There wus 

six of the chillun, an' they wus given out to the Pool 

chillun. Dey went like Ian' does now; dey went to de 

heirs. Ole man Autsy loved likker so good he would steal 

it from hisself. He'd take a drink an' den blow his 

breath an' keep wife from smellint it. 

noy uncle, Parker Pool, tole me de Yankees made 

a slave of him. His *water wus so good to him he wus 

as happy as he could be 'fore de Yankees come. 

"I wus born on the Harper Whitaker place near 

swift creek. Simon Yellady wus my father. He wus born 

in Mississippi an' he belonged to Dr. Yelladay. 
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"My father an' his brothers run away an' went to 

de Yankees. I heard daddy tell 'bout it. He got sick 

an' dey shipped him back home to North Carolina. Dey 

shifted niggers from place to place to keep de Yankees 

frum takin' 'em. When dere got to be too many Yankees 

in a place de slaves wus sent out to keep ' em from beinl 

set free. L. her said onct when she wus carrying the 

cows to de pasture dey looked down de railroad an' everything 

wus blue. A nigger girl by the name of Susan wus with her. 

My mother wus named Rilla Pool. Dey said dey jus fell 

down ant de Yankees commenced sayin' 'Hello Dinah,' 'Hello 

Susie.' Mother ant Susan run. Dey just went flyinl. 

When dey crossed a creek my mother lost her shoe in de 

mud, but she just kept runnin'. When she got home she 

tole her missus de Yankees were ridin' up de railroad 

just as thick as flies. Den my great-grandmother said, 

'Well I has been prayin' long enough for 'em now dey is 

here. My great-grandmother wus named Nancy Pool an' 

she wus not afraid of nothin'. I wus a little teency 

thing When she died. 

"My mother tole we all about dem times dey rode 

de horses up to de smoke houseanl got de meat. De 

Yankees went to de clothes line ant got de clothes ant 
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filled de legs an' arms wid corn ant_slung it over dere 

saddles an' rode away. Yes, de Yankees freed us but dey 

left nuthint for us to live on. Dey give us freedom but 

dey took most everything an' lef/ us nuthin' to eat, 

nuthint to live on. 

"We lived in Wake County all de time. I did not 

git only to the third grade in school. Sister Mary Eliza 

got to de second grade. Father could write a little, 

mother couldn't. Couldn't go to school tcept when it wus 

too wet to work. Work, work, work, thirty acres in cotton 

ant cawn$ cawn plowed till de 15th of August, plow, plow, 

plow hard ground, bad ground. Nine girls an' one boy 

workin' from sun to sun. My mother had twenty-three chillun. 

She wus just as smart as she could be, worked in de field 

till just awhile before she died. She been dead 'bout 

twenty years. M y father been dead 'bout ten years. He 

died right here in Raleigh with me, at 121 corner Mark 

ant Bledsoe Street. 

"I've had a hard time workin' all my life. I ain't 

able to work now but I does all I can. I have places to 

work a little every day for my white folks. I am gwine 

to work long as I kin. My mother an' father said dey had 

good marsters an' dey were crazy 'bout tem. Sometimes 
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dey sold slaves an' den de patterollers whupped ' em now ant 

den, but dey had nuthin' to say against dere white folks. 

"Well, I lost Iv home. I have worked mos' uv my 

life since I come to Raleigh, buyin' a home, but I got 

ole an.' couldn't keep up de payments an' dey corns down 

ere an' took my home. ' Twas the wurst thing dats come 

to me in my Whole life. Less you tried it yo' can't 

'magine how bad it makes you feel to have to give up 

yer home." 

AC 
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HILLIARD YELLERDAY 
1112 Oakwood Avenue, Raleigh North Carolina. 

"My mother and father told me many interesting stories 

of slavery and of its joys and sorrows. trom what they 

told me there was two sides to the picture. One was 

extremely bad and the other was good. 

',These features of slavery were also dependent an the 

phases of human attitude and temperment which also was good 

or bad* If the master was broadminded, with a love in his 

.heart for his fellowman, his slaves were at no disadvantage 

because of their low social standing and their lack of a 

voice in the civil affairs of the community, state)and 

nation. On the other hand if the master was narrowminded)-

syerbeartng and cruel the case was reversed and the situation 

the slavea were placed in caused a condition to exist con— 

cerning their general welfare that was bad and the slave 

was as low socially as the swine or other animals on the 

plantation. 

"Some owners gave their slaves the same kind of food 

served on their own tables and allowed the slaves the same 

privileges enjoyed by their own children. Other masters 

fed their slave children from troughs made very much like 

those from which the hogs of the plantation were fed. 
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There were many instances where they were given water 

in Which the crumbs and refuse from the masters table had 

been placed. They gathered around this food with gourds 

and muscle shells from the fresh-water creeks and ate from 

this trough. Such a , \cdndition was very bad indeed. 

"My mother was named Maggie Yellerday, and my father 

was named Sam Yellerday. They belonged to Dr. Jonathan 

Yellerday, who owned a large plantation and over a hundred 

slaves. His plantation looked like a small town. lie had 

, .a.cksmith shops, shoe shops, looms for weaving cloth, a 

corn mill and a liquor distillery. There was a tan-- ard 

covering more than a quarter of an acre where he tanned 

the hides of animals to use in making shoes. There was a 

large bell they used to wake the slaves tin the morning, and 

to call them to their meals during the day. He had 

carriages and horses ) stable men and carriage men.' The 

carriage master and his family rode in was called a coach 

by the slaves on the plantation. His house had eighteen 

rooms ) a large hall)and four large porches. The house set 

in a large grove about one mile square and the slave quarters 

were arranged in rows at the back of master's great house. 

The nearest cabins were about one hundred yards from it. 

"Dr. Jonathan Yellerday looked after slaveslhealth 

and the food was fair, but the slaves were worked by over— 

seers who made it hard for them, as he allowed them to 
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whip a slave at will. he had so many slaves he did not 

know all their names. His fortune was his slaves. He did 

not sell slaves and he did not buy many, the last ten years 

preceeding the war. He resorted to raising his own slaves. 

"When a girl became a woman she was required to go to 

a man and become a mother. There was generally a form of 

marriage. The master read a paper to them telling them they 

were man and wife. Some were married by the master laying 

down a broom and the two slaves, man and woman would jump 

over it. The master would then tell them they were man and 

wife and they could go to bed together. Master would some-

times go and get a large hale hearty Negro man from some 

other plantation to go to his legro woman. He would ask the 

other master to let this man come over to his place to go 

to his slave girls. A slave girl was expected to have 

children as soon as she became a woman. Some of them had 

children at the age of twelve and thirteen years old. Negro 

men six feet tall went to some of these children. 

"Mother said there were cases where these young girls 

loved someone else and would have to receive the attentions 

of men of the master's choice. This was a general custom. 

This state of affairs tended to loosen the morals of the Negro 

race and they have never fully recovered from its effect. 

Some slave women would have dozens of men during their life. 

Negro women who had had a half dozen mock husbands in 
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slavery time time were plentiful. The holy bonds of matrimony 

did not mean much to a slave. The masters called themselves 

Christians, went to church worship regularly and yet allowed 

this condition to exist. Mother, father,,Bister,and I 

were sent as refug68 from Mississippi to N.C. They were 

afraid the -ankees would get us in Mississippi. I was 

only four years old when the war ended as I was born.April 

6, 1861 so I do not remember the trip. We were sent . to 

Warren County to the Brownloets plantation where we stayed 

until the war ended. 

"There was a question as to just what Mississippi 

would do and then mother said the Doctor feared we would be 

taken by the Yankees there so he sent us to N.C. to the 

above named County. Mother was sent to stay with Mrs.Green 

Parrish and she took me with her. 16. Green Parrish was 

gone to the war. In the last of the war, he was wounded 

and sent home. While he was recovering I fanned the flies 

off him. That's the first thing I remember about the war. 

Wheahe got well he went back and then the war soon ended. 

After the war ended father and the family moved to Halifax 

County and worked on a farm belonging to Mr. Sterling 

Johnston. I was in ,arren County when I first began to 

remember anything and I do not have any specific remembrance 

of the Yankees. We stayed in Halifax County eighteen years, 

going from one plantation to another, but we made no money. 

The landlords got all we made except what we ate and wore. 
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They would always tell us we ate ours up'. Sometimes we 

would be almost naked, barefooted and hungry when the ctop 

was housed and then the landlord would make us leave. We 

would go to another with about the same results. 

"There was a story going that each slave would get 

forty acres of land and a mule at the end of the war. The 

Yankees started this story but the mule and land was never 

given and slaves were turned out without anything and with 

nowhere to go. 

"We moved to Wake County and I farmed until 1903. I 

had not gotten one hundred dollars ahead in all this time 

so I got a job with the railroad, S.A.L. Shops in Raleigh, 

N.C. and that is the only place I ever made any money. 

"Father died in 1900 and mother in 1923. I worked 

from 1903 until 1920 with the S.A.L. Railroad as flunkey. 

I worked as box packer and machinist's helper. Mother and 

father died without ever owning a house but I saved 

thy money while working for the Railroad Company and bought 

this lot 157X52 and had :this house built on it. The house 

has five rooms and cost about one thousand dollars. I've 

been so of late years I could not pay my taxes. I am 

partially blind and unable to work anymore." 

EH 


